
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING/ 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 
Monday, October 10, 2022 

Regular Meeting - 4:00 P.M. 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) ADVISORY NOTICE
This meeting will be held pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (as amended by AB 361), 
which authorizes teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during a proclaimed state of 
emergency.  The Governor of California proclaimed a State of Emergency related to COVID-19 
on March 4, 2020.  Consistent with Government Code Section 54953, this meeting will not be 
physically open to the public and Board Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting.  To 
maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members 
of the public can observe the meeting by following the steps listed below, and may provide 
public comment by sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at 
assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov before or during the meeting or via voicemail by 
calling 510-477-7599 before 3:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting.  Comments will then be 
read into the record, with a maximum allowance of 3 minutes per individual comment, subject to 
the Board President’s discretion.  All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which 
corresponds to approximately 3 minutes of speaking time.  If a comment is received after the 
agenda item is heard but before the close of the meeting, the comment will still be included as a 
part of the record of the meeting but will not be read into the record. 

Any member of the public who needs accommodations should email or call the Board Clerk, 
assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or 510-477-7503, who will use their best efforts to provide 
reasonable accommodations to provide as much accessibility as possible while also maintaining 
public safety in accordance with the Union Sanitary District procedure for resolving reasonable 
accommodation requests. 

To listen to this Regular Board Meeting: 

Call:  1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247 

Meeting ID: 851 9676 1691 # 

Participant ID:  # 

Click the Zoom link below to watch and listen: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85196761691 

Page 1 of 175

mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov
mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85196761691


 
1. Call to Order.   

 

 

2. Salute to the Flag. (This item has been suspended until in-person meetings resume.) 
  

 

3. Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Union Sanitary District Board Meeting of September 26, 2022. 
 

 

5. Written Communications. 
 

 

6. Public Comment. 
 Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item 
is considered.  Speaker cards will be available in the Boardroom and are requested to be completed 
prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
 

 

Motion 7. Review and Consider Proposed Changes to Ordinance 36.04 Relating to Environmental 
Compliance Administrative Fines Under Certain Circumstances (to be reviewed by the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Motion 8. Consider a Resolution Confirming and Declaring the Need to Continue the Emergency 
Action to Repair Two Sewer Lines in the City of Fremont Damaged by Fiber Optic Line 
Installation (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology 
Committee). 
 

 

Motion 9. COVID-19 Update and Consider Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Use of 
Teleconference Meetings in Compliance with AB 361. 
 

 

Information 10. Update on Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Public Outreach Campaign (to be reviewed by 
the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Information 11. Check Register. 
 

 

Information        12. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Thursday, October 6, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. 

• Director Handley and Director Lathi 
b. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, October 7, 2022, at 10:30 a.m. 

• Director Kite and Director Lathi 
c. Budget & Finance Committee – will not meet. 
d. Investment & Portfolio Committee – will not meet. 
e. Legislative Committee – will not meet. 
f. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information        13.   General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

      14.     Other Business: 
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are 

welcome to request information from staff. 
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 
 

 

Page 2 of 175



   15. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Board Closed Session to be held virtually 
on Thursday, October 13, 2022, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

 

16. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting to be 
held virtually on Monday, October 24, 2022, at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 
 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 3 of 175



 
            

 
 

 
 
 

ENGINEERING AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Handley and Director Lathi 
 

AGENDA 
Thursday, October 6, 2022 

11:30 A.M. 
 

Alvarado Conference Room 
5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 

 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
This meeting will be held pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (as amended by AB 361), which authorizes 

teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during a proclaimed state of emergency.  The Governor of California 
proclaimed a State of Emergency related to COVID-19 on March 4, 2020.  Consistent with Government Code Section 
54953, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be teleconferencing into the 

meeting via conference call.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can 
observe the meeting by calling 510-477-6190 to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email anytime during the meeting at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or 

via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2. Roll Call 
 

 

3. Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the 
comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  
Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

4. Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of October 10, 2022: 
• Consider a Resolution Confirming and Declaring the Need to Continue the Emergency Action 

to Repair Two Sewer Lines in the City of Fremont Damaged by Fiber Optic Line Installation  
 

 

5. Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action 
will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 4 of 175

mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov


 
            

 
 

 
 
 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  
Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Lathi 

 
AGENDA 

Friday, October 7, 2022 
10:30 A.M. 

 
Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

 

 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
This meeting will be held pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (as amended by AB 361), which authorizes 

teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during a proclaimed state of emergency.  The Governor of California 
proclaimed a State of Emergency related to COVID-19 on March 4, 2020.  Consistent with Government Code Section 
54953, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be teleconferencing into the 

meeting via conference call.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can 
observe the meeting by calling 510-477-6190 to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email anytime during the meeting at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or 

via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2. Roll Call 
 

 

3. Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the 
comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  
Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

4. Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of October 10, 2022: 
• Review and Consider Proposed Changes to Ordinance 36.04 Relating to Environmental 

Compliance Administrative Fines Under Certain Circumstances 
• Update on Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Public Outreach Campaign 
 

 

5. Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action 
will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 5 of 175

mailto:assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov


 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT/UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 

September 26, 2022 
 
This meeting was held pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (as amended by AB 

361), which authorizes teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during a 
proclaimed state of emergency.  The Governor of California proclaimed a State of 

Emergency related to COVID-19 on March 4, 2020.  Consistent with Government Code 
Section 54953, this meeting was not physically open to the public and all Board Members 

teleconferenced into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining 
transparency and public access, members of the public were able to observe the Board 

Meeting and provide public comment by sending comments to the Board Clerk. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  The regular meeting time was 
modified due to the COVID-19 emergency. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President  

Manny Fernandez, Vice President 
Jennifer Toy, Secretary 

  Tom Handley, Director 
 
ABSENT: Pat Kite, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Mark Carlson, Business Services Manager/CFO 

Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
Jose Rodrigues, Collection Services Manager 
Raymond Chau, Technical Services Manager 
Marcus Lee, Treatment & Disposal Services Coach 
Allan Briggs, Interim Customer Service Team Coach 
Chris Pachmayer, FMC Electrical & Technology Coach 
Gus Carrillo, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Assistant Engineer 

  Ric Pipkin, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager 
  Alisa Gordon, Human Resources Manager 
  Trieu Nguyen, IT Administrator 
  Sharon Anderson, Administrative Specialist 
  Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
   
 
 
 

Page 6 of 175



 

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING OF 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 
 
It was moved by Vice President Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Toy, to Approve the 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of September 12, 2022.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 

 
AUGUST 2022 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance and Legal/Community Affairs 
Committees.  General Manager Eldredge provided an overview of the Monthly Report, 
and Business Services Manager/CFO Carlson provided an overview of the financial 
reports. 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no written communications. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 
 

CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2021 CAST IRON/PIPE LINING PROJECT FROM SOUTHWEST PIPELINE & 
TRENCHLESS CORP. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Chau stated that the Board awarded the construction 
contract for the Project to Southwest on November 9, 2020, in the amount of $307,015. 
Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to Southwest on December 16, 2020, with a scheduled 
completion date of March 15, 2021. The Project experienced delays due to unforeseen 
circumstances. The Project was completed on September 1, 2022. Staff recommended 
the Board consider a resolution to accept the construction of the FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe 
Lining Project (Project) from Southwest Pipeline & Trenchless Corp. (Southwest) and 
authorize recordation of a Notice of Completion. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Vice President Fernandez, to Approve a 
Resolution to Accept the Construction of the FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining Project (Project) 
from Southwest Pipeline & Trenchless Corp. (Southwest) and Authorize Recordation of 
a Notice of Completion.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None  
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 

Page 7 of 175



 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF UNCLASSIFIED PUBLICLY AVAILABLE 
PAY SCHEDULE 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Human Resources Manager 
Gordon stated details of salary changes were outlined in the Board meeting packet.  Staff 
recommended the Board approve the Publicly Available Pay Schedule for Unclassified 
Employees effective September 1, 2022. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Toy, seconded by Director Handley, to Approve the Publicly 
Available Pay Schedule for Unclassified Employees effective September 1, 2022. Motion 
carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None  
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
CONSIDER CONFIRMING AND DECLARING THE NEED TO CONTINUE THE 
EMERGENCY ACTION TO REPAIR TWO SEWER LINES IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 
DAMAGED BY FIBER OPTIC LINE INSTALLATION 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Collection Services Manager Rodrigues stated that on September 12, 2022, the Board 
adopted Resolution No. 2982 declaring an emergency and authorizing the expenditure of 
funds to allow staff to proceed with the expeditious repair of two sewer lines in the City of 
Fremont. Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 22050, the Board is required to review 
the status of emergency action at each subsequent meeting until the emergency action 
is terminated and authorize continuation of the emergency action by a four-fifths vote.  
Staff recommended the Board adopt a motion by a four-fifths vote declaring a continuance 
of emergency and authorizing continued repair of the two sewer lines in the City of 
Fremont.   
 
It was moved by Vice President Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Toy, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2984 Declaring an Emergency and Authorizing the Emergency 
Expenditure of Funds for the Repair of Two Sewer Lines in the City of Fremont Damaged 
by Fiber Optic Line Installation.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None  
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Status of Priority 1 Capital Improvement Program Projects 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Chau stated the Board approved the Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) budget of $43.19 million for design and construction of 31 CIP projects in 
June 2021. The Projects were ranked Priority 1, 2, or 3 based upon criteria prepared by 

Page 8 of 175



 

staff and approved by the Executive Team. There were 18 projects ranked as Priority 1 
for Fiscal Year 2022. The status of Priority 1 CIP Projects is reviewed by the Executive 
Team at the end of each quarter and a copy of the status report was included in the Board 
meeting packet. 
 
Fourth Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2022 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Chau stated fourth quarter expenditures for Fiscal Year 
2022 were presented in graphs included in the Board meeting packet. The graphs 
depicted actual expenditures versus approved budget for Capacity Fund 90, the Renewal 
and Replacement Fund 80, and for both funds combined. Total CIP expenditures for the 
fiscal year were 62.3% of the total budgeted amount. However, when taking the 
Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Campus project schedule into consideration, the 
percentage of the CIP budget spent increases to 78%.  Other notable projects that had 
variances from projected expenditures were presented in a table included in the Board 
meeting packet.  
 
Fourth Quarterly Report on the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program for 
Fiscal Year 2022 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager Pipkin stated the Enhanced 
Treatment and Site Upgrade Quarterly Program Management Report for the fourth 
quarter of Fiscal Year 2022 was included in the Board meeting packet. The report 
provides an executive summary of the ETSU Program status and the Program Dashboard 
as currently shown on the District Website. 
  
COVID-19 Update  
 
General Manager Eldredge provided an update regarding COVID-19 impacts on District 
operations and coordination efforts.   
 
Check Register 
There were no questions regarding the check register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
The Budget & Finance, Engineering and Information Technology, Personnel, and 
Legal/Community Affairs Committees met.    
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 

• General Manager Eldredge provided an update on the SRF Loan application for 
the ETSU program.  The State Water Resources Board will hold a public hearing 
on Monday, October 3, 2022.   

• A future Board Workshop will be scheduled to discuss additional funding 
opportunities for the ETSU program. 

• The General Managers Annual Evaluation Board Closed Session will be held 
Thursday, October 13, 2022.  

Page 9 of 175



 

• Environmental Compliance Team staff participated in the 2022 Newark Days 
Celebration. 

• Collection Services repaired the area surrounding two USD manholes located in 
front of Pacifica Senior Living in Union City.  The repair eliminated potential 
hazards and improved the overall aesthetics of the area surrounding the manholes.  

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:39 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting to be held 
virtually on Monday, October 10, 2022, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________   _________________________ 
SHARON ANDERSON    JENNIFER TOY 
ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIALIST   SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT   

 
Adopted this 10th day of October 2022 

Page 10 of 175



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
October 10, 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
TITLE: Review and Consider Proposed Changes to Ordinance 36.04 Relating to 

Environmental Compliance Administrative Fines Under Certain Circumstances 
(This is a Motion Item) 

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Raymond Chau, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
 Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Team Coach 
 
 
Recommendation 
Review and consider proposed changes to Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance relating to 
Environmental Compliance Notice of Violation Administrative Fines under certain 
circumstances pursuant to previous Board direction. 
 
 
Discussion 
Pursuant to a Board inquiry, staff shared at the July 25, 2022 Board meeting that it is not a 
federal requirement to assess fines for every Notice of Violation issued by the Environmental 
Compliance group, however it is a requirement of USD’s Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use 
Ordinance.  Staff also indicated that changing the administration of fines and penalties in 
Ordinance 36.04, Section 6.08 would require Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) 
review. 
 
The Board directed staff to draft revisions to the ordinance language that gives staff the 
flexibility to waive or reduce fines under certain circumstances and to present the proposed 
changes to the Board for their consideration. 
 

Page 11 of 175



Agenda Item No. 7 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
The proposed language in the revised policy is as follows: 
 
6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties 
 
(e) Administrative Penalties 
 
 Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 

Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued, except 
that the General Manager may waive or reduce penalties in their sole discretion for a 
violation that is minor in nature, the first violation within the last 5 years, is inadvertent 
and where the violator is cooperating with the District in resolving the matter. 

 
 
Pursuant to previous discussions, staff believes this meets the Board’s intent regarding 
revisions to this policy.  Should the Board concur, staff will update the policy accordingly and 
present the modified version to the Regional Board for their review and report back should the 
Regional Board disagree with the edits. 
 
 
Background 
During the July 25, 2022 Board meeting, staff responded to these questions asked by a Board 
Director during a previous committee meeting: 

• Is it a federal requirement to impose fines on industries for Notices of Violation? 

• Does the District have to impose fines on every Notice of Violation, or does the District 
have any flexibility under the current Ordinance under certain circumstances (first 
violation over a certain period of time, cause of the violation, etc.)? 

 
After staff’s and District Counsel’s review, it was determined that it is not a federal requirement 
to assess fines for every Notice of Violation, however it is a requirement of USD’s Ordinance 
36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance.  The Ordinance’s Section 6.08(e) – Administrative Penalties 
states “Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 
Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued.” 
 
Changing the administration of fines and penalties in Ordinance 36.04, Section 6.08 would 
require Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) review.  Staff’s position is that the 
change is a minor administrative change and would not “result in less stringent requirements 
being imposed on Industrial Users of the POTW,” as the change would not affect any pollutant 
or other technical requirements.  It is not clear if the RWQCB would agree with staff’s position, 
but staff could present the position to the RWQCB during their review. 
 

Page 12 of 175



Agenda Item No. 7 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 
The addition of administrative penalties was incorporated into the Ordinance on July 26, 2004, 
when the Board conducted a Public Hearing.  The Board had asked staff to consider adding 
administrative penalties as a measure to offset District expenses related to administering 
permit violations.  Prior to the Public Hearing, District staff reached out to all industrial users 
and asked for input regarding implementing administrative penalties.  The District did not 
receive any negative feedback or concerns. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
June 21, 2004, the Board conducted a Public Hearing to adopt cost recovery language addition 
to the Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36, Section 6.08. 
 
July 20, 2004, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2425 to include Cost Recovery provisions to 
Ordinance No. 36, Section 6.08. 
 
July 25, 2022, the Board received information and provided direction regarding Environmental 
Compliance Notice of Violation Administrative Fines under certain circumstances. 
 
 
PRE/RC/MD 
 
Attachments: 
 

Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance – Redline Version 
Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance – Clean Version 

Page 13 of 175



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
SEWER USE ORDINANCE 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 36.045 

Page 14 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose & Policy ...................................................................................................... 1 
1.02 Definitions ............................................................................................................ 2-11 
1.03 Analytical & Sampling Methodology & Procedures ........................................... 11 

SECTION 2 
REGULATIONS 

2.01 Sewer Use Requirements ..................................................................................... 11 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges .................................................................................. 11-13 
2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community 

sewer........................................................................................................... 1313-14 
2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam 

Fillings ................................................................................................................. 14-15 
2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater ..................................... 15-16 
2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Cleanup Projects ......................................... 16 
2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water .......................................................................... 16 
2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes......................................................... 16-17 
2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders ...................................................... 17 
2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge ...................................................................... 17 
2.09 Holding Tank Waste ......................................................................................... 17-18 
2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength .............................................................. 18-20 
2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges ............................................................................ 20 
2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution ............................................................................... 20 
2.13 Prohibition of Bypass ............................................................................................. 21 
2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Process Solution Tanks ............................. 21-22 
2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing 

Pass-through or Interference ................................................................................ 22 
2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes ............................. 22 
2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas ...................................... 22 
2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections ................................... 22 

SECTION 3 
WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 

3.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 22 
3.02 Metered Water Supply ..................................................................................... 22-23 

SECTION 4 
ADMINISTRATION 

4.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 23 
4.02 Discharge Reports .................................................................................................. 24 

Page 15 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Reports……………………………………  23-24 24-25 
4.04 Permit Application ............................................................................................. 25-26 
4.05 Permit Conditions ............................................................................................. 26-28 
4.06 Duration of Permits ...................................................................................... 28 
4.07 Modification of Permits……………………………………………………27 28-29 
4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer .............................................................. 29 
4.09 Revocation of Permit ........................................................................................ 29-30 
4.10 Monitoring Facilities .......................................................................................... 30-31 
4.11 Inspection and Sampling ....................................................................................... 31 
4.12 Search Warranties .................................................................................................. 31 
4.13 Pretreatment ............................................................................................................ 32 
4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge ................................................................. 32 
4.15 Confidential Information ......................................................................................... 32 
4.16 Signature Requirement .................................................................................... 33-34 
4.17 Retention of Records ............................................................................................. 34 
4.18 Notice to Employees .............................................................................................. 34 
4.19 Preventive Measures ....................................................................................... 34-35 
4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions ..................................................................... 35 
4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge ....................................................... 35 
4.22 Special Agreements ............................................................................................... 36 
4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW ..................................... 36 
4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements ............................................. 36-37 
4.25 Special Agreements ......................................................................................... 37-40 

 
 

SECTION 5 
WASTEWATER CHARGES & FEES 

5.01 Schedule of Charges & Fees ................................................................................ 40 
5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges & Fees ..................................................... 40 

 
 

SECTION 6 
ENFORCEMENT 

6.01 Notification of Discharge ........................................................................................ 41 
6.02 Notification of Violation .......................................................................................... 41 
6.03 Consent Orders ...................................................................................................... 41 
6.04 Show Cause Hearing ............................................................................................. 42 
6.05 Administrative Orders ............................................................................................ 42 
6.06 Issuance of Cease & Desist Orders .................................................................... 42 
6.07 Legal Authority to Administrative Fines .............................................................. 43 
6.08 Administrative Procedures & Penalties ......................................................... 43-46 
6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule ........................................................ 46 
6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports ...................................................... 46-47 
6.11 Appeals .................................................................................................................... 47 

Page 16 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems ........................................................................ 47-48 
6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling & Reporting............................................. 48 
6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users ......................................................................... 48 
6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant 

Non-Compliance ..................................................................................................... 48 

SECTION 7 
ABATEMENT 

7.01 Public Nuisance. ............................................................................................... 48-49 
7.02 Recovery of Expenses ........................................................................................... 49 
7.03 Injunctive Relief ...................................................................................................... 49 
7.04 Damage to Facilities ............................................................................................... 49 
7.05 Civil Penalties .......................................................................................................... 49 
7.06 Court Imposed Civil & Criminal Penalties ........................................................... 50 
7.07 Falsifying Information ............................................................................................. 50 
7.08 Termination of Service ........................................................................................... 51 
7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service ...................................................................... 51 
7.10 Immediate termination of Discharge .................................................................... 52 
7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies ........................................................................................ 52 

SECTION 8 
SEVERABILITY 

Section 8 -Severability ..................................................................................................... 53 

SECTION 9 
Section 9 ............................................................................................................................ 53 

SECTION 10 
PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY ............................................................................. 53 

SUPPLEMENT........................................................................................................................... 54 
40 CFR Part 2.302(2): Definition of Effluent Data. ................................................ 54-55 
40 CFR Part 136: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations on Test 

Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants ............................... 55 
40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 

Identifying Hazardous Waste .................................................... 55 
40 CFR Part 403.5: National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited 

Discharges ............................................................................. 55-57 
40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi): Slug Control Plans .......................................................... 58 
40 CFR Part 403.12 Reporting Requirements for POTWs & Industrial Users .... 58 

Page 17 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h): Reporting Requirements for Industrial Users Not 
Subject to Categorical Standards ........................................ 58 

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification. ......................... 59 
40 CFR Part 405 - 471: Categorical Standards & Requirements. ........................... 60 
Locally regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants. ................................................................ 61 

Page 18 of 175



1  

Section 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose and Policy 
 

This ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for users of the Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works of the Union Sanitary District and enables the Agency to comply with all applicable 
Local, State and Federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code § 
1251 et seq.), the General Pretreatment Regulations (40 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 403) and the water quality requirements set by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board and/or the State of California Water Resource Control Board. The objectives of this 
ordinance are: 

 
(a) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

that will interfere with its operation; 
 

(b) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
that will pass through the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, inadequately treated, 
into receiving waters, or otherwise be incompatible with the Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works; 

 
(c) To protect both Publicly Owned Treatment Works personnel who may be affected by 

wastewater and sludge in the course of their employment and the general public; 
 

(d) To promote reuse and recycling of industrial wastewater and sludge from the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; 

 
(e) To provide revenues derived from the application of this Ordinance which shall be 

used to defray the Agency's cost of operating and maintaining adequate wastewater 
collection and treatment systems and to provide sufficient funds for capital outlay, 
bond service costs, capital improvements, and depreciation for the equitable 
distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance, and improvement of the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; and 

 
(f) To enable Agency to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

permit conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements, and any other Federal, 
State or Local laws to which the Publicly Owned Treatment Works is subject. 

 
This ordinance shall apply to all users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works. The 
ordinance authorizes the issuance of wastewater discharge permits; provides for 
monitoring, compliance, and enforcement activities; establishes administrative review 
procedures; requires user reporting; and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable 
distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein. 

Page 19 of 175



2  

1.02 Definitions 
 
 

Unless otherwise defined herein, terms shall be as found in Title 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Parts 403 and 136. 

 
(a) Agency: Union Sanitary District. 

 
(b) Amalgam: an alloy containing mercury, tin, silver, or copper that is used in dentistry 

to restore teeth. 
 

(c) Amalgam Separator: a device that applies filtration, settlement, centrifugation, or 
ion exchange to remove amalgam and its metal constituents from a dental office 
vacuum system before it discharges to the sewer. 

 
(d) Amalgam Waste: includes non-contact amalgam (amalgam scrap that has not 

been in contact with the patient); contact amalgam (including, but not limited to, 
extracted teeth containing amalgam); amalgam sludge captured by chair-side 
traps, vacuum pump filters, screens and other amalgam trapping devices; used 
amalgam capsules; and leaking or unusable amalgam capsules. 

 
(e) Authority: The East Bay Dischargers Authority. 

 
(f) Batch Discharge: A definite quantity or volume of wastewater produced under 

conditions that are considered uniform. 
 

(g) Beneficial Uses: Uses of the waters of the state that may be protected against 
quality degradation include, but are not necessarily limited to, domestic, municipal, 
agricultural and industrial supply, power generation, recreation, aesthetic 
enjoyment, navigation and the preservation and enhancement of fish, wildlife and 
other aquatic resources or reserves, and other uses, both tangible or intangible, 
as specified by federal or state law. 

 
(h) Best Management Practices or BMPs: Schedules of activities, prohibitions of 

practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to 
implement the prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b). BMPs also include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site 
runoff, spillage and leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw 
materials. 

 
(i) Building Sewer: A sewer conveying wastewater from a point 30 inches or less from 

the building or structure to a main sewer. The building sewer includes that portion 
on the property and that portion from the property line or easement line to the 
sewer main (Lateral Sewer). 

Page 20 of 175



3  

(j) Bypass: The intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of an 
Industrial User's treatment facility. 

 
(k) Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard: Standards specifying 

the quantity, concentration, or properties of pollutants that may be discharged to 
POTWs. EPA promulgates pretreatment standards for specific industry categories 
in accordance with Clean Water Act section 307. These standards are codified in 
40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N, Parts 405-471. 

 
(l) Chemical Oxygen Demand or COD: The measure of the oxygen equivalent of the 

organic matter content of a sample that is susceptible to oxidation by a strong 
chemical oxidant. 

 
(m) Community Sewer: A sewer owned and operated by the Agency, a city, or other 

public agency tributary to a treatment facility operated by the Agency or the 
Authority. 

 
(n) Compatible Pollutant: Biochemical oxygen demand, chemical oxygen demand, 

suspended solids, pH and fecal coliform bacteria, plus additional pollutants 
identified in the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit if the publicly owned treatment works was designed to treat such 
pollutants, and in fact does remove such pollutants to a substantial degree. 

 
(o) Composite Sample: A sample resulting from the combination of individual 

wastewater samples taken at selected intervals based on an increment of either 
flow or time. Samples may be taken manually or by using automatic equipment. 
Manual composite samples shall consist of a minimum of four (4) grab samples. 

 
(p) Contamination: An impairment of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to 

a degree which creates a hazard to the public health through poisoning or through 
the spread of disease. Contamination shall include any equivalent effect resulting 
from the disposal of wastewater, whether or not waters of the state are affected. 

 
(q) District: Union Sanitary District 

 
(r) Domestic Use: Any single family or multifamily residence which discharges, or 

causes, or allows the discharge of domestic wastewater to the POTW. 
 

(s) Domestic Wastewater: The liquid waste or liquid-borne waste discharged from 
residential units, normally resulting from the non-commercial preparation, cooking 
and handling of food, personal laundry, and wastes from sanitary conveniences or 
from sanitary devices in industrial or commercial establishments. 

 
(t) Environmental Protection Agency or EPA: The U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency or, where appropriate, the Regional Water Management Division Director, 
or other duly authorized official of said agency. 

Page 21 of 175



4  

 

(u) Federal Act, Clean Water Act: The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known 
as the Clean Water Act, as amended, PL 92-500 Title 33 U.S. Code, section 1251 
et seq. (and any amendments thereto; as well as any guidelines, limitations, and 
standards promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the 
Act.) 

 
(v) Grab Sample: A sample that is taken from a wastestream without regard to the 

flow in the wastestream and over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) 
minutes. 

 
(w) Hazardous Waste: Waste substances which can pose a hazard to human health 

or the environment when improperly managed; or. waste that possesses at least 
one of these four characteristics: ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity or toxicity; or 
appears on special U.S. EPA lists. This definition also includes all wastes 
covered in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5 
Environmental Health Standards for the Management of Hazardous Waste. 

 
(x) Holding Tank Waste: Any waste from temporary or permanent containers such as 

holding tanks, vessels, truck tanks, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, 
totes, drums, vacuum pump tank trucks, etc. 

 
(y) Incompatible Pollutant: Any pollutant, which is not a compatible pollutant as 

defined in this section. 
 

(z) Industrial User: An industrial or commercial business, which discharges, or causes, 
or allows the discharge of non-domestic wastewater to the POTW. 

 
(aa) Industrial Wastewater: Liquid waste or liquid-borne waste that is generated in a 

commercial or industrial process. 
 

(bb)  Indirect Discharge or Discharge: The introduction of pollutants into the POTW from 
any non-domestic source regulated under Section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the Clean 
Water Act. 

 
(cc) Interference: A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with discharges from other 

sources, both: 
 

(1) inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations, or its 
sludge processes, use or disposal; and therefore 

 
(2) is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit 

(including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation) or of the 
prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance with the following 
statutory provisions and regulations or permits issued there under (or more 
stringent state or local regulations): Section 405 of the Clean Water Act, the 

Page 22 of 175



5  

Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including Title II, more commonly referred 
to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and including 
state regulations contained in any state sludge management plan prepared 
pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA), the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances 
Control Act, and the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act. 

 
(dd) Manager: The General Manager of the District, or his or her designated 

representative. 
 

(ee) Mass Limit Rate: The weight of material discharged to the sewer system during a 
given time interval. Unless otherwise specified, the mass limit rate shall mean 
pounds per day of a constituent or combination of constituents. 

 
(ff) Maximum Allowable Discharge Limit: The maximum concentration of a pollutant 

allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete 
or composite sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the 
duration of the sampling event. 

 
(gg) Medical Waste: Any waste, liquid or solid, generated by a medical facility which 

may pose a health and/or safety threat to Agency personnel. 
 

(hh) National Pretreatment Standard, Pretreatment Standard, or Standard: Any 
regulation containing pollutant discharge limits or Best Management Practices 
promulgated by the EPA in accordance with section 307 (b) and (c) of the Clean 
Water Act, that applies to industrial users. This term includes prohibitive discharge 
limits established pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5. 

 
(ii) New Source: Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is or 

may be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the 
publication of proposed pretreatment standards under Section 307c of the Clean 
Water Act that will be applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter 
promulgated, provided that: 

 
(1) The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no 

other source is located; or 
 

(2) The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or 
production equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing 
source; or 

 
(3) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, 

facility or installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the 
same site. In determining whether these are substantially independent, factors 
such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, 
and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the existing source should be considered 

Page 23 of 175



6  

 

(jj) pH: A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in standard units. 
 

(kk) POTW Treatment Plant: That portion of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works which 
is designed to provide treatment (including recycling and reclamation) of municipal 
sewage and industrial waste. 

 
(ll)  Pass Through: A discharge that exits the POTW into waters of the United States in 

quantities or concentrations that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or 
discharges from other sources, is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the 
POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a 
violation). 

 
(mm) Person: Any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, corporation, 

association, joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other 
legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or assigns. This definition 
includes any Federal, State and local governmental entity. 

 
(nn)  Pesticides: Total pesticides identified in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water 

Act which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(oo)  Phenolics: Compounds having one or more hydroxy groups attached to a benzene 
or other polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons as tested using EPA Method 420. 

 
(pp)  Pollution: An alteration of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to a degree 

which unreasonably affects such waters for beneficial use or facilities which serve 
such beneficial uses. Pollution may include contamination. 

 
(qq)  Pollution Prevention: Activities which reduce the amount of pollutants discharged 

to the community sewer, without transferring those pollutants to the air or land, 
including reduction in the use of chemicals containing regulated pollutants, 
reduction in the generation of wastes which contain pollutants, recovery and 
recycling of wastes and/or improved pretreatment of wastes prior to discharge. 

 
(rr) Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB): Total PCBs detectable by EPA approved methods. 

 
(ss) Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH): Total organic pollutants containing more 

than one fused aromatic ring, which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(tt) Premise: A parcel of real estate including any improvements thereon which is 
determined by the Agency to be a single user for purposes of receiving, using, and 
paying for service. 

Page 24 of 175



7  

(uu) Pretreatment Requirement: Any substantive or procedural pretreatment requirement 
other than a national pretreatment standard. 

 
(vv) Private Sewer Lateral: The pipeline that conveys wastewater from a residence or 

any other building foundation to the main District sewer line. 
 

(ww) Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges: Absolute prohibitions 
against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Section 
2.01 of this ordinance. 

 
(xx) Publicly Owned Treatment Works or “POTW”: A treatment works as defined by 

section 212 of the Clean Water Act, which is owned by a state or municipality (as 
defined by section 502(4) of the Clean Water Act). This definition includes any 
devices and systems used in the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of 
municipal sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature. It also includes sewers, 
pipes, and other conveyances only if they convey wastewater to a POTW 
treatment plant. The term also means the municipality as defined in section 502(4) 
of the Clean Water Act, that has jurisdiction over the indirect discharges to and the 
discharges from such a treatment works. 

 
(yy)  Sample points: 

(1) Facility (FAC) - a sample point whereby the total, combined waste stream, 
both process and domestic, from a facility is monitored for compliance with 
local discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(2) "001" - a sample point whereby a facility's federally regulated process 

waste stream/streams, immediately after treatment, is/are monitored for 
compliance with federally imposed discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(3) "002" - a sample point whereby all process waste streams (non- 

categorical), excluding domestic, from a facility are monitored for 
compliance with local discharge limitations. 

 
 

(zz) Septic Tank Waste: Any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical 
toilets, campers, trailers, and septic tanks. 

 
(aaa) Severe Property Damage: Substantial physical damage to property, damage to the 

treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and 
permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur 
in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic 
loss caused by delays in production. 

 
(bbb) Significant Industrial User (SIU): 

 
(1) A user subject to categorical pretreatment standards; or 

Page 25 of 175



8  

 

(2) A user that: 
 

(i) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day 
or more of process wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, 
noncontact cooling, and boiler blowdown wastewater); 

 
(ii) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five (5) percent or 

more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW treatment plant; or 

 
(iii) Is designated as such by the Agency on the basis that it has a 

reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any pretreatment standard or requirement. 

 
(3) Upon finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has 

no reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may at any 
time, on its own initiative or in response to a petition received from an 
Industrial User, and in accordance with procedures in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(6), 
determine that such User should not be considered a Significant Industrial 
User. 

 
(ccc) Significant Noncompliance: An industrial user is in significant noncompliance with 

applicable pretreatment requirements if any violation meets one or more of the 
following criteria: 

 
(1) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits defined here as those in 

which 66 percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, as 
defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l). 

 
(2) Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33 

percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period are equal to or exceed the product of the 
numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, 
as defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l) multiplied by the applicable TRC (TRC = 1.4 for 
BOD, TSS, fats, oil and grease and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH.) 

 
(3) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by 

40 CFR 403.3(l) (daily maximum, long-term average, instantaneous limit, or 
narrative standard) that the POTW determines has caused, alone or in 
combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass Through (including 
endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public). 

Page 26 of 175



9  

(4) Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to human 
health, welfare or to the environment or has resulted in the POTW's exercise 
of its emergency authority under paragraph (f)(1)(vi)(B) of 40 CFR 403.8 to halt 
or prevent such a discharge. 

 
(5) Failure to meet, within 90 days after the due date, a compliance schedule 

milestone contained in a local control mechanism or enforcement order for 
starting construction, completing construction or attaining final compliance. 

 
(6) Failure to provide, within 45 days after the due date, required reports such as 

baseline  monitoring  reports,  90-day  compliance  reports,  periodic self-
monitoring reports and reports on compliance with compliance schedules. 

 
(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

 
(8) Any other violation or group of violations, which may include a violation of Best 

Management Practices (BMPs), that the Agency determines will adversely 
affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment program. 

 
(ddd) Slug Load or Slug: Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which could cause 

a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in Section 2.01 of this ordinance. 
A Slug Discharge is any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but 
not limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge, that has a 
reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way 
violate the POTW's regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions. 

 
(eee) Stormwater: The runoff generated when precipitation from rain and snowmelt 

events flow over land or impervious surfaces without percolating into the ground. 
 

(fff) The District: Union Sanitary District. 
 

(ggg) Total Halogenated Organics (THO): Total halogenated organic pollutants identified 
in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water Act which are detectable by EPA 
approved methods. 

 
(hhh) Total Organics (TO): Total organic pollutants as specified by the Agency which are 

detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(iii) Total Toxic Organics (TTO): Total organic pollutants including polynuclear aromatic 
hydrocarbons (PAHs), but excluding pesticides, PCBs, and phenols, which are 
detectable by EPA approved methods. The TTO value is determined as the 
summation of all quantifiable values greater than 0.01 milligrams per liter for the 
regulated toxic organics. 

 
(jjj) Unpolluted Water: Water to which no constituent has been added, either intentionally 

or accidentally, which would render such water unacceptable to the 

Page 27 of 175



10  

agency having jurisdiction thereof for disposal to storm or natural drainages or 
directly to surface waters. 

 
(kkk) User: Any person that discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of wastewater 

into a community sewer. 
 

(lll) User Classification: A classification of user based on the latest edition of the Standard 
Industrial Classification (SIC) Manual prepared by the Executive Office of 
Management and Budget. 

 
(mmm) Waste: Includes sewage and any and all other waste substances, liquid, solid, 

gaseous, or radioactive, associated with human habitation, or of human or animal 
origin, or from any producing, manufacturing, or processing operation of whatever 
nature, including such waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to, 
and for purposes of, disposal. 

 
(nnn) Wastewater: Waste and water, whether treated or untreated, discharged into or 

permitted to enter a community sewer. 
 

(ooo) Wastewater Constituents and Characteristics: The individual chemical, physical, 
bacteriological and radiological parameters, including volume and flow rate and 
such other parameters that serve to define, classify or measure the contents, 
quality, quantity, and strength of wastewater. 

 
(ppp) Wastewater Discharge Permit: A legal document used as a control mechanism to 

ensure compliance with regulations that grants revocable permission to discharge 
wastewater to the sanitary sewer, including the following types of Wastewater 
Discharge Permit: 

 
Class I Permit  -  Issued to Significant Industrial Users both Categorical and 

Non-Categorical 
 

Class II Permit - Issued to Non-Significant Industrial Users. 
 

Class III Permit -  Issued to Industrial or Commercial Users determined by the 
Agency not to fall in the Class I or Class II categories. 

 
General Permit -  Similar to a Class III permit, issued to Industrial or 

Commercial User groups that perform similar functions or 
activities. 

 
Groundwater Permit - Issued for the discharge of treated groundwater from 

contaminated site remediation, excavation groundwater or 
potable water related projects. 

Page 28 of 175



11  

Temporary Permit - Issued for single or short term (less than one year) 
discharges of wastewater or contaminated ground water. 

 
(qqq) Waters of the State: Any water, surface or underground, including saline waters 

within the boundaries of the state. 
 
 

1.03 Analytical and Sampling Methodology and Procedures 
 
 

(a) The method and procedures utilized for all analyses which are reported under the 
requirements of these regulations shall be as specified by the provisions of 40 CFR 
Part 136. 

 
(b) The methods and procedures utilized for all sampling performed and/or reported 

under the requirements of these regulation shall be as specified by the provisions 
of 40 CFR Part 136. 

 
(c) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the 

pollutant in question, sampling and analyses must be performed in accordance 
with procedures approved by the District or EPA. 

 
(d) Analytical data collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data 

obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period 
covered by the report and is representative of conditions occurring during the 
reporting period. 

 
 

Section 2 

REGULATIONS 

 
2.01 Sewer Use Requirements 

 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges 

 
(a) General Prohibitions: No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

POTW any pollutant or wastewater which causes Pass Through or Interference. 
These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the POTW whether or not they are 
subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other National, State or Local 
Pretreatment Standards or Requirements. 

 
(b) Specific Prohibitions: No user shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

community sewer system any pollutants, substances, or wastewater which cause, 

Page 29 of 175



12  

threaten to cause, or are capable of causing, either alone or by interaction with other 
substances: 

 
(1) a fire or explosion, including but not limited to discharges with a closed cup 

flashpoint of less than 140° F (60° C) using the test methods specified in 
40CFR261.21; 

 
(2) obstruction of flow in a sewer system or injury of the system or damage to the 

wastewater collection, treatment, or disposal facilities; 
 

(3) danger to life or safety of personnel; 
 

(4) a nuisance or prevention of the effective maintenance or operation of the sewer 
system, through having a strong, unpleasant odor; 

 
(5) air pollution by the release of toxic or malodorous gases or malodorous gas- 

producing substances; 
 

(6) interference with the wastewater treatment process; and/or pass through of any 
pollutant which causes a violation of the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit; 

 
(7) the Agency's effluent or any other product of the treatment process, residues, 

sludges, or scums, to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with 
the reclamation process; 

 
(8) a detrimental environmental impact or a nuisance in the waters of the state or a 

condition unacceptable to any public agency having regulatory jurisdiction over 
the Agency; 

 
(9) discoloration or any other condition in the quality of the Agency's treatment 

works effluent in such a manner that receiving water quality requirements 
established by law cannot be met; 

 
(10) conditions at or near the Agency's treatment works which violate any statute or 

any rule, regulation, or ordinance of any public agency or state or federal 
regulatory body; 

 
(11) quantities or rates of flow which overload the Agency's collection or treatment 

facilities or cause excessive Agency collection or treatment costs, or may use a 
disproportionate share of the Agency facilities; 

 
(12) the evolution of toxic gases, fumes, or vapors in quantities injurious to the health 

and safety of Agency personnel; 

Page 30 of 175



13  

(13) the temperature at the treatment plant headworks to exceed 104o F (40oC) or 
temperature which will inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting 
in Interference; 

 
(14) wastewater having a pH less than 5.0 or greater than 12.0, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment; 
 

(15) an exceedance of the permitted Mass Limit Rate established in the Local Limits 
or discharge permits; or 

 
(16) settlement of materials or obstruction to flow resulting in interference, such as, 

but not limited to, sand, mud, glass, metal, filings, diatomaceous earth, cat litter, 
asphalt, wood, bones, hair, fleshings, food packaging, product containers and 
non-dispersible products. 

 
 

2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community sewer: 
 

(a) Pollutants, including oxygen-demanding pollutants (for example, COD), released in 
a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which, either singly or by 
interaction with other pollutants, will cause interference with the POTW; 

 
(b) Wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except in compliance with 

applicable State or Federal regulations; 
 

(c) Sludges, screenings, or other residues (solid or liquid) from the pretreatment of 
industrial wastes; 

 
(d) Medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Agency; 

 
(e) All prescription and non-prescription (over the counter) pharmaceutical drugs or 

medications; 
 

(f) Wastewater causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, the treatment 
plant's effluent to fail a toxicity test; 

 
(g) Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances which may cause excessive 

foaming in the POTW; 
 

(h) Wastewater containing pesticides, dioxins and dioxin-like compounds, and/or 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB) at levels detectable by EPA approved methods; 

 
(i) Hazardous wastes or materials, as defined by California Code of Regulations Title 

22 or Subtitles C and D of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; 

Page 31 of 175



14  

Pollutants, substances, or wastewater prohibited by this section shall not be processed 
or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the POTW. 

 
 

2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam Fillings 
 

(a) All owners and operators of dental facilities that remove or place amalgam fillings 
shall comply with the following waste management practices: 

 
(1) No person shall rinse chair-side traps, vacuum screens, or amalgam separator 

equipment in a sink or other connection to the community sewer per 
40CFR441.30(b)(1). Such traps, vacuum screens or amalgam separator 
equipment must be recycled or disposed of in an appropriate manner according 
to recycler or equipment manufacturer. 

 
(2) Amalgam waste and other hazardous solutions shall be properly collected, 

packaged, labeled, stored, managed, and disposed. 
 

(3) Dental unit water lines, chair-side traps, and vacuum lines that discharge 
amalgam process wastewater to a community sewer must not be cleaned with 
oxidizing or acidic cleaners, including but not limited to bleach, chlorine, iodine 
and peroxide that have a pH lower than 6 or greater than 8 per 
40CFR441.30(b)(2). 

 
(4) Owners and operators of dental facilities shall ensure that all staff members who 

handle amalgam waste are trained in the proper handling, management and 
disposal of mercury-containing material and other hazardous solutions and shall 
maintain training records that will be made available for inspection by an 
employee of the District during normal business hours. 

 
(5) The use of bulk mercury is prohibited. Only pre-capsulated dental amalgam is 

allowed. 
 

(b) All owners and operators of dental vacuum suction systems, except as set forth in 
subsection (c) of this section, shall comply with the following: 

 
(1) Install amalgam separator device compliant with 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) 

or 40CFR441.40 (new offices). Amalgam separator device must achieve at least 
a 95 percent removal efficiency. No bypass of separator device or related 
plumbing shall be allowed. 

 
(2) Per 40CFR441.50, a One-Time Compliance Report must be submitted to the 

District from existing offices by no later than October 12, 2020, or 90 days after 
a transfer of ownership. For new offices, a One-Time Compliance Report must 
be submitted to the District no later than 90 days following the introduction of 
wastewater into the community sewer. 

Page 32 of 175



15  

 

(3) Amalgam separators shall be installed, operated and maintained in accordance 
with manufacturer recommendations per 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) or 
40CFR441.40 (new offices). 

 
(4) Dental Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain for a minimum of three years and make available for immediate 
inspection the following documentation per 40CFR441.50(b): 

 
•  Documentation of the date, person(s) conducting the inspection, and results 

of each inspection of the amalgam separator(s) and a summary of follow-up 
actions, if needed. 

 
• Documentation of amalgam retaining container replacement (including 

installation date, as applicable). 
 

• Documentation of all dates that collected dental amalgam is picked up or 
shipped for proper disposal in accordance with 40 CFR 261.5(g)(3), and the 
name of the permitted or licensed treatment, storage or disposal facility 
receiving the amalgam waste. 

 
• Documentation of any repair or replacement of an amalgam separator, 

including the date, person(s) making the repair or replacement, and a 
description of the repair or replacement (including make and model). 

 
• Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain and make available for inspection in either physical or electronic form 
the manufacturers operating manual for the current device. 

 
(c) Specialty dental offices where the practice of dentistry consists exclusively of one or 

more of the following are exempt from this requirement (Section 2.02) per 
40CFR441.10(c), provided that the District receives written certification that removal 
or placement of amalgam fillings does not take place: 

 
• Orthodontics 
• Periodontics 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Radiology 
• Oral Pathology or Oral Medicine 
• Prosthodontics 

 
 

2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater 
 

Storm water, groundwater, rainwater, street drainage, subsurface drainage or yard 
drainage shall not be discharged through direct or indirect connections to a community 

Page 33 of 175



16  

sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The Agency may approve the discharge 
of such water at its discretion and only when no reasonable alternative method of disposal 
is available. 

 
If the permit is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the user 
shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as required by 
the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be considered a 
Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge limitations or 
prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the discharge at any 
time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual basis. 

 
 

2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Remediation Projects 
 

Wastewater generated from the cleanup of spills, leaking underground storage tanks, 
groundwater remediation, monitoring wells, excavation groundwater, potable water 
projects or other similar sources shall not be discharged through direct or indirect 
connections to a community sewer unless a discharge permit is issued by the Agency. 
The Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If a discharge permit is granted for the discharge of such water into the community sewer, 
the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as 
required by the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be 
considered a Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge 
limitations or prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the 
discharge at any time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual 
basis. 

 
 

2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water 
 

Unpolluted water, including but not limited to cooling water, process water, or blow-down 
from cooling towers or evaporative coolers, will not be discharged through direct or 
indirect connection to a community sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The 
Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion and only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If authorization is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the 
user shall pay the applicable user charges and fees and shall meet such other 
requirements and/or conditions as required by the Agency. 

Page 34 of 175



17  

2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes 
 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any radioactive waste into a 
community sewer except: 

 
(a) when a person is authorized to use radioactive materials by the State Department 

of Health or other governmental agency empowered to regulate the use of 
radioactive materials; and 

 
(b) when the waste is discharged in strict conformity with the requirements of the United 

States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the United States Department of Energy, 
and/or the California Radiation Control Regulations; and 

 
(c) when the person is in compliance with all rules and regulations of all other applicable 

regulatory agencies. 
 
 

2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders 
Waste from garbage grinders, food waste liquefiers, aerobic and anaerobic bio-digesters, 
food composters and similar devices shall not be discharged into the community sewer 
excepts as approved in writing by the Agency. 

 
Garbage grinders and similar devices shall not be used for grinding plastic, paper 
products, inert materials, or garden refuse. 

 
 

2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge 
 

No person shall discharge any substances directly into a manhole or other opening in a 
community sewer other than through an approved building sewer unless, upon written 
application by the user and payment of the applicable user charges and fees, the Agency 
issues a permit for such direct discharges. 

 
 

2.09 Waste Holding Tanks, Vessels and Containers 
 

No person shall discharge any holding tank or vessel waste into a community sewer 
unless a wastewater discharge permit is issued by the Agency. Unless otherwise allowed 
by the Agency under the terms and conditions of the permit, a separate permit must be 
secured for each separate discharge. This permit may state the specific location of 
discharge, the time of day the discharge is to occur, the volume of the discharge and the 
wastewater constituents and characteristics. If a permit is granted for discharge of such 
waste into a community sewer, the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and 
shall meet such other conditions as required by the Agency. An exception to the above is 
that no permit will be required for discharge of domestic wastes from mobile home holding 

Page 35 of 175



18  

tanks provided that such discharges are made into an Agency approved facility designed 
to receive such wastes. 

 
 

2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength 
 

(a) The Manager is authorized to establish Local Limits or Best Management Practices 
(BMP's) pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). 

 
(b) The following pollutant limits are established to protect against Pass Through and 

Interference. 
 

(1) The following limits are maximum allowable discharge limits (the maximum 
concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined 
from the analysis of any discrete or composite sample collected, independent of 
the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event). Limits for metals 
are for total recoverable metals. 

 
No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

 
Arsenic 0.35 mg/L 
Cadmium 0.2 mg/L 
Copper 2.0 mg/L 
Cyanide 0.65 mg/L 
Lead 1.0 mg/L 
Mercury 0.01 mg/L 
Nickel 1.0 mg/L 
Silver 0.5 mg/L 
Total Chromium 2.0 mg/L 
Zinc 3.0 mg/L 
TTO 2.13 mg/L 
Formaldehyde 50.0 mg/L 
Phenolics 5.0 mg/L 

 
(2) No person shall discharge wastewater: 

 
(A) having a temperature higher than 150° F (65.5° C), or any thermal discharge 

which as a result of temperature and/or volume causes the influent of the 
wastewater treatment plant to exceed 104° F (40° C); 

 
(B) containing more than 300 mg/L of oil or grease of animal or vegetable origin, 

unless specifically approved by the District. The District may approve, on a 
case by case basis, a modification to the analytical method if the discharger 
can demonstrate that constituents in their wastewater interfere with the 
freon extraction, hexane extraction or current EPA approved procedure and 
have no negative impact on the POTW and/or receiving waters. 

Page 36 of 175



19  

 

(C) containing more than 100 mg/L of oil or grease of mineral or petroleum 
origin; 

 
(D) having a pH lower than 6.0 or higher than 12.0 units, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment, 
unless specifically approved by the District. Under no circumstances will a 
pH of less than 5.0 or higher than 12.5 pH units be approved. 

 
(3) The following limits for ammonia are maximum allowable average 

concentrations. Limits are for total ammonia expressed as nitrogen. Limits are 
tiered based on average daily flow, which is the arithmetic average of the 
permitted industrial user's daily flows for the preceding calendar year and is 
equivalent to the flow rate used in establishing sewer service charges: 

 
Average Daily Flow Ammonia Limit 

 
<10,000 gallons per day (gpd) 225 mg/L as N 
10,000 - 25,000 gpd 150 mg/L as N 
>25,000 gpd 75 mg/L as N 

 
Compliance determination shall be based on the average of all valid and 
representative analyses occurring within a 6-month period 

 
For industrial users holding permits issued prior to January 1, 2014, the 
Manager may issue compliance schedules for ammonia as described in 
Sections 6.09 and 6.10. In no case may these compliance schedules exceed 
5 years. All new permitted industrial users must comply with these limits upon 
initial discharge. 

 
(4) Additional Limits 

 
Limits for pollutants not listed in this section 2.10 may be established in a 
wastewater discharge permit based on available treatment technology, existing 
wastewater conditions in the District's facilities or other factors determined by 
the Manager. The Manager may also establish wastewater strength limits on 
the wastewater discharge permits at locations within a premises whenever non- 
process water many dilute wastewater discharging from side sewers. 

 
(c) National Categorical Standards, found in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 

405-471, as may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated into these 
regulations. Effluent limitations promulgated by the Clean Water Act shall apply in 
any instance where they are more stringent than those in these regulations. 

 
(d) Additional limits specific to the discharge of groundwater or surface water. No 

person shall discharge groundwater or surface water in excess of: 

Page 37 of 175



20  

 

Total Halogenated Organics (THO) 0.02mg/L 
Total Organics  2.0 mg/L 

 
 

2.10.1 Mass Limit Rate Determination 
 

(a) Mass Limit Rates for non-compatible or compatible pollutants that are present or 
anticipated in the User's wastewater discharge may be set for each User and made 
an applicable part of each User's wastewater discharge permit. These rates shall be 
based on Maximum Allowable Local Discharge Limits, Federal Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards, the User's average daily wastewater discharge for the past 
three years, the most recent representative data, or other data or factors determined 
by the Manager 

 
(b) To verify the User's operating data, the User may be required to submit an inventory 

of all wastewater streams and/or records indicating production rates. 
 

(c) The District may revise limits or Mass Limit Rates previously established in the User's 
permit at any time, based on current or anticipated operating data of the User or the 
District the District's ability to meet NPDES limits, or changes in the requirements of 
regulatory agencies. 

 
(d) The excess use of water to establish artificially high flow rate for the Mass Limit Rate 

determination is prohibited. 
 
 

2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges 
 

No user shall discharge any pollutant, including oxygen-demanding pollutants, at a flow 
rate and/or pollutant concentration which causes or threatens to cause interference with 
the wastewater treatment process. For the purposes of this section, any discharge at a 
flow rate or concentration which could cause a violation of the prohibited discharge 
standards or limitations in Section 2 of this ordinance shall be deemed a slug discharge. 

 
 

2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution 
 

Except where expressly authorized to do so by an applicable pretreatment standard or 
requirement, no user shall increase the use of process water, or in any other way attempt 
to dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate pretreatment to 
achieve compliance with a pretreatment standard, requirement or discharge limitation. 

Page 38 of 175



21  

2.13 Prohibition of Bypass 
 

(a) Bypass of pretreatment equipment and/or discharge points is prohibited and the 
Agency may take enforcement action against any user for bypass unless: 

 
(1) bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage; 
 

(2) there were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 
treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal 
periods of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate 
backup equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable 
engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods 
of equipment downtime or preventative maintenance; and 

 
(3) the industrial user submits the following notices: 

 
(i) If an Industrial User knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall 

submit prior notice to the Agency, if possible at least ten days before the 
date of the bypass. 

 
(ii) An Industrial User shall submit oral notice of an unanticipated bypass that 

exceeds applicable Pretreatment Standards to the Agency within 24 hours 
from the time the Industrial User becomes aware of the bypass. A written 
submission shall also be provided within 5 days of the time the Industrial 
User becomes aware of the bypass. The written submission shall contain a 
description of the bypass and its cause; the duration of the bypass, including 
exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the 
anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken 
or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. 
The Agency may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral 
report has been received within 24 hours. 

 
(b) The Agency may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse 

effects, if the Agency determines that it will meet the three conditions specified in 
part (a) of this section. 

 
 

2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Chemical Solutions and Sludges 
 

No user shall, without prior written approval of the Agency, discharge any unused or waste 
chemical solutions to the community sewer. For the purposes of this section, such 
materials include, but are not limited to, concentrated solutions utilized within any 
commercial or industrial operation, containerized liquids of any description, spoiled or 
otherwise unusable raw materials of any description, or spoiled or otherwise unusable 
products of any description. 

Page 39 of 175



22  

The Agency may approve the discharge of such wastes at its sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 

2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing Pass-through 
or Interference 

 
Notwithstanding the provisions of section 2.10(b), no user may discharge petroleum oil, 
non-biodegradable cutting oil or other products of mineral origin in any amount that 
causes interference or pass-through. 

 
 

2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes 
 

The discharge of any trucked or otherwise hauled wastes to the sanitary sewer system is 
prohibited except as the Agency may permit under the provisions of section 2.09. 

 
 

2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas 
 

The discharge of waste (solid or liquid), wastewater or chemicals from a chemical storage 
containment area is prohibited unless expressly authorized by the Agency. 

 
 

2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections 
 

Unapproved connections to the community sewer are strictly prohibited. 
Any building sewers that have not been permitted, inspected, or where capacity and/or 
current sewer service charges have not been paid, are subject to the conditions of 
Ordinance 34, Article 2, Section 7, Connection of Building Drains. 

 
 

Section 3 
 

WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 
 
 

3.01 Application 
 

Section 3 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 
 
 

3.02 Metered Water Supply 
 

User charges and fees shall be applied against the total amount of water used from all 
sources unless, in the opinion of the Agency, significant portions of water received are 

Page 40 of 175



23  

not discharged to a community sewer. The total amount of water used from public and 
private sources will be determined by means of public meters or private meters, installed 
and maintained at the expense of the user and approved by the Agency. 

 
(a) Metered Wastewater Volume and Metered Diversions. For users where, in the 

opinion of the Agency, a significant portion of the water received from any metered 
source does not flow into a community sewer because of the principal activity of the 
user or removal by other means, the user charges and fees will be applied against 
the volume of water discharged from such premises into a community sewer. Written 
notification and proof of the diversion of water must be provided by the user if the 
user is to avoid the application of the user charges and fees against the total amount 
of water used from all sources. The user may install a meter of a type and at a 
location approved by the Agency and at the user's expense. Such meters may 
measure either the amount of sewage discharged or the amount water diverted. 
Such meters shall be tested for accuracy at the expense of the user when deemed 
necessary by the Manager. 

 
(b) Users With Source Meters. For users who, in the opinion of the Agency, divert a 

significant portion of their metered water supply from a community sewer, the user 
charges may be based upon an estimate of the volume to be discharged, provided 
the user obtains authorization from the agency and pays the applicable user charges 
and fees. The estimate must include the method and calculations used to determine 
the wastewater volume and may consider such factors as the number of fixtures, 
seating capacity, population equivalents, annual production of goods and services, 
or such other determinations of water use necessary to estimate the wastewater 
volume discharged. 

 
(c) Users Without Source Meters. The agency may require the installation of water 

meters; however, for users where, in the opinion of the Agency, it is unnecessary or 
impractical to install meters, the quantity of wastewater may be based upon an 
estimate prepared by the Agency. This estimate shall be based upon a rational 
determination of the wastewater discharged and may consider such factors as the 
number of fixtures, seating capacity, population equivalent, annual production of 
goods and services, or such other determinants of water use necessary to estimate 
the wastewater volume discharged. 

 
 

Section 4 

ADMINISTRATION 

 
4.01 Application 

 
Section 4 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 

Page 41 of 175



24  

 

4.02 Discharge Reports 
 

(a) The Agency, or the Authority through the Agency, may require that any person 
discharging or proposing to discharge wastewater into a community sewer file a 
periodic discharge report. The discharge report may include, but not be limited to, 
nature of process, volume, rates of flow, mass emission rate, production quantities, 
hours of operation, number and classification of employees, or other information 
which relates to the generation of waste including wastewater constituents and 
characteristics in the wastewater discharge and sample analysis demonstrating 
compliance with Section 2. Such reports may also include the chemical constituents 
and quantity of liquid or gaseous materials stored on site even though they may not 
normally be discharged. 

 
(b) The agency may prohibit, authorize or condition any discharge into the sanitary 

sewer in accordance with this ordinance and applicable state and federal 
regulations, whether or not a Discharge Permit is issued. 

 
(c) Acceptance of any new discharge is contingent on available capacity in the collection 

system and/or treatment plant, as determined by the District Engineering Division 
and Operations Department. 

 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Permits 
 

4.03.1 Class I Permits. All significant industrial users (SIU), as defined in Section 1.02 
(bbb), must have a current Class I Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

 
Each new SIU, if not connected to a community sewer, must obtain a Class I Wastewater 
Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a community sewer. 

 
Any user currently connected to the community sewer who in the future is deemed to be 
an SIU shall be required to obtain a Class I permit. User will be required to pay all 
applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.2 Class II Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I Permit, yet require some sampling and regular monitoring of 
wastewater discharge, if connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a 
Class II Wastewater Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a 
community sewer. User will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the 
Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.3 Class III Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I or II permit, yet have a wastewater discharge that the Agency 
may decide requires oversight due to potential risks associated with said discharge, if 
connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a Class III wastewater 

Page 42 of 175



25  

discharge permit before connecting to or discharging into the community sewer. User will 
be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 
Class III permits may include General permits or any other as determined by the Manager. 

 
4.03.4 Temporary and/or Groundwater Permits. Users who, as determined by the 
Agency, do not fall within the requirements for a Class I, II, or III permit, yet have a 
wastewater discharge that the Agency may decide requires oversight due to potential 
risks associated with said discharge if connected to the community sewer. Temporary 
permits will be issued for one time, or for a discharge period not to exceed one year. User 
will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
The Manager may modify wastewater discharge requirements for the following types of 
facilities: 

 
(a) Industrial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge with no treatment (beyond 

simple filtration) in place and do not require routine monitoring or inspection. 
 

(b) Commercial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge that may have detectable 
amounts of one or more priority or conventional pollutants present in their waste 
stream. The Agency may require some level of treatment at such facilities, however, 
do not require routine monitoring or inspection. (Examples: dentists, photo 
processors, printers, and restaurants.) 

 
 

4.04 Permit Application 
 

Users seeking a Wastewater Discharge Permit shall complete and file with the Manager 
an application in the form prescribed by the Manager and accompanied by the applicable 
fees. The applicant may be required to submit, in units and terms appropriate for 
evaluation, the following information: 

 
(a) name, address, and SIC number of applicant; 

 
(b) volume of wastewater to be discharged; 

 
(c) sampling of wastewater to determine constituents and characteristics including, but 

not limited to, those listed in Section 2.10 as determined by a laboratory approved 
by the Agency; 

 
(d) time and duration of discharge; 

 
(e) average and 30-minute peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly, and 

seasonal variations, if any; 
 

(f) site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all 
sewers and appurtenances by function, size, location, and elevation; 

Page 43 of 175



26  

 

(g) Description of activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises, including a 
list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the facility which are, or could 
accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW; 

 
(h) each product produced by type, amount, and rate of production; 

 
(i) number and type of employees, and hours of work; 

 
(j) description of wastewater treatment system(s), and/or procedures, including system 

design, piping, layout, hydraulic and pollutant removal capacity, design criteria, 
calibration and maintenance procedures, alarm systems, sample points, treatment 
chemicals, excursion response procedures, and any other information necessary to 
evaluate the adequacy and appropriateness of the treatment system and/or 
procedures. 

 
(k) management plans, including any or all of the following: solvent management plan, 

best management practice plan, slug control plan, hazardous materials 
management plan, emergency/violation response plan, and/or pollution prevention 
plan. 

 
(l) any other information as may be deemed by the Manager to be necessary to 

evaluate the permit application. 
 

The Manager will evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional 
information. After evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the Manager may 
issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit subject to terms and conditions provided herein. 

 
 

4.05 Permit Conditions 
 

Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be expressly subject to all provisions of these 
regulations and all other regulations, user charges, and fees established by the Agency. 
The conditions of Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be uniformly enforced by the 
Manager in accordance with these regulations, and applicable state and federal 
regulations. Permits may contain the following: 

 
(a) A statement that indicates the duration of the wastewater discharge permit; 

 
(b) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior 

notification to the Agency in accordance with Section 4.08 of this ordinance; 
 

(c) Effluent Limits, including Best Management Practices (BMPs), based on applicable 
pretreatment standards; 

(d) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping requirements. 
These  requirements  shall  include  an  identification  of  pollutants  (or  Best 

Page 44 of 175



27  

Management Practices) to be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, 
and sample type based on Federal, State, and local law. 

 
(e) A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment 

Standards and Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such 
schedule may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable 
Federal, State, or local law; 

 
(f) Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, and/or 

requirements for flow regulation and equalization; 
 

(g) The unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees for the wastewater to be 
discharged to a community sewer; 

 
(h) The average and maximum wastewater constituent concentrations and 

characteristics; 
 

(i) Limits on rate and time of discharge or requirements for flow regulations and 
equalization; 

 
(j) Requirements for installation of inspection and sampling facilities; 

 
(k) Pretreatment requirements; 

 
(l) Specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, 

frequency and method of sampling, number, types and standards for tests, reporting 
schedules, and Best Management Practices; 

 
(m) Requirements for submission of technical reports, self-monitoring reports, or 

discharge reports, including, but not limited to baseline monitoring reports, 
compliance schedule progress reports, reports of compliance with categorical 
pretreatment standard deadlines, periodic reports of continued compliance, or any 
report required by 40 CFR 403.12, and/or any other reports as required by the 
Agency; 

 
(n) Requirements for maintaining plant records relating to wastewater discharge as 

specified by the Agency, and affording Agency access thereto; 
 

(o) Mean and maximum mass emission rates, or other appropriate limits when 
incompatible pollutants (as defined by section 1.02(ee)) are proposed or presented 
in the user's wastewater discharge; 

 
(p) Notification requirements; 

Page 45 of 175



28  

(q) Requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or other 
special conditions including management practices necessary to adequately prevent 
accidental, unanticipated, or non-routine discharges; 

 
(r) Development and implementation of pollution prevention plans to reduce the amount 

of pollutants discharged to the POTW; 
 

(s) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Agency to insure compliance with 
these regulations; 

 
(t) Requirements to control Slug Discharges, if determined by the Agency to be 

necessary. 
 
 

4.06 Duration of Permits 
 

Permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five years. A permit may 
be issued for a period less than one year or may be stated to expire on a specific date. 
The terms and conditions of the permit may be subject to modification and change by the 
Agency during the life of the permit. The user shall be informed of any proposed changes 
in his or her permit at least 30 days prior to the effective date of change. Any changes or 
new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule for compliance. 

 
 

4.07 Modification of Permits 
 

The Agency may modify an individual/general wastewater discharge permit for good 
cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons: 

 
(1) To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment 

Standards or Requirements; 
 

(2) To address significant alterations or additions to the User's operation, processes, or 
wastewater volume or character since the time of the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit issuance; 

 
(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or 

elimination of the authorized discharge; 
 

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the Agency's 
POTW, Agency personnel, the beneficial use of the Agency's bio-solids, or the 
receiving waters; 

 
(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the individual/general wastewater discharge 

permit; 

Page 46 of 175



29  

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 
discharge permit application or in any required reporting; 

 
(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant 

to 40 CFR 403.13; 
 

(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit; or 

 
(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner or operator 

where requested in accordance with Section 4.08. 
 
 

4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer 
 

Wastewater discharge permits may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the 
permittee gives at least thirty (30) days advance notice to the Agency and the Agency 
approves the wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Agency must 
include a written certification by the new owner or operator which: 

 
(a) States that the new owner and/or operator has no immediate intent to change the 

facility's operations and processes; 
 

(b) Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur; and 
 

(c) Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing wastewater 
discharge permit. 

 
Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the wastewater discharge permit 
void as of the date of facility transfer. 

 
 

4.09 Revocation of Permit 
 

Any user who violates the following conditions of the permit or any conditions of these 
regulations, or applicable state and federal regulations may be subject to permit 
revocation: 

 
(a) failure of the user to factually report the wastewater constituents and characteristics 

of his or her discharge; 
 

(b) violations of conditions of the permit. 
 

(c) Failure to notify the Agency of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the 
changed discharge; 

Page 47 of 175



30  

(d) Failure to provide prior notification to the Agency of changed conditions pursuant to 
Section 4.19 of this ordinance; 

 
(e) Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 

discharge permit application; 
 

(f) Falsifying self-monitoring reports; 
 

(g) Tampering with monitoring equipment; 
 

(h) Refusing to allow the Agency personnel timely access to the facility premises and 
records; 

 
(i) Failure to meet effluent limitations; 

 
(j) Failure to pay fines; 

 
(k) Failure to pay sewer charges, 

 
(l) Failure to meet compliance schedules; 

 
(m) Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit 

application; 
 

(n) Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a 
permitted facility; or 

 
(o) Violation of any pretreatment standard or requirement, or any terms of the 

wastewater discharge permit or this ordinance. 
 
 

4.10 Monitoring Facilities 
 

The Agency may require the user to construct at his or her own expense, monitoring 
facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the building sewer or 
internal drainage systems and may also require sampling or metering equipment to be 
provided, installed, and operated at the user's expense. The monitoring facility should 
normally be situated on the user's premises; but the Agency may, when such a location 
would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the user, allow the facility to be 
constructed in the public street or sidewalk area with the approval of the public agency 
having jurisdiction over that street or sidewalk, and located so that it will not be obstructed 
by landscaping or parked vehicles. 

 
If the monitoring facility is inside the user's fence, there shall be accommodations to allow 
access for Agency personnel, such as a gate secured with an Agency lock. There shall 
be ample room in or near such sampling manhole to allow accurate sampling and 

Page 48 of 175



31  

compositing of samples for analysis. The manhole, sampling, and measuring equipment 
shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense 
of the user. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the 
facility to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the 
written or oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing 
such access shall be borne by the user. 
Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring facilities 
shall be provided in accordance with the Agency's requirements and all applicable local 
agency construction standards and specifications. Construction shall be completed within 
90 days following written notification by the Agency unless a time extension is otherwise 
granted by the Agency. 

 
 

4.11 Inspection and Sampling 
 

The Agency may inspect the facilities of any user to ascertain whether the purpose of 
these regulations is being met and all requirements are being complied with. Persons or 
occupants of premises where wastewater is created or discharged shall allow the Agency 
or its representative ready access at all reasonable times to all parts of the premises for 
the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination and copying, or in the 
performance of any of their duties. The Agency shall have the right to set up on the user's 
property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling or metering operations. 
Where a user has security measures in force which would require proper identification 
and clearance before entry into their premises, the user shall make necessary 
arrangements with their security personnel so that, upon presentation of suitable 
identification, personnel from the Agency will be permitted to enter without delay for the 
purposes of performing their specific responsibilities. Agency personnel will not be 
required to sign release forms prior to entry and may take appropriate photographs as 
necessary to document compliance and/or non-compliance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility 
to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the written or 
oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access 
shall be borne by the user. Unreasonable delays in allowing the Manager access to the 
user's premises shall be a violation of this ordinance. 

 
 

4.12 Search Warrants 
 

If the Manager has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part 
thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation 
of this ordinance, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine 
inspection and sampling program of the Agency designed to verify compliance with this 
ordinance or any permit or order issued here under, or to protect the overall public health, 
safety and welfare of the community, then the Manager may seek issuance of an 
inspection warrant and/or a search warrant. 

Page 49 of 175



32  

4.13 Pretreatment 
 

Users shall make wastewater acceptable under the limitations established herein before 
discharging to any community sewer. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a 
level acceptable to the Agency shall be provided and maintained at the user's expense. 
Detailed plans showing the pretreatment facilities, design criteria and operating 
procedures shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall be acceptable to the 
Agency before construction of the facility. The review of such plans, design criteria, and 
operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from the responsibility of modifying 
the facility as necessary to produce an effluent acceptable to the Agency under the 
provisions of these regulations. Any subsequent changes in the pretreatment facilities or 
method of operation shall be reported to and be acceptable to the Agency. 

 
 

4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge 
 

Each user shall provide protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or 
other wastes regulated by these regulations. Such facilities shall be provided and 
maintained at the user's expense. Detailed plans showing facilities and operating 
procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall 
be acceptable to the Agency before construction of the facility. 

 
The review of such plans and operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from 
the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to provide the protection 
necessary to meet the requirements of this section. 

 

4.15 Confidential Information 
 

Information and data on a user obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge 
permit applications, wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from 
the Agency's inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without 
restriction, unless the user specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Manager, that the release of such information would divulge 
information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets 
under applicable State and/or Federal law. Any such request must be asserted at the time 
of submission of the information or data. When requested and demonstrated by the user 
furnishing a report that such information should be held confidential, the portions of a 
report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available 
for inspection by the public but shall be made available immediately to the EPA upon 
request. Such information will also be made available immediately upon request to other 
governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or pretreatment program, 
and in enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater 
constituents and characteristics and other "effluent data" as defined by 40 CFR 2.302 will 
not be recognized as confidential information and will be available to the public without 
restriction. 

Page 50 of 175



33  

4.16 Signature Requirement 
 

(a) All reports and/or permit applications received and/or required under these 
regulations shall be signed: 

 
(1) By a responsible corporate officer, if the user submitting the reports is a 

corporation. For the purpose of this paragraph, a responsible corporate officer 
means: 

 
(i) a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice president of the corporation in 

charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs 
similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation, or; 

(ii) the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating 
facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management 
decisions which govern the operation of the regulated facility including 
having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment 
recommendations, and initiate and direct other comprehensive measures 
to assure long-term environmental compliance with environmental laws 
and regulations; can ensure that the necessary systems are established 
or actions taken to gather complete and accurate information for control 
mechanism requirements; and where authority to sign documents has 
been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate 
procedures. 

 
(2) By a general partner or proprietor if the user submitting the reports is a 

partnership or sole proprietorship, respectively. 
 

(3) By a duly authorized representative of the individual designated in paragraph 
(1) or (2); 

 
(i) The authorization is made in writing by the individual designated in 

paragraph (1) or (2); 
 

(ii) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having 
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility from which the 
industrial discharge originates, such as the position of plant manager, 
operator of a well, or well field superintendent, or a position of equivalent 
responsibility, or having overall responsibility for environmental matters 
for the company; and 

 
(iii) The written authorization is submitted to the Agency. 

 
(4) If an authorization under paragraph (3) of this section is no longer accurate 

because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall 
operation of the facility, or overall responsibility for environmental matters for 
the company, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of paragraph (3) 

Page 51 of 175



34  

of this section must be submitted to the Agency prior to or together with any 
reports to be signed by an authorized representative. 

 
(b) Reports and applications must include the following certification statement: 

 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure 
that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those 
persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted 
is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 

 
 

4.17 Retention of Records 
 

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make 
available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any 
monitoring activities required by this ordinance, any additional records of information 
obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent of such 
requirements, and documentation associated with Best Management Practices 
established under Section 2.10(a), including but not limited to discharge reports, permits, 
self-monitoring data, pretreatment system process control logs, and relevant 
correspondence (whether or not required by these regulations). All records must be 
maintained by the user for a period of not less than three (3) years. All such records shall 
be made available for inspection and copying by a duly authorized representative of the 
Agency or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction. The retention period may be 
extended in the case of unresolved litigation or at any time at the request of the Agency, 
the State or US EPA. 

 
 

4.18 Notices to Employees 
 

In order that employees of users be informed of Agency requirements, users shall make 
available to their employees copies of these regulations together with such other 
wastewater information and notices which may be furnished by the Agency from time to 
time directed toward more effective water pollution control. A notice shall be furnished 
and permanently posted on the user's bulletin board advising employees whom to call in 
case of an accidental discharge in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.19 Preventive Measures 
 

Any direct or indirect connection or entry point for persistent or deleterious wastes to the 
user's plumbing or drainage system should be eliminated. Where such action is 

Page 52 of 175



35  

impractical or unreasonable, the user shall appropriately label such entry points to warn 
against discharge of such wastes in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions 
 

Each user must notify the Agency of any planned significant changes to the user's 
operations or system which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater 
discharge prior to implementation of said change. 

 
(a) The Manager may require the user to submit such information as may be deemed 

necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a 
wastewater discharge permit application under Section 4.04 of this ordinance. 

 
(b) The Manager may issue a wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.03 of this 

ordinance or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.06 of 
this ordinance in response to changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions. 

 
(c) For purposes of this requirement, significant changes include, but are not limited to, 

significant flow increases or decreases (greater than 25%), modification of any 
pretreatment system, bypass of any portion of the pretreatment system, installation or 
removal of process tanks or equipment, discharge of any previously unreported 
pollutants, and the closure of a facility due to purchase by another party, relocation, 
changed business conditions, or other factor affecting the continued operation of the 
facility. 

 
 

4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge 
 

(a) All industrial users discharging any substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would 
be a hazardous or acutely hazardous waste under 40 CFR 261, must comply with 
the reporting requirements of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(1) and (3) unless exempted under 
the provisions of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(2). 

 
(b) In the case of any notification made under section (a) above, the industrial user shall 

certify that it has a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous 
wastes generated to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. The 
Agency may accept a copy of a hazardous waste reduction or minimization plan as 
otherwise required by law. 

 
(c) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not otherwise 

permitted to be discharged by this ordinance, a permit issued thereunder, or any 
applicable Federal or State law. 

Page 53 of 175



36  

4.22 Special Agreements 
 

Special agreements and arrangements between the Agency and any persons or agencies 
may be established when, in the opinion of the Agency, unusual or extraordinary 
circumstances compel special terms and conditions. Under no circumstances, however, 
will any special agreement or arrangement be established which contravenes any federal 
pretreatment regulation, categorical pretreatment standard, or any other provision of state 
or federal law. 

 
 

4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW 
 

All SIU's shall notify the Manager immediately of any slug loading, as defined by 40 CFR 
403.5(b), or any other discharge that could adversely affect the POTW. 

 
 

4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements 
 

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained 
through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the 
report, based on data that is representative of conditions occurring during the reporting 
period. 

 
(a) Except as indicated in Sections (b) or (c) below, the User must collect wastewater 

samples using 24-hour flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time- 
proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District. Where 
time-proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District, 
the samples must be representative of the discharge. Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and appropriate EPA 
guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be composited 
prior to the analysis as follows: for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides, the samples 
may be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and 
grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples for 
other parameters unaffected by the compositing procedures as documented in 
approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by District, as appropriate. In 
addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with Instantaneous 
Limits. 

 
(b) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenolics, sulfides, and volatile 

organic compounds must be obtained using grab collection techniques. 
 

(c) For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance 
reports required in Section 4.25(c) below [40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], A minimum of 
four (4) grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, phenolics, oil and grease, sulfide 
and volatile organic compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not 
exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data are available, the District may 

Page 54 of 175



37  

authorize a lower minimum. For the reports required by (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 
403.12(h), the Industrial User is required to collect the number of grab samples 
necessary to assess and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment 
Standards and Requirements. 

 
(d) If a user subject to reporting requirement monitors any regulated pollutant at a 

designated sampling location more frequently than required, the results of this 
monitoring shall be reported. 

 
(e) The Manager may specify the type of sampling equipment that must be installed and 

used. pH monitoring and Flow monitoring equipment installed at an industrial user's 
sampling location shall be calibrated at the frequency specified in the industrial user's 
wastewater discharge permit or at the frequency recommended by the manufacturer. 

 
(f) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant 

in question, or where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical 
techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in question, sampling and analyses shall 
be performed using validated analytical methods or any other applicable sampling and 
analytical procedures suggested by the Manager or other parties approved by the 
EPA. Samples shall be analyzed at the discharges expense, by a laboratory 
accredited by the State of California Department of Public Health for such analysis. 

 
(g) The Manager may require self-monitoring for facilities for which a wastewater 

discharge permit has not been issued. 
 
 

4.25 Submission of Reports 
 

The Agency has authority to require all Significant Industrial Users and any other 
designated dischargers to submit reports and schedules within a time-frame directed by 
the Agency. Required reports and schedules, include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
(a) Wastewater Discharge Surveys 

 
(b) Chemical Use Reports 

 
(c)  Baseline Monitoring Reports (BMR) and 90-Day Monitoring Reports containing 

information as required under 40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d): 
 

(1) Within (i)180 days after the effective date of a categorical standard in the case of 
an existing industrial user, or 90 days prior to commencement of discharge for a 
new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards must 
submit a Baseline Report; and (ii) 90-Days after commencement of discharge for 
a new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards 
must submit a 90-Day report. All Baseline Reports and 90-Day Report must 
contain the following information: 

Page 55 of 175



38  

 

(A) The name and address of the facility including the name of the operator and 
owners; 

 
(B) A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility; 

 
(C) A brief description of the nature, average rate of production, and Standard 

Industrial Classification of the operation(s) carried out by such Industrial User. 
This description should include a schematic process diagram which indicates 
points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes. 

 
(D) The measured average daily and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day, to 

the POTW from each of the following: 
 

(i) Regulated process streams; and 
 

(ii) Other streams as necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream 
formula. The Control Authority may allow for verifiable estimates of these 
flows where justified by cost or feasibility considerations. 

 
(E) The Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process, and the 

results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration (or 
mass, where required by the Standard or Control Authority) of regulated 
pollutants in the Discharge from each regulated process. Both daily maximum 
and average concentration (or mass, where required) shall be reported. The 
sample shall be representative of daily operations; 

 
(F) A statement, reviewed by an authorized representative of the Industrial User 

and certified to by a qualified professional, indicating whether Pretreatment 
Standards are being met on a consistent basis and, if not, whether additional 
operation and maintenance (O and M) and/or additional pretreatment is 
required for the Industrial User to meet the Pretreatment Standards and 
Requirements; and 

 
(G) If additional pretreatment and/or O and M will be required to meet the 

Pretreatment Standards; the shortest schedule by which the Industrial User 
will provide such additional pretreatment and/or O and M. The completion date 
in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable Pretreatment Standard. 

 
New sources must give estimates of information requested in paragraphs (D) 
and (E) and must include information on the method of pretreatment that will 
be used to meet applicable pretreatment standards. 

 
(d) Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 

Page 56 of 175



39  

(e) Periodic Self-Monitoring Reports 
 

(f) Periodic Report of Continued Compliance (PRCC) containing information as required 
under 40 CFR 403.12(e) and (h) 
All Significant Industrial Users must, at a frequency determined by the Manager, 
submit no less than twice per year (June and December [or on dates specified by 
Manager]) reports indicating the nature, concentration of pollutants in the discharge 
which are limited by Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average 
and maximum daily flows for the reporting period. In cases where the Pretreatment 
Standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice (BMP) or pollution 
prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Manager 
or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the 
User. 

 
All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with 
Section 4.16 of this ordinance. 

 
All wastewater samples must be representative of the User's discharge. Wastewater 
monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and 
maintained in good working order at all times. The failure of a User to keep its 
monitoring facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that 
sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this section monitors any regulated 
pollutant at the appropriate sampling location more frequently than required by the 
Agency, using the procedures prescribed in 40 CFR 403.12(g)(5), the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the report. 

 
(g) Hazardous Materials Management Plans 

 
(h) Best Management Practice Plans 

 
(i) Slug Control Plans containing information as required under 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2) (vi). 

 
(j) Source Reduction Evaluation Review and Plans (SB14) and other pollution 

prevention plans 
 

(k) SARA III Reports 
 

(l) Written responses to Notices of Violation 
 

(m) Facility Closure Plans 
 

(n) Any data obtained from self-monitoring performed more frequently than required by 
the Agency 

Page 57 of 175



40  

(o) Solvent Management Plan 
 

(p) Any other reports, written documents, and/or analytical results as deemed 
necessary by the Agency, to determine a user's compliance status with local, 
state and federal limits or requirements. 

 
 

Section 5 

WASTEWATER CHARGES AND FEES 

 
5.01 Schedule of Charges and Fees 

 
The agency may adopt ordinances for the collection of charges and fees for, but not 
limited to, the following purposes: 

 
• Capacity Charges 
• Sewer Service Charges 
• Annexation Fees 
• Construction Permit Fees 
• Construction Inspection Fees 
• Wastewater Discharge Permit Fees 

 
 

5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges and Fees 
 

The Agency may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
operating its Environmental Compliance Program including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

 
(a) Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications including the cost of processing 

such applications; 
 

(b) Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures including the cost of 
sample collection and analyzing a user's discharge, reviewing monitoring reports 
submitted by users, and conducting inspections of the user's facilities; 

 
(c) Fees for reviewing and responding to discharge violations, accidental discharges 

and spills, and related enforcement activities. 
 

(d) Fees for filing appeals; and 
 

(e) Other fees as the Agency may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 
contained herein. These fees relate solely to the matters covered by this ordinance 
and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties chargeable by the Agency. 

Page 58 of 175



41  

Section 6 

ENFORCEMENT 

 

6.01 Notification of Discharge 
 

Users shall notify the Agency immediately upon accidentally discharging wastes in 
violation of these regulations and/or discharging any slug loading to enable 
countermeasures to be taken by the Agency to minimize damage to the community sewer, 
treatment facility, treatment processes, and the receiving waters. 

 
This notification shall be followed, within five days of the date of occurrence, by a detailed 
written statement describing the causes of the accidental discharge and the measures 
being taken to prevent future occurrence. 

 
Such notification will not relieve users of liability for any expense, loss, or damage to the 
sewer system, treatment plant, or treatment process, or for any fines imposed on the 
Agency on account thereof under section 13350 of the California Water Code, or for 
violations of section 5650 of the California Fish and Game Code. 

 
 

6.02 Notification of Violation 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may serve upon that user a written 
Notice of Violation. Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, an explanation of the 
violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 
specific required actions, shall be submitted by the user to the Manager. Submission of 
this plan in no way relieves the user of liability for any violations occurring before or after 
receipt of the Notice of Violation. Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the 
Manager to take any action, including emergency actions or any other enforcement 
action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation. 

 
 

6.03 Consent Orders 
 

The Manager may enter into Consent Orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or 
other similar documents establishing an agreement with any user responsible for 
noncompliance. Such documents will include specific action to be taken by the user to 
correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the document. Such 
documents shall have the same force and affect as the administrative orders issued 
pursuant to Sections 6.05 and 6.06 of this ordinance and shall be judicially enforceable. 

Page 59 of 175



42  

6.04 Show Cause Hearing 
 

The Manager may order a user which has violated, or continues to violate, any provision 
of this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, to appear before the Manager and show cause 
why the proposed enforcement action should not be taken. Notice shall be served on the 
user specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement action, the 
reasons for such action, and a request that the user show cause why the proposed 
enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served 
personally or by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested). Such notice may 
be served on any authorized representative of the user. A Show Cause hearing shall not 
be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.05 Administrative Orders 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may issue an order to the user 
responsible for the discharge directing that the user come into compliance within a 
specified time. If the user does not come into compliance within the time provided, sewer 
service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other 
related appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Administrative orders also 
may contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, including additional self- 
monitoring and management practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants 
discharged to the sewer. An administrative order may not extend the deadline for 
compliance established for a pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does an 
administrative order relieve the user of liability for any violation, including any continuing 
violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, 
taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.06 Issuance of Cease and Desist Orders 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has taken place in violation of 
prohibitions or limitations of these regulations, or the provisions of a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit, the Manager may issue an order to cease and desist, and direct that 
those not complying with such prohibitions, limits, requirements, or provisions: 

 
(a) comply forthwith; 

 
(b) comply in accordance with a time schedule set forth by the Agency; or 

 
(c) take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly 

address a continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations and/or 
terminating the discharge. 

Page 60 of 175



43  

6.07 Legal Authority to Administer Fines 
 

In accordance with Section 54739 of the California Government Code, the agency may 
require any of the following: 

 
(a) Pretreatment of any industrial waste which the local agency determines is necessary 

in order to meet standards established by the federal or California state government 
or other regulatory agencies or which the local agency determines is necessary in 
order to protect its treatment works or the proper and efficient operation thereof or 
the health or safety of its employees or the environment. 

 
(b) The prevention of the entry of such industrial waste into the collection system and 

treatment works. 
 

(c) The payment of excess costs to the system for supplementary treatment plants, 
facilities, or operations needed as a result of allowing the entry into the collection 
system and treatment works of such industrial waste. 

(d) The provisions of this section shall be in addition to other requirements provided for 
in this or any other Agency ordinance. 

 
 

6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties 

(a) The agency may issue an administrative complaint to any person who violates any 
requirement adopted or ordered by the agency pursuant to paragraph (a) and (b) of 
Section 6.07. The administrative complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that 
constitutes the violation of the agency's requirements, the provisions of law 
authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed civil penalty. 

 
(b) The administrative complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified mail 

on the person subject to the agency's discharge requirements and shall inform the 
person served that a hearing shall be conducted within 60 days after the person has 
been served. In event no request for hearing is filed within 50 days after the service 
of the administrative complaint, the right to a hearing will be deemed waived. The 
hearing shall be before a hearing officer designated by the governing board of the 
agency. The person who has been issued an administrative complaint may waive 
the right to a hearing, in which case the agency shall not conduct a hearing. A person 
dissatisfied with the decision of the hearing officer may appeal to the governing 
board of the agency within 30 days of notice of the hearing officer's decision. 

 
(c) If after any default in requesting a hearing, the holding of the hearing, or the 

conclusion of an appeal, it is found that the person has violated reporting or 
discharge requirements, the hearing officer or board may assess a civil penalty 
against that person in determining the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing officer 
or board may take into consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived 

Page 61 of 175



44  

through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length 
of time over which the violation occurs and corrective action, if any, attempted or 
taken by the discharger. 

 
(d) Civil Penalties. In accordance with Section 54740.5 of the California Government 

Code, Civil penalties may be imposed by the agency as follows: 
 

(1) In an amount which shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each day 
for failing or refusing to furnish technical or monitoring reports. 

 
(2) In an amount which shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) for each 

day for failing or refusing to timely comply with any compliance schedule 
established by the local agency. 

 
(3) In an amount which shall not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation 

for each day for discharges in violation of any waste discharge limitation, permit 
condition, or requirement issued, reissued, or adopted by the local agency. 

 
(4) In an amount which does not exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon for discharges 

in violation of any suspension, cease and desist order or other orders, or 
prohibition issued, reissued, or adopted by the agency. 

 
(5) The amount of any civil penalties imposed under this section which have 

remained delinquent for a period of 60 days after finality of the decision, can 
become a lien against the real property of the discharger from which the 
discharge originated resulting in the imposition of the civil penalty. In accordance 
with the procedures specified in Health & Safety Code Section 5473 et seq., the 
Board of Directors can have the lien imposed against the real property to be 
assessed on the tax roll, to be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner, together with and not separately from, general taxes, and shall be 
delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the same delinquency 
penalties. 

 
(6) In addition, in the event that the penalty is imposed as a court judgment in the 

same manner as in an arbitration award, the judgment thereon shall be 
renewable in accordance with the provisions of California Code of Civil 
Procedures Sections 683.110 through 683.220. 

 
(7) Any legal action, including arbitration, shall allow attorneys' fees and costs to 

the prevailing party. 
 

(e) Administrative Penalties 
 

Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 
Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued. The 
violations are categorized as discharge or non-discharge violations., except that the 
General Manager may waive or reduce penalties in their sole discretion for a violation that 

Page 62 of 175



45  

is minor in nature, the first violation within the last 5 years, is inadvertent and where the 
violator is cooperating with the District in resolving the matter. 

 
The violations are categorized as discharge or non-discharge violations. 
 

(1) Non-discharge Violations 
 

Non-discharge violations shall be considered any violation of a reporting 
requirement, timeline, schedule or any other violation of Ordinance 36. A 
warning letter will be issued to the permittee informing them of an impending 
Notice of Violation and imposition of a six hundred dollar ($600) penalty for any 
future violations., pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
(2) Discharge Violation 

 
A Discharge Violation is specifically related to a discharge event or release. The 
penalty for an actual discharge violation shall be one thousand four hundred 
dollars ($1400) for every incident or event., pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
These penalties are not exclusive and failure to comply could result in the 
District taking additional enforcement actions up to and including civil penalties 
and abatement. 

 
(f) All moneys collected under this section shall be deposited in a special account of 

the agency and shall be made available for inspector training, environmental 
program enhancement, the monitoring, treatment, and control of discharges into the 
Agency's sanitary sewer system or for other mitigation measures. 

 
(g) Unless appealed, orders setting administrative civil penalties shall become effective 

and final upon issuance thereof, and payment shall be made within 30 days. Copies 
of these orders shall be served by personal service or by certified mail upon the party 
served with the administrative complaint and upon other persons who appeared at 
the hearing and requested a copy. 

 
(h) The Agency may, at its option, elect to petition the superior court to confirm any 

order establishing civil penalties and enter judgment in conformity therewith as 
though it were an arbitration award, in accordance with the provisions of California 
Code of Civil Procedure, Sections 1285 through 1287.6. 

 
(i) No penalties shall be recoverable under this section for any violation for which civil 

liability is recovered under Section 7.06 of this ordinance. 
 
(j) Any party aggrieved by a final order issued by the governing board of the agency 

under this Section, after granting review of the order of a hearing officer, may obtain 
review of the order of the board in the superior court by filing in the court a petition 
for writ of mandate within 30 days following the service of a copy of a decision and 
order issued by the board. Any party aggrieved by a final order of a hearing officer 
issued under this Section, for which the board denies review, may obtain review of 

Page 63 of 175



46  

the order of the hearing officer in the superior court by filing in the court a petition for 
writ of mandate within 30 days following service of a copy of a decision and order denying 
review by the board.         
          

(k) If no aggrieved party petitions for writ of mandate within the time provided by this 
section, an order of the board or a hearing officer shall not be subject to review by 
any court or agency, except that the board may grant review on its own motion of an 
order issued under this Section after the expiration of the time limits set by that 
section. 

 
(l) The evidence before the court shall consist of the record before the board, including 

the hearing officer's record, and any other relevant evidence which, in the judgment 
of the court, should be considered to effectuate and implement policies of this 
division. In every such case, the court shall exercise its independent judgment on 
the evidence. 

 
(m) Except as otherwise provided in this section, subdivisions (e) and (f) of Section 

1094.5 of the California Government Code or the Code or Civil Procedure shall 
govern proceedings pursuant to this section. 

 
 

6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has been taking place in violation 
of prohibitions or limitations prescribed in these regulations, or wastewater source control 
requirements, effluent limitations or pretreatment standards, or the provisions of a 
Wastewater Discharge Permit or at any time the Agency determines a time schedule to 
be necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 4.13, the Agency may require 
the user to submit for approval, with such modifications as it deems necessary, a detailed 
time schedule of specific actions which the user shall take in order to prevent or correct a 
violation of the requirements. 

 
 

6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 
 

The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by Section 6.09 
of this ordinance: 

 
(a) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the 

commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and 
operation of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable 
pretreatment standards (such events include, but are not limited to, hiring an 
engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major 
components, commencing and completing construction, and beginning and 
conducting routine operation); 

 
(b) No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months; 

Page 64 of 175



47  

 

(c) The user shall submit a progress report to the Manager as specified but no later than 
fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 
compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment 
of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being taken by 
the user to return to the established schedule; and 

 
(d) In no event shall more than nine (9) months elapse between such progress reports 

to the Manager. 
 
 

6.11 Appeals 
 

Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or 
determination, including cease and desist orders made by the Manager or another 
employee of the Agency in interpreting or implementing the provisions of this ordinance 
or in any permit issued herein, may file with the Manager a written appeal or request for 
reconsideration, as applicable, within ten days of such decision, action, or determination, 
setting forth in detail the facts supporting the appeal or request for reconsideration. 

 
If the ruling made by the Manager is unsatisfactory to the person appealing or requesting 
reconsideration, he or she may file a written appeal to the Agency's governing body within 
ten days after notification of Agency action. The written appeal shall be heard by the 
governing body within 30 days from the date of filing or as soon thereafter as reasonably 
possible. The Agency's governing body shall make a final ruling on the appeal within 30 
days of the meeting. The Manager's decision, action, or determination shall remain in 
effect during such period of appeal. The determination of an appeal by the governing 
body of the Agency shall constitute a final determination of the Agency and shall be 
subject to judicial review. 

 
 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems 
 

(a) In the case of any discharges including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, 
discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a 
slug load, that may cause potential problems for the POTW, the user shall immediately 
telephone and notify the Agency of the incident. This notification shall include the 
location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and volume, if known, and 
corrective actions taken by the user and any other information the Agency deems 
appropriate. 

 
(b) A notice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin board or other prominent 

place advising employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in 
paragraph A, above. Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause such 
a discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

Page 65 of 175



48  

(c) All Users are required to notify the Agency of any changes at their facility affecting the 
potential for a Slug Discharge. 

 
 

6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting 
 

If sampling performed by a user indicates a violation, the user must notify the Agency 
within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also 
repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the 
Agency within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation. 
Within five (5) days following such discharge, the user shall, unless waived by the Agency, 
submit a detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the discharge and the 
measures to be taken by the user to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification 
shall not relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be 
incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to 
person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties, or 
other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this ordinance. 

 
 

6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users 
 

All users not required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate 
reports to the Agency as the Manager may require. 

 
 

6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant Non-Compliance 
 

At an interval of not less than once per year, the Agency will publish the identities of any 
user(s) which is (are) found to be in significant non-compliance of any national 
pretreatment standard, discharge limitation or prohibition, or any other requirement of 
these regulations. The definition of significant non-compliance shall be as specified in 
Section 1.02 (bbb). The publication shall occur in the newspaper of general circulation 
that provides meaningful public notice within the service area of the Agency. 

 
 

Section 7 

ABATEMENT 

 
7.01 Public Nuisance 

 
Discharge of wastewater in any manner in violation of these regulations or of any order 
issued by the Manager as authorized by these regulations, is hereby declared a public 
nuisance and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the Manager. Any person 

Page 66 of 175



49  

creating a public nuisance shall be subject to provisions of Agency codes or ordinances 
governing such nuisance. 

 
 

7.02 Recovery of Expenses 
 

In the event a discharge of wastewater occurs from a private sewer lateral that creates or 
threatens to create a public nuisance that the Agency must abate as directed by the 
Manager, the Agency may seek recovery of the cost of time and materials to abate said 
discharge from the property owner as well as interest and attorneys' fees as provided by 
Health & Safety Code § 5473.10. 

 
 

7.03 Injunctive Relief 
 

When the Agency finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, a general permit, or order 
issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may 
petition the appropriate Court through the District's Attorney for the issuance of a 
temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels the 
specific performance of an individual wastewater discharge permit, general permit, order 
or other requirement imposed by this ordinance on activities of the User. The Agency 
may also seek such other action as is appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, 
including a requirement for the User to conduct environmental remediation. A petition for 
injunctive relief shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action 
against a User. 

 
 

7.04 Damage to Facilities 
 

When a discharge of wastes causes an obstruction, damage, or any other impairment to 
Agency facilities, the Agency may assess a charge against the user for the work required 
to clean or repair the facility and add such charge to the user's charges and fees. 

 
 

7.05 Civil Penalties 
 

Any person who violates any provision of these regulations or permit conditions, or who 
discharges wastewater which causes pollution, or who violates any cease and desist 
order, prohibition, effluent limitation, national standard of performance, pretreatment or 
toxicity standard, shall be liable civilly to penalties imposed by the Agency against which 
the violation occurs as provided for in Section 6.07 of this Ordinance. 

Page 67 of 175



50  

7.06 Court Imposed Civil and Criminal Penalties 
 

The Agency may refer any violations of these regulations to the office of the Alameda 
County District Attorney for civil or criminal prosecution under any applicable statute or 
provision of law. 

 
In accordance with Section 54740 of the California Government Code: 

 
(a) Any person who violates any requirement adopted or ordered by the Agency 

pursuant to Section 6.07 of this ordinance may be civilly liable in a sum of not to 
exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) a day for each violation. 

 
(b) The Agency may petition the superior court to impose, assess, and recover the sums 

provided for in paragraph (a). In determining the amount, the court shall take into 
consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of 
harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived through any 
noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over 
which the violation occurs, and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the 
discharger. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all civil penalties imposed by the court 

for any violation of this section shall be distributed to the local agency. 
 

(d) Remedies under this section are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any and 
all other remedies, civil or criminal, but no liability shall be recoverable under this 
section for any violation for which liability is recovered under Section 6.07. 

 
(e) Any person who violates any provision of these regulations, or of a permit or a cease 

and desist order issued pursuant to these regulations, is guilty of a public offense. 
The classification of such public offense and the punishment therefore shall be as 
provided by local, county, state and/or federal law. 

 
 

7.07 Falsifying Information 
 

Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, report, 
plan, or other document filed with the Agency, or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly 
renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under these regulations, 
shall be punished in accordance with the Agency codes or ordinances governing such 
falsifications. The Agency may petition the Superior Court to impose, assess, and recover 
such sums as may be applicable or in accordance with Sections 7.05 and 7.06 of this 
ordinance. 

Page 68 of 175



51  

7.08 Termination of Service 
 

In order to effect its powers, the Agency may enter upon private property for the purpose 
of inspection and maintenance of sanitary and waste disposal facilities and may terminate 
service to property in which a violation of any rule, regulation, or this Ordinance is found 
to exist. 
Prior to termination of service, however, the Agency Board shall notify, in writing, the 
owner and tenant, if any, of such property that service is intended to be so terminated 
and conduct a hearing thereon as herein provided. Such notice shall be mailed to the 
owner at the address shown on the records of the Assessor of the County, or as known 
to the Clerk, and a copy shall be delivered to the tenant or posted conspicuously on the 
property. The notice shall state the date of proposed termination of service and the 
reasons therefore and the date the Agency Board shall hold a hearing upon such intended 
termination. Such hearing shall not be held less than ten days subsequent to the giving 
of notice as herein required. 

 
 

7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service 
 

The Manager or designated representative may immediately suspend a User's discharge, 
after informal notice to the User, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an 
actual or threatened discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause an 
imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons. The Manager 
may also immediately suspend a User's discharge, after notice and opportunity to 
respond, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents, or 
may present, an endangerment to the environment. 

 
(a) Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or 

eliminate its contribution. In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply 
voluntarily with the suspension order, the Manager may take such steps as 
deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to 
prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment 
to any individuals. The Manager may allow the User to recommence its discharge 
only when the User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Manager that the 
period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings in 
Section 7.10 of this ordinance are initiated against the User. 

 
(b) A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting 

imminent endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the 
causes of the harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future 
occurrence, to the Manager prior to the date of any show cause or termination 
hearing under sections 6.04 or 7.08 of this ordinance. Nothing in this section shall 
be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency suspension under this 
section. 

Page 69 of 175



52  

7.10 Immediate Termination of Discharge 
 

The manager or designated representative has the authority to immediately and 
effectively halt or prevent any actual or threatened discharge of pollutants to the Agency's 
facilities which: 

 
• present, or may present, an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or 

welfare of persons, to the environment or to the Agency's facilities; 
 

• cause interferences with the operation of the Agency's facilities or the POTW; 
 

• cause conditions (a) through (n) of Section 2.01.1 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are prohibited by Section 2.01.2 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are violations of individual wastewater discharge permit or general permit conditions; 
 

• are a failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of 
the User's discharge; 

 
• are a failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, 

constituents, and characteristics prior to discharge; 
 

• are a result of refusal to reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of 
inspection, monitoring, or sampling. 

 
Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency 
suspension under this section. 

 
 

7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies 
 

The remedies provided for in this ordinance are not exclusive except as specified in 
Section 7.06(d). The Manager may take any, all, or any combination of these actions 
against a noncompliant user. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in 
accordance with the Agency's Enforcement Response Plan. However, the Manager may 
take other action against any user when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager 
is empowered to take more than one enforcement action against any noncompliant user. 

Page 70 of 175



53  

Section 8 

SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of these regulations or the application to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, the remainder of the regulations or the application of such provisions to other 
persons or other circumstances shall not be affected. 

 
 

Section 9 
 

Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 36 and all its amendments are hereby repealed. 
 
 

Section 10 

PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force as of September 12, 2019 XXXXXXX, 
and a summary of the Ordinance has been published in The Argus and Tri-City Voice, 
newspapers of general circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT service 
area. This Ordinance shall be entered in the minutes of the District. 

 
Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT on this 
12th XX day of August 2019XXXXXX, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 

 
NOES: 

 
ABSENT: 

 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
                        

President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
                     

Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Page 71 of 175



54  

SUPPLEMENT 
 

This Wastewater Discharge Regulations Supplement includes selected Code of Federal 
Regulations parts (listed as 40 CFR) referred to in the main section of this ordinance for 
convenience only. Other 40 CFR parts, which are too lengthy to include in their entirety, 
are summarized. More information relating to these Federal Regulation references is 
available in the Union Sanitary District's Environmental Compliance Division Office and 
the text of the regulations is available online at https://www.epa.gov/laws- 
regulations/regulations. 

 

Federal Regulations are updated from time to time. This document contains current 
regulations as of April 2019. However, it is the responsibility of the user to ensure 
compliance with federal regulations, including any future amendments. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 2.302(2):    Definition of Effluent Data 
 

"(i) Effluent data means, with reference to any source of discharge of any pollutant (as 
that term is defined in section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 1362 (6)): 

 
(A) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of any pollutant which has been discharged by the source (or of 
any pollutant resulting from any discharge from the source), or any combination 
of the foregoing; 

 
(B) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of the pollutants which, under an applicable standard or limitation, 
the source was authorized to discharge (including, to the extent necessary for 
such purpose, a description of the manner or rate of operation of the source); 
and 

 
(C) A general description of the location and/or nature of the source to the extent 

necessary to identify the source and to distinguish it from other sources 
(including, to the extent necessary for such purposes, a description of the 
device, installation or operation constituting the source). 

 
(ii) Notwithstanding paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section, the following information shall be 

considered to be effluent data only to the extent necessary to allow EPA to disclose 
publicly that a source is (or is not) in compliance with an applicable standard or 
limitation, or to allow EPA to demonstrate the feasibility, practicability, or attainability 
(or lack thereof) of an existing or proposed standard or limitation: 

Page 72 of 175

http://www.epa.gov/laws-


55  

(A) Information concerning research, or the results of research, on any product, 
method, device, or installation (or any component thereof) which was produced, 
developed, installed, and used only for research purposes; and 

 
(B) Information concerning any product, method, device, or installation (or any 

component thereof) designed and intended to be marketed or used commercially 
but not yet so marketed or used." 

 
 

40 CFR Part 136:Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of 
Pollutants 

 
(Summary) This part describes test procedures for performing analyses of wastewater 
constituents. Part 136 identifies test procedures and specifies application of and approval 
of alternate test procedures. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 
Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste 

 
(Summary) This part includes criteria for identifying the characteristics of hazardous 
waste, as well as characteristics of hazardous waste and lists of hazardous wastes. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.5:   National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(Summary) This part is commonly referred to as the General Pretreatment Regulations 
and includes discharge prohibitions and the requirement for development of local limits 
by the POTW. 

 
 

403.5 National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(a) (1) General prohibitions. A User may not introduce into a POTW any pollutant(s) 
which cause Pass Through or Interference. These general prohibitions and the 
specific prohibitions in paragraph (b) of this section apply to each User 
introducing pollutants into a POTW whether or not the User is subject to other 
National Pretreatment Standards or any national, State or local Pretreatment 
Requirements. 

 
(2) Affirmative Defenses: A User shall have an affirmative defense in any action 

brought against it alleging a violation of the general prohibitions established in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section and the specific prohibitions in paragraphs (b)(3), 
(b)(4), (b)(5), (b)(6) and (b)(7) of this section where the Users can demonstrate 
that: 

Page 73 of 175



56  

(i) It did not know or have reason to know that its Discharge, alone or in 
conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, would cause 
Pass Through or Interference; and 

 
(ii) (A) A local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 

the case may be, was developed in accordance with paragraph (c) of this 
section for each pollutant in the User's Discharge that caused Pass Through 
or Interference, and the User was in compliance with each such local limit 
directly prior to and during the Pass Through or Interference; or 

 
(B) If a local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 
the case may be, has not been developed in accordance with paragraph (c) 
of this section for the pollutant(s) that caused the Pass Through or 
Interference, the User's Discharge directly prior to and during the Pass 
Through or Interference did not change substantially in nature or 
constituents from the User's prior discharge activity when the POTW was 
regularly in compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit requirements and, 
in the case of Interference, applicable requirements-for sewage sludge use 
or disposal. 

 
(b) Specific prohibitions. In addition, the following pollutants shall not be introduced into 

a POTW: 
 

(1) Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard in the POTW, including, but 
not limited to, wastestreams with a close cup flashpoint of less than 140°F or 
60°C using the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21. 

 
(2) Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage to the POTW, but in no 

case Discharges with pH lower than 5.0, unless the works is specifically 
designed to accommodate such Discharges; 

 
(3) Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts which will cause obstruction to the flow 

in the POTW resulting in Interference; 
 

(4) Any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, COD) released in 
a Discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause 
Interference with the POTW. 

 
(5) Heat in amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in 

Interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the temperature at the 
POTW Treatment Plant exceeds 40°C (104°F) unless the Approval Authority, 
upon request of the POTW, approves alternate temperature limits. 

 
(6) Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin in 

amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through; 

Page 74 of 175



57  

(7)  Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within 
the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety 
problems; 

 
(8) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the 

POTW. 
 

(c) When specific limits must be developed by POTW. (1) Each POTW developing a 
POTW Pretreatment Program pursuant to section 403.8 shall develop and enforce 
specific limits to implement the prohibitions listed in paragraphs (a)(1) and (b) of this 
section. 

 
(1) Each POTW with an approved pretreatment program shall continue to develop 

these limits as necessary and effectively enforce such limits. 
 
 

(2)  All other POTW's shall, in cases where pollutants contributed by User(s) result 
in Interference or Pass Through, and such violation is likely to recur, develop 
and enforce specific effluent limits for Industrial User(s), and all other users, as 
appropriate, which, together with appropriate changes in the POTW Treatment 
Plant's facilities or operation, are necessary to ensure renewed and continued 
compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit or sludge use or disposal 
practices. 

 
(3) Specific effluent limits shall not be developed and enforced without individual 

notice to persons or groups who have requested such notice and an opportunity 
to respond. 

 
(4) POTWs may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs) to implement 

paragraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) of this section. Such BMPs shall be considered 
local limits and Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of this part and section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(d) Local limits. Where specific prohibitions or limits on pollutants or pollutant 

parameters are developed by a POTW in accordance with paragraph (c) above, 
such limits shall be deemed Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(e) EPA enforcement actions under section 309(f) of the Clean Water Act. If, within 30 

days after notice of an Interference or Pass Through violation has been sent by EPA 
to the POTW, and to persons or groups who have requested such notice, the POTW 
fails to commence appropriate enforcement action to correct the violation, EPA may 
take appropriate enforcement action under the authority provided in section 309(f) 
of the Clean Water Act. 

Page 75 of 175



58  

40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi):    Slug Control Plans 
 

The District has the authority to evaluate whether each Significant Industrial User needs 
a plan to control slug discharges. For purposes of these regulations, a slug discharge is 
any discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental 
spill or a non-customary batch discharge. 

 
"If the POTW decides that a slug control plan is needed, the plan shall contain, at a 
minimum, the following elements: 

 
(A) Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch discharges; 

 
(B) Description of stored chemicals; 

 
(C) Procedures for immediately notifying the POTW of slug discharges, including any 

discharge that would violate a prohibition under 40 CFR 403.5(b), with procedures 
for follow-up written notification within five days; 

 
(D) If necessary, procedures to prevent adverse impact from accidental spills, including 

inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, 
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site run-off, worker training, 
building of containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic 
organic pollutants (including solvents), and/or measures and equipment for 
emergency response;" 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12:   Reporting Requirements for POTWs and Industrial Users 
 

(Summary) This part contains the monitoring and reporting requirements for baseline 
monitoring reports and other required reports such as the periodic report of continued 
compliance. 40 CFR Part 403.12 is crucial to the implementation of and compliance with 
self-monitoring and reporting requirements. Portions of the regulations are summarized 
or cited below. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h):   Reporting  Requirements  for  Industrial  Users  Not 
Subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards 

 
At least once every 6 months, industrial users not subject to categorical Pretreatment 
Standards must submit a description of the nature, concentration and flow of the 
pollutants discharged to the POTW. These reports shall be based on sampling and 
analysis performed during the reporting period. 

Page 76 of 175



59  

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification 
 
 

(a) The user shall notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management Division 
Director, and State hazardous waste authorities, in writing, of any discharge into the 
POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste 
under 40 CFR Part 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous 
waste as set forth in 40 CFR Part 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the 
type of discharge (continuous, batch, or other). If the user discharges more than one 
hundred (100) kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the 
notification also shall contain the following information to the extent such information 
is known and readily available to the user: an identification of the hazardous 
constituents contained in the wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of 
such constituents in the waste stream discharged during that calendar month, and an 
estimation of the mass of constituents in the waste stream expected to be discharged 
during the following twelve (12) months. All notifications must take place within one 
hundred and eighty (180) days of the effective date of this rule. Users who commence 
discharging after the effective date of this rule shall provide the notification no later 
than 180 days after the discharge of the listed or characteristic hazardous waste. Any 
notification under this paragraph need be submitted only once for each hazardous 
waste discharged. However, notifications of changed discharges must be submitted 
under 40 CFR 403.12 (j) (Section 4.20 of this ordinance). The notification requirement 
in this section does not apply to pollutants already reported under the self-monitoring 
requirements of 40 CFR 403.12 (b), (d) and (e). 

 
(b) Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of paragraph 1, above, during a 

calendar month in which they discharge no more than fifteen (15) kilograms of 
hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute hazardous wastes as specified in 40 
CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than fifteen (15) kilograms of 
nonacute hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute 
hazardous wastes as specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a 
one-time notification. Subsequent months during which the user discharges more than 
such quantities of any hazardous waste do not require additional notification. 

 
(c) In case of any new regulations under Section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional 

characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous 
waste, the user must notify the Agency, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste 
Division Director, and State hazardous waste authorities of the discharge of such 
substance within ninety (90) days of the effective date of such regulations. 

 
(d) In the case of any notification made under this section, the user shall certify that it has 

a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated 
to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. 

Page 77 of 175



60  

40 CFR Part 405-471: Categorical Standards and Requirements 
 

(Summary) These parts describe the regulations applicable to categorical discharges. 
The following types of industries are currently subject to categorical standards: 

 
Aluminum Forming Fruit & Vegetable Processing Paving and Roofing (Tars & Asphalt) 
Asbestos Manufacturing Glass Manufacturing Pesticides 
Battery Manufacturing Grain Mills Manufacturing Petroleum Refining 
Builder's Paper Hospitals Pharmaceuticals 
Carbon Black Ink Formulating Phosphate Manufacturing 
Cement Manufacturing Iron and Steel Manufacturing Photographic 
Centralized Waste Treatment Landfills Plastics Molding and Forming 
Chemicals-Inorganic Leather Tanning and Finishing Porcelain Enameling 
Chemicals-Organic Meat & Poultry Processing Pulp and Paper 
Chemicals-Gum & Wood Metal Finishing Rubber Processing 
Concentrated Animal Feeding Ops. Metal Molding and Casting Seafood Processing 
Coil Coating Metal products & Machinery Soaps and Detergents Mfg 
Copper Forming Mining - Coal Steam Electric 
Dairy Products Processing Mining - Mineral Sugar Processing 
Electrical and Electronic Components Mining - Ore Timber Products Mfg 
Electroplating Nonferrous Metals Forming Transportation 
Explosives Mfg Nonferrous Metals Mfg Textile Mills 
Ferroalloy Manufacturing Oil & Gas Extraction Waste Combustors 
Fertilizer Manufacturing Paint Formulating  

Page 78 of 175



61  

Locally Regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Volatiles  Semi-Volatiles (cont d)  Semi-Volatiles (cont d) 
Acrolein  Benzo(ghi)perylene  Nitrobenzene 
Acrylonitrile  Benzo(k)fluoranthene  Phenanthrene 
Benzene  3,4-benzofluoranthene  Pyrene 
Bromoform  Bis (2-chloroisopropyl) ether  1,2,4-trichlorobenzene 
Carbon tetrachloride  Bis (2-chloroethoxy) methane   
Chlorobenzene  Bis (2-chloroethyl) ether   
Chloroethane  Bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate   
2-chloroethylvinyl ether  4-bromophenyl phenyl ether   
Chloroform  Butyl benzyl phthalate   
Dibromochloromethane  2-chloronaphthalene   
Dichlorobromomethane  4-chlorophenyl phenyl ether   
1,1-dichloroethane  Chrysene   
1,2-dichloroethane  Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene   
1,1-dichloroethylene  1,2-dichlorobenzene   
1,2-dichloropropane  1,3-dichlorobenzene   
1,3-dichloropropylene  1,4-dichlorobenzene   
Ethylbenzene  3,3-dichlorobenzidine   
Methyl bromide  Diethyl phthalate   
Methyl chloride  Dimethyl phthalate   
Methylene chloride  Di-n-butyl phthalate   
Tetrachloroethylene (PCE)  Di-n-octyl phthalate   
1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane  2,4-dinitrotoluene   
1,1,1-trichloroethane (TCA)  2,6-dinitrotoluene   
1,1,2-trichloroethane  1,2-diphenylhydrazine   
Toluene  Fluoranthene   
1,2-trans-dichloroethylene  Fluorene   
Trichloroethylene (TCE)  Hexachlorobenzene   
Vinyl chloride  Hexachlorobutadiene   

  Hexachlorocyclopentadiene   
Semi-Volatiles  Hexachloroethane   

Acenaphthene  Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene   
Acenaphthylene  Isophorone   
Anthracene  N-nitrosodi-n-propylamine   
Benzidine  N-nitrosodimethylamine   
Benzo(a)anthracene  N-nitrosodiphenylamine   
Benzo(a)pyrene  Naphthalene   

 

Page 79 of 175



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
SEWER USE ORDINANCE 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 36.05 

Page 80 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose & Policy ...................................................................................................... 1 
1.02 Definitions ............................................................................................................ 2-11 
1.03 Analytical & Sampling Methodology & Procedures ........................................... 11 

SECTION 2 
REGULATIONS 

2.01 Sewer Use Requirements ..................................................................................... 11 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges .................................................................................. 11-13 
2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community 

sewer............................................................................................................... 13-14 
2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam 

Fillings ................................................................................................................. 14-15 
2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater ..................................... 15-16 
2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Cleanup Projects ......................................... 16 
2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water .......................................................................... 16 
2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes. .................................................................... 17 
2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders ...................................................... 17 
2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge ...................................................................... 17 
2.09 Holding Tank Waste ......................................................................................... 17-18 
2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength .............................................................. 18-20 
2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges ............................................................................ 20 
2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution ............................................................................... 20 
2.13 Prohibition of Bypass ............................................................................................. 21 
2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Process Solution Tanks ............................. 21-22 
2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing 

Pass-through or Interference ................................................................................ 22 
2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes ............................. 22 
2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas ...................................... 22 
2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections ................................... 22 

SECTION 3 
WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 

3.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 22 
3.02 Metered Water Supply ..................................................................................... 22-23 

SECTION 4 
ADMINISTRATION 

4.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 23 
4.02 Discharge Reports .................................................................................................. 24 

Page 81 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Reports ..................................................................... 24-25 
4.04 Permit Application ............................................................................................. 25-26 
4.05 Permit Conditions ............................................................................................. 26-28 
4.06 Duration of Permits ...................................................................................... 28 
4.07 Modification of Permits ........................................................................... 28-29 
4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer .............................................................. 29 
4.09 Revocation of Permit ........................................................................................ 29-30 
4.10 Monitoring Facilities .......................................................................................... 30-31 
4.11 Inspection and Sampling ....................................................................................... 31 
4.12 Search Warranties .................................................................................................. 31 
4.13 Pretreatment ............................................................................................................ 32 
4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge ................................................................. 32 
4.15 Confidential Information ......................................................................................... 32 
4.16 Signature Requirement .................................................................................... 33-34 
4.17 Retention of Records ............................................................................................. 34 
4.18 Notice to Employees .............................................................................................. 34 
4.19 Preventive Measures ....................................................................................... 34-35 
4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions ..................................................................... 35 
4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge ....................................................... 35 
4.22 Special Agreements ............................................................................................... 36 
4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW ..................................... 36 
4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements ............................................. 36-37 
4.25 Special Agreements ......................................................................................... 37-40 

 
 

SECTION 5 
WASTEWATER CHARGES & FEES 

5.01 Schedule of Charges & Fees ................................................................................ 40 
5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges & Fees ..................................................... 40 

 
 

SECTION 6 
ENFORCEMENT 

6.01 Notification of Discharge ........................................................................................ 41 
6.02 Notification of Violation .......................................................................................... 41 
6.03 Consent Orders ...................................................................................................... 41 
6.04 Show Cause Hearing ............................................................................................. 42 
6.05 Administrative Orders ............................................................................................ 42 
6.06 Issuance of Cease & Desist Orders .................................................................... 42 
6.07 Legal Authority to Administrative Fines .............................................................. 43 
6.08 Administrative Procedures & Penalties ......................................................... 43-46 
6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule ........................................................ 46 
6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports ...................................................... 46-47 
6.11 Appeals .................................................................................................................... 47 

Page 82 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems ........................................................................ 47-48 
6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling & Reporting............................................. 48 
6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users ......................................................................... 48 
6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant 

Non-Compliance ..................................................................................................... 48 

SECTION 7 
ABATEMENT 

7.01 Public Nuisance. ............................................................................................... 48-49 
7.02 Recovery of Expenses ........................................................................................... 49 
7.03 Injunctive Relief ...................................................................................................... 49 
7.04 Damage to Facilities ............................................................................................... 49 
7.05 Civil Penalties .......................................................................................................... 49 
7.06 Court Imposed Civil & Criminal Penalties ........................................................... 50 
7.07 Falsifying Information ............................................................................................. 50 
7.08 Termination of Service ........................................................................................... 51 
7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service ...................................................................... 51 
7.10 Immediate termination of Discharge .................................................................... 52 
7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies ........................................................................................ 52 

SECTION 8 
SEVERABILITY 

Section 8 -Severability ..................................................................................................... 53 

SECTION 9 
Section 9 ............................................................................................................................ 53 

SECTION 10 
PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY ............................................................................. 53 

SUPPLEMENT........................................................................................................................... 54 
40 CFR Part 2.302(2): Definition of Effluent Data. ................................................ 54-55 
40 CFR Part 136: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations on Test 

Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants ............................... 55 
40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 

Identifying Hazardous Waste .................................................... 55 
40 CFR Part 403.5: National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited 

Discharges ............................................................................. 55-57 
40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi): Slug Control Plans .......................................................... 58 
40 CFR Part 403.12 Reporting Requirements for POTWs & Industrial Users .... 58 

Page 83 of 175



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h): Reporting Requirements for Industrial Users Not 
Subject to Categorical Standards ........................................ 58 

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification. ......................... 59 
40 CFR Part 405 - 471: Categorical Standards & Requirements. ........................... 60 
Locally regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants. ................................................................ 61 

Page 84 of 175



1  

Section 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose and Policy 
 

This ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for users of the Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works of the Union Sanitary District and enables the Agency to comply with all applicable 
Local, State and Federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code § 
1251 et seq.), the General Pretreatment Regulations (40 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 403) and the water quality requirements set by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board and/or the State of California Water Resource Control Board. The objectives of this 
ordinance are: 

 
(a) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

that will interfere with its operation; 
 

(b) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
that will pass through the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, inadequately treated, 
into receiving waters, or otherwise be incompatible with the Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works; 

 
(c) To protect both Publicly Owned Treatment Works personnel who may be affected by 

wastewater and sludge in the course of their employment and the general public; 
 

(d) To promote reuse and recycling of industrial wastewater and sludge from the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; 

 
(e) To provide revenues derived from the application of this Ordinance which shall be 

used to defray the Agency's cost of operating and maintaining adequate wastewater 
collection and treatment systems and to provide sufficient funds for capital outlay, 
bond service costs, capital improvements, and depreciation for the equitable 
distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance, and improvement of the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; and 

 
(f) To enable Agency to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

permit conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements, and any other Federal, 
State or Local laws to which the Publicly Owned Treatment Works is subject. 

 
This ordinance shall apply to all users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works. The 
ordinance authorizes the issuance of wastewater discharge permits; provides for 
monitoring, compliance, and enforcement activities; establishes administrative review 
procedures; requires user reporting; and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable 
distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein. 

Page 85 of 175



2  

1.02 Definitions 
 
 

Unless otherwise defined herein, terms shall be as found in Title 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Parts 403 and 136. 

 
(a) Agency: Union Sanitary District. 

 
(b) Amalgam: an alloy containing mercury, tin, silver, or copper that is used in dentistry 

to restore teeth. 
 

(c) Amalgam Separator: a device that applies filtration, settlement, centrifugation, or 
ion exchange to remove amalgam and its metal constituents from a dental office 
vacuum system before it discharges to the sewer. 

 
(d) Amalgam Waste: includes non-contact amalgam (amalgam scrap that has not 

been in contact with the patient); contact amalgam (including, but not limited to, 
extracted teeth containing amalgam); amalgam sludge captured by chair-side 
traps, vacuum pump filters, screens and other amalgam trapping devices; used 
amalgam capsules; and leaking or unusable amalgam capsules. 

 
(e) Authority: The East Bay Dischargers Authority. 

 
(f) Batch Discharge: A definite quantity or volume of wastewater produced under 

conditions that are considered uniform. 
 

(g) Beneficial Uses: Uses of the waters of the state that may be protected against 
quality degradation include, but are not necessarily limited to, domestic, municipal, 
agricultural and industrial supply, power generation, recreation, aesthetic 
enjoyment, navigation and the preservation and enhancement of fish, wildlife and 
other aquatic resources or reserves, and other uses, both tangible or intangible, 
as specified by federal or state law. 

 
(h) Best Management Practices or BMPs: Schedules of activities, prohibitions of 

practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to 
implement the prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b). BMPs also include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site 
runoff, spillage and leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw 
materials. 

 
(i) Building Sewer: A sewer conveying wastewater from a point 30 inches or less from 

the building or structure to a main sewer. The building sewer includes that portion 
on the property and that portion from the property line or easement line to the 
sewer main (Lateral Sewer). 

Page 86 of 175



3  

(j) Bypass: The intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of an 
Industrial User's treatment facility. 

 
(k) Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard: Standards specifying 

the quantity, concentration, or properties of pollutants that may be discharged to 
POTWs. EPA promulgates pretreatment standards for specific industry categories 
in accordance with Clean Water Act section 307. These standards are codified in 
40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N, Parts 405-471. 

 
(l) Chemical Oxygen Demand or COD: The measure of the oxygen equivalent of the 

organic matter content of a sample that is susceptible to oxidation by a strong 
chemical oxidant. 

 
(m) Community Sewer: A sewer owned and operated by the Agency, a city, or other 

public agency tributary to a treatment facility operated by the Agency or the 
Authority. 

 
(n) Compatible Pollutant: Biochemical oxygen demand, chemical oxygen demand, 

suspended solids, pH and fecal coliform bacteria, plus additional pollutants 
identified in the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit if the publicly owned treatment works was designed to treat such 
pollutants, and in fact does remove such pollutants to a substantial degree. 

 
(o) Composite Sample: A sample resulting from the combination of individual 

wastewater samples taken at selected intervals based on an increment of either 
flow or time. Samples may be taken manually or by using automatic equipment. 
Manual composite samples shall consist of a minimum of four (4) grab samples. 

 
(p) Contamination: An impairment of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to 

a degree which creates a hazard to the public health through poisoning or through 
the spread of disease. Contamination shall include any equivalent effect resulting 
from the disposal of wastewater, whether or not waters of the state are affected. 

 
(q) District: Union Sanitary District 

 
(r) Domestic Use: Any single family or multifamily residence which discharges, or 

causes, or allows the discharge of domestic wastewater to the POTW. 
 

(s) Domestic Wastewater: The liquid waste or liquid-borne waste discharged from 
residential units, normally resulting from the non-commercial preparation, cooking 
and handling of food, personal laundry, and wastes from sanitary conveniences or 
from sanitary devices in industrial or commercial establishments. 

 
(t) Environmental Protection Agency or EPA: The U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency or, where appropriate, the Regional Water Management Division Director, 
or other duly authorized official of said agency. 

Page 87 of 175



4  

 

(u) Federal Act, Clean Water Act: The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known 
as the Clean Water Act, as amended, PL 92-500 Title 33 U.S. Code, section 1251 
et seq. (and any amendments thereto; as well as any guidelines, limitations, and 
standards promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the 
Act.) 

 
(v) Grab Sample: A sample that is taken from a wastestream without regard to the 

flow in the wastestream and over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) 
minutes. 

 
(w) Hazardous Waste: Waste substances which can pose a hazard to human health 

or the environment when improperly managed; or. waste that possesses at least 
one of these four characteristics: ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity or toxicity; or 
appears on special U.S. EPA lists. This definition also includes all wastes 
covered in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5 
Environmental Health Standards for the Management of Hazardous Waste. 

 
(x) Holding Tank Waste: Any waste from temporary or permanent containers such as 

holding tanks, vessels, truck tanks, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, 
totes, drums, vacuum pump tank trucks, etc. 

 
(y) Incompatible Pollutant: Any pollutant, which is not a compatible pollutant as 

defined in this section. 
 

(z) Industrial User: An industrial or commercial business, which discharges, or causes, 
or allows the discharge of non-domestic wastewater to the POTW. 

 
(aa) Industrial Wastewater: Liquid waste or liquid-borne waste that is generated in a 

commercial or industrial process. 
 

(bb)  Indirect Discharge or Discharge: The introduction of pollutants into the POTW from 
any non-domestic source regulated under Section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the Clean 
Water Act. 

 
(cc) Interference: A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with discharges from other 

sources, both: 
 

(1) inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations, or its 
sludge processes, use or disposal; and therefore 

 
(2) is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit 

(including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation) or of the 
prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance with the following 
statutory provisions and regulations or permits issued there under (or more 
stringent state or local regulations): Section 405 of the Clean Water Act, the 

Page 88 of 175



5  

Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including Title II, more commonly referred 
to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and including 
state regulations contained in any state sludge management plan prepared 
pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA), the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances 
Control Act, and the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act. 

 
(dd) Manager: The General Manager of the District, or his or her designated 

representative. 
 

(ee) Mass Limit Rate: The weight of material discharged to the sewer system during a 
given time interval. Unless otherwise specified, the mass limit rate shall mean 
pounds per day of a constituent or combination of constituents. 

 
(ff) Maximum Allowable Discharge Limit: The maximum concentration of a pollutant 

allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete 
or composite sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the 
duration of the sampling event. 

 
(gg) Medical Waste: Any waste, liquid or solid, generated by a medical facility which 

may pose a health and/or safety threat to Agency personnel. 
 

(hh) National Pretreatment Standard, Pretreatment Standard, or Standard: Any 
regulation containing pollutant discharge limits or Best Management Practices 
promulgated by the EPA in accordance with section 307 (b) and (c) of the Clean 
Water Act, that applies to industrial users. This term includes prohibitive discharge 
limits established pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5. 

 
(ii) New Source: Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is or 

may be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the 
publication of proposed pretreatment standards under Section 307c of the Clean 
Water Act that will be applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter 
promulgated, provided that: 

 
(1) The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no 

other source is located; or 
 

(2) The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or 
production equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing 
source; or 

 
(3) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, 

facility or installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the 
same site. In determining whether these are substantially independent, factors 
such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, 
and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the existing source should be considered 

Page 89 of 175



6  

 

(jj) pH: A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in standard units. 
 

(kk) POTW Treatment Plant: That portion of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works which 
is designed to provide treatment (including recycling and reclamation) of municipal 
sewage and industrial waste. 

 
(ll)  Pass Through: A discharge that exits the POTW into waters of the United States in 

quantities or concentrations that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or 
discharges from other sources, is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the 
POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a 
violation). 

 
(mm) Person: Any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, corporation, 

association, joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other 
legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or assigns. This definition 
includes any Federal, State and local governmental entity. 

 
(nn)  Pesticides: Total pesticides identified in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water 

Act which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(oo)  Phenolics: Compounds having one or more hydroxy groups attached to a benzene 
or other polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons as tested using EPA Method 420. 

 
(pp)  Pollution: An alteration of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to a degree 

which unreasonably affects such waters for beneficial use or facilities which serve 
such beneficial uses. Pollution may include contamination. 

 
(qq)  Pollution Prevention: Activities which reduce the amount of pollutants discharged 

to the community sewer, without transferring those pollutants to the air or land, 
including reduction in the use of chemicals containing regulated pollutants, 
reduction in the generation of wastes which contain pollutants, recovery and 
recycling of wastes and/or improved pretreatment of wastes prior to discharge. 

 
(rr) Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB): Total PCBs detectable by EPA approved methods. 

 
(ss) Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH): Total organic pollutants containing more 

than one fused aromatic ring, which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(tt) Premise: A parcel of real estate including any improvements thereon which is 
determined by the Agency to be a single user for purposes of receiving, using, and 
paying for service. 

Page 90 of 175



7  

(uu) Pretreatment Requirement: Any substantive or procedural pretreatment requirement 
other than a national pretreatment standard. 

 
(vv) Private Sewer Lateral: The pipeline that conveys wastewater from a residence or 

any other building foundation to the main District sewer line. 
 

(ww) Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges: Absolute prohibitions 
against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Section 
2.01 of this ordinance. 

 
(xx) Publicly Owned Treatment Works or “POTW”: A treatment works as defined by 

section 212 of the Clean Water Act, which is owned by a state or municipality (as 
defined by section 502(4) of the Clean Water Act). This definition includes any 
devices and systems used in the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of 
municipal sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature. It also includes sewers, 
pipes, and other conveyances only if they convey wastewater to a POTW 
treatment plant. The term also means the municipality as defined in section 502(4) 
of the Clean Water Act, that has jurisdiction over the indirect discharges to and the 
discharges from such a treatment works. 

 
(yy)  Sample points: 

(1) Facility (FAC) - a sample point whereby the total, combined waste stream, 
both process and domestic, from a facility is monitored for compliance with 
local discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(2) "001" - a sample point whereby a facility's federally regulated process 

waste stream/streams, immediately after treatment, is/are monitored for 
compliance with federally imposed discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(3) "002" - a sample point whereby all process waste streams (non- 

categorical), excluding domestic, from a facility are monitored for 
compliance with local discharge limitations. 

 
 

(zz) Septic Tank Waste: Any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical 
toilets, campers, trailers, and septic tanks. 

 
(aaa) Severe Property Damage: Substantial physical damage to property, damage to the 

treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and 
permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur 
in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic 
loss caused by delays in production. 

 
(bbb) Significant Industrial User (SIU): 

 
(1) A user subject to categorical pretreatment standards; or 

Page 91 of 175



8  

 

(2) A user that: 
 

(i) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day 
or more of process wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, 
noncontact cooling, and boiler blowdown wastewater); 

 
(ii) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five (5) percent or 

more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW treatment plant; or 

 
(iii) Is designated as such by the Agency on the basis that it has a 

reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any pretreatment standard or requirement. 

 
(3) Upon finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has 

no reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may at any 
time, on its own initiative or in response to a petition received from an 
Industrial User, and in accordance with procedures in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(6), 
determine that such User should not be considered a Significant Industrial 
User. 

 
(ccc) Significant Noncompliance: An industrial user is in significant noncompliance with 

applicable pretreatment requirements if any violation meets one or more of the 
following criteria: 

 
(1) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits defined here as those in 

which 66 percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, as 
defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l). 

 
(2) Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33 

percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period are equal to or exceed the product of the 
numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, 
as defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l) multiplied by the applicable TRC (TRC = 1.4 for 
BOD, TSS, fats, oil and grease and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH.) 

 
(3) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by 

40 CFR 403.3(l) (daily maximum, long-term average, instantaneous limit, or 
narrative standard) that the POTW determines has caused, alone or in 
combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass Through (including 
endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public). 

Page 92 of 175



9  

(4) Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to human 
health, welfare or to the environment or has resulted in the POTW's exercise 
of its emergency authority under paragraph (f)(1)(vi)(B) of 40 CFR 403.8 to halt 
or prevent such a discharge. 

 
(5) Failure to meet, within 90 days after the due date, a compliance schedule 

milestone contained in a local control mechanism or enforcement order for 
starting construction, completing construction or attaining final compliance. 

 
(6) Failure to provide, within 45 days after the due date, required reports such as 

baseline  monitoring  reports,  90-day  compliance  reports,  periodic self-
monitoring reports and reports on compliance with compliance schedules. 

 
(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

 
(8) Any other violation or group of violations, which may include a violation of Best 

Management Practices (BMPs), that the Agency determines will adversely 
affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment program. 

 
(ddd) Slug Load or Slug: Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which could cause 

a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in Section 2.01 of this ordinance. 
A Slug Discharge is any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but 
not limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge, that has a 
reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way 
violate the POTW's regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions. 

 
(eee) Stormwater: The runoff generated when precipitation from rain and snowmelt 

events flow over land or impervious surfaces without percolating into the ground. 
 

(fff) The District: Union Sanitary District. 
 

(ggg) Total Halogenated Organics (THO): Total halogenated organic pollutants identified 
in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water Act which are detectable by EPA 
approved methods. 

 
(hhh) Total Organics (TO): Total organic pollutants as specified by the Agency which are 

detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(iii) Total Toxic Organics (TTO): Total organic pollutants including polynuclear aromatic 
hydrocarbons (PAHs), but excluding pesticides, PCBs, and phenols, which are 
detectable by EPA approved methods. The TTO value is determined as the 
summation of all quantifiable values greater than 0.01 milligrams per liter for the 
regulated toxic organics. 

 
(jjj) Unpolluted Water: Water to which no constituent has been added, either intentionally 

or accidentally, which would render such water unacceptable to the 

Page 93 of 175



10  

agency having jurisdiction thereof for disposal to storm or natural drainages or 
directly to surface waters. 

 
(kkk) User: Any person that discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of wastewater 

into a community sewer. 
 

(lll) User Classification: A classification of user based on the latest edition of the Standard 
Industrial Classification (SIC) Manual prepared by the Executive Office of 
Management and Budget. 

 
(mmm) Waste: Includes sewage and any and all other waste substances, liquid, solid, 

gaseous, or radioactive, associated with human habitation, or of human or animal 
origin, or from any producing, manufacturing, or processing operation of whatever 
nature, including such waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to, 
and for purposes of, disposal. 

 
(nnn) Wastewater: Waste and water, whether treated or untreated, discharged into or 

permitted to enter a community sewer. 
 

(ooo) Wastewater Constituents and Characteristics: The individual chemical, physical, 
bacteriological and radiological parameters, including volume and flow rate and 
such other parameters that serve to define, classify or measure the contents, 
quality, quantity, and strength of wastewater. 

 
(ppp) Wastewater Discharge Permit: A legal document used as a control mechanism to 

ensure compliance with regulations that grants revocable permission to discharge 
wastewater to the sanitary sewer, including the following types of Wastewater 
Discharge Permit: 

 
Class I Permit  -  Issued to Significant Industrial Users both Categorical and 

Non-Categorical 
 

Class II Permit - Issued to Non-Significant Industrial Users. 
 

Class III Permit -  Issued to Industrial or Commercial Users determined by the 
Agency not to fall in the Class I or Class II categories. 

 
General Permit -  Similar to a Class III permit, issued to Industrial or 

Commercial User groups that perform similar functions or 
activities. 

 
Groundwater Permit - Issued for the discharge of treated groundwater from 

contaminated site remediation, excavation groundwater or 
potable water related projects. 

Page 94 of 175



11  

Temporary Permit - Issued for single or short term (less than one year) 
discharges of wastewater or contaminated ground water. 

 
(qqq) Waters of the State: Any water, surface or underground, including saline waters 

within the boundaries of the state. 
 
 

1.03 Analytical and Sampling Methodology and Procedures 
 
 

(a) The method and procedures utilized for all analyses which are reported under the 
requirements of these regulations shall be as specified by the provisions of 40 CFR 
Part 136. 

 
(b) The methods and procedures utilized for all sampling performed and/or reported 

under the requirements of these regulation shall be as specified by the provisions 
of 40 CFR Part 136. 

 
(c) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the 

pollutant in question, sampling and analyses must be performed in accordance 
with procedures approved by the District or EPA. 

 
(d) Analytical data collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data 

obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period 
covered by the report and is representative of conditions occurring during the 
reporting period. 

 
 

Section 2 

REGULATIONS 

 
2.01 Sewer Use Requirements 

 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges 

 
(a) General Prohibitions: No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

POTW any pollutant or wastewater which causes Pass Through or Interference. 
These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the POTW whether or not they are 
subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other National, State or Local 
Pretreatment Standards or Requirements. 

 
(b) Specific Prohibitions: No user shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

community sewer system any pollutants, substances, or wastewater which cause, 

Page 95 of 175



12  

threaten to cause, or are capable of causing, either alone or by interaction with other 
substances: 

 
(1) a fire or explosion, including but not limited to discharges with a closed cup 

flashpoint of less than 140° F (60° C) using the test methods specified in 
40CFR261.21; 

 
(2) obstruction of flow in a sewer system or injury of the system or damage to the 

wastewater collection, treatment, or disposal facilities; 
 

(3) danger to life or safety of personnel; 
 

(4) a nuisance or prevention of the effective maintenance or operation of the sewer 
system, through having a strong, unpleasant odor; 

 
(5) air pollution by the release of toxic or malodorous gases or malodorous gas- 

producing substances; 
 

(6) interference with the wastewater treatment process; and/or pass through of any 
pollutant which causes a violation of the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit; 

 
(7) the Agency's effluent or any other product of the treatment process, residues, 

sludges, or scums, to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with 
the reclamation process; 

 
(8) a detrimental environmental impact or a nuisance in the waters of the state or a 

condition unacceptable to any public agency having regulatory jurisdiction over 
the Agency; 

 
(9) discoloration or any other condition in the quality of the Agency's treatment 

works effluent in such a manner that receiving water quality requirements 
established by law cannot be met; 

 
(10) conditions at or near the Agency's treatment works which violate any statute or 

any rule, regulation, or ordinance of any public agency or state or federal 
regulatory body; 

 
(11) quantities or rates of flow which overload the Agency's collection or treatment 

facilities or cause excessive Agency collection or treatment costs, or may use a 
disproportionate share of the Agency facilities; 

 
(12) the evolution of toxic gases, fumes, or vapors in quantities injurious to the health 

and safety of Agency personnel; 

Page 96 of 175



13  

(13) the temperature at the treatment plant headworks to exceed 104o F (40oC) or 
temperature which will inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting 
in Interference; 

 
(14) wastewater having a pH less than 5.0 or greater than 12.0, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment; 
 

(15) an exceedance of the permitted Mass Limit Rate established in the Local Limits 
or discharge permits; or 

 
(16) settlement of materials or obstruction to flow resulting in interference, such as, 

but not limited to, sand, mud, glass, metal, filings, diatomaceous earth, cat litter, 
asphalt, wood, bones, hair, fleshings, food packaging, product containers and 
non-dispersible products. 

 
 

2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community sewer: 
 

(a) Pollutants, including oxygen-demanding pollutants (for example, COD), released in 
a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which, either singly or by 
interaction with other pollutants, will cause interference with the POTW; 

 
(b) Wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except in compliance with 

applicable State or Federal regulations; 
 

(c) Sludges, screenings, or other residues (solid or liquid) from the pretreatment of 
industrial wastes; 

 
(d) Medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Agency; 

 
(e) All prescription and non-prescription (over the counter) pharmaceutical drugs or 

medications; 
 

(f) Wastewater causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, the treatment 
plant's effluent to fail a toxicity test; 

 
(g) Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances which may cause excessive 

foaming in the POTW; 
 

(h) Wastewater containing pesticides, dioxins and dioxin-like compounds, and/or 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB) at levels detectable by EPA approved methods; 

 
(i) Hazardous wastes or materials, as defined by California Code of Regulations Title 

22 or Subtitles C and D of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; 

Page 97 of 175



14  

Pollutants, substances, or wastewater prohibited by this section shall not be processed 
or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the POTW. 

 
 

2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam Fillings 
 

(a) All owners and operators of dental facilities that remove or place amalgam fillings 
shall comply with the following waste management practices: 

 
(1) No person shall rinse chair-side traps, vacuum screens, or amalgam separator 

equipment in a sink or other connection to the community sewer per 
40CFR441.30(b)(1). Such traps, vacuum screens or amalgam separator 
equipment must be recycled or disposed of in an appropriate manner according 
to recycler or equipment manufacturer. 

 
(2) Amalgam waste and other hazardous solutions shall be properly collected, 

packaged, labeled, stored, managed, and disposed. 
 

(3) Dental unit water lines, chair-side traps, and vacuum lines that discharge 
amalgam process wastewater to a community sewer must not be cleaned with 
oxidizing or acidic cleaners, including but not limited to bleach, chlorine, iodine 
and peroxide that have a pH lower than 6 or greater than 8 per 
40CFR441.30(b)(2). 

 
(4) Owners and operators of dental facilities shall ensure that all staff members who 

handle amalgam waste are trained in the proper handling, management and 
disposal of mercury-containing material and other hazardous solutions and shall 
maintain training records that will be made available for inspection by an 
employee of the District during normal business hours. 

 
(5) The use of bulk mercury is prohibited. Only pre-capsulated dental amalgam is 

allowed. 
 

(b) All owners and operators of dental vacuum suction systems, except as set forth in 
subsection (c) of this section, shall comply with the following: 

 
(1) Install amalgam separator device compliant with 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) 

or 40CFR441.40 (new offices). Amalgam separator device must achieve at least 
a 95 percent removal efficiency. No bypass of separator device or related 
plumbing shall be allowed. 

 
(2) Per 40CFR441.50, a One-Time Compliance Report must be submitted to the 

District from existing offices by no later than October 12, 2020, or 90 days after 
a transfer of ownership. For new offices, a One-Time Compliance Report must 
be submitted to the District no later than 90 days following the introduction of 
wastewater into the community sewer. 

Page 98 of 175



15  

 

(3) Amalgam separators shall be installed, operated and maintained in accordance 
with manufacturer recommendations per 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) or 
40CFR441.40 (new offices). 

 
(4) Dental Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain for a minimum of three years and make available for immediate 
inspection the following documentation per 40CFR441.50(b): 

 
•  Documentation of the date, person(s) conducting the inspection, and results 

of each inspection of the amalgam separator(s) and a summary of follow-up 
actions, if needed. 

 
• Documentation of amalgam retaining container replacement (including 

installation date, as applicable). 
 

• Documentation of all dates that collected dental amalgam is picked up or 
shipped for proper disposal in accordance with 40 CFR 261.5(g)(3), and the 
name of the permitted or licensed treatment, storage or disposal facility 
receiving the amalgam waste. 

 
• Documentation of any repair or replacement of an amalgam separator, 

including the date, person(s) making the repair or replacement, and a 
description of the repair or replacement (including make and model). 

 
• Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain and make available for inspection in either physical or electronic form 
the manufacturers operating manual for the current device. 

 
(c) Specialty dental offices where the practice of dentistry consists exclusively of one or 

more of the following are exempt from this requirement (Section 2.02) per 
40CFR441.10(c), provided that the District receives written certification that removal 
or placement of amalgam fillings does not take place: 

 
• Orthodontics 
• Periodontics 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Radiology 
• Oral Pathology or Oral Medicine 
• Prosthodontics 

 
 

2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater 
 

Storm water, groundwater, rainwater, street drainage, subsurface drainage or yard 
drainage shall not be discharged through direct or indirect connections to a community 

Page 99 of 175



16  

sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The Agency may approve the discharge 
of such water at its discretion and only when no reasonable alternative method of disposal 
is available. 

 
If the permit is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the user 
shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as required by 
the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be considered a 
Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge limitations or 
prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the discharge at any 
time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual basis. 

 
 

2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Remediation Projects 
 

Wastewater generated from the cleanup of spills, leaking underground storage tanks, 
groundwater remediation, monitoring wells, excavation groundwater, potable water 
projects or other similar sources shall not be discharged through direct or indirect 
connections to a community sewer unless a discharge permit is issued by the Agency. 
The Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If a discharge permit is granted for the discharge of such water into the community sewer, 
the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as 
required by the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be 
considered a Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge 
limitations or prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the 
discharge at any time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual 
basis. 

 
 

2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water 
 

Unpolluted water, including but not limited to cooling water, process water, or blow-down 
from cooling towers or evaporative coolers, will not be discharged through direct or 
indirect connection to a community sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The 
Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion and only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If authorization is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the 
user shall pay the applicable user charges and fees and shall meet such other 
requirements and/or conditions as required by the Agency. 

Page 100 of 175



17  

2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes 
 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any radioactive waste into a 
community sewer except: 

 
(a) when a person is authorized to use radioactive materials by the State Department 

of Health or other governmental agency empowered to regulate the use of 
radioactive materials; and 

 
(b) when the waste is discharged in strict conformity with the requirements of the United 

States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the United States Department of Energy, 
and/or the California Radiation Control Regulations; and 

 
(c) when the person is in compliance with all rules and regulations of all other applicable 

regulatory agencies. 
 
 

2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders 
Waste from garbage grinders, food waste liquefiers, aerobic and anaerobic bio-digesters, 
food composters and similar devices shall not be discharged into the community sewer 
excepts as approved in writing by the Agency. 

 
Garbage grinders and similar devices shall not be used for grinding plastic, paper 
products, inert materials, or garden refuse. 

 
 

2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge 
 

No person shall discharge any substances directly into a manhole or other opening in a 
community sewer other than through an approved building sewer unless, upon written 
application by the user and payment of the applicable user charges and fees, the Agency 
issues a permit for such direct discharges. 

 
 

2.09 Waste Holding Tanks, Vessels and Containers 
 

No person shall discharge any holding tank or vessel waste into a community sewer 
unless a wastewater discharge permit is issued by the Agency. Unless otherwise allowed 
by the Agency under the terms and conditions of the permit, a separate permit must be 
secured for each separate discharge. This permit may state the specific location of 
discharge, the time of day the discharge is to occur, the volume of the discharge and the 
wastewater constituents and characteristics. If a permit is granted for discharge of such 
waste into a community sewer, the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and 
shall meet such other conditions as required by the Agency. An exception to the above is 
that no permit will be required for discharge of domestic wastes from mobile home holding 

Page 101 of 175



18  

tanks provided that such discharges are made into an Agency approved facility designed 
to receive such wastes. 

 
 

2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength 
 

(a) The Manager is authorized to establish Local Limits or Best Management Practices 
(BMP's) pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). 

 
(b) The following pollutant limits are established to protect against Pass Through and 

Interference. 
 

(1) The following limits are maximum allowable discharge limits (the maximum 
concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined 
from the analysis of any discrete or composite sample collected, independent of 
the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event). Limits for metals 
are for total recoverable metals. 

 
No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

 
Arsenic 0.35 mg/L 
Cadmium 0.2 mg/L 
Copper 2.0 mg/L 
Cyanide 0.65 mg/L 
Lead 1.0 mg/L 
Mercury 0.01 mg/L 
Nickel 1.0 mg/L 
Silver 0.5 mg/L 
Total Chromium 2.0 mg/L 
Zinc 3.0 mg/L 
TTO 2.13 mg/L 
Formaldehyde 50.0 mg/L 
Phenolics 5.0 mg/L 

 
(2) No person shall discharge wastewater: 

 
(A) having a temperature higher than 150° F (65.5° C), or any thermal discharge 

which as a result of temperature and/or volume causes the influent of the 
wastewater treatment plant to exceed 104° F (40° C); 

 
(B) containing more than 300 mg/L of oil or grease of animal or vegetable origin, 

unless specifically approved by the District. The District may approve, on a 
case by case basis, a modification to the analytical method if the discharger 
can demonstrate that constituents in their wastewater interfere with the 
freon extraction, hexane extraction or current EPA approved procedure and 
have no negative impact on the POTW and/or receiving waters. 

Page 102 of 175



19  

 

(C) containing more than 100 mg/L of oil or grease of mineral or petroleum 
origin; 

 
(D) having a pH lower than 6.0 or higher than 12.0 units, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment, 
unless specifically approved by the District. Under no circumstances will a 
pH of less than 5.0 or higher than 12.5 pH units be approved. 

 
(3) The following limits for ammonia are maximum allowable average 

concentrations. Limits are for total ammonia expressed as nitrogen. Limits are 
tiered based on average daily flow, which is the arithmetic average of the 
permitted industrial user's daily flows for the preceding calendar year and is 
equivalent to the flow rate used in establishing sewer service charges: 

 
Average Daily Flow Ammonia Limit 

 
<10,000 gallons per day (gpd) 225 mg/L as N 
10,000 - 25,000 gpd 150 mg/L as N 
>25,000 gpd 75 mg/L as N 

 
Compliance determination shall be based on the average of all valid and 
representative analyses occurring within a 6-month period 

 
For industrial users holding permits issued prior to January 1, 2014, the 
Manager may issue compliance schedules for ammonia as described in 
Sections 6.09 and 6.10. In no case may these compliance schedules exceed 
5 years. All new permitted industrial users must comply with these limits upon 
initial discharge. 

 
(4) Additional Limits 

 
Limits for pollutants not listed in this section 2.10 may be established in a 
wastewater discharge permit based on available treatment technology, existing 
wastewater conditions in the District's facilities or other factors determined by 
the Manager. The Manager may also establish wastewater strength limits on 
the wastewater discharge permits at locations within a premises whenever non- 
process water many dilute wastewater discharging from side sewers. 

 
(c) National Categorical Standards, found in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 

405-471, as may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated into these 
regulations. Effluent limitations promulgated by the Clean Water Act shall apply in 
any instance where they are more stringent than those in these regulations. 

 
(d) Additional limits specific to the discharge of groundwater or surface water. No 

person shall discharge groundwater or surface water in excess of: 

Page 103 of 175



20  

 

Total Halogenated Organics (THO) 0.02mg/L 
Total Organics  2.0 mg/L 

 
 

2.10.1 Mass Limit Rate Determination 
 

(a) Mass Limit Rates for non-compatible or compatible pollutants that are present or 
anticipated in the User's wastewater discharge may be set for each User and made 
an applicable part of each User's wastewater discharge permit. These rates shall be 
based on Maximum Allowable Local Discharge Limits, Federal Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards, the User's average daily wastewater discharge for the past 
three years, the most recent representative data, or other data or factors determined 
by the Manager 

 
(b) To verify the User's operating data, the User may be required to submit an inventory 

of all wastewater streams and/or records indicating production rates. 
 

(c) The District may revise limits or Mass Limit Rates previously established in the User's 
permit at any time, based on current or anticipated operating data of the User or the 
District the District's ability to meet NPDES limits, or changes in the requirements of 
regulatory agencies. 

 
(d) The excess use of water to establish artificially high flow rate for the Mass Limit Rate 

determination is prohibited. 
 
 

2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges 
 

No user shall discharge any pollutant, including oxygen-demanding pollutants, at a flow 
rate and/or pollutant concentration which causes or threatens to cause interference with 
the wastewater treatment process. For the purposes of this section, any discharge at a 
flow rate or concentration which could cause a violation of the prohibited discharge 
standards or limitations in Section 2 of this ordinance shall be deemed a slug discharge. 

 
 

2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution 
 

Except where expressly authorized to do so by an applicable pretreatment standard or 
requirement, no user shall increase the use of process water, or in any other way attempt 
to dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate pretreatment to 
achieve compliance with a pretreatment standard, requirement or discharge limitation. 

Page 104 of 175



21  

2.13 Prohibition of Bypass 
 

(a) Bypass of pretreatment equipment and/or discharge points is prohibited and the 
Agency may take enforcement action against any user for bypass unless: 

 
(1) bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage; 
 

(2) there were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 
treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal 
periods of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate 
backup equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable 
engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods 
of equipment downtime or preventative maintenance; and 

 
(3) the industrial user submits the following notices: 

 
(i) If an Industrial User knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall 

submit prior notice to the Agency, if possible at least ten days before the 
date of the bypass. 

 
(ii) An Industrial User shall submit oral notice of an unanticipated bypass that 

exceeds applicable Pretreatment Standards to the Agency within 24 hours 
from the time the Industrial User becomes aware of the bypass. A written 
submission shall also be provided within 5 days of the time the Industrial 
User becomes aware of the bypass. The written submission shall contain a 
description of the bypass and its cause; the duration of the bypass, including 
exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the 
anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken 
or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. 
The Agency may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral 
report has been received within 24 hours. 

 
(b) The Agency may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse 

effects, if the Agency determines that it will meet the three conditions specified in 
part (a) of this section. 

 
 

2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Chemical Solutions and Sludges 
 

No user shall, without prior written approval of the Agency, discharge any unused or waste 
chemical solutions to the community sewer. For the purposes of this section, such 
materials include, but are not limited to, concentrated solutions utilized within any 
commercial or industrial operation, containerized liquids of any description, spoiled or 
otherwise unusable raw materials of any description, or spoiled or otherwise unusable 
products of any description. 

Page 105 of 175



22  

The Agency may approve the discharge of such wastes at its sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 

2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing Pass-through 
or Interference 

 
Notwithstanding the provisions of section 2.10(b), no user may discharge petroleum oil, 
non-biodegradable cutting oil or other products of mineral origin in any amount that 
causes interference or pass-through. 

 
 

2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes 
 

The discharge of any trucked or otherwise hauled wastes to the sanitary sewer system is 
prohibited except as the Agency may permit under the provisions of section 2.09. 

 
 

2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas 
 

The discharge of waste (solid or liquid), wastewater or chemicals from a chemical storage 
containment area is prohibited unless expressly authorized by the Agency. 

 
 

2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections 
 

Unapproved connections to the community sewer are strictly prohibited. 
Any building sewers that have not been permitted, inspected, or where capacity and/or 
current sewer service charges have not been paid, are subject to the conditions of 
Ordinance 34, Article 2, Section 7, Connection of Building Drains. 

 
 

Section 3 
 

WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 
 
 

3.01 Application 
 

Section 3 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 
 
 

3.02 Metered Water Supply 
 

User charges and fees shall be applied against the total amount of water used from all 
sources unless, in the opinion of the Agency, significant portions of water received are 

Page 106 of 175



23  

not discharged to a community sewer. The total amount of water used from public and 
private sources will be determined by means of public meters or private meters, installed 
and maintained at the expense of the user and approved by the Agency. 

 
(a) Metered Wastewater Volume and Metered Diversions. For users where, in the 

opinion of the Agency, a significant portion of the water received from any metered 
source does not flow into a community sewer because of the principal activity of the 
user or removal by other means, the user charges and fees will be applied against 
the volume of water discharged from such premises into a community sewer. Written 
notification and proof of the diversion of water must be provided by the user if the 
user is to avoid the application of the user charges and fees against the total amount 
of water used from all sources. The user may install a meter of a type and at a 
location approved by the Agency and at the user's expense. Such meters may 
measure either the amount of sewage discharged or the amount water diverted. 
Such meters shall be tested for accuracy at the expense of the user when deemed 
necessary by the Manager. 

 
(b) Users With Source Meters. For users who, in the opinion of the Agency, divert a 

significant portion of their metered water supply from a community sewer, the user 
charges may be based upon an estimate of the volume to be discharged, provided 
the user obtains authorization from the agency and pays the applicable user charges 
and fees. The estimate must include the method and calculations used to determine 
the wastewater volume and may consider such factors as the number of fixtures, 
seating capacity, population equivalents, annual production of goods and services, 
or such other determinations of water use necessary to estimate the wastewater 
volume discharged. 

 
(c) Users Without Source Meters. The agency may require the installation of water 

meters; however, for users where, in the opinion of the Agency, it is unnecessary or 
impractical to install meters, the quantity of wastewater may be based upon an 
estimate prepared by the Agency. This estimate shall be based upon a rational 
determination of the wastewater discharged and may consider such factors as the 
number of fixtures, seating capacity, population equivalent, annual production of 
goods and services, or such other determinants of water use necessary to estimate 
the wastewater volume discharged. 

 
 

Section 4 

ADMINISTRATION 

 
4.01 Application 

 
Section 4 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 

Page 107 of 175



24  

 

4.02 Discharge Reports 
 

(a) The Agency, or the Authority through the Agency, may require that any person 
discharging or proposing to discharge wastewater into a community sewer file a 
periodic discharge report. The discharge report may include, but not be limited to, 
nature of process, volume, rates of flow, mass emission rate, production quantities, 
hours of operation, number and classification of employees, or other information 
which relates to the generation of waste including wastewater constituents and 
characteristics in the wastewater discharge and sample analysis demonstrating 
compliance with Section 2. Such reports may also include the chemical constituents 
and quantity of liquid or gaseous materials stored on site even though they may not 
normally be discharged. 

 
(b) The agency may prohibit, authorize or condition any discharge into the sanitary 

sewer in accordance with this ordinance and applicable state and federal 
regulations, whether or not a Discharge Permit is issued. 

 
(c) Acceptance of any new discharge is contingent on available capacity in the collection 

system and/or treatment plant, as determined by the District Engineering Division 
and Operations Department. 

 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Permits 
 

4.03.1 Class I Permits. All significant industrial users (SIU), as defined in Section 1.02 
(bbb), must have a current Class I Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

 
Each new SIU, if not connected to a community sewer, must obtain a Class I Wastewater 
Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a community sewer. 

 
Any user currently connected to the community sewer who in the future is deemed to be 
an SIU shall be required to obtain a Class I permit. User will be required to pay all 
applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.2 Class II Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I Permit, yet require some sampling and regular monitoring of 
wastewater discharge, if connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a 
Class II Wastewater Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a 
community sewer. User will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the 
Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.3 Class III Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I or II permit, yet have a wastewater discharge that the Agency 
may decide requires oversight due to potential risks associated with said discharge, if 
connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a Class III wastewater 

Page 108 of 175



25  

discharge permit before connecting to or discharging into the community sewer. User will 
be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 
Class III permits may include General permits or any other as determined by the Manager. 

 
4.03.4 Temporary and/or Groundwater Permits. Users who, as determined by the 
Agency, do not fall within the requirements for a Class I, II, or III permit, yet have a 
wastewater discharge that the Agency may decide requires oversight due to potential 
risks associated with said discharge if connected to the community sewer. Temporary 
permits will be issued for one time, or for a discharge period not to exceed one year. User 
will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
The Manager may modify wastewater discharge requirements for the following types of 
facilities: 

 
(a) Industrial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge with no treatment (beyond 

simple filtration) in place and do not require routine monitoring or inspection. 
 

(b) Commercial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge that may have detectable 
amounts of one or more priority or conventional pollutants present in their waste 
stream. The Agency may require some level of treatment at such facilities, however, 
do not require routine monitoring or inspection. (Examples: dentists, photo 
processors, printers, and restaurants.) 

 
 

4.04 Permit Application 
 

Users seeking a Wastewater Discharge Permit shall complete and file with the Manager 
an application in the form prescribed by the Manager and accompanied by the applicable 
fees. The applicant may be required to submit, in units and terms appropriate for 
evaluation, the following information: 

 
(a) name, address, and SIC number of applicant; 

 
(b) volume of wastewater to be discharged; 

 
(c) sampling of wastewater to determine constituents and characteristics including, but 

not limited to, those listed in Section 2.10 as determined by a laboratory approved 
by the Agency; 

 
(d) time and duration of discharge; 

 
(e) average and 30-minute peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly, and 

seasonal variations, if any; 
 

(f) site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all 
sewers and appurtenances by function, size, location, and elevation; 

Page 109 of 175



26  

 

(g) Description of activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises, including a 
list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the facility which are, or could 
accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW; 

 
(h) each product produced by type, amount, and rate of production; 

 
(i) number and type of employees, and hours of work; 

 
(j) description of wastewater treatment system(s), and/or procedures, including system 

design, piping, layout, hydraulic and pollutant removal capacity, design criteria, 
calibration and maintenance procedures, alarm systems, sample points, treatment 
chemicals, excursion response procedures, and any other information necessary to 
evaluate the adequacy and appropriateness of the treatment system and/or 
procedures. 

 
(k) management plans, including any or all of the following: solvent management plan, 

best management practice plan, slug control plan, hazardous materials 
management plan, emergency/violation response plan, and/or pollution prevention 
plan. 

 
(l) any other information as may be deemed by the Manager to be necessary to 

evaluate the permit application. 
 

The Manager will evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional 
information. After evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the Manager may 
issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit subject to terms and conditions provided herein. 

 
 

4.05 Permit Conditions 
 

Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be expressly subject to all provisions of these 
regulations and all other regulations, user charges, and fees established by the Agency. 
The conditions of Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be uniformly enforced by the 
Manager in accordance with these regulations, and applicable state and federal 
regulations. Permits may contain the following: 

 
(a) A statement that indicates the duration of the wastewater discharge permit; 

 
(b) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior 

notification to the Agency in accordance with Section 4.08 of this ordinance; 
 

(c) Effluent Limits, including Best Management Practices (BMPs), based on applicable 
pretreatment standards; 

(d) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping requirements. 
These  requirements  shall  include  an  identification  of  pollutants  (or  Best 

Page 110 of 175



27  

Management Practices) to be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, 
and sample type based on Federal, State, and local law. 

 
(e) A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment 

Standards and Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such 
schedule may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable 
Federal, State, or local law; 

 
(f) Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, and/or 

requirements for flow regulation and equalization; 
 

(g) The unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees for the wastewater to be 
discharged to a community sewer; 

 
(h) The average and maximum wastewater constituent concentrations and 

characteristics; 
 

(i) Limits on rate and time of discharge or requirements for flow regulations and 
equalization; 

 
(j) Requirements for installation of inspection and sampling facilities; 

 
(k) Pretreatment requirements; 

 
(l) Specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, 

frequency and method of sampling, number, types and standards for tests, reporting 
schedules, and Best Management Practices; 

 
(m) Requirements for submission of technical reports, self-monitoring reports, or 

discharge reports, including, but not limited to baseline monitoring reports, 
compliance schedule progress reports, reports of compliance with categorical 
pretreatment standard deadlines, periodic reports of continued compliance, or any 
report required by 40 CFR 403.12, and/or any other reports as required by the 
Agency; 

 
(n) Requirements for maintaining plant records relating to wastewater discharge as 

specified by the Agency, and affording Agency access thereto; 
 

(o) Mean and maximum mass emission rates, or other appropriate limits when 
incompatible pollutants (as defined by section 1.02(ee)) are proposed or presented 
in the user's wastewater discharge; 

 
(p) Notification requirements; 

Page 111 of 175



28  

(q) Requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or other 
special conditions including management practices necessary to adequately prevent 
accidental, unanticipated, or non-routine discharges; 

 
(r) Development and implementation of pollution prevention plans to reduce the amount 

of pollutants discharged to the POTW; 
 

(s) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Agency to insure compliance with 
these regulations; 

 
(t) Requirements to control Slug Discharges, if determined by the Agency to be 

necessary. 
 
 

4.06 Duration of Permits 
 

Permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five years. A permit may 
be issued for a period less than one year or may be stated to expire on a specific date. 
The terms and conditions of the permit may be subject to modification and change by the 
Agency during the life of the permit. The user shall be informed of any proposed changes 
in his or her permit at least 30 days prior to the effective date of change. Any changes or 
new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule for compliance. 

 
 

4.07 Modification of Permits 
 

The Agency may modify an individual/general wastewater discharge permit for good 
cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons: 

 
(1) To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment 

Standards or Requirements; 
 

(2) To address significant alterations or additions to the User's operation, processes, or 
wastewater volume or character since the time of the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit issuance; 

 
(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or 

elimination of the authorized discharge; 
 

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the Agency's 
POTW, Agency personnel, the beneficial use of the Agency's bio-solids, or the 
receiving waters; 

 
(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the individual/general wastewater discharge 

permit; 

Page 112 of 175



29  

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 
discharge permit application or in any required reporting; 

 
(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant 

to 40 CFR 403.13; 
 

(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit; or 

 
(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner or operator 

where requested in accordance with Section 4.08. 
 
 

4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer 
 

Wastewater discharge permits may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the 
permittee gives at least thirty (30) days advance notice to the Agency and the Agency 
approves the wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Agency must 
include a written certification by the new owner or operator which: 

 
(a) States that the new owner and/or operator has no immediate intent to change the 

facility's operations and processes; 
 

(b) Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur; and 
 

(c) Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing wastewater 
discharge permit. 

 
Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the wastewater discharge permit 
void as of the date of facility transfer. 

 
 

4.09 Revocation of Permit 
 

Any user who violates the following conditions of the permit or any conditions of these 
regulations, or applicable state and federal regulations may be subject to permit 
revocation: 

 
(a) failure of the user to factually report the wastewater constituents and characteristics 

of his or her discharge; 
 

(b) violations of conditions of the permit. 
 

(c) Failure to notify the Agency of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the 
changed discharge; 

Page 113 of 175



30  

(d) Failure to provide prior notification to the Agency of changed conditions pursuant to 
Section 4.19 of this ordinance; 

 
(e) Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 

discharge permit application; 
 

(f) Falsifying self-monitoring reports; 
 

(g) Tampering with monitoring equipment; 
 

(h) Refusing to allow the Agency personnel timely access to the facility premises and 
records; 

 
(i) Failure to meet effluent limitations; 

 
(j) Failure to pay fines; 

 
(k) Failure to pay sewer charges, 

 
(l) Failure to meet compliance schedules; 

 
(m) Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit 

application; 
 

(n) Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a 
permitted facility; or 

 
(o) Violation of any pretreatment standard or requirement, or any terms of the 

wastewater discharge permit or this ordinance. 
 
 

4.10 Monitoring Facilities 
 

The Agency may require the user to construct at his or her own expense, monitoring 
facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the building sewer or 
internal drainage systems and may also require sampling or metering equipment to be 
provided, installed, and operated at the user's expense. The monitoring facility should 
normally be situated on the user's premises; but the Agency may, when such a location 
would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the user, allow the facility to be 
constructed in the public street or sidewalk area with the approval of the public agency 
having jurisdiction over that street or sidewalk, and located so that it will not be obstructed 
by landscaping or parked vehicles. 

 
If the monitoring facility is inside the user's fence, there shall be accommodations to allow 
access for Agency personnel, such as a gate secured with an Agency lock. There shall 
be ample room in or near such sampling manhole to allow accurate sampling and 

Page 114 of 175



31  

compositing of samples for analysis. The manhole, sampling, and measuring equipment 
shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense 
of the user. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the 
facility to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the 
written or oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing 
such access shall be borne by the user. 
Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring facilities 
shall be provided in accordance with the Agency's requirements and all applicable local 
agency construction standards and specifications. Construction shall be completed within 
90 days following written notification by the Agency unless a time extension is otherwise 
granted by the Agency. 

 
 

4.11 Inspection and Sampling 
 

The Agency may inspect the facilities of any user to ascertain whether the purpose of 
these regulations is being met and all requirements are being complied with. Persons or 
occupants of premises where wastewater is created or discharged shall allow the Agency 
or its representative ready access at all reasonable times to all parts of the premises for 
the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination and copying, or in the 
performance of any of their duties. The Agency shall have the right to set up on the user's 
property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling or metering operations. 
Where a user has security measures in force which would require proper identification 
and clearance before entry into their premises, the user shall make necessary 
arrangements with their security personnel so that, upon presentation of suitable 
identification, personnel from the Agency will be permitted to enter without delay for the 
purposes of performing their specific responsibilities. Agency personnel will not be 
required to sign release forms prior to entry and may take appropriate photographs as 
necessary to document compliance and/or non-compliance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility 
to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the written or 
oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access 
shall be borne by the user. Unreasonable delays in allowing the Manager access to the 
user's premises shall be a violation of this ordinance. 

 
 

4.12 Search Warrants 
 

If the Manager has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part 
thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation 
of this ordinance, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine 
inspection and sampling program of the Agency designed to verify compliance with this 
ordinance or any permit or order issued here under, or to protect the overall public health, 
safety and welfare of the community, then the Manager may seek issuance of an 
inspection warrant and/or a search warrant. 

Page 115 of 175



32  

4.13 Pretreatment 
 

Users shall make wastewater acceptable under the limitations established herein before 
discharging to any community sewer. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a 
level acceptable to the Agency shall be provided and maintained at the user's expense. 
Detailed plans showing the pretreatment facilities, design criteria and operating 
procedures shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall be acceptable to the 
Agency before construction of the facility. The review of such plans, design criteria, and 
operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from the responsibility of modifying 
the facility as necessary to produce an effluent acceptable to the Agency under the 
provisions of these regulations. Any subsequent changes in the pretreatment facilities or 
method of operation shall be reported to and be acceptable to the Agency. 

 
 

4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge 
 

Each user shall provide protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or 
other wastes regulated by these regulations. Such facilities shall be provided and 
maintained at the user's expense. Detailed plans showing facilities and operating 
procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall 
be acceptable to the Agency before construction of the facility. 

 
The review of such plans and operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from 
the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to provide the protection 
necessary to meet the requirements of this section. 

 

4.15 Confidential Information 
 

Information and data on a user obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge 
permit applications, wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from 
the Agency's inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without 
restriction, unless the user specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Manager, that the release of such information would divulge 
information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets 
under applicable State and/or Federal law. Any such request must be asserted at the time 
of submission of the information or data. When requested and demonstrated by the user 
furnishing a report that such information should be held confidential, the portions of a 
report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available 
for inspection by the public but shall be made available immediately to the EPA upon 
request. Such information will also be made available immediately upon request to other 
governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or pretreatment program, 
and in enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater 
constituents and characteristics and other "effluent data" as defined by 40 CFR 2.302 will 
not be recognized as confidential information and will be available to the public without 
restriction. 

Page 116 of 175



33  

4.16 Signature Requirement 
 

(a) All reports and/or permit applications received and/or required under these 
regulations shall be signed: 

 
(1) By a responsible corporate officer, if the user submitting the reports is a 

corporation. For the purpose of this paragraph, a responsible corporate officer 
means: 

 
(i) a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice president of the corporation in 

charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs 
similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation, or; 

(ii) the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating 
facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management 
decisions which govern the operation of the regulated facility including 
having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment 
recommendations, and initiate and direct other comprehensive measures 
to assure long-term environmental compliance with environmental laws 
and regulations; can ensure that the necessary systems are established 
or actions taken to gather complete and accurate information for control 
mechanism requirements; and where authority to sign documents has 
been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate 
procedures. 

 
(2) By a general partner or proprietor if the user submitting the reports is a 

partnership or sole proprietorship, respectively. 
 

(3) By a duly authorized representative of the individual designated in paragraph 
(1) or (2); 

 
(i) The authorization is made in writing by the individual designated in 

paragraph (1) or (2); 
 

(ii) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having 
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility from which the 
industrial discharge originates, such as the position of plant manager, 
operator of a well, or well field superintendent, or a position of equivalent 
responsibility, or having overall responsibility for environmental matters 
for the company; and 

 
(iii) The written authorization is submitted to the Agency. 

 
(4) If an authorization under paragraph (3) of this section is no longer accurate 

because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall 
operation of the facility, or overall responsibility for environmental matters for 
the company, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of paragraph (3) 

Page 117 of 175



34  

of this section must be submitted to the Agency prior to or together with any 
reports to be signed by an authorized representative. 

 
(b) Reports and applications must include the following certification statement: 

 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure 
that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those 
persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted 
is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 

 
 

4.17 Retention of Records 
 

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make 
available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any 
monitoring activities required by this ordinance, any additional records of information 
obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent of such 
requirements, and documentation associated with Best Management Practices 
established under Section 2.10(a), including but not limited to discharge reports, permits, 
self-monitoring data, pretreatment system process control logs, and relevant 
correspondence (whether or not required by these regulations). All records must be 
maintained by the user for a period of not less than three (3) years. All such records shall 
be made available for inspection and copying by a duly authorized representative of the 
Agency or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction. The retention period may be 
extended in the case of unresolved litigation or at any time at the request of the Agency, 
the State or US EPA. 

 
 

4.18 Notices to Employees 
 

In order that employees of users be informed of Agency requirements, users shall make 
available to their employees copies of these regulations together with such other 
wastewater information and notices which may be furnished by the Agency from time to 
time directed toward more effective water pollution control. A notice shall be furnished 
and permanently posted on the user's bulletin board advising employees whom to call in 
case of an accidental discharge in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.19 Preventive Measures 
 

Any direct or indirect connection or entry point for persistent or deleterious wastes to the 
user's plumbing or drainage system should be eliminated. Where such action is 

Page 118 of 175



35  

impractical or unreasonable, the user shall appropriately label such entry points to warn 
against discharge of such wastes in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions 
 

Each user must notify the Agency of any planned significant changes to the user's 
operations or system which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater 
discharge prior to implementation of said change. 

 
(a) The Manager may require the user to submit such information as may be deemed 

necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a 
wastewater discharge permit application under Section 4.04 of this ordinance. 

 
(b) The Manager may issue a wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.03 of this 

ordinance or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.06 of 
this ordinance in response to changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions. 

 
(c) For purposes of this requirement, significant changes include, but are not limited to, 

significant flow increases or decreases (greater than 25%), modification of any 
pretreatment system, bypass of any portion of the pretreatment system, installation or 
removal of process tanks or equipment, discharge of any previously unreported 
pollutants, and the closure of a facility due to purchase by another party, relocation, 
changed business conditions, or other factor affecting the continued operation of the 
facility. 

 
 

4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge 
 

(a) All industrial users discharging any substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would 
be a hazardous or acutely hazardous waste under 40 CFR 261, must comply with 
the reporting requirements of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(1) and (3) unless exempted under 
the provisions of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(2). 

 
(b) In the case of any notification made under section (a) above, the industrial user shall 

certify that it has a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous 
wastes generated to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. The 
Agency may accept a copy of a hazardous waste reduction or minimization plan as 
otherwise required by law. 

 
(c) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not otherwise 

permitted to be discharged by this ordinance, a permit issued thereunder, or any 
applicable Federal or State law. 

Page 119 of 175



36  

4.22 Special Agreements 
 

Special agreements and arrangements between the Agency and any persons or agencies 
may be established when, in the opinion of the Agency, unusual or extraordinary 
circumstances compel special terms and conditions. Under no circumstances, however, 
will any special agreement or arrangement be established which contravenes any federal 
pretreatment regulation, categorical pretreatment standard, or any other provision of state 
or federal law. 

 
 

4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW 
 

All SIU's shall notify the Manager immediately of any slug loading, as defined by 40 CFR 
403.5(b), or any other discharge that could adversely affect the POTW. 

 
 

4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements 
 

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained 
through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the 
report, based on data that is representative of conditions occurring during the reporting 
period. 

 
(a) Except as indicated in Sections (b) or (c) below, the User must collect wastewater 

samples using 24-hour flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time- 
proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District. Where 
time-proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District, 
the samples must be representative of the discharge. Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and appropriate EPA 
guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be composited 
prior to the analysis as follows: for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides, the samples 
may be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and 
grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples for 
other parameters unaffected by the compositing procedures as documented in 
approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by District, as appropriate. In 
addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with Instantaneous 
Limits. 

 
(b) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenolics, sulfides, and volatile 

organic compounds must be obtained using grab collection techniques. 
 

(c) For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance 
reports required in Section 4.25(c) below [40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], A minimum of 
four (4) grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, phenolics, oil and grease, sulfide 
and volatile organic compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not 
exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data are available, the District may 

Page 120 of 175



37  

authorize a lower minimum. For the reports required by (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 
403.12(h), the Industrial User is required to collect the number of grab samples 
necessary to assess and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment 
Standards and Requirements. 

 
(d) If a user subject to reporting requirement monitors any regulated pollutant at a 

designated sampling location more frequently than required, the results of this 
monitoring shall be reported. 

 
(e) The Manager may specify the type of sampling equipment that must be installed and 

used. pH monitoring and Flow monitoring equipment installed at an industrial user's 
sampling location shall be calibrated at the frequency specified in the industrial user's 
wastewater discharge permit or at the frequency recommended by the manufacturer. 

 
(f) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant 

in question, or where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical 
techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in question, sampling and analyses shall 
be performed using validated analytical methods or any other applicable sampling and 
analytical procedures suggested by the Manager or other parties approved by the 
EPA. Samples shall be analyzed at the discharges expense, by a laboratory 
accredited by the State of California Department of Public Health for such analysis. 

 
(g) The Manager may require self-monitoring for facilities for which a wastewater 

discharge permit has not been issued. 
 
 

4.25 Submission of Reports 
 

The Agency has authority to require all Significant Industrial Users and any other 
designated dischargers to submit reports and schedules within a time-frame directed by 
the Agency. Required reports and schedules, include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
(a) Wastewater Discharge Surveys 

 
(b) Chemical Use Reports 

 
(c)  Baseline Monitoring Reports (BMR) and 90-Day Monitoring Reports containing 

information as required under 40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d): 
 

(1) Within (i)180 days after the effective date of a categorical standard in the case of 
an existing industrial user, or 90 days prior to commencement of discharge for a 
new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards must 
submit a Baseline Report; and (ii) 90-Days after commencement of discharge for 
a new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards 
must submit a 90-Day report. All Baseline Reports and 90-Day Report must 
contain the following information: 

Page 121 of 175



38  

 

(A) The name and address of the facility including the name of the operator and 
owners; 

 
(B) A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility; 

 
(C) A brief description of the nature, average rate of production, and Standard 

Industrial Classification of the operation(s) carried out by such Industrial User. 
This description should include a schematic process diagram which indicates 
points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes. 

 
(D) The measured average daily and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day, to 

the POTW from each of the following: 
 

(i) Regulated process streams; and 
 

(ii) Other streams as necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream 
formula. The Control Authority may allow for verifiable estimates of these 
flows where justified by cost or feasibility considerations. 

 
(E) The Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process, and the 

results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration (or 
mass, where required by the Standard or Control Authority) of regulated 
pollutants in the Discharge from each regulated process. Both daily maximum 
and average concentration (or mass, where required) shall be reported. The 
sample shall be representative of daily operations; 

 
(F) A statement, reviewed by an authorized representative of the Industrial User 

and certified to by a qualified professional, indicating whether Pretreatment 
Standards are being met on a consistent basis and, if not, whether additional 
operation and maintenance (O and M) and/or additional pretreatment is 
required for the Industrial User to meet the Pretreatment Standards and 
Requirements; and 

 
(G) If additional pretreatment and/or O and M will be required to meet the 

Pretreatment Standards; the shortest schedule by which the Industrial User 
will provide such additional pretreatment and/or O and M. The completion date 
in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable Pretreatment Standard. 

 
New sources must give estimates of information requested in paragraphs (D) 
and (E) and must include information on the method of pretreatment that will 
be used to meet applicable pretreatment standards. 

 
(d) Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 

Page 122 of 175



39  

(e) Periodic Self-Monitoring Reports 
 

(f) Periodic Report of Continued Compliance (PRCC) containing information as required 
under 40 CFR 403.12(e) and (h) 
All Significant Industrial Users must, at a frequency determined by the Manager, 
submit no less than twice per year (June and December [or on dates specified by 
Manager]) reports indicating the nature, concentration of pollutants in the discharge 
which are limited by Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average 
and maximum daily flows for the reporting period. In cases where the Pretreatment 
Standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice (BMP) or pollution 
prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Manager 
or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the 
User. 

 
All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with 
Section 4.16 of this ordinance. 

 
All wastewater samples must be representative of the User's discharge. Wastewater 
monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and 
maintained in good working order at all times. The failure of a User to keep its 
monitoring facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that 
sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this section monitors any regulated 
pollutant at the appropriate sampling location more frequently than required by the 
Agency, using the procedures prescribed in 40 CFR 403.12(g)(5), the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the report. 

 
(g) Hazardous Materials Management Plans 

 
(h) Best Management Practice Plans 

 
(i) Slug Control Plans containing information as required under 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2) (vi). 

 
(j) Source Reduction Evaluation Review and Plans (SB14) and other pollution 

prevention plans 
 

(k) SARA III Reports 
 

(l) Written responses to Notices of Violation 
 

(m) Facility Closure Plans 
 

(n) Any data obtained from self-monitoring performed more frequently than required by 
the Agency 

Page 123 of 175



40  

(o) Solvent Management Plan 
 

(p) Any other reports, written documents, and/or analytical results as deemed 
necessary by the Agency, to determine a user's compliance status with local, 
state and federal limits or requirements. 

 
 

Section 5 

WASTEWATER CHARGES AND FEES 

 
5.01 Schedule of Charges and Fees 

 
The agency may adopt ordinances for the collection of charges and fees for, but not 
limited to, the following purposes: 

 
• Capacity Charges 
• Sewer Service Charges 
• Annexation Fees 
• Construction Permit Fees 
• Construction Inspection Fees 
• Wastewater Discharge Permit Fees 

 
 

5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges and Fees 
 

The Agency may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
operating its Environmental Compliance Program including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

 
(a) Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications including the cost of processing 

such applications; 
 

(b) Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures including the cost of 
sample collection and analyzing a user's discharge, reviewing monitoring reports 
submitted by users, and conducting inspections of the user's facilities; 

 
(c) Fees for reviewing and responding to discharge violations, accidental discharges 

and spills, and related enforcement activities. 
 

(d) Fees for filing appeals; and 
 

(e) Other fees as the Agency may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 
contained herein. These fees relate solely to the matters covered by this ordinance 
and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties chargeable by the Agency. 

Page 124 of 175



41  

Section 6 

ENFORCEMENT 

 

6.01 Notification of Discharge 
 

Users shall notify the Agency immediately upon accidentally discharging wastes in 
violation of these regulations and/or discharging any slug loading to enable 
countermeasures to be taken by the Agency to minimize damage to the community sewer, 
treatment facility, treatment processes, and the receiving waters. 

 
This notification shall be followed, within five days of the date of occurrence, by a detailed 
written statement describing the causes of the accidental discharge and the measures 
being taken to prevent future occurrence. 

 
Such notification will not relieve users of liability for any expense, loss, or damage to the 
sewer system, treatment plant, or treatment process, or for any fines imposed on the 
Agency on account thereof under section 13350 of the California Water Code, or for 
violations of section 5650 of the California Fish and Game Code. 

 
 

6.02 Notification of Violation 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may serve upon that user a written 
Notice of Violation. Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, an explanation of the 
violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 
specific required actions, shall be submitted by the user to the Manager. Submission of 
this plan in no way relieves the user of liability for any violations occurring before or after 
receipt of the Notice of Violation. Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the 
Manager to take any action, including emergency actions or any other enforcement 
action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation. 

 
 

6.03 Consent Orders 
 

The Manager may enter into Consent Orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or 
other similar documents establishing an agreement with any user responsible for 
noncompliance. Such documents will include specific action to be taken by the user to 
correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the document. Such 
documents shall have the same force and affect as the administrative orders issued 
pursuant to Sections 6.05 and 6.06 of this ordinance and shall be judicially enforceable. 

Page 125 of 175



42  

6.04 Show Cause Hearing 
 

The Manager may order a user which has violated, or continues to violate, any provision 
of this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, to appear before the Manager and show cause 
why the proposed enforcement action should not be taken. Notice shall be served on the 
user specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement action, the 
reasons for such action, and a request that the user show cause why the proposed 
enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served 
personally or by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested). Such notice may 
be served on any authorized representative of the user. A Show Cause hearing shall not 
be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.05 Administrative Orders 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may issue an order to the user 
responsible for the discharge directing that the user come into compliance within a 
specified time. If the user does not come into compliance within the time provided, sewer 
service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other 
related appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Administrative orders also 
may contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, including additional self- 
monitoring and management practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants 
discharged to the sewer. An administrative order may not extend the deadline for 
compliance established for a pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does an 
administrative order relieve the user of liability for any violation, including any continuing 
violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, 
taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.06 Issuance of Cease and Desist Orders 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has taken place in violation of 
prohibitions or limitations of these regulations, or the provisions of a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit, the Manager may issue an order to cease and desist, and direct that 
those not complying with such prohibitions, limits, requirements, or provisions: 

 
(a) comply forthwith; 

 
(b) comply in accordance with a time schedule set forth by the Agency; or 

 
(c) take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly 

address a continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations and/or 
terminating the discharge. 

Page 126 of 175



43  

6.07 Legal Authority to Administer Fines 
 

In accordance with Section 54739 of the California Government Code, the agency may 
require any of the following: 

 
(a) Pretreatment of any industrial waste which the local agency determines is necessary 

in order to meet standards established by the federal or California state government 
or other regulatory agencies or which the local agency determines is necessary in 
order to protect its treatment works or the proper and efficient operation thereof or 
the health or safety of its employees or the environment. 

 
(b) The prevention of the entry of such industrial waste into the collection system and 

treatment works. 
 

(c) The payment of excess costs to the system for supplementary treatment plants, 
facilities, or operations needed as a result of allowing the entry into the collection 
system and treatment works of such industrial waste. 

(d) The provisions of this section shall be in addition to other requirements provided for 
in this or any other Agency ordinance. 

 
 

6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties 

(a) The agency may issue an administrative complaint to any person who violates any 
requirement adopted or ordered by the agency pursuant to paragraph (a) and (b) of 
Section 6.07. The administrative complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that 
constitutes the violation of the agency's requirements, the provisions of law 
authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed civil penalty. 

 
(b) The administrative complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified mail 

on the person subject to the agency's discharge requirements and shall inform the 
person served that a hearing shall be conducted within 60 days after the person has 
been served. In event no request for hearing is filed within 50 days after the service 
of the administrative complaint, the right to a hearing will be deemed waived. The 
hearing shall be before a hearing officer designated by the governing board of the 
agency. The person who has been issued an administrative complaint may waive 
the right to a hearing, in which case the agency shall not conduct a hearing. A person 
dissatisfied with the decision of the hearing officer may appeal to the governing 
board of the agency within 30 days of notice of the hearing officer's decision. 

 
(c) If after any default in requesting a hearing, the holding of the hearing, or the 

conclusion of an appeal, it is found that the person has violated reporting or 
discharge requirements, the hearing officer or board may assess a civil penalty 
against that person in determining the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing officer 
or board may take into consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived 

Page 127 of 175



44  

through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length 
of time over which the violation occurs and corrective action, if any, attempted or 
taken by the discharger. 

 
(d) Civil Penalties. In accordance with Section 54740.5 of the California Government 

Code, Civil penalties may be imposed by the agency as follows: 
 

(1) In an amount which shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each day 
for failing or refusing to furnish technical or monitoring reports. 

 
(2) In an amount which shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) for each 

day for failing or refusing to timely comply with any compliance schedule 
established by the local agency. 

 
(3) In an amount which shall not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation 

for each day for discharges in violation of any waste discharge limitation, permit 
condition, or requirement issued, reissued, or adopted by the local agency. 

 
(4) In an amount which does not exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon for discharges 

in violation of any suspension, cease and desist order or other orders, or 
prohibition issued, reissued, or adopted by the agency. 

 
(5) The amount of any civil penalties imposed under this section which have 

remained delinquent for a period of 60 days after finality of the decision, can 
become a lien against the real property of the discharger from which the 
discharge originated resulting in the imposition of the civil penalty. In accordance 
with the procedures specified in Health & Safety Code Section 5473 et seq., the 
Board of Directors can have the lien imposed against the real property to be 
assessed on the tax roll, to be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner, together with and not separately from, general taxes, and shall be 
delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the same delinquency 
penalties. 

 
(6) In addition, in the event that the penalty is imposed as a court judgment in the 

same manner as in an arbitration award, the judgment thereon shall be 
renewable in accordance with the provisions of California Code of Civil 
Procedures Sections 683.110 through 683.220. 

 
(7) Any legal action, including arbitration, shall allow attorneys' fees and costs to 

the prevailing party. 
 

(e) Administrative Penalties 
 

Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 
Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued, 
except that the General Manager may waive or reduce penalties in their sole 
discretion for a violation that is minor in nature, the first violation within the last 5 

Page 128 of 175



45  

years, is inadvertent and where the violator is cooperating with the District in 
resolving the matter. 
 
The violations are categorized as discharge or non-discharge violations. 
 

(1) Non-discharge Violations 
 

Non-discharge violations shall be considered any violation of a reporting 
requirement, timeline, schedule or any other violation of Ordinance 36. A 
warning letter will be issued to the permittee informing them of an impending 
Notice of Violation and imposition of a six hundred dollar ($600) penalty for any 
future violations, pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
(2) Discharge Violation 

 
A Discharge Violation is specifically related to a discharge event or release. The 
penalty for an actual discharge violation shall be one thousand four hundred 
dollars ($1400) for every incident or event, pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
These penalties are not exclusive and failure to comply could result in the 
District taking additional enforcement actions up to and including civil penalties 
and abatement. 

 
(f) All moneys collected under this section shall be deposited in a special account of 

the agency and shall be made available for inspector training, environmental 
program enhancement, the monitoring, treatment, and control of discharges into the 
Agency's sanitary sewer system or for other mitigation measures. 

 
(g) Unless appealed, orders setting administrative civil penalties shall become effective 

and final upon issuance thereof, and payment shall be made within 30 days. Copies 
of these orders shall be served by personal service or by certified mail upon the party 
served with the administrative complaint and upon other persons who appeared at 
the hearing and requested a copy. 

 
(h) The Agency may, at its option, elect to petition the superior court to confirm any 

order establishing civil penalties and enter judgment in conformity therewith as 
though it were an arbitration award, in accordance with the provisions of California 
Code of Civil Procedure, Sections 1285 through 1287.6. 

 
(i) No penalties shall be recoverable under this section for any violation for which civil 

liability is recovered under Section 7.06 of this ordinance. 
 
(j) Any party aggrieved by a final order issued by the governing board of the agency 

under this Section, after granting review of the order of a hearing officer, may obtain 
review of the order of the board in the superior court by filing in the court a petition 
for writ of mandate within 30 days following the service of a copy of a decision and 
order issued by the board. Any party aggrieved by a final order of a hearing officer 
issued under this Section, for which the board denies review, may obtain review of 

Page 129 of 175



46  

the order of the hearing officer in the superior court by filing in the court a petition for 
writ of mandate within 30 days following service of a copy of a decision and order denying 
review by the board.         
          

(k) If no aggrieved party petitions for writ of mandate within the time provided by this 
section, an order of the board or a hearing officer shall not be subject to review by 
any court or agency, except that the board may grant review on its own motion of an 
order issued under this Section after the expiration of the time limits set by that 
section. 

 
(l) The evidence before the court shall consist of the record before the board, including 

the hearing officer's record, and any other relevant evidence which, in the judgment 
of the court, should be considered to effectuate and implement policies of this 
division. In every such case, the court shall exercise its independent judgment on 
the evidence. 

 
(m) Except as otherwise provided in this section, subdivisions (e) and (f) of Section 

1094.5 of the California Government Code or the Code or Civil Procedure shall 
govern proceedings pursuant to this section. 

 
 

6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has been taking place in violation 
of prohibitions or limitations prescribed in these regulations, or wastewater source control 
requirements, effluent limitations or pretreatment standards, or the provisions of a 
Wastewater Discharge Permit or at any time the Agency determines a time schedule to 
be necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 4.13, the Agency may require 
the user to submit for approval, with such modifications as it deems necessary, a detailed 
time schedule of specific actions which the user shall take in order to prevent or correct a 
violation of the requirements. 

 
 

6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 
 

The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by Section 6.09 
of this ordinance: 

 
(a) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the 

commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and 
operation of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable 
pretreatment standards (such events include, but are not limited to, hiring an 
engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major 
components, commencing and completing construction, and beginning and 
conducting routine operation); 

 
(b) No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months; 

Page 130 of 175



47  

 

(c) The user shall submit a progress report to the Manager as specified but no later than 
fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 
compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment 
of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being taken by 
the user to return to the established schedule; and 

 
(d) In no event shall more than nine (9) months elapse between such progress reports 

to the Manager. 
 
 

6.11 Appeals 
 

Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or 
determination, including cease and desist orders made by the Manager or another 
employee of the Agency in interpreting or implementing the provisions of this ordinance 
or in any permit issued herein, may file with the Manager a written appeal or request for 
reconsideration, as applicable, within ten days of such decision, action, or determination, 
setting forth in detail the facts supporting the appeal or request for reconsideration. 

 
If the ruling made by the Manager is unsatisfactory to the person appealing or requesting 
reconsideration, he or she may file a written appeal to the Agency's governing body within 
ten days after notification of Agency action. The written appeal shall be heard by the 
governing body within 30 days from the date of filing or as soon thereafter as reasonably 
possible. The Agency's governing body shall make a final ruling on the appeal within 30 
days of the meeting. The Manager's decision, action, or determination shall remain in 
effect during such period of appeal. The determination of an appeal by the governing 
body of the Agency shall constitute a final determination of the Agency and shall be 
subject to judicial review. 

 
 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems 
 

(a) In the case of any discharges including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, 
discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a 
slug load, that may cause potential problems for the POTW, the user shall immediately 
telephone and notify the Agency of the incident. This notification shall include the 
location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and volume, if known, and 
corrective actions taken by the user and any other information the Agency deems 
appropriate. 

 
(b) A notice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin board or other prominent 

place advising employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in 
paragraph A, above. Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause such 
a discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

Page 131 of 175



48  

(c) All Users are required to notify the Agency of any changes at their facility affecting the 
potential for a Slug Discharge. 

 
 

6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting 
 

If sampling performed by a user indicates a violation, the user must notify the Agency 
within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also 
repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the 
Agency within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation. 
Within five (5) days following such discharge, the user shall, unless waived by the Agency, 
submit a detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the discharge and the 
measures to be taken by the user to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification 
shall not relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be 
incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to 
person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties, or 
other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this ordinance. 

 
 

6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users 
 

All users not required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate 
reports to the Agency as the Manager may require. 

 
 

6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant Non-Compliance 
 

At an interval of not less than once per year, the Agency will publish the identities of any 
user(s) which is (are) found to be in significant non-compliance of any national 
pretreatment standard, discharge limitation or prohibition, or any other requirement of 
these regulations. The definition of significant non-compliance shall be as specified in 
Section 1.02 (bbb). The publication shall occur in the newspaper of general circulation 
that provides meaningful public notice within the service area of the Agency. 

 
 

Section 7 

ABATEMENT 

 
7.01 Public Nuisance 

 
Discharge of wastewater in any manner in violation of these regulations or of any order 
issued by the Manager as authorized by these regulations, is hereby declared a public 
nuisance and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the Manager. Any person 

Page 132 of 175



49  

creating a public nuisance shall be subject to provisions of Agency codes or ordinances 
governing such nuisance. 

 
 

7.02 Recovery of Expenses 
 

In the event a discharge of wastewater occurs from a private sewer lateral that creates or 
threatens to create a public nuisance that the Agency must abate as directed by the 
Manager, the Agency may seek recovery of the cost of time and materials to abate said 
discharge from the property owner as well as interest and attorneys' fees as provided by 
Health & Safety Code § 5473.10. 

 
 

7.03 Injunctive Relief 
 

When the Agency finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, a general permit, or order 
issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may 
petition the appropriate Court through the District's Attorney for the issuance of a 
temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels the 
specific performance of an individual wastewater discharge permit, general permit, order 
or other requirement imposed by this ordinance on activities of the User. The Agency 
may also seek such other action as is appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, 
including a requirement for the User to conduct environmental remediation. A petition for 
injunctive relief shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action 
against a User. 

 
 

7.04 Damage to Facilities 
 

When a discharge of wastes causes an obstruction, damage, or any other impairment to 
Agency facilities, the Agency may assess a charge against the user for the work required 
to clean or repair the facility and add such charge to the user's charges and fees. 

 
 

7.05 Civil Penalties 
 

Any person who violates any provision of these regulations or permit conditions, or who 
discharges wastewater which causes pollution, or who violates any cease and desist 
order, prohibition, effluent limitation, national standard of performance, pretreatment or 
toxicity standard, shall be liable civilly to penalties imposed by the Agency against which 
the violation occurs as provided for in Section 6.07 of this Ordinance. 

Page 133 of 175



50  

7.06 Court Imposed Civil and Criminal Penalties 
 

The Agency may refer any violations of these regulations to the office of the Alameda 
County District Attorney for civil or criminal prosecution under any applicable statute or 
provision of law. 

 
In accordance with Section 54740 of the California Government Code: 

 
(a) Any person who violates any requirement adopted or ordered by the Agency 

pursuant to Section 6.07 of this ordinance may be civilly liable in a sum of not to 
exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) a day for each violation. 

 
(b) The Agency may petition the superior court to impose, assess, and recover the sums 

provided for in paragraph (a). In determining the amount, the court shall take into 
consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of 
harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived through any 
noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over 
which the violation occurs, and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the 
discharger. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all civil penalties imposed by the court 

for any violation of this section shall be distributed to the local agency. 
 

(d) Remedies under this section are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any and 
all other remedies, civil or criminal, but no liability shall be recoverable under this 
section for any violation for which liability is recovered under Section 6.07. 

 
(e) Any person who violates any provision of these regulations, or of a permit or a cease 

and desist order issued pursuant to these regulations, is guilty of a public offense. 
The classification of such public offense and the punishment therefore shall be as 
provided by local, county, state and/or federal law. 

 
 

7.07 Falsifying Information 
 

Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, report, 
plan, or other document filed with the Agency, or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly 
renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under these regulations, 
shall be punished in accordance with the Agency codes or ordinances governing such 
falsifications. The Agency may petition the Superior Court to impose, assess, and recover 
such sums as may be applicable or in accordance with Sections 7.05 and 7.06 of this 
ordinance. 

Page 134 of 175



51  

7.08 Termination of Service 
 

In order to effect its powers, the Agency may enter upon private property for the purpose 
of inspection and maintenance of sanitary and waste disposal facilities and may terminate 
service to property in which a violation of any rule, regulation, or this Ordinance is found 
to exist. 
Prior to termination of service, however, the Agency Board shall notify, in writing, the 
owner and tenant, if any, of such property that service is intended to be so terminated 
and conduct a hearing thereon as herein provided. Such notice shall be mailed to the 
owner at the address shown on the records of the Assessor of the County, or as known 
to the Clerk, and a copy shall be delivered to the tenant or posted conspicuously on the 
property. The notice shall state the date of proposed termination of service and the 
reasons therefore and the date the Agency Board shall hold a hearing upon such intended 
termination. Such hearing shall not be held less than ten days subsequent to the giving 
of notice as herein required. 

 
 

7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service 
 

The Manager or designated representative may immediately suspend a User's discharge, 
after informal notice to the User, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an 
actual or threatened discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause an 
imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons. The Manager 
may also immediately suspend a User's discharge, after notice and opportunity to 
respond, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents, or 
may present, an endangerment to the environment. 

 
(a) Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or 

eliminate its contribution. In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply 
voluntarily with the suspension order, the Manager may take such steps as 
deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to 
prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment 
to any individuals. The Manager may allow the User to recommence its discharge 
only when the User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Manager that the 
period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings in 
Section 7.10 of this ordinance are initiated against the User. 

 
(b) A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting 

imminent endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the 
causes of the harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future 
occurrence, to the Manager prior to the date of any show cause or termination 
hearing under sections 6.04 or 7.08 of this ordinance. Nothing in this section shall 
be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency suspension under this 
section. 

Page 135 of 175



52  

7.10 Immediate Termination of Discharge 
 

The manager or designated representative has the authority to immediately and 
effectively halt or prevent any actual or threatened discharge of pollutants to the Agency's 
facilities which: 

 
• present, or may present, an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or 

welfare of persons, to the environment or to the Agency's facilities; 
 

• cause interferences with the operation of the Agency's facilities or the POTW; 
 

• cause conditions (a) through (n) of Section 2.01.1 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are prohibited by Section 2.01.2 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are violations of individual wastewater discharge permit or general permit conditions; 
 

• are a failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of 
the User's discharge; 

 
• are a failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, 

constituents, and characteristics prior to discharge; 
 

• are a result of refusal to reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of 
inspection, monitoring, or sampling. 

 
Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency 
suspension under this section. 

 
 

7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies 
 

The remedies provided for in this ordinance are not exclusive except as specified in 
Section 7.06(d). The Manager may take any, all, or any combination of these actions 
against a noncompliant user. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in 
accordance with the Agency's Enforcement Response Plan. However, the Manager may 
take other action against any user when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager 
is empowered to take more than one enforcement action against any noncompliant user. 

Page 136 of 175



53  

Section 8 

SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of these regulations or the application to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, the remainder of the regulations or the application of such provisions to other 
persons or other circumstances shall not be affected. 

 
 

Section 9 
 

Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 36 and all its amendments are hereby repealed. 
 
 

Section 10 

PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force as of XXXXXXX, and a summary of the 
Ordinance has been published in The Argus and Tri-City Voice, newspapers of general 
circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT service area. This Ordinance 
shall be entered in the minutes of the District. 

 
Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT on this 
XX day of XXXXXX, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 

 
NOES: 

 
ABSENT: 

 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
                        

President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
                     

Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Page 137 of 175



54  

SUPPLEMENT 
 

This Wastewater Discharge Regulations Supplement includes selected Code of Federal 
Regulations parts (listed as 40 CFR) referred to in the main section of this ordinance for 
convenience only. Other 40 CFR parts, which are too lengthy to include in their entirety, 
are summarized. More information relating to these Federal Regulation references is 
available in the Union Sanitary District's Environmental Compliance Division Office and 
the text of the regulations is available online at https://www.epa.gov/laws- 
regulations/regulations. 

 

Federal Regulations are updated from time to time. This document contains current 
regulations as of April 2019. However, it is the responsibility of the user to ensure 
compliance with federal regulations, including any future amendments. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 2.302(2):    Definition of Effluent Data 
 

"(i) Effluent data means, with reference to any source of discharge of any pollutant (as 
that term is defined in section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 1362 (6)): 

 
(A) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of any pollutant which has been discharged by the source (or of 
any pollutant resulting from any discharge from the source), or any combination 
of the foregoing; 

 
(B) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of the pollutants which, under an applicable standard or limitation, 
the source was authorized to discharge (including, to the extent necessary for 
such purpose, a description of the manner or rate of operation of the source); 
and 

 
(C) A general description of the location and/or nature of the source to the extent 

necessary to identify the source and to distinguish it from other sources 
(including, to the extent necessary for such purposes, a description of the 
device, installation or operation constituting the source). 

 
(ii) Notwithstanding paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section, the following information shall be 

considered to be effluent data only to the extent necessary to allow EPA to disclose 
publicly that a source is (or is not) in compliance with an applicable standard or 
limitation, or to allow EPA to demonstrate the feasibility, practicability, or attainability 
(or lack thereof) of an existing or proposed standard or limitation: 

Page 138 of 175

http://www.epa.gov/laws-


55  

(A) Information concerning research, or the results of research, on any product, 
method, device, or installation (or any component thereof) which was produced, 
developed, installed, and used only for research purposes; and 

 
(B) Information concerning any product, method, device, or installation (or any 

component thereof) designed and intended to be marketed or used commercially 
but not yet so marketed or used." 

 
 

40 CFR Part 136:Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of 
Pollutants 

 
(Summary) This part describes test procedures for performing analyses of wastewater 
constituents. Part 136 identifies test procedures and specifies application of and approval 
of alternate test procedures. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 
Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste 

 
(Summary) This part includes criteria for identifying the characteristics of hazardous 
waste, as well as characteristics of hazardous waste and lists of hazardous wastes. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.5:   National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(Summary) This part is commonly referred to as the General Pretreatment Regulations 
and includes discharge prohibitions and the requirement for development of local limits 
by the POTW. 

 
 

403.5 National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(a) (1) General prohibitions. A User may not introduce into a POTW any pollutant(s) 
which cause Pass Through or Interference. These general prohibitions and the 
specific prohibitions in paragraph (b) of this section apply to each User 
introducing pollutants into a POTW whether or not the User is subject to other 
National Pretreatment Standards or any national, State or local Pretreatment 
Requirements. 

 
(2) Affirmative Defenses: A User shall have an affirmative defense in any action 

brought against it alleging a violation of the general prohibitions established in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section and the specific prohibitions in paragraphs (b)(3), 
(b)(4), (b)(5), (b)(6) and (b)(7) of this section where the Users can demonstrate 
that: 

Page 139 of 175



56  

(i) It did not know or have reason to know that its Discharge, alone or in 
conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, would cause 
Pass Through or Interference; and 

 
(ii) (A) A local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 

the case may be, was developed in accordance with paragraph (c) of this 
section for each pollutant in the User's Discharge that caused Pass Through 
or Interference, and the User was in compliance with each such local limit 
directly prior to and during the Pass Through or Interference; or 

 
(B) If a local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 
the case may be, has not been developed in accordance with paragraph (c) 
of this section for the pollutant(s) that caused the Pass Through or 
Interference, the User's Discharge directly prior to and during the Pass 
Through or Interference did not change substantially in nature or 
constituents from the User's prior discharge activity when the POTW was 
regularly in compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit requirements and, 
in the case of Interference, applicable requirements-for sewage sludge use 
or disposal. 

 
(b) Specific prohibitions. In addition, the following pollutants shall not be introduced into 

a POTW: 
 

(1) Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard in the POTW, including, but 
not limited to, wastestreams with a close cup flashpoint of less than 140°F or 
60°C using the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21. 

 
(2) Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage to the POTW, but in no 

case Discharges with pH lower than 5.0, unless the works is specifically 
designed to accommodate such Discharges; 

 
(3) Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts which will cause obstruction to the flow 

in the POTW resulting in Interference; 
 

(4) Any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, COD) released in 
a Discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause 
Interference with the POTW. 

 
(5) Heat in amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in 

Interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the temperature at the 
POTW Treatment Plant exceeds 40°C (104°F) unless the Approval Authority, 
upon request of the POTW, approves alternate temperature limits. 

 
(6) Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin in 

amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through; 

Page 140 of 175



57  

(7)  Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within 
the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety 
problems; 

 
(8) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the 

POTW. 
 

(c) When specific limits must be developed by POTW. (1) Each POTW developing a 
POTW Pretreatment Program pursuant to section 403.8 shall develop and enforce 
specific limits to implement the prohibitions listed in paragraphs (a)(1) and (b) of this 
section. 

 
(1) Each POTW with an approved pretreatment program shall continue to develop 

these limits as necessary and effectively enforce such limits. 
 
 

(2)  All other POTW's shall, in cases where pollutants contributed by User(s) result 
in Interference or Pass Through, and such violation is likely to recur, develop 
and enforce specific effluent limits for Industrial User(s), and all other users, as 
appropriate, which, together with appropriate changes in the POTW Treatment 
Plant's facilities or operation, are necessary to ensure renewed and continued 
compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit or sludge use or disposal 
practices. 

 
(3) Specific effluent limits shall not be developed and enforced without individual 

notice to persons or groups who have requested such notice and an opportunity 
to respond. 

 
(4) POTWs may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs) to implement 

paragraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) of this section. Such BMPs shall be considered 
local limits and Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of this part and section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(d) Local limits. Where specific prohibitions or limits on pollutants or pollutant 

parameters are developed by a POTW in accordance with paragraph (c) above, 
such limits shall be deemed Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(e) EPA enforcement actions under section 309(f) of the Clean Water Act. If, within 30 

days after notice of an Interference or Pass Through violation has been sent by EPA 
to the POTW, and to persons or groups who have requested such notice, the POTW 
fails to commence appropriate enforcement action to correct the violation, EPA may 
take appropriate enforcement action under the authority provided in section 309(f) 
of the Clean Water Act. 

Page 141 of 175



58  

40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi):    Slug Control Plans 
 

The District has the authority to evaluate whether each Significant Industrial User needs 
a plan to control slug discharges. For purposes of these regulations, a slug discharge is 
any discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental 
spill or a non-customary batch discharge. 

 
"If the POTW decides that a slug control plan is needed, the plan shall contain, at a 
minimum, the following elements: 

 
(A) Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch discharges; 

 
(B) Description of stored chemicals; 

 
(C) Procedures for immediately notifying the POTW of slug discharges, including any 

discharge that would violate a prohibition under 40 CFR 403.5(b), with procedures 
for follow-up written notification within five days; 

 
(D) If necessary, procedures to prevent adverse impact from accidental spills, including 

inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, 
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site run-off, worker training, 
building of containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic 
organic pollutants (including solvents), and/or measures and equipment for 
emergency response;" 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12:   Reporting Requirements for POTWs and Industrial Users 
 

(Summary) This part contains the monitoring and reporting requirements for baseline 
monitoring reports and other required reports such as the periodic report of continued 
compliance. 40 CFR Part 403.12 is crucial to the implementation of and compliance with 
self-monitoring and reporting requirements. Portions of the regulations are summarized 
or cited below. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h):   Reporting  Requirements  for  Industrial  Users  Not 
Subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards 

 
At least once every 6 months, industrial users not subject to categorical Pretreatment 
Standards must submit a description of the nature, concentration and flow of the 
pollutants discharged to the POTW. These reports shall be based on sampling and 
analysis performed during the reporting period. 

Page 142 of 175



59  

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification 
 
 

(a) The user shall notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management Division 
Director, and State hazardous waste authorities, in writing, of any discharge into the 
POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste 
under 40 CFR Part 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous 
waste as set forth in 40 CFR Part 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the 
type of discharge (continuous, batch, or other). If the user discharges more than one 
hundred (100) kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the 
notification also shall contain the following information to the extent such information 
is known and readily available to the user: an identification of the hazardous 
constituents contained in the wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of 
such constituents in the waste stream discharged during that calendar month, and an 
estimation of the mass of constituents in the waste stream expected to be discharged 
during the following twelve (12) months. All notifications must take place within one 
hundred and eighty (180) days of the effective date of this rule. Users who commence 
discharging after the effective date of this rule shall provide the notification no later 
than 180 days after the discharge of the listed or characteristic hazardous waste. Any 
notification under this paragraph need be submitted only once for each hazardous 
waste discharged. However, notifications of changed discharges must be submitted 
under 40 CFR 403.12 (j) (Section 4.20 of this ordinance). The notification requirement 
in this section does not apply to pollutants already reported under the self-monitoring 
requirements of 40 CFR 403.12 (b), (d) and (e). 

 
(b) Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of paragraph 1, above, during a 

calendar month in which they discharge no more than fifteen (15) kilograms of 
hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute hazardous wastes as specified in 40 
CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than fifteen (15) kilograms of 
nonacute hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute 
hazardous wastes as specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a 
one-time notification. Subsequent months during which the user discharges more than 
such quantities of any hazardous waste do not require additional notification. 

 
(c) In case of any new regulations under Section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional 

characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous 
waste, the user must notify the Agency, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste 
Division Director, and State hazardous waste authorities of the discharge of such 
substance within ninety (90) days of the effective date of such regulations. 

 
(d) In the case of any notification made under this section, the user shall certify that it has 

a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated 
to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. 

Page 143 of 175



60  

40 CFR Part 405-471: Categorical Standards and Requirements 
 

(Summary) These parts describe the regulations applicable to categorical discharges. 
The following types of industries are currently subject to categorical standards: 

 
Aluminum Forming Fruit & Vegetable Processing Paving and Roofing (Tars & Asphalt) 
Asbestos Manufacturing Glass Manufacturing Pesticides 
Battery Manufacturing Grain Mills Manufacturing Petroleum Refining 
Builder's Paper Hospitals Pharmaceuticals 
Carbon Black Ink Formulating Phosphate Manufacturing 
Cement Manufacturing Iron and Steel Manufacturing Photographic 
Centralized Waste Treatment Landfills Plastics Molding and Forming 
Chemicals-Inorganic Leather Tanning and Finishing Porcelain Enameling 
Chemicals-Organic Meat & Poultry Processing Pulp and Paper 
Chemicals-Gum & Wood Metal Finishing Rubber Processing 
Concentrated Animal Feeding Ops. Metal Molding and Casting Seafood Processing 
Coil Coating Metal products & Machinery Soaps and Detergents Mfg 
Copper Forming Mining - Coal Steam Electric 
Dairy Products Processing Mining - Mineral Sugar Processing 
Electrical and Electronic Components Mining - Ore Timber Products Mfg 
Electroplating Nonferrous Metals Forming Transportation 
Explosives Mfg Nonferrous Metals Mfg Textile Mills 
Ferroalloy Manufacturing Oil & Gas Extraction Waste Combustors 
Fertilizer Manufacturing Paint Formulating  

Page 144 of 175



61  

Locally Regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Volatiles  Semi-Volatiles (cont d)  Semi-Volatiles (cont d) 
Acrolein  Benzo(ghi)perylene  Nitrobenzene 
Acrylonitrile  Benzo(k)fluoranthene  Phenanthrene 
Benzene  3,4-benzofluoranthene  Pyrene 
Bromoform  Bis (2-chloroisopropyl) ether  1,2,4-trichlorobenzene 
Carbon tetrachloride  Bis (2-chloroethoxy) methane   
Chlorobenzene  Bis (2-chloroethyl) ether   
Chloroethane  Bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate   
2-chloroethylvinyl ether  4-bromophenyl phenyl ether   
Chloroform  Butyl benzyl phthalate   
Dibromochloromethane  2-chloronaphthalene   
Dichlorobromomethane  4-chlorophenyl phenyl ether   
1,1-dichloroethane  Chrysene   
1,2-dichloroethane  Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene   
1,1-dichloroethylene  1,2-dichlorobenzene   
1,2-dichloropropane  1,3-dichlorobenzene   
1,3-dichloropropylene  1,4-dichlorobenzene   
Ethylbenzene  3,3-dichlorobenzidine   
Methyl bromide  Diethyl phthalate   
Methyl chloride  Dimethyl phthalate   
Methylene chloride  Di-n-butyl phthalate   
Tetrachloroethylene (PCE)  Di-n-octyl phthalate   
1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane  2,4-dinitrotoluene   
1,1,1-trichloroethane (TCA)  2,6-dinitrotoluene   
1,1,2-trichloroethane  1,2-diphenylhydrazine   
Toluene  Fluoranthene   
1,2-trans-dichloroethylene  Fluorene   
Trichloroethylene (TCE)  Hexachlorobenzene   
Vinyl chloride  Hexachlorobutadiene   

  Hexachlorocyclopentadiene   
Semi-Volatiles  Hexachloroethane   

Acenaphthene  Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene   
Acenaphthylene  Isophorone   
Anthracene  N-nitrosodi-n-propylamine   
Benzidine  N-nitrosodimethylamine   
Benzo(a)anthracene  N-nitrosodiphenylamine   
Benzo(a)pyrene  Naphthalene   

 

Page 145 of 175



 
    

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
OCTOBER 10, 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM #8 

 
TITLE: Consider Confirming and Declaring the Need to Continue the Emergency 

Action to Repair Two Sewer Lines in the City of Fremont Damaged by Fiber 
Optic Line Installation (This is a Motion Item) 

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Jose Rodrigues, Collection Services Work Group Manager 
 Raymond Chau, Technical Services Work Group Manager 

Curtis Bosick, CIP Team Coach 
 
 
Recommendation 
Receive an update on repairs and adopt a motion by a four-fifths vote finding that there is a need 
to continue the action and confirming and declaring the continuance of the emergency. 
 
 
Discussion 
On September 26, 2022, the Board received an update on the emergency action and adopted a 
motion to continue the action and confirmed and declared the continuance of the emergency 
action to repair two sewer lines in the City of Fremont.  Since that meeting, McGuire and Hester 
has submitted the required encroachment permit applications to the City of Fremont.  Staff has 
contacted the City of Fremont requesting that these permit approvals be expedited due to the 
urgency of the repairs. 
 
After the determination of an emergency pursuant to Public Contract Code section 22050, the 
Board is required to review the status of the emergency action at each subsequent meeting until 
the emergency action is terminated and authorize continuation of the emergency action by a 
four-fifths vote.  This staff report seeks such authorization as there is a need to complete the 
actions described above. 

Page 146 of 175



Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

  

 
Staff will continue to bring a similar agenda item to the Board to continue the emergency until it 
is terminated. 
 
 
Background 
In March of 2022, the District was notified that a contractor, HP Communications and JK 
Communication & Construction/Kleven Construction (JKC), working in the City of Fremont 
installing 5G fiber optic lines had damaged three separate sewer lines.  Staff confirmed the 
damages by CCTV inspection.  HP Communications repaired one of the damaged sewer mains 
due to its shallow depth and location.  The District began discussions with the contractor and its 
insurance company about the repair of the other two damaged sewer mains given concerns 
about an inexperienced contractor further damaging the District’s facilities sewer due to both 
sewer mains depth at (15’), groundwater concerns, the need to bypass sewage and possibly soft 
soil conditions in the area.  The size and locations of the remaining damaged sewer mains are:  
 

1.  8” sewer main near the intersection of Paseo Padre Parkway and Washington Blvd. 
2. 18” sewer main near the intersection of Fremont Blvd. and Clipper Court.   

 
Staff negotiated with the contractor and its insurance company for months to resolve the issue 
and complete the work without expending public funds, but the parties did not reach an 
acceptable resolution. 
  
Given the upcoming wet weather season and time required to complete the work, it was 
necessary for the District to expeditiously proceed with the repair, while concurrently working 
toward reimbursement of funding from the contractor. The damaged sewer mains in their 
current condition create enough risk to the District that staff recommended an emergency be 
declared to expedite the necessary repairs. 
 
The District’s Purchasing Policy and California Public Contract Code (PCC) Section 20806 allow for 
emergency contracting without competitive bidding in accordance with the requirements of PCC 
Section 22050.  Section 22050(a) provides that the District, pursuant to a four-fifths vote of the 
Board, “may repair or replace a public facility, take any directly related and immediate action 
required by that emergency, and procure the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for 
those purposes, without giving notice for bids to let contracts.” 
  
The attached Resolution No. 2982, adopted on September 12, 2022, addressed the requirements 
of the PCC and declared an emergency and authorized additional expenditures without the need 
for competitive bidding.  As such, the District has proceeded with the work under our emergency 
services contract with McGuire and Hester, as described above.  Cost estimates for the repairs 
range from $583,000, with McGuire and Hester fully performing all of the repairs, to $459,000, 

Page 147 of 175



Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

  

with McGuire and Hester performing the sewer line work and HP/ JK Communications performing 
the paving and restoration. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
09/12/2022 Board Meeting – The Board adopted a resolution declaring an emergency and 
authorizing the emergency expenditure of funds for the repair of two sewer lines in the City of 
Fremont damaged by fiber optic line installation. 
 
09/26/2022 Board Meeting – The Board received an update on the emergency action and 
adopted a motion to continue the action and confirmed and declared the continuance of the 
emergency action. 
 
 
PRE/JR/RC/CB 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 2982 
 Figures 1 through 4 – Location Maps and Photos of Damaged Sewers 

Page 148 of 175



RESOLUTION NO. 2982

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING THE EMERGENCY 
EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE REPAIR OF TWO SEWER LINES IN THE CITY 

OF FREMONT DAMAGED BY FIBER OPTIC LINE INSTALLATION  

WHEREAS, two gravity sewer mains in the City of Fremont located at (1) the 
intersection of Paseo Padre Parkway and Washington Blvd; and (2) the intersection of 
Fremont Blvd. and Clipper Court, have been damaged by a private third-party contractor 
installing 5G fiber optic lines in City’s right-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, the District has not been able to reach resolution with the contractor 
and its insurance company regarding the completion of the repair and reimbursement to 
the District; and 

WHEREAS, given the upcoming wet weather season and time required to 
complete the work, it is necessary for the District to expeditiously proceed with the 
repair, while concurrently working toward resolution of the reimbursement of funding 
from the contractor; and 

WHEREAS, the damaged sewer mains in their current condition create risk to 
the District and must be repaired; and   

WHEREAS, compliance with competitive bidding procedures typically takes a 
number of months and would not allow prompt action to be taken to complete the repair, 
as required to safeguard the public and District facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Purchasing Policy and California Public Contract Code 
(PCC) Section 20806 allow for emergency contracting without competitive bidding in 
accordance with the requirements of PCC Section 22050; and 

WHEREAS, the California Environmental Quality Act establishes a statutory 
exemption for emergency repairs to public service facilities necessary to maintain 
service, and other specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the damage involves a clear and imminent threat, demanding 
immediate action to prevent or mitigate loss of, or damage to, life, health, property, and 
essential public services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BASED ON THE STAFF REPORT AND ORAL 
AND WRITTEN TESTIMONY, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are material to this Resolution 
and are incorporated into this Resolution as findings of the District Board. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 81133E93-D6A1-47E7-B870-935D3BB35AF5

Page 149 of 175



2. The Board finds and declares, pursuant to Public Contract Code section
22050(a), that based on substantial evidence presented before the Board, the 
emergency will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation for bids for the 
repair of the District’s damaged sewer mains, and that this action is necessary to 
respond to the emergency. 

3. The Board authorizes staff to continue to proceed with the repair or
replacement of the two sewer mains in Fremont located at (1) the intersection of Paseo 
Padre Parkway and Washington Blvd; and (2) the intersection of Fremont Blvd. and 
Clipper Court, and procurement of the necessary equipment, services and supplies for 
that purpose without giving notice for bids to let contracts.   

4. The Board will review the status of the emergency at each subsequent
meeting of the Board of Directors and vote to authorize continuation of this resolution 
until the emergency action is completed. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by at least a four-fifths vote, at a regular meeting of 
the Board of Directors on this 12th day of September, 2022. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ____________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Attest: 

_____________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy

None

None

None

DocuSign Envelope ID: 81133E93-D6A1-47E7-B870-935D3BB35AF5

Page 150 of 175



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 81133E93D6A147E7B870935D3BB35AF5 Status: Completed

Subject: USD Requests Please DocuSign: Reso No 2982.pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 2 Signatures: 2 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Sharon Anderson

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

5072 Benson Road

Union City, CA  94587

sharona@unionsanitary.ca.gov

IP Address: 50.227.238.26  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             9/13/2022 10:49:31 AM

Holder: Sharon Anderson

             sharona@unionsanitary.ca.gov

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Anjali Lathi

alathi@unionsanitary.ca.gov

Union Sanitary District

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 107.196.101.34

Sent: 9/13/2022 10:51:30 AM

Viewed: 9/14/2022 12:46:05 AM 

Signed: 9/14/2022 12:46:15 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 5/31/2022 9:51:04 AM
      ID: 4b0bedca-90b5-4845-8e7c-1c057a198d32

Jennifer Toy

jtoy@unionsanitary.ca.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 207.163.116.24

Signed using mobile

Sent: 9/13/2022 10:51:30 AM

Viewed: 9/15/2022 7:54:07 PM 

Signed: 9/15/2022 7:54:17 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 5/31/2022 9:03:18 PM
      ID: 31593a23-154e-4210-9aa2-a45d01651685

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 9/13/2022 10:51:31 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 9/15/2022 7:54:07 PM

Page 151 of 175



Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Signing Complete Security Checked 9/15/2022 7:54:17 PM

Completed Security Checked 9/15/2022 7:54:17 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Page 152 of 175



 

 
Page 153 of 175

curtisb
Text Box
Figure 1 - Location of Damaged 18" Sewer Main

curtisb
Text Box
Figure 2 - Photo of Damaged 18" Sewer Main



 

 
Page 154 of 175

curtisb
Text Box
Figure 3 - Location of Damaged 8" Sewer Main

curtisb
Text Box
Figure 4 - Photo of Damaged 8" Sewer Main



  

 
    

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
OCTOBER 10, 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
TITLE: COVID-19 Update and Consider Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Use 

of Teleconference Meetings in Compliance with AB 361 (This is a Motion 
Item)  

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy, General Counsel 
Sharon Anderson, Administrative Specialist 

  
Recommendation 

1. Receive an update from the General Manager on the District’s COVID-19 response and 
staffing levels. 

2. Adopt the attached resolution authorizing the use of teleconference meetings in 
compliance with AB 361. 

 
Discussion 
AB 361 requires public agencies to make findings by majority vote within 30 days of the first 
teleconferenced meeting under AB 361 and every 30 days thereafter that a state of emergency 
still exists and continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person, 
or that officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.  As 
directed by the Board on September 27, 2021, the District is continuing to hold teleconferenced 
meetings as allowed under AB 361.   
 
The Board has adopted resolutions at least every 30 days starting on October 25, 2021, 
authorizing the use of teleconference meetings.  Since the Board meeting of March 28, 2022, 
the Board has been scheduling teleconference meeting for committees and phasing-in in-
person meetings for the Board.   
 

Page 155 of 175



  

The attached resolution reaffirms the findings required by AB 361 to allow the District to 
continue to hold teleconferenced meetings.  This agenda item also includes the COVID-19 
Update from the General Manager. 
 
Background 
AB 361 was signed into law by the Governor on September 16, 2021, and amends the Brown 
Act to allow local legislative bodies to continue using teleconferencing and virtual meeting 
technology as long as there is a “proclaimed state of emergency” by the Governor.  This 
allowance also depends on state or local officials imposing or recommending measures that 
promote social distancing or a legislative body finding that meeting in person would present an 
imminent safety risk to attendees.  Though adopted in the context of the pandemic, AB 361 will 
allow for virtual meetings during other proclaimed emergencies, such as earthquakes or 
wildfires, where physical attendance may present a risk. 
 
AB 361 prohibits councils and boards from limiting public comments to those submitted in 
advance of the meeting and specifies that the legislative body “must provide an opportunity for 
the public to … offer comment in real time.”  (Government Code 54953(e)(2)(E).  Additionally, 
the body must allow a reasonable time for public comment during the comment periods. The 
District allows for email comments to be submitted throughout Board meeting and the Board 
Clerk checks for emails continuously, including during the public comment portion for each 
agenda item. 
 
The agenda must include information on the manner in which the public may access the 
meeting and provide comments remotely.  AB 361 provides that if technical problems arise that 
result in the public’s access being disrupted, the legislative body may not take any vote or other 
official action until the technical disruption is corrected and public access is restored. 
 
In addition, as noted in the Discussion section above, AB 361 requires public agencies to make 
findings by majority vote within 30 days of the first teleconferenced meeting under AB 361 and 
every 30 days thereafter that a state of emergency still exists and continues to directly impact 
the ability of the members to meet safely in person, or that officials continue to impose or 
recommend measures to promote social distancing.  AB 361 will sunset on January 1, 2024. 
  
Previous Board Action 
The Board has adopted resolutions at least every 30 days starting on October 25, 2021, 
authorizing the use of teleconference meetings. 
 
  
 

Page 156 of 175



 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE 
USE OF TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS IN COMPLIANCE WITH AB 361 

 WHEREAS, the Union Sanitary District is committed to preserving and nurturing 
public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of Union Sanitary District’s legislative bodies are open 
and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963); 
and  

WHEREAS, Government Code 54953(e) permits teleconferencing in the event 
that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor pursuant to Government Code 
section 8625, and that either state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, or that the legislative body finds that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of a 
State of Emergency in response to COVID-19, which remains in effect; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has adopted resolutions authorizing the use of 
teleconference meetings in compliance with AB 361 since October 25, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Board now desires to reaffirm and make the findings required to 
continue holding teleconference meetings in compliance with AB 361 due to COVID-19. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are material to this Resolution 
and are incorporated into this Resolution as findings of the District Board. 

2. Pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 54953(e)(3), 
the District Board makes the following findings: 

(a) The state of emergency continues to exist; 

(b) The District Board has considered the circumstances of the continuing 
state of emergency;  

(c) Holding meetings in person will present imminent risks to the health and 
safety of attendees; and 

(d) The District Board will continue to meet by teleconference in accordance 
with Government Code section 54953(e). 

3. The aforementioned findings apply to all committees and subcommittees 
of the District which are classified as legislative bodies pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54952.  

Page 157 of 175



4. The District Board will reconsider at least every 30 days, the
circumstances of the emergency and review whether it continues to directly impact the 
ability of the members to meet safely in person.     

5. If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or
portion of this Resolution is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Resolution.  The Board hereby declares that it would 
have adopted this Resolution and each and every section, subsection, subdivision, 
sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, subsections, subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions 
thereof be declared unconstitutional. 

6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors 

on this 10th day of October, 2022.

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ____________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Attest: 

_____________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

Page 158 of 175



 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
OCTOBER 10, 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
TITLE: Update on USD’s Holiday Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Ads (This is an 

Information Item) 
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Raymond Chau, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
 Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Team Coach 

Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
 
 
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
 
Discussion 
Beginning in 2018, USD staff has run two versions of a Holiday Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) ad in 
a local newspaper during the weeks prior to the Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays.  The ads 
encourage customers to “Avoid Pipe Clogs” and provide instructions to “Cool It. Can It. Trash It.”  
There are two versions of the ad – one that demonstrates the instructions using photos, and one 
that uses lighthearted cartoon elements depicting grease in a fun, humorous manner. 
 
For the 2022 Holiday season, staff incorporated the new USD Tri City Wastewater logo and used 
the logo’s dark blue color as backgrounds for top headline and bottom explanatory text on each 
version. Other than the new logo and color changes, all other aspects of the ads remain per the 
direction previously received from the Board.  This year the Thanksgiving ads will be placed in the 
Tri-City Voice on Tuesday, November 15th and The Argus on Friday, November 18th. For Christmas, 
the Tri-City Voice ads will run on Tuesday, December 20th and The Argus on Friday, December 
23rd. 
 
  
 
 
 

Page 159 of 175



Agenda Item No. 10 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
Background 
The District’s original Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) public outreach campaign was launched in 
2012 with the primary intent of reaching out to targeted residential neighborhoods in which FOG 
“hot spots” were found in USD’s mains.  The outreach materials contained messages about 
actions customers could take to help control FOG in sewers, with the effect of protecting property 
and the environment. 
 
To update the campaign, staff drafted modified materials depicting positive actions customers 
can take to appropriately dispose of residential FOG using photos and illustrations and presented 
layouts to the Board at its August 28, 2017 meeting.  Staff incorporated Board feedback regarding 
the options offered at that meeting and presented the edited versions to the Board at its October 
8, 2018 meeting.  The Board provided additional feedback regarding artwork elements and 
directed staff to run the finalized ads during the 2018 holiday season. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
August 28, 2017 – The Board received an update on the District’s FOG program and provided 
direction to staff regarding edits to existing campaign ads. 
 
October 8, 2018, – The Board provided direction to incorporate specified edits to proposed 
artwork and to run both photo and illustrative versions of the 2018 FOG advertisement during 
the holiday season. 
 
 
Attachments: 2022 FOG Holiday Ad Art Photo and Illustration versions 

Page 160 of 175



COOL IT.COOL IT. CAN IT.CAN IT. TRASH IT.TRASH IT.

Put into
empty can

Place in
your garbage

Let oil & grease 
cool down

AVOID PIPE CLOGS!AVOID PIPE CLOGS!
Keep Fats, Oils, & Grease (FOG) out of Your Drains!

Let oil & grease 
cool down

Put into
empty can

Place in
your garbage

Let oil & grease 
cool down

Place in
your garbage

Let oil & grease 
cool down

Put into
empty can

FOG (Fats, Oils, and Grease) in your household drains can create blockages that turn a great holiday into a hot mess.
Avoid sloppy, costly backups into your home and overflows that can enter local waterways, harming wildlife and the environment. NEVER put fats, oils, or grease 
down your drains or into storm drains, which flow untreated to our creeks and San Francisco Bay. Bring your used cooking oil to the Republic Services Customer Service 

Center at 42600 Boyce Road in Fremont for FREE disposal Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM. Pour used cooking oil into the 
receptacle and dispose of your empty jug in the provided container. 

For more information, call Union Sanitary District at (510) 477-7500, 
 visit www.StopFOG.com, or call Republic Services at (510) 657-3500.

Page 161 of 175



Place inPlace in
your garbageyour garbage

Keep Fats, Oils, & Grease (FOG) out of Your Drains!

Let oil & grease Let oil & grease 
cool downcool down

Put intoPut into
empty canempty can

FOG (Fats, Oils, and Grease) in your household drains can create blockages that turn a great holiday into a hot mess.
Avoid sloppy, costly backups into your home and overflows that can enter local waterways, harming wildlife and the environment. NEVER put fats, oils, or grease 
down your drains or into storm drains, which flow untreated to our creeks and San Francisco Bay. Bring your used cooking oil to the Republic Services Customer Service 

Center at 42600 Boyce Road in Fremont for FREE disposal Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM. Pour used cooking oil into the 
receptacle and dispose of your empty jug in the provided container. 

For more information, call Union Sanitary District at (510) 477-7500, 
 visit www.StopFOG.com, or call Republic Services at (510) 657-3500.

AVOID PIPE CLOGS!AVOID PIPE CLOGS!

COOL IT.COOL IT. CAN IT.CAN IT. TRASH IT.TRASH IT.

Page 162 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE800452.4181975 $262,914.04 $262,914.04CLARK CONSTRUCTION GROUP CA LP9/29/2022 143

SERV TO 08/30/2022 PASEO PADRE PS666720220907181935 $540.09 $131,525.01PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC9/22/2022 170

SERV TO 08/30/2022 FREMONT PS898220220907 $300.849/22/2022 170

SERV TO 09/01/22 IRVINGTON PS140120220912 $2,186.809/22/2022 170

SERV TO 08/30/22 CATHODIC PROJECT096020220907 $46.019/22/2022 170

SERV TO 08/30/22 CHERRY ST PS380420220907 $548.099/22/2022 170

SERV TO 08/21/2022 PLANT170120220831 $100,028.149/22/2022 110

SERV TO 09/05/22 BOYCE RD PS013720220912 $3,680.519/22/2022 170

SERV TO 08/24/22 NEWARK PS761520220831 $24,194.539/22/2022 170

FORCE MAIN CORROSION REPAIRS PROJECT PHASE 3 & IRVINGTON BASIN RCP REHABILITATIO22346601.4182005 $125,448.31 $125,448.31QUINCY ENGINEERING INC9/29/2022 143

AUG 2022 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL32295182008 $98,505.16 $98,505.16SYNAGRO WEST LLC9/29/2022 110

45,220 LBS CLARIFLOC C-62671672979182004 $90,711.99 $90,711.99POLYDYNE INC9/29/2022 110

MP - AERATION BASIN MODIFICATIONS201180105181919 $88,035.58 $88,035.58HAZEN AND SAWYER9/22/2022 114

EMERGENCY OUTFALL OUTLET IMPROVEMENTS800494181987 $81,603.41 $81,603.41GARNEY PACIFIC INC9/29/2022 143

Page 1 of 13Page 163 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

4798.7 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50547553182012 $7,611.55 $38,707.91UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC9/29/2022 110

4803.0 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50536615 $7,618.379/29/2022 110

4897.3 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50543085 $7,767.949/29/2022 110

5000.2 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50540018 $7,931.169/29/2022 110

4904.2 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50543086 $7,778.899/29/2022 110

47,160 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017764532181995 $8,127.98 $32,877.25KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS INC9/29/2022 110

48,320 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017766095 $8,270.059/29/2022 110

47,960 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017765571 $8,209.179/29/2022 110

48,320 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017764855 $8,270.059/29/2022 110

GRAVITY SEWER REHAB/REPLACEMENT800531181902 $31,454.85 $31,454.85CASEY CONSTRUCTION INC9/22/2022 143

4797.7 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50516869181955 $7,609.96 $30,763.88UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC9/22/2022 110

4799.2 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50531865 $7,612.339/22/2022 110

4897.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50531866 $7,768.269/22/2022 110

4900.7 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE50526044 $7,773.339/22/2022 110

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 8 FEASIBILITY STUDY26930181973 $22,627.99 $27,831.06CAROLLO ENGINEERS9/29/2022 143

PLANT MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS26937 $462.419/29/2022 143

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE LOOP IMPROVEMENTS27015 $4,740.669/29/2022 143

SEA LEVEL RISE STUDY UPDATE175913181985 $26,168.38 $26,168.38ESA9/29/2022 143

PRINTING AND MAILING OF ANNUAL NEWSLETTER17466181912 $23,446.72 $23,446.72FONG & FONG PRINTERS & LITHO9/22/2022

Page 2 of 13Page 164 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

FY23 Q1 LAPTOPS10600946162181981 $22,294.55 $22,294.55DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA9/29/2022 173

ENERGY RESILIENCY STUDY1379408181969 $21,510.59 $21,510.59BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION9/29/2022 143

AUGUST 2022 CDL TRAINING3816181977 $18,241.87 $18,241.87COMMERCIAL TRANSPORTATION SVCS9/29/2022 120

1969 GAL DYED CARB ULTRA LOW SULFUR DIESEL831495182015 $10,159.73 $15,845.26WESTERN STATES OIL CO9/29/2022 111

1100 GAL DYED CARB ULTRA LOW SULFUR DIESEL831549 $5,685.539/29/2022 111

PUMP ST SWITCH UPGRADE25906SW181924 $13,445.99 $13,445.99LOOKINGPOINT INC9/22/2022 173

CONSULTING SERVICES10849181925 $13,000.00 $13,000.00MANAGEMENT PARTNERS INC9/22/2022 130

43,780 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-5391670525181937 $9,537.27 $9,537.27POLYDYNE INC9/22/2022 110

4 THERMOSTATIC VAVLES99158843181894 $9,023.65 $9,023.65AMOT9/22/2022 170

AERATION BLOWER 11 (HIGH SPEED)5238181962 $7,573.02 $7,573.02WORKSMART AUTOMATION INC9/22/2022 143

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3R9118181990 $812.38 $7,530.88HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS9/29/2022

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3R9032 $575.459/29/2022

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3R9116 $1,341.399/29/2022 170

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3R9117 $1,371.199/29/2022 170

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS3R9119 $3,430.479/29/2022 170

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS222258182009 $6,735.00 $6,735.00TANNER PACIFIC INC9/29/2022 143

5104 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE271208181899 $4,394.81 $6,602.18BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC9/22/2022 121

2552 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE271209 $2,207.379/22/2022 121

Page 3 of 13Page 165 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9413033557181989 $49.40 $5,727.93GRAINGER INC9/29/2022 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9421227910 $100.079/29/2022 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9424924844 $1,010.379/29/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9424924851 $3,176.639/29/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9421962664 $441.039/29/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9421785180 $581.309/29/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9418472768 $101.269/29/2022 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9424924869 $216.649/29/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9393594149 $51.239/29/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9411218424181918 $67.38 $5,237.57GRAINGER INC9/22/2022 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9408759299 $35.349/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9414988007 $237.669/22/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9411785075 $3,136.449/22/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9413033565 $457.579/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9410268073 $626.579/22/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9405255614 $626.169/22/2022 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9411094288 $50.459/22/2022 172

RTU - MANHOLE MONITOR PLUS AND SERVICE PACKAGE1068335181930 $4,854.80 $4,854.80MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC9/22/2022 123

Page 4 of 13Page 166 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

GRIT HAULING 08/10 & 08/15/202222081943181946 $1,763.37 $4,552.34S&S TRUCKING9/22/2022 110

GRIT HAULING 08/29/202222083001 $1,809.509/22/2022 110

GRIT HAULING 08/19/202222082317 $979.479/22/2022 110

SACGISA325139181986 $3,935.66 $3,935.66CITY OF FREMONT9/29/2022 173

1 POLY MIX CHAMBER20227608181915 $3,613.39 $3,613.39G3 ENGINEERING INC9/22/2022 170

REFUND # 4976327156181931 $3,300.00 $3,300.00MISSION PETROLEUM GAS INC9/22/2022

REFUND # 4976930403181947 $3,300.00 $3,300.00SC BUILDERS9/22/2022

REFUND # 4976821972181950 $3,300.00 $3,300.00STUDIOS ARCHITECTURE9/22/2022

REFUND # 5077630503181996 $3,300.00 $3,300.00LEMON WING CORP DBA WINGSTOP9/29/2022

REFUND # 5077827128182011 $3,300.00 $3,300.00TESLA MOTORS9/29/2022

1276 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE272942181971 $1,074.64 $3,214.22BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC9/29/2022 121

2552 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE272941 $2,139.589/29/2022 121

TEMP LABOR-DZOAN.T , WK END 07/09/2216363910181967 $1,352.18 $3,084.50APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SVCS9/29/2022 130

TEMP LABOR-GONZALES, WK END 09/03/2216415740 $1,732.329/29/2022 130

PUMP STATIONS CHEMICAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS22026467181964 $2,950.30 $2,950.30ABC IMAGING, INC9/29/2022 143

CCTV CAMERA REPAIRS50168181961 $2,841.39 $2,841.39WECO INDUSTRIES LLC9/22/2022 123

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2208M03181999 $949.00 $2,566.00MCCAMPBELL ANALYTICAL9/29/2022 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2209066 $1,100.009/29/2022 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2209063 $517.009/29/2022 113

Page 5 of 13Page 167 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

CYLINDER RENTAL9991255183181891 $1,100.19 $2,364.09AIRGAS NCN9/22/2022 170

4 CY ARGON9129315876 $1,263.909/22/2022

SERVICE CALL: HVAC REPAIR - AC 2 PLUGGED DRAIN102613181941 $498.12 $2,319.85PRIME MECHANICAL SERVICE INC9/22/2022 121

MONTHLY MAINTENANCE - AUG 22102916 $620.009/22/2022 170

SERVICE CALL: REPLACED DAMPER ACTUATOR102880 $1,201.739/22/2022 121

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - SEP 22GVNH372181922 $613.89 $2,233.37IRON MOUNTAIN9/22/2022 141

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - SEP 22GVZZ805 $1,619.489/22/2022 141

FIBER INTERNET BACKUP - SEP 2022154431875181976 $2,010.71 $2,010.71COLORADO WASHINGTON INC COMCAST OF CALIFORNIA,9/29/2022

08/01/22 - 08/31/22 GUARD AT DISTRICT16235181893 $1,950.11 $1,950.11AMERICAN DISCOUNT SECURITY9/22/2022 120

EMISSIONS ANALYZER SEMI ANNUAL SERVICE432835181983 $1,931.42 $1,931.42ECOM AMERICA LTD9/29/2022 170

1 ROSEMOUNT 8750W TRANSMITTER40703023182001 $1,842.36 $1,842.36MICRO MOTION INC9/29/2022 170

SALES & USE TAX 08/01/22 - 08/31/202220220920181900 $1,834.14 $1,834.14STATE OF CALIFORNIA9/22/2022

TEMP LABOR-JANES, O. WK ENDING 08/28/223402311322181923 $1,732.50 $1,732.50KELLY SERVICES INC9/22/2022 113

TEMP LABOR-JANES, O. WK ENDING 09/04/223502375022181994 $1,732.50 $1,732.50KELLY SERVICES INC9/29/2022 110

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2208991A181927 $35.00 $1,667.00MCCAMPBELL ANALYTICAL9/22/2022 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2208J92 $902.009/22/2022 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2208E84 $128.009/22/2022 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2208H79 $447.009/22/2022 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2208J93 $155.009/22/2022 113

Page 6 of 13Page 168 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

TEMP LABOR-PRASAD, J. WK ENDING  08/26/202260632117181943 $1,579.44 $1,579.44ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC9/22/2022 141

PEST CONTROL424304859181951 $1,176.00 $1,579.00TERMINIX COMMERCIAL9/22/2022 170

PEST CONTROL424304858 $148.009/22/2022 170

PEST CONTROL424302148 $255.009/22/2022 170

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - AUGUST 202220220831181933 $1,518.78 $1,518.78NAPA AUTO PARTS9/22/2022

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84764708181928 $104.76 $1,505.11MCMASTER SUPPLY INC9/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84043806 $70.289/22/2022 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84974500 $1,012.309/22/2022 114

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84983896 $95.719/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84670755 $31.859/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84734652 $67.869/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84829802 $71.299/22/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84914624 $51.069/22/2022 170

LAB SUPPLIES8810581120181960 $37.30 $1,422.98VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC9/22/2022 113

LAB SUPPLIES8810558858 $1,315.139/22/2022

LAB SUPPLIES8810158837 $59.039/22/2022 113

LAB SUPPLIES8810206229 $11.529/22/2022 113

LABOR RELATIONS CONSULTING JULY 2020200614178181921 $1,380.69 $1,380.69IEDA INC9/22/2022 132

TEMP LABOR-GONZALES, WK END 08/27/2216408976181895 $1,377.28 $1,377.28APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SVCS9/22/2022 130

Page 7 of 13Page 169 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ADMINISTRATION FEES - 08/1/2022 - 07/31/20236639339181957 $1,350.00 $1,350.00US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM9/22/2022 136

EXP REIMB: GAS FOR DISTRICT VEHICLE20220919181939 $42.46 $1,211.25MICHELLE POWELL9/22/2022 141

EXP REIMB: LODGING, PER DIEM, MILEAGE, SHUTTLE - CAPIO CONFERENCE20220919.1 $1,168.799/22/2022 141

SERV TO: 09/09/22 - FREMONT BLVD4017420220220912181966 $64.33 $1,204.76ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT9/29/2022 170

SERV TO: 09/09/22 - FREMONT BLVD4017275220220912 $1,140.439/29/2022 170

UTILITY FEE/ANTENNA RENTAL20220828181905 $1,181.07 $1,181.07COMMUNICATION & CONTROL INC9/22/2022 170

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT / ADVISORY SERVICES13381319181936 $1,140.47 $1,140.47PFM ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC9/22/2022 130

1 CERT & 5 MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS - CS 6 EMPLOYEES20220919181907 $1,110.00 $1,110.00CWEA9/22/2022 120

181 GALS DIESEL FUEL - BOYCE118575181958 $1,109.11 $1,109.11VALLEY OIL COMPANY9/22/2022 170

ETSU TEMPORARY OFFICE SPACE2318717181932 $1,080.81 $1,080.81MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP9/22/2022 114

ASTD VACTOR PARTS259891181984 $1,018.67 $1,018.67ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS & ACCES9/29/2022

ARCHES SSC SOFTWARE SUPPORT2019769181910 $1,000.00 $1,000.00FARALLON GEOGRAPHICS INC9/22/2022 173

EXP REIMB: DUO MFA 08/23/22 - 09/23/2220220919.3181916 $300.00 $934.00MICHAEL GILL9/22/2022 173

EXP REIMB: DUO MFA 05/23/22 - 06/23/2220220919 $300.009/22/2022 173

EXP REIMB: DUO MFA 09/09/22 - 09/23/2220220921 $34.009/22/2022 173

EXP REIMB: DUO MFA 06/23/22 - 07/23/2220220919.1 $300.009/22/2022 173

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES5409412001181892 $793.20 $933.15ALAMEDA ELECTRICAL DISTR. INC.9/22/2022 170

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES5406537001 $139.959/22/2022 170

Page 8 of 13Page 170 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

2 FALL PROTECTION HARNESSES9129573812181965 $417.99 $868.07AIRGAS NCN9/29/2022 172

2 FALL PROTECTION STRAPS9129508211 $123.619/29/2022 172

2 FALL PROTECTION HARNESSES9129508210 $326.479/29/2022 172

VULNERABILITY SCAN SUBSCRIPTION - AUG 2022524197181897 $845.00 $845.00AVERTIUM LLC9/22/2022 173

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS85073464182000 $31.56 $786.55MCMASTER SUPPLY INC9/29/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84363885 $29.279/29/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS85133177 $28.659/29/2022 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS84992945 $697.079/29/2022

HOT WATER LOOP SERVICE338649182006 $785.92 $785.92ROCHESTER MIDLAND CORPORATION9/29/2022 170

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE2591072684181896 $395.90 $778.20ARAMARK9/22/2022

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS2591072644 $316.249/22/2022

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY2591072596 $66.069/22/2022

RADIO SERVICE - SEP 2022220951181929 $772.91 $772.91METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC9/22/2022 170

800 RECRUITMENT POSTCARDS133284181911 $755.79 $755.79FOLGER GRAPHICS9/22/2022 132

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS2591075455181968 $312.93 $708.25ARAMARK9/29/2022

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE2591075497 $395.329/29/2022

Page 9 of 13Page 171 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17388011181898 $34.88 $651.02BLAISDELL'S9/22/2022 120

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17397751 $63.879/22/2022

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17388010 $178.489/22/2022 120

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17403000 $25.049/22/2022

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17397670 $142.039/22/2022

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17397750 $206.729/22/2022

3 EVENT TABLECLOTHS69154181963 $623.40 $623.40ABACUS PRODUCTS INC9/29/2022 144

EXP REIMB: HARDWARE FOR BAKUP ROUTER20220928181988 $286.47 $560.78MICHAEL GILL9/29/2022 173

EXP REIMB: HARDWARE FOR BAKUP ROUTER~20220928.1 $274.319/29/2022 173

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES604868611181991 $532.59 $532.59HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO9/29/2022

FMC PARTS10023609181992 $510.50 $510.50HUBER TECHNOLOGY INC9/29/2022

REFUND # 4976736853181945 $500.00 $500.00ROOTER HERO9/22/2022

AD: CHERRY ST. PS3619603181980 $495.00 $495.00DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION9/29/2022 143

LAB SUPPLIES8810652114182014 $212.36 $394.62VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC9/29/2022

LAB SUPPLIES8810663291 $182.269/29/2022 113

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS2400148195182002 $390.06 $390.06MOTION INDUSTRIES INC9/29/2022 170

PLANT MAINTENANCE - SEP 202297851181904 $361.65 $361.65CITYLEAF INC9/22/2022 150

3 DOT PHYSICALS32090331090520220909181993 $345.00 $345.00KAISER PERMANENTE9/29/2022 132

1 NEW HIRE PHYSICAL76565267181978 $316.00 $316.00CONCENTRA MEDICAL CENTERS9/29/2022 132

Page 10 of 13Page 172 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - QUARTERLY SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSP150584181953 $312.50 $312.50TRI-SIGNAL INTEGRATION INC9/22/2022 122

AUG 2022 SERVICE FEE177421181940 $302.94 $302.94PREFERRED ALLIANCE INC9/22/2022

REALQUEST 12 MONTH SERVICE30625773181906 $300.00 $300.00CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTION9/22/2022 173

EXP REIMB: DUO MFA 07/23/22 - 08/23/2220220919.2181917 $300.00 $300.00MICHAEL GILL9/22/2022 173

REALQUEST 12 MONTH SERVICE30616745181979 $300.00 $300.00CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTION9/29/2022 173

EXP REIMB: RECOGNITION MEAL20220922181997 $277.86 $277.86MATTHEW LUBINA9/29/2022 120

AT HOME EMPLOYEE PORTAL2202693181934 $274.00 $274.00OPTIMUM TECHNOLOGIES LLC9/22/2022 132

60 PR GLOVES5425186181998 $249.27 $249.27MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC9/29/2022

EXP REIMB: RECOGNITION MEAL20220923182003 $244.73 $244.73SHAWN NESGIS9/29/2022 120

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT -  AUGUST 2022768520220828181920 $225.57 $225.57HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES9/22/2022

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES17418240181970 $206.69 $206.69BLAISDELL'S9/29/2022

MONTHLY CYLINDER RENTAL - AUG 2022771053736181926 $182.04 $182.04MATHESON TRI-GAS INC9/22/2022 170

LAB SUPPLIES1000710119181909 $170.69 $170.69ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS9/22/2022

EXP REIMB: 2022 NORTHERN SAFETY DAY20220919181914 $160.00 $160.00MICHAEL FULKERSON9/22/2022 110

1 CAR CHARGER MOUNTING KIT156899181974 $148.19 $148.19CHARGEPOINT INC9/29/2022 170

SEP 2022 PAGER SERVICE20220831181949 $139.20 $139.20SPOK INC9/22/2022 141

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS461226181942 $132.90 $132.90RKI INSTRUMENTS INC9/22/2022 170

4 NEW HIRE FINGERPRINTS604052181972 $128.00 $128.00STATE OF CALIFORNIA9/29/2022 132

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 08/27/2298XW53352181956 $104.33 $104.33UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE9/22/2022 136

Page 11 of 13Page 173 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

REFUND # 4977536871181952 $101.25 $101.25TR DESIGNS & DEVELOPMENT INC9/22/2022

EXP REIMB: DOT PHYSICAL20220919181938 $80.00 $80.00JOHN POWELL9/22/2022 120

.73 TON CLEAN WOOD26262181913 $79.18 $79.18FREMONT RECYCLING & TRANSFER9/22/2022 121

AWS CLOUD STORAGE - JUL 2022577669181908 $76.48 $76.48DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC9/22/2022 173

REIMB: LIVESCAN PRE-EMPLOYMENT20220923182010 $72.00 $72.00STANLEY TARNOWSKI9/29/2022 132

2 NEW HIRE FINGERPRINTS597887181901 $64.00 $64.00STATE OF CALIFORNIA9/22/2022 132

EXP REIMB: MILEAGE FOR CALL OUT20220927182007 $63.13 $63.13DUSTIN STRASBURG9/29/2022 171

WIRELESS SERV 08/02/22-09/01/229914691116181959 $59.15 $59.15VERIZON WIRELESS9/22/2022

COURIER SVCS: 1 BOARDMEMBER DELIVERY - 08/18/22435561181954 $56.97 $56.97ULTRAEX LLC9/22/2022 141

1 ANALYSIS2208437S181948 $20.00 $40.00SGS NORTH AMERICA INC9/22/2022 170

1 ANALYSIS2208401S $20.009/22/2022 170

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 09/03/2298XW53362182013 $38.15 $38.15UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE9/29/2022 136

EXP REIMB: MILEAGE FOR CALL OUT20220914181903 $30.10 $30.10PETE CHAPARRO9/22/2022 170

EXP REIMB:  SCIENCE IN THE PARK SUPPLIES20220926181982 $5.19 $27.82ALICIA DUTROW9/29/2022 144

EXP REIMB:  SCIENCE IN THE PARK SUPPLIES20220923 $22.639/29/2022 144

EXP REIMB: SNACKS FOR RECRUITMENT PANEL20220921181944 $21.07 $21.07JESSICA RODRIGUEZ9/22/2022 120

Page 12 of 13Page 174 of 175



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/17/2022-09/30/2022

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

 15

 73

 3

 123

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 0

 214 

 488,390.49

 585,401.34

 255,125.29

 33,698.93

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 1,362,616.05

 19,816.67

 148,467.57

 674,444.45

 519,887.36

 1,362,616.05

 56

 49

 17

 3

 125

Page 13 of 13Page 175 of 175



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

October 10, 2022 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 7 

TITLE: Review and Consider Proposed Changes to Ordinance 36.04 Relating to 
Environmental Compliance Administrative Fines Under Certain Circumstances 
(This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Raymond Chau, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Team Coach 

Recommendation 
Review and consider proposed changes to Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance relating to 
Environmental Compliance Notice of Violation Administrative Fines under certain circumstances 
pursuant to previous Board direction. 

Discussion 
Pursuant to a Board inquiry, staff shared at the July 25, 2022 Board meeting that it is not a federal 
requirement to assess fines for every Notice of Violation issued by the Environmental Compliance 
group, however it is a requirement of USD’s Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance.  Staff also 
indicated that changing the administration of fines and penalties in Ordinance 36.04, Section 6.08 
would require Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) review. 

The Board directed staff to draft revisions to the ordinance language that gives staff the flexibility 
to waive or reduce fines under certain circumstances and to present the proposed changes to 
the Board for their consideration. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



Agenda Item No. 7 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
The proposed language in the revised policy is as follows: 
 
6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties 
 
(e) Administrative Penalties 
 
 Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 

Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued with the 
following exception: the General Manager may waive or reduce penalties, in their sole 
discretion, where at a minimum, all of the following requirements are met: the violation is 
minor in nature, it is the first in the last 5 years, it was inadvertent, and the violator is 
cooperating with the District in resolving the matter. 

 
 
Pursuant to previous discussions, staff believes this meets the Board’s intent regarding revisions 
to this policy.  Should the Board concur, staff will update the policy accordingly and present the 
modified version to the Regional Board for their review and report back should the Regional 
Board disagree with the edits. 
 
 
Background 
During the July 25, 2022 Board meeting, staff responded to these questions asked by a Board 
Director during a previous committee meeting: 

• Is it a federal requirement to impose fines on industries for Notices of Violation? 

• Does the District have to impose fines on every Notice of Violation, or does the District 
have any flexibility under the current Ordinance under certain circumstances (first 
violation over a certain period of time, cause of the violation, etc.)? 

 
After staff’s and District Counsel’s review, it was determined that it is not a federal requirement 
to assess fines for every Notice of Violation, however it is a requirement of USD’s Ordinance 36.04 
– Sewer Use Ordinance.  The Ordinance’s Section 6.08(e) – Administrative Penalties states 
“Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 
Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued.” 
 
Changing the administration of fines and penalties in Ordinance 36.04, Section 6.08 would 
require Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) review.  Staff’s position is that the change 
is a minor administrative change and would not “result in less stringent requirements being 
imposed on Industrial Users of the POTW,” as the change would not affect any pollutant or other 
technical requirements.  It is not clear if the RWQCB would agree with staff’s position, but staff 
could present the position to the RWQCB during their review. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



Agenda Item No. 7 
Meeting of October 10, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 
 
The addition of administrative penalties was incorporated into the Ordinance on July 26, 2004, 
when the Board conducted a Public Hearing.  The Board had asked staff to consider adding 
administrative penalties as a measure to offset District expenses related to administering permit 
violations.  Prior to the Public Hearing, District staff reached out to all industrial users and asked 
for input regarding implementing administrative penalties.  The District did not receive any 
negative feedback or concerns. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
June 21, 2004, the Board conducted a Public Hearing to adopt cost recovery language addition 
to the Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36, Section 6.08. 
 
July 20, 2004, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2425 to include Cost Recovery provisions to 
Ordinance No. 36, Section 6.08. 
 
July 25, 2022, the Board received information and provided direction regarding Environmental 
Compliance Notice of Violation Administrative Fines under certain circumstances. 
 
 
PRE/RC/MD 
 
Attachments: 
 

Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance – Redline Version 
Ordinance 36.04 – Sewer Use Ordinance – Clean Version 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
SEWER USE ORDINANCE 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 36.045 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose & Policy ...................................................................................................... 1 
1.02 Definitions ............................................................................................................ 2-11 
1.03 Analytical & Sampling Methodology & Procedures ........................................... 11 

SECTION 2 
REGULATIONS 

2.01 Sewer Use Requirements ..................................................................................... 11 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges .................................................................................. 11-13 
2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community 

sewer........................................................................................................... 1313-14 
2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam 

Fillings ................................................................................................................. 14-15 
2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater ..................................... 15-16 
2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Cleanup Projects ......................................... 16 
2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water .......................................................................... 16 
2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes......................................................... 16-17 
2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders ...................................................... 17 
2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge ...................................................................... 17 
2.09 Holding Tank Waste ......................................................................................... 17-18 
2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength .............................................................. 18-20 
2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges ............................................................................ 20 
2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution ............................................................................... 20 
2.13 Prohibition of Bypass ............................................................................................. 21 
2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Process Solution Tanks ............................. 21-22 
2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing 

Pass-through or Interference ................................................................................ 22 
2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes ............................. 22 
2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas ...................................... 22 
2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections ................................... 22 

SECTION 3 
WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 

3.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 22 
3.02 Metered Water Supply ..................................................................................... 22-23 

SECTION 4 
ADMINISTRATION 

4.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 23 
4.02 Discharge Reports .................................................................................................. 24 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Reports……………………………………  23-24 24-25 
4.04 Permit Application ............................................................................................. 25-26 
4.05 Permit Conditions ............................................................................................. 26-28 
4.06 Duration of Permits ...................................................................................... 28 
4.07 Modification of Permits……………………………………………………27 28-29 
4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer .............................................................. 29 
4.09 Revocation of Permit ........................................................................................ 29-30 
4.10 Monitoring Facilities .......................................................................................... 30-31 
4.11 Inspection and Sampling ....................................................................................... 31 
4.12 Search Warranties .................................................................................................. 31 
4.13 Pretreatment ............................................................................................................ 32 
4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge ................................................................. 32 
4.15 Confidential Information ......................................................................................... 32 
4.16 Signature Requirement .................................................................................... 33-34 
4.17 Retention of Records ............................................................................................. 34 
4.18 Notice to Employees .............................................................................................. 34 
4.19 Preventive Measures ....................................................................................... 34-35 
4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions ..................................................................... 35 
4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge ....................................................... 35 
4.22 Special Agreements ............................................................................................... 36 
4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW ..................................... 36 
4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements ............................................. 36-37 
4.25 Special Agreements ......................................................................................... 37-40 

 
 

SECTION 5 
WASTEWATER CHARGES & FEES 

5.01 Schedule of Charges & Fees ................................................................................ 40 
5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges & Fees ..................................................... 40 

 
 

SECTION 6 
ENFORCEMENT 

6.01 Notification of Discharge ........................................................................................ 41 
6.02 Notification of Violation .......................................................................................... 41 
6.03 Consent Orders ...................................................................................................... 41 
6.04 Show Cause Hearing ............................................................................................. 42 
6.05 Administrative Orders ............................................................................................ 42 
6.06 Issuance of Cease & Desist Orders .................................................................... 42 
6.07 Legal Authority to Administrative Fines .............................................................. 43 
6.08 Administrative Procedures & Penalties ......................................................... 43-46 
6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule ........................................................ 46 
6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports ...................................................... 46-47 
6.11 Appeals .................................................................................................................... 47 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems ........................................................................ 47-48 
6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling & Reporting............................................. 48 
6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users ......................................................................... 48 
6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant 

Non-Compliance ..................................................................................................... 48 

SECTION 7 
ABATEMENT 

7.01 Public Nuisance. ............................................................................................... 48-49 
7.02 Recovery of Expenses ........................................................................................... 49 
7.03 Injunctive Relief ...................................................................................................... 49 
7.04 Damage to Facilities ............................................................................................... 49 
7.05 Civil Penalties .......................................................................................................... 49 
7.06 Court Imposed Civil & Criminal Penalties ........................................................... 50 
7.07 Falsifying Information ............................................................................................. 50 
7.08 Termination of Service ........................................................................................... 51 
7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service ...................................................................... 51 
7.10 Immediate termination of Discharge .................................................................... 52 
7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies ........................................................................................ 52 

SECTION 8 
SEVERABILITY 

Section 8 -Severability ..................................................................................................... 53 

SECTION 9 
Section 9 ............................................................................................................................ 53 

SECTION 10 
PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY ............................................................................. 53 

SUPPLEMENT........................................................................................................................... 54 
40 CFR Part 2.302(2): Definition of Effluent Data. ................................................ 54-55 
40 CFR Part 136: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations on Test 

Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants ............................... 55 
40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 

Identifying Hazardous Waste .................................................... 55 
40 CFR Part 403.5: National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited 

Discharges ............................................................................. 55-57 
40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi): Slug Control Plans .......................................................... 58 
40 CFR Part 403.12 Reporting Requirements for POTWs & Industrial Users .... 58 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h): Reporting Requirements for Industrial Users Not 
Subject to Categorical Standards ........................................ 58 

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification. ......................... 59 
40 CFR Part 405 - 471: Categorical Standards & Requirements. ........................... 60 
Locally regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants. ................................................................ 61 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



1  

Section 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose and Policy 
 

This ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for users of the Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works of the Union Sanitary District and enables the Agency to comply with all applicable 
Local, State and Federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code § 
1251 et seq.), the General Pretreatment Regulations (40 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 403) and the water quality requirements set by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board and/or the State of California Water Resource Control Board. The objectives of this 
ordinance are: 

 
(a) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

that will interfere with its operation; 
 

(b) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
that will pass through the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, inadequately treated, 
into receiving waters, or otherwise be incompatible with the Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works; 

 
(c) To protect both Publicly Owned Treatment Works personnel who may be affected by 

wastewater and sludge in the course of their employment and the general public; 
 

(d) To promote reuse and recycling of industrial wastewater and sludge from the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; 

 
(e) To provide revenues derived from the application of this Ordinance which shall be 

used to defray the Agency's cost of operating and maintaining adequate wastewater 
collection and treatment systems and to provide sufficient funds for capital outlay, 
bond service costs, capital improvements, and depreciation for the equitable 
distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance, and improvement of the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; and 

 
(f) To enable Agency to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

permit conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements, and any other Federal, 
State or Local laws to which the Publicly Owned Treatment Works is subject. 

 
This ordinance shall apply to all users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works. The 
ordinance authorizes the issuance of wastewater discharge permits; provides for 
monitoring, compliance, and enforcement activities; establishes administrative review 
procedures; requires user reporting; and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable 
distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



2  

1.02 Definitions 
 
 

Unless otherwise defined herein, terms shall be as found in Title 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Parts 403 and 136. 

 
(a) Agency: Union Sanitary District. 

 
(b) Amalgam: an alloy containing mercury, tin, silver, or copper that is used in dentistry 

to restore teeth. 
 

(c) Amalgam Separator: a device that applies filtration, settlement, centrifugation, or 
ion exchange to remove amalgam and its metal constituents from a dental office 
vacuum system before it discharges to the sewer. 

 
(d) Amalgam Waste: includes non-contact amalgam (amalgam scrap that has not 

been in contact with the patient); contact amalgam (including, but not limited to, 
extracted teeth containing amalgam); amalgam sludge captured by chair-side 
traps, vacuum pump filters, screens and other amalgam trapping devices; used 
amalgam capsules; and leaking or unusable amalgam capsules. 

 
(e) Authority: The East Bay Dischargers Authority. 

 
(f) Batch Discharge: A definite quantity or volume of wastewater produced under 

conditions that are considered uniform. 
 

(g) Beneficial Uses: Uses of the waters of the state that may be protected against 
quality degradation include, but are not necessarily limited to, domestic, municipal, 
agricultural and industrial supply, power generation, recreation, aesthetic 
enjoyment, navigation and the preservation and enhancement of fish, wildlife and 
other aquatic resources or reserves, and other uses, both tangible or intangible, 
as specified by federal or state law. 

 
(h) Best Management Practices or BMPs: Schedules of activities, prohibitions of 

practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to 
implement the prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b). BMPs also include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site 
runoff, spillage and leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw 
materials. 

 
(i) Building Sewer: A sewer conveying wastewater from a point 30 inches or less from 

the building or structure to a main sewer. The building sewer includes that portion 
on the property and that portion from the property line or easement line to the 
sewer main (Lateral Sewer). 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



3  

(j) Bypass: The intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of an 
Industrial User's treatment facility. 

 
(k) Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard: Standards specifying 

the quantity, concentration, or properties of pollutants that may be discharged to 
POTWs. EPA promulgates pretreatment standards for specific industry categories 
in accordance with Clean Water Act section 307. These standards are codified in 
40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N, Parts 405-471. 

 
(l) Chemical Oxygen Demand or COD: The measure of the oxygen equivalent of the 

organic matter content of a sample that is susceptible to oxidation by a strong 
chemical oxidant. 

 
(m) Community Sewer: A sewer owned and operated by the Agency, a city, or other 

public agency tributary to a treatment facility operated by the Agency or the 
Authority. 

 
(n) Compatible Pollutant: Biochemical oxygen demand, chemical oxygen demand, 

suspended solids, pH and fecal coliform bacteria, plus additional pollutants 
identified in the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit if the publicly owned treatment works was designed to treat such 
pollutants, and in fact does remove such pollutants to a substantial degree. 

 
(o) Composite Sample: A sample resulting from the combination of individual 

wastewater samples taken at selected intervals based on an increment of either 
flow or time. Samples may be taken manually or by using automatic equipment. 
Manual composite samples shall consist of a minimum of four (4) grab samples. 

 
(p) Contamination: An impairment of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to 

a degree which creates a hazard to the public health through poisoning or through 
the spread of disease. Contamination shall include any equivalent effect resulting 
from the disposal of wastewater, whether or not waters of the state are affected. 

 
(q) District: Union Sanitary District 

 
(r) Domestic Use: Any single family or multifamily residence which discharges, or 

causes, or allows the discharge of domestic wastewater to the POTW. 
 

(s) Domestic Wastewater: The liquid waste or liquid-borne waste discharged from 
residential units, normally resulting from the non-commercial preparation, cooking 
and handling of food, personal laundry, and wastes from sanitary conveniences or 
from sanitary devices in industrial or commercial establishments. 

 
(t) Environmental Protection Agency or EPA: The U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency or, where appropriate, the Regional Water Management Division Director, 
or other duly authorized official of said agency. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



4  

 

(u) Federal Act, Clean Water Act: The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known 
as the Clean Water Act, as amended, PL 92-500 Title 33 U.S. Code, section 1251 
et seq. (and any amendments thereto; as well as any guidelines, limitations, and 
standards promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the 
Act.) 

 
(v) Grab Sample: A sample that is taken from a wastestream without regard to the 

flow in the wastestream and over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) 
minutes. 

 
(w) Hazardous Waste: Waste substances which can pose a hazard to human health 

or the environment when improperly managed; or. waste that possesses at least 
one of these four characteristics: ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity or toxicity; or 
appears on special U.S. EPA lists. This definition also includes all wastes 
covered in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5 
Environmental Health Standards for the Management of Hazardous Waste. 

 
(x) Holding Tank Waste: Any waste from temporary or permanent containers such as 

holding tanks, vessels, truck tanks, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, 
totes, drums, vacuum pump tank trucks, etc. 

 
(y) Incompatible Pollutant: Any pollutant, which is not a compatible pollutant as 

defined in this section. 
 

(z) Industrial User: An industrial or commercial business, which discharges, or causes, 
or allows the discharge of non-domestic wastewater to the POTW. 

 
(aa) Industrial Wastewater: Liquid waste or liquid-borne waste that is generated in a 

commercial or industrial process. 
 

(bb)  Indirect Discharge or Discharge: The introduction of pollutants into the POTW from 
any non-domestic source regulated under Section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the Clean 
Water Act. 

 
(cc) Interference: A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with discharges from other 

sources, both: 
 

(1) inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations, or its 
sludge processes, use or disposal; and therefore 

 
(2) is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit 

(including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation) or of the 
prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance with the following 
statutory provisions and regulations or permits issued there under (or more 
stringent state or local regulations): Section 405 of the Clean Water Act, the 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



5  

Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including Title II, more commonly referred 
to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and including 
state regulations contained in any state sludge management plan prepared 
pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA), the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances 
Control Act, and the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act. 

 
(dd) Manager: The General Manager of the District, or his or her designated 

representative. 
 

(ee) Mass Limit Rate: The weight of material discharged to the sewer system during a 
given time interval. Unless otherwise specified, the mass limit rate shall mean 
pounds per day of a constituent or combination of constituents. 

 
(ff) Maximum Allowable Discharge Limit: The maximum concentration of a pollutant 

allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete 
or composite sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the 
duration of the sampling event. 

 
(gg) Medical Waste: Any waste, liquid or solid, generated by a medical facility which 

may pose a health and/or safety threat to Agency personnel. 
 

(hh) National Pretreatment Standard, Pretreatment Standard, or Standard: Any 
regulation containing pollutant discharge limits or Best Management Practices 
promulgated by the EPA in accordance with section 307 (b) and (c) of the Clean 
Water Act, that applies to industrial users. This term includes prohibitive discharge 
limits established pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5. 

 
(ii) New Source: Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is or 

may be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the 
publication of proposed pretreatment standards under Section 307c of the Clean 
Water Act that will be applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter 
promulgated, provided that: 

 
(1) The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no 

other source is located; or 
 

(2) The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or 
production equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing 
source; or 

 
(3) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, 

facility or installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the 
same site. In determining whether these are substantially independent, factors 
such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, 
and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the existing source should be considered 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



6  

 

(jj) pH: A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in standard units. 
 

(kk) POTW Treatment Plant: That portion of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works which 
is designed to provide treatment (including recycling and reclamation) of municipal 
sewage and industrial waste. 

 
(ll)  Pass Through: A discharge that exits the POTW into waters of the United States in 

quantities or concentrations that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or 
discharges from other sources, is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the 
POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a 
violation). 

 
(mm) Person: Any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, corporation, 

association, joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other 
legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or assigns. This definition 
includes any Federal, State and local governmental entity. 

 
(nn)  Pesticides: Total pesticides identified in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water 

Act which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(oo)  Phenolics: Compounds having one or more hydroxy groups attached to a benzene 
or other polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons as tested using EPA Method 420. 

 
(pp)  Pollution: An alteration of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to a degree 

which unreasonably affects such waters for beneficial use or facilities which serve 
such beneficial uses. Pollution may include contamination. 

 
(qq)  Pollution Prevention: Activities which reduce the amount of pollutants discharged 

to the community sewer, without transferring those pollutants to the air or land, 
including reduction in the use of chemicals containing regulated pollutants, 
reduction in the generation of wastes which contain pollutants, recovery and 
recycling of wastes and/or improved pretreatment of wastes prior to discharge. 

 
(rr) Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB): Total PCBs detectable by EPA approved methods. 

 
(ss) Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH): Total organic pollutants containing more 

than one fused aromatic ring, which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(tt) Premise: A parcel of real estate including any improvements thereon which is 
determined by the Agency to be a single user for purposes of receiving, using, and 
paying for service. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



7  

(uu) Pretreatment Requirement: Any substantive or procedural pretreatment requirement 
other than a national pretreatment standard. 

 
(vv) Private Sewer Lateral: The pipeline that conveys wastewater from a residence or 

any other building foundation to the main District sewer line. 
 

(ww) Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges: Absolute prohibitions 
against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Section 
2.01 of this ordinance. 

 
(xx) Publicly Owned Treatment Works or “POTW”: A treatment works as defined by 

section 212 of the Clean Water Act, which is owned by a state or municipality (as 
defined by section 502(4) of the Clean Water Act). This definition includes any 
devices and systems used in the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of 
municipal sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature. It also includes sewers, 
pipes, and other conveyances only if they convey wastewater to a POTW 
treatment plant. The term also means the municipality as defined in section 502(4) 
of the Clean Water Act, that has jurisdiction over the indirect discharges to and the 
discharges from such a treatment works. 

 
(yy)  Sample points: 

(1) Facility (FAC) - a sample point whereby the total, combined waste stream, 
both process and domestic, from a facility is monitored for compliance with 
local discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(2) "001" - a sample point whereby a facility's federally regulated process 

waste stream/streams, immediately after treatment, is/are monitored for 
compliance with federally imposed discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(3) "002" - a sample point whereby all process waste streams (non- 

categorical), excluding domestic, from a facility are monitored for 
compliance with local discharge limitations. 

 
 

(zz) Septic Tank Waste: Any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical 
toilets, campers, trailers, and septic tanks. 

 
(aaa) Severe Property Damage: Substantial physical damage to property, damage to the 

treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and 
permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur 
in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic 
loss caused by delays in production. 

 
(bbb) Significant Industrial User (SIU): 

 
(1) A user subject to categorical pretreatment standards; or 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



8  

 

(2) A user that: 
 

(i) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day 
or more of process wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, 
noncontact cooling, and boiler blowdown wastewater); 

 
(ii) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five (5) percent or 

more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW treatment plant; or 

 
(iii) Is designated as such by the Agency on the basis that it has a 

reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any pretreatment standard or requirement. 

 
(3) Upon finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has 

no reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may at any 
time, on its own initiative or in response to a petition received from an 
Industrial User, and in accordance with procedures in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(6), 
determine that such User should not be considered a Significant Industrial 
User. 

 
(ccc) Significant Noncompliance: An industrial user is in significant noncompliance with 

applicable pretreatment requirements if any violation meets one or more of the 
following criteria: 

 
(1) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits defined here as those in 

which 66 percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, as 
defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l). 

 
(2) Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33 

percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period are equal to or exceed the product of the 
numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, 
as defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l) multiplied by the applicable TRC (TRC = 1.4 for 
BOD, TSS, fats, oil and grease and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH.) 

 
(3) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by 

40 CFR 403.3(l) (daily maximum, long-term average, instantaneous limit, or 
narrative standard) that the POTW determines has caused, alone or in 
combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass Through (including 
endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public). 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



9  

(4) Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to human 
health, welfare or to the environment or has resulted in the POTW's exercise 
of its emergency authority under paragraph (f)(1)(vi)(B) of 40 CFR 403.8 to halt 
or prevent such a discharge. 

 
(5) Failure to meet, within 90 days after the due date, a compliance schedule 

milestone contained in a local control mechanism or enforcement order for 
starting construction, completing construction or attaining final compliance. 

 
(6) Failure to provide, within 45 days after the due date, required reports such as 

baseline  monitoring  reports,  90-day  compliance  reports,  periodic self-
monitoring reports and reports on compliance with compliance schedules. 

 
(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

 
(8) Any other violation or group of violations, which may include a violation of Best 

Management Practices (BMPs), that the Agency determines will adversely 
affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment program. 

 
(ddd) Slug Load or Slug: Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which could cause 

a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in Section 2.01 of this ordinance. 
A Slug Discharge is any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but 
not limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge, that has a 
reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way 
violate the POTW's regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions. 

 
(eee) Stormwater: The runoff generated when precipitation from rain and snowmelt 

events flow over land or impervious surfaces without percolating into the ground. 
 

(fff) The District: Union Sanitary District. 
 

(ggg) Total Halogenated Organics (THO): Total halogenated organic pollutants identified 
in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water Act which are detectable by EPA 
approved methods. 

 
(hhh) Total Organics (TO): Total organic pollutants as specified by the Agency which are 

detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(iii) Total Toxic Organics (TTO): Total organic pollutants including polynuclear aromatic 
hydrocarbons (PAHs), but excluding pesticides, PCBs, and phenols, which are 
detectable by EPA approved methods. The TTO value is determined as the 
summation of all quantifiable values greater than 0.01 milligrams per liter for the 
regulated toxic organics. 

 
(jjj) Unpolluted Water: Water to which no constituent has been added, either intentionally 

or accidentally, which would render such water unacceptable to the 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



10  

agency having jurisdiction thereof for disposal to storm or natural drainages or 
directly to surface waters. 

 
(kkk) User: Any person that discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of wastewater 

into a community sewer. 
 

(lll) User Classification: A classification of user based on the latest edition of the Standard 
Industrial Classification (SIC) Manual prepared by the Executive Office of 
Management and Budget. 

 
(mmm) Waste: Includes sewage and any and all other waste substances, liquid, solid, 

gaseous, or radioactive, associated with human habitation, or of human or animal 
origin, or from any producing, manufacturing, or processing operation of whatever 
nature, including such waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to, 
and for purposes of, disposal. 

 
(nnn) Wastewater: Waste and water, whether treated or untreated, discharged into or 

permitted to enter a community sewer. 
 

(ooo) Wastewater Constituents and Characteristics: The individual chemical, physical, 
bacteriological and radiological parameters, including volume and flow rate and 
such other parameters that serve to define, classify or measure the contents, 
quality, quantity, and strength of wastewater. 

 
(ppp) Wastewater Discharge Permit: A legal document used as a control mechanism to 

ensure compliance with regulations that grants revocable permission to discharge 
wastewater to the sanitary sewer, including the following types of Wastewater 
Discharge Permit: 

 
Class I Permit  -  Issued to Significant Industrial Users both Categorical and 

Non-Categorical 
 

Class II Permit - Issued to Non-Significant Industrial Users. 
 

Class III Permit -  Issued to Industrial or Commercial Users determined by the 
Agency not to fall in the Class I or Class II categories. 

 
General Permit -  Similar to a Class III permit, issued to Industrial or 

Commercial User groups that perform similar functions or 
activities. 

 
Groundwater Permit - Issued for the discharge of treated groundwater from 

contaminated site remediation, excavation groundwater or 
potable water related projects. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



11  

Temporary Permit - Issued for single or short term (less than one year) 
discharges of wastewater or contaminated ground water. 

 
(qqq) Waters of the State: Any water, surface or underground, including saline waters 

within the boundaries of the state. 
 
 

1.03 Analytical and Sampling Methodology and Procedures 
 
 

(a) The method and procedures utilized for all analyses which are reported under the 
requirements of these regulations shall be as specified by the provisions of 40 CFR 
Part 136. 

 
(b) The methods and procedures utilized for all sampling performed and/or reported 

under the requirements of these regulation shall be as specified by the provisions 
of 40 CFR Part 136. 

 
(c) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the 

pollutant in question, sampling and analyses must be performed in accordance 
with procedures approved by the District or EPA. 

 
(d) Analytical data collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data 

obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period 
covered by the report and is representative of conditions occurring during the 
reporting period. 

 
 

Section 2 

REGULATIONS 

 
2.01 Sewer Use Requirements 

 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges 

 
(a) General Prohibitions: No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

POTW any pollutant or wastewater which causes Pass Through or Interference. 
These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the POTW whether or not they are 
subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other National, State or Local 
Pretreatment Standards or Requirements. 

 
(b) Specific Prohibitions: No user shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

community sewer system any pollutants, substances, or wastewater which cause, 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



12  

threaten to cause, or are capable of causing, either alone or by interaction with other 
substances: 

 
(1) a fire or explosion, including but not limited to discharges with a closed cup 

flashpoint of less than 140° F (60° C) using the test methods specified in 
40CFR261.21; 

 
(2) obstruction of flow in a sewer system or injury of the system or damage to the 

wastewater collection, treatment, or disposal facilities; 
 

(3) danger to life or safety of personnel; 
 

(4) a nuisance or prevention of the effective maintenance or operation of the sewer 
system, through having a strong, unpleasant odor; 

 
(5) air pollution by the release of toxic or malodorous gases or malodorous gas- 

producing substances; 
 

(6) interference with the wastewater treatment process; and/or pass through of any 
pollutant which causes a violation of the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit; 

 
(7) the Agency's effluent or any other product of the treatment process, residues, 

sludges, or scums, to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with 
the reclamation process; 

 
(8) a detrimental environmental impact or a nuisance in the waters of the state or a 

condition unacceptable to any public agency having regulatory jurisdiction over 
the Agency; 

 
(9) discoloration or any other condition in the quality of the Agency's treatment 

works effluent in such a manner that receiving water quality requirements 
established by law cannot be met; 

 
(10) conditions at or near the Agency's treatment works which violate any statute or 

any rule, regulation, or ordinance of any public agency or state or federal 
regulatory body; 

 
(11) quantities or rates of flow which overload the Agency's collection or treatment 

facilities or cause excessive Agency collection or treatment costs, or may use a 
disproportionate share of the Agency facilities; 

 
(12) the evolution of toxic gases, fumes, or vapors in quantities injurious to the health 

and safety of Agency personnel; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



13  

(13) the temperature at the treatment plant headworks to exceed 104o F (40oC) or 
temperature which will inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting 
in Interference; 

 
(14) wastewater having a pH less than 5.0 or greater than 12.0, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment; 
 

(15) an exceedance of the permitted Mass Limit Rate established in the Local Limits 
or discharge permits; or 

 
(16) settlement of materials or obstruction to flow resulting in interference, such as, 

but not limited to, sand, mud, glass, metal, filings, diatomaceous earth, cat litter, 
asphalt, wood, bones, hair, fleshings, food packaging, product containers and 
non-dispersible products. 

 
 

2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community sewer: 
 

(a) Pollutants, including oxygen-demanding pollutants (for example, COD), released in 
a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which, either singly or by 
interaction with other pollutants, will cause interference with the POTW; 

 
(b) Wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except in compliance with 

applicable State or Federal regulations; 
 

(c) Sludges, screenings, or other residues (solid or liquid) from the pretreatment of 
industrial wastes; 

 
(d) Medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Agency; 

 
(e) All prescription and non-prescription (over the counter) pharmaceutical drugs or 

medications; 
 

(f) Wastewater causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, the treatment 
plant's effluent to fail a toxicity test; 

 
(g) Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances which may cause excessive 

foaming in the POTW; 
 

(h) Wastewater containing pesticides, dioxins and dioxin-like compounds, and/or 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB) at levels detectable by EPA approved methods; 

 
(i) Hazardous wastes or materials, as defined by California Code of Regulations Title 

22 or Subtitles C and D of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



14  

Pollutants, substances, or wastewater prohibited by this section shall not be processed 
or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the POTW. 

 
 

2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam Fillings 
 

(a) All owners and operators of dental facilities that remove or place amalgam fillings 
shall comply with the following waste management practices: 

 
(1) No person shall rinse chair-side traps, vacuum screens, or amalgam separator 

equipment in a sink or other connection to the community sewer per 
40CFR441.30(b)(1). Such traps, vacuum screens or amalgam separator 
equipment must be recycled or disposed of in an appropriate manner according 
to recycler or equipment manufacturer. 

 
(2) Amalgam waste and other hazardous solutions shall be properly collected, 

packaged, labeled, stored, managed, and disposed. 
 

(3) Dental unit water lines, chair-side traps, and vacuum lines that discharge 
amalgam process wastewater to a community sewer must not be cleaned with 
oxidizing or acidic cleaners, including but not limited to bleach, chlorine, iodine 
and peroxide that have a pH lower than 6 or greater than 8 per 
40CFR441.30(b)(2). 

 
(4) Owners and operators of dental facilities shall ensure that all staff members who 

handle amalgam waste are trained in the proper handling, management and 
disposal of mercury-containing material and other hazardous solutions and shall 
maintain training records that will be made available for inspection by an 
employee of the District during normal business hours. 

 
(5) The use of bulk mercury is prohibited. Only pre-capsulated dental amalgam is 

allowed. 
 

(b) All owners and operators of dental vacuum suction systems, except as set forth in 
subsection (c) of this section, shall comply with the following: 

 
(1) Install amalgam separator device compliant with 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) 

or 40CFR441.40 (new offices). Amalgam separator device must achieve at least 
a 95 percent removal efficiency. No bypass of separator device or related 
plumbing shall be allowed. 

 
(2) Per 40CFR441.50, a One-Time Compliance Report must be submitted to the 

District from existing offices by no later than October 12, 2020, or 90 days after 
a transfer of ownership. For new offices, a One-Time Compliance Report must 
be submitted to the District no later than 90 days following the introduction of 
wastewater into the community sewer. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



15  

 

(3) Amalgam separators shall be installed, operated and maintained in accordance 
with manufacturer recommendations per 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) or 
40CFR441.40 (new offices). 

 
(4) Dental Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain for a minimum of three years and make available for immediate 
inspection the following documentation per 40CFR441.50(b): 

 
•  Documentation of the date, person(s) conducting the inspection, and results 

of each inspection of the amalgam separator(s) and a summary of follow-up 
actions, if needed. 

 
• Documentation of amalgam retaining container replacement (including 

installation date, as applicable). 
 

• Documentation of all dates that collected dental amalgam is picked up or 
shipped for proper disposal in accordance with 40 CFR 261.5(g)(3), and the 
name of the permitted or licensed treatment, storage or disposal facility 
receiving the amalgam waste. 

 
• Documentation of any repair or replacement of an amalgam separator, 

including the date, person(s) making the repair or replacement, and a 
description of the repair or replacement (including make and model). 

 
• Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain and make available for inspection in either physical or electronic form 
the manufacturers operating manual for the current device. 

 
(c) Specialty dental offices where the practice of dentistry consists exclusively of one or 

more of the following are exempt from this requirement (Section 2.02) per 
40CFR441.10(c), provided that the District receives written certification that removal 
or placement of amalgam fillings does not take place: 

 
• Orthodontics 
• Periodontics 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Radiology 
• Oral Pathology or Oral Medicine 
• Prosthodontics 

 
 

2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater 
 

Storm water, groundwater, rainwater, street drainage, subsurface drainage or yard 
drainage shall not be discharged through direct or indirect connections to a community 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



16  

sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The Agency may approve the discharge 
of such water at its discretion and only when no reasonable alternative method of disposal 
is available. 

 
If the permit is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the user 
shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as required by 
the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be considered a 
Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge limitations or 
prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the discharge at any 
time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual basis. 

 
 

2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Remediation Projects 
 

Wastewater generated from the cleanup of spills, leaking underground storage tanks, 
groundwater remediation, monitoring wells, excavation groundwater, potable water 
projects or other similar sources shall not be discharged through direct or indirect 
connections to a community sewer unless a discharge permit is issued by the Agency. 
The Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If a discharge permit is granted for the discharge of such water into the community sewer, 
the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as 
required by the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be 
considered a Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge 
limitations or prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the 
discharge at any time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual 
basis. 

 
 

2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water 
 

Unpolluted water, including but not limited to cooling water, process water, or blow-down 
from cooling towers or evaporative coolers, will not be discharged through direct or 
indirect connection to a community sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The 
Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion and only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If authorization is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the 
user shall pay the applicable user charges and fees and shall meet such other 
requirements and/or conditions as required by the Agency. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



17  

2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes 
 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any radioactive waste into a 
community sewer except: 

 
(a) when a person is authorized to use radioactive materials by the State Department 

of Health or other governmental agency empowered to regulate the use of 
radioactive materials; and 

 
(b) when the waste is discharged in strict conformity with the requirements of the United 

States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the United States Department of Energy, 
and/or the California Radiation Control Regulations; and 

 
(c) when the person is in compliance with all rules and regulations of all other applicable 

regulatory agencies. 
 
 

2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders 
Waste from garbage grinders, food waste liquefiers, aerobic and anaerobic bio-digesters, 
food composters and similar devices shall not be discharged into the community sewer 
excepts as approved in writing by the Agency. 

 
Garbage grinders and similar devices shall not be used for grinding plastic, paper 
products, inert materials, or garden refuse. 

 
 

2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge 
 

No person shall discharge any substances directly into a manhole or other opening in a 
community sewer other than through an approved building sewer unless, upon written 
application by the user and payment of the applicable user charges and fees, the Agency 
issues a permit for such direct discharges. 

 
 

2.09 Waste Holding Tanks, Vessels and Containers 
 

No person shall discharge any holding tank or vessel waste into a community sewer 
unless a wastewater discharge permit is issued by the Agency. Unless otherwise allowed 
by the Agency under the terms and conditions of the permit, a separate permit must be 
secured for each separate discharge. This permit may state the specific location of 
discharge, the time of day the discharge is to occur, the volume of the discharge and the 
wastewater constituents and characteristics. If a permit is granted for discharge of such 
waste into a community sewer, the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and 
shall meet such other conditions as required by the Agency. An exception to the above is 
that no permit will be required for discharge of domestic wastes from mobile home holding 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



18  

tanks provided that such discharges are made into an Agency approved facility designed 
to receive such wastes. 

 
 

2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength 
 

(a) The Manager is authorized to establish Local Limits or Best Management Practices 
(BMP's) pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). 

 
(b) The following pollutant limits are established to protect against Pass Through and 

Interference. 
 

(1) The following limits are maximum allowable discharge limits (the maximum 
concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined 
from the analysis of any discrete or composite sample collected, independent of 
the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event). Limits for metals 
are for total recoverable metals. 

 
No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

 
Arsenic 0.35 mg/L 
Cadmium 0.2 mg/L 
Copper 2.0 mg/L 
Cyanide 0.65 mg/L 
Lead 1.0 mg/L 
Mercury 0.01 mg/L 
Nickel 1.0 mg/L 
Silver 0.5 mg/L 
Total Chromium 2.0 mg/L 
Zinc 3.0 mg/L 
TTO 2.13 mg/L 
Formaldehyde 50.0 mg/L 
Phenolics 5.0 mg/L 

 
(2) No person shall discharge wastewater: 

 
(A) having a temperature higher than 150° F (65.5° C), or any thermal discharge 

which as a result of temperature and/or volume causes the influent of the 
wastewater treatment plant to exceed 104° F (40° C); 

 
(B) containing more than 300 mg/L of oil or grease of animal or vegetable origin, 

unless specifically approved by the District. The District may approve, on a 
case by case basis, a modification to the analytical method if the discharger 
can demonstrate that constituents in their wastewater interfere with the 
freon extraction, hexane extraction or current EPA approved procedure and 
have no negative impact on the POTW and/or receiving waters. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



19  

 

(C) containing more than 100 mg/L of oil or grease of mineral or petroleum 
origin; 

 
(D) having a pH lower than 6.0 or higher than 12.0 units, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment, 
unless specifically approved by the District. Under no circumstances will a 
pH of less than 5.0 or higher than 12.5 pH units be approved. 

 
(3) The following limits for ammonia are maximum allowable average 

concentrations. Limits are for total ammonia expressed as nitrogen. Limits are 
tiered based on average daily flow, which is the arithmetic average of the 
permitted industrial user's daily flows for the preceding calendar year and is 
equivalent to the flow rate used in establishing sewer service charges: 

 
Average Daily Flow Ammonia Limit 

 
<10,000 gallons per day (gpd) 225 mg/L as N 
10,000 - 25,000 gpd 150 mg/L as N 
>25,000 gpd 75 mg/L as N 

 
Compliance determination shall be based on the average of all valid and 
representative analyses occurring within a 6-month period 

 
For industrial users holding permits issued prior to January 1, 2014, the 
Manager may issue compliance schedules for ammonia as described in 
Sections 6.09 and 6.10. In no case may these compliance schedules exceed 
5 years. All new permitted industrial users must comply with these limits upon 
initial discharge. 

 
(4) Additional Limits 

 
Limits for pollutants not listed in this section 2.10 may be established in a 
wastewater discharge permit based on available treatment technology, existing 
wastewater conditions in the District's facilities or other factors determined by 
the Manager. The Manager may also establish wastewater strength limits on 
the wastewater discharge permits at locations within a premises whenever non- 
process water many dilute wastewater discharging from side sewers. 

 
(c) National Categorical Standards, found in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 

405-471, as may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated into these 
regulations. Effluent limitations promulgated by the Clean Water Act shall apply in 
any instance where they are more stringent than those in these regulations. 

 
(d) Additional limits specific to the discharge of groundwater or surface water. No 

person shall discharge groundwater or surface water in excess of: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



20  

 

Total Halogenated Organics (THO) 0.02mg/L 
Total Organics  2.0 mg/L 

 
 

2.10.1 Mass Limit Rate Determination 
 

(a) Mass Limit Rates for non-compatible or compatible pollutants that are present or 
anticipated in the User's wastewater discharge may be set for each User and made 
an applicable part of each User's wastewater discharge permit. These rates shall be 
based on Maximum Allowable Local Discharge Limits, Federal Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards, the User's average daily wastewater discharge for the past 
three years, the most recent representative data, or other data or factors determined 
by the Manager 

 
(b) To verify the User's operating data, the User may be required to submit an inventory 

of all wastewater streams and/or records indicating production rates. 
 

(c) The District may revise limits or Mass Limit Rates previously established in the User's 
permit at any time, based on current or anticipated operating data of the User or the 
District the District's ability to meet NPDES limits, or changes in the requirements of 
regulatory agencies. 

 
(d) The excess use of water to establish artificially high flow rate for the Mass Limit Rate 

determination is prohibited. 
 
 

2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges 
 

No user shall discharge any pollutant, including oxygen-demanding pollutants, at a flow 
rate and/or pollutant concentration which causes or threatens to cause interference with 
the wastewater treatment process. For the purposes of this section, any discharge at a 
flow rate or concentration which could cause a violation of the prohibited discharge 
standards or limitations in Section 2 of this ordinance shall be deemed a slug discharge. 

 
 

2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution 
 

Except where expressly authorized to do so by an applicable pretreatment standard or 
requirement, no user shall increase the use of process water, or in any other way attempt 
to dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate pretreatment to 
achieve compliance with a pretreatment standard, requirement or discharge limitation. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



21  

2.13 Prohibition of Bypass 
 

(a) Bypass of pretreatment equipment and/or discharge points is prohibited and the 
Agency may take enforcement action against any user for bypass unless: 

 
(1) bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage; 
 

(2) there were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 
treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal 
periods of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate 
backup equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable 
engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods 
of equipment downtime or preventative maintenance; and 

 
(3) the industrial user submits the following notices: 

 
(i) If an Industrial User knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall 

submit prior notice to the Agency, if possible at least ten days before the 
date of the bypass. 

 
(ii) An Industrial User shall submit oral notice of an unanticipated bypass that 

exceeds applicable Pretreatment Standards to the Agency within 24 hours 
from the time the Industrial User becomes aware of the bypass. A written 
submission shall also be provided within 5 days of the time the Industrial 
User becomes aware of the bypass. The written submission shall contain a 
description of the bypass and its cause; the duration of the bypass, including 
exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the 
anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken 
or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. 
The Agency may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral 
report has been received within 24 hours. 

 
(b) The Agency may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse 

effects, if the Agency determines that it will meet the three conditions specified in 
part (a) of this section. 

 
 

2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Chemical Solutions and Sludges 
 

No user shall, without prior written approval of the Agency, discharge any unused or waste 
chemical solutions to the community sewer. For the purposes of this section, such 
materials include, but are not limited to, concentrated solutions utilized within any 
commercial or industrial operation, containerized liquids of any description, spoiled or 
otherwise unusable raw materials of any description, or spoiled or otherwise unusable 
products of any description. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



22  

The Agency may approve the discharge of such wastes at its sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 

2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing Pass-through 
or Interference 

 
Notwithstanding the provisions of section 2.10(b), no user may discharge petroleum oil, 
non-biodegradable cutting oil or other products of mineral origin in any amount that 
causes interference or pass-through. 

 
 

2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes 
 

The discharge of any trucked or otherwise hauled wastes to the sanitary sewer system is 
prohibited except as the Agency may permit under the provisions of section 2.09. 

 
 

2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas 
 

The discharge of waste (solid or liquid), wastewater or chemicals from a chemical storage 
containment area is prohibited unless expressly authorized by the Agency. 

 
 

2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections 
 

Unapproved connections to the community sewer are strictly prohibited. 
Any building sewers that have not been permitted, inspected, or where capacity and/or 
current sewer service charges have not been paid, are subject to the conditions of 
Ordinance 34, Article 2, Section 7, Connection of Building Drains. 

 
 

Section 3 
 

WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 
 
 

3.01 Application 
 

Section 3 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 
 
 

3.02 Metered Water Supply 
 

User charges and fees shall be applied against the total amount of water used from all 
sources unless, in the opinion of the Agency, significant portions of water received are 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



23  

not discharged to a community sewer. The total amount of water used from public and 
private sources will be determined by means of public meters or private meters, installed 
and maintained at the expense of the user and approved by the Agency. 

 
(a) Metered Wastewater Volume and Metered Diversions. For users where, in the 

opinion of the Agency, a significant portion of the water received from any metered 
source does not flow into a community sewer because of the principal activity of the 
user or removal by other means, the user charges and fees will be applied against 
the volume of water discharged from such premises into a community sewer. Written 
notification and proof of the diversion of water must be provided by the user if the 
user is to avoid the application of the user charges and fees against the total amount 
of water used from all sources. The user may install a meter of a type and at a 
location approved by the Agency and at the user's expense. Such meters may 
measure either the amount of sewage discharged or the amount water diverted. 
Such meters shall be tested for accuracy at the expense of the user when deemed 
necessary by the Manager. 

 
(b) Users With Source Meters. For users who, in the opinion of the Agency, divert a 

significant portion of their metered water supply from a community sewer, the user 
charges may be based upon an estimate of the volume to be discharged, provided 
the user obtains authorization from the agency and pays the applicable user charges 
and fees. The estimate must include the method and calculations used to determine 
the wastewater volume and may consider such factors as the number of fixtures, 
seating capacity, population equivalents, annual production of goods and services, 
or such other determinations of water use necessary to estimate the wastewater 
volume discharged. 

 
(c) Users Without Source Meters. The agency may require the installation of water 

meters; however, for users where, in the opinion of the Agency, it is unnecessary or 
impractical to install meters, the quantity of wastewater may be based upon an 
estimate prepared by the Agency. This estimate shall be based upon a rational 
determination of the wastewater discharged and may consider such factors as the 
number of fixtures, seating capacity, population equivalent, annual production of 
goods and services, or such other determinants of water use necessary to estimate 
the wastewater volume discharged. 

 
 

Section 4 

ADMINISTRATION 

 
4.01 Application 

 
Section 4 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



24  

 

4.02 Discharge Reports 
 

(a) The Agency, or the Authority through the Agency, may require that any person 
discharging or proposing to discharge wastewater into a community sewer file a 
periodic discharge report. The discharge report may include, but not be limited to, 
nature of process, volume, rates of flow, mass emission rate, production quantities, 
hours of operation, number and classification of employees, or other information 
which relates to the generation of waste including wastewater constituents and 
characteristics in the wastewater discharge and sample analysis demonstrating 
compliance with Section 2. Such reports may also include the chemical constituents 
and quantity of liquid or gaseous materials stored on site even though they may not 
normally be discharged. 

 
(b) The agency may prohibit, authorize or condition any discharge into the sanitary 

sewer in accordance with this ordinance and applicable state and federal 
regulations, whether or not a Discharge Permit is issued. 

 
(c) Acceptance of any new discharge is contingent on available capacity in the collection 

system and/or treatment plant, as determined by the District Engineering Division 
and Operations Department. 

 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Permits 
 

4.03.1 Class I Permits. All significant industrial users (SIU), as defined in Section 1.02 
(bbb), must have a current Class I Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

 
Each new SIU, if not connected to a community sewer, must obtain a Class I Wastewater 
Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a community sewer. 

 
Any user currently connected to the community sewer who in the future is deemed to be 
an SIU shall be required to obtain a Class I permit. User will be required to pay all 
applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.2 Class II Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I Permit, yet require some sampling and regular monitoring of 
wastewater discharge, if connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a 
Class II Wastewater Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a 
community sewer. User will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the 
Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.3 Class III Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I or II permit, yet have a wastewater discharge that the Agency 
may decide requires oversight due to potential risks associated with said discharge, if 
connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a Class III wastewater 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



25  

discharge permit before connecting to or discharging into the community sewer. User will 
be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 
Class III permits may include General permits or any other as determined by the Manager. 

 
4.03.4 Temporary and/or Groundwater Permits. Users who, as determined by the 
Agency, do not fall within the requirements for a Class I, II, or III permit, yet have a 
wastewater discharge that the Agency may decide requires oversight due to potential 
risks associated with said discharge if connected to the community sewer. Temporary 
permits will be issued for one time, or for a discharge period not to exceed one year. User 
will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
The Manager may modify wastewater discharge requirements for the following types of 
facilities: 

 
(a) Industrial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge with no treatment (beyond 

simple filtration) in place and do not require routine monitoring or inspection. 
 

(b) Commercial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge that may have detectable 
amounts of one or more priority or conventional pollutants present in their waste 
stream. The Agency may require some level of treatment at such facilities, however, 
do not require routine monitoring or inspection. (Examples: dentists, photo 
processors, printers, and restaurants.) 

 
 

4.04 Permit Application 
 

Users seeking a Wastewater Discharge Permit shall complete and file with the Manager 
an application in the form prescribed by the Manager and accompanied by the applicable 
fees. The applicant may be required to submit, in units and terms appropriate for 
evaluation, the following information: 

 
(a) name, address, and SIC number of applicant; 

 
(b) volume of wastewater to be discharged; 

 
(c) sampling of wastewater to determine constituents and characteristics including, but 

not limited to, those listed in Section 2.10 as determined by a laboratory approved 
by the Agency; 

 
(d) time and duration of discharge; 

 
(e) average and 30-minute peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly, and 

seasonal variations, if any; 
 

(f) site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all 
sewers and appurtenances by function, size, location, and elevation; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



26  

 

(g) Description of activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises, including a 
list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the facility which are, or could 
accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW; 

 
(h) each product produced by type, amount, and rate of production; 

 
(i) number and type of employees, and hours of work; 

 
(j) description of wastewater treatment system(s), and/or procedures, including system 

design, piping, layout, hydraulic and pollutant removal capacity, design criteria, 
calibration and maintenance procedures, alarm systems, sample points, treatment 
chemicals, excursion response procedures, and any other information necessary to 
evaluate the adequacy and appropriateness of the treatment system and/or 
procedures. 

 
(k) management plans, including any or all of the following: solvent management plan, 

best management practice plan, slug control plan, hazardous materials 
management plan, emergency/violation response plan, and/or pollution prevention 
plan. 

 
(l) any other information as may be deemed by the Manager to be necessary to 

evaluate the permit application. 
 

The Manager will evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional 
information. After evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the Manager may 
issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit subject to terms and conditions provided herein. 

 
 

4.05 Permit Conditions 
 

Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be expressly subject to all provisions of these 
regulations and all other regulations, user charges, and fees established by the Agency. 
The conditions of Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be uniformly enforced by the 
Manager in accordance with these regulations, and applicable state and federal 
regulations. Permits may contain the following: 

 
(a) A statement that indicates the duration of the wastewater discharge permit; 

 
(b) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior 

notification to the Agency in accordance with Section 4.08 of this ordinance; 
 

(c) Effluent Limits, including Best Management Practices (BMPs), based on applicable 
pretreatment standards; 

(d) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping requirements. 
These  requirements  shall  include  an  identification  of  pollutants  (or  Best 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



27  

Management Practices) to be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, 
and sample type based on Federal, State, and local law. 

 
(e) A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment 

Standards and Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such 
schedule may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable 
Federal, State, or local law; 

 
(f) Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, and/or 

requirements for flow regulation and equalization; 
 

(g) The unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees for the wastewater to be 
discharged to a community sewer; 

 
(h) The average and maximum wastewater constituent concentrations and 

characteristics; 
 

(i) Limits on rate and time of discharge or requirements for flow regulations and 
equalization; 

 
(j) Requirements for installation of inspection and sampling facilities; 

 
(k) Pretreatment requirements; 

 
(l) Specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, 

frequency and method of sampling, number, types and standards for tests, reporting 
schedules, and Best Management Practices; 

 
(m) Requirements for submission of technical reports, self-monitoring reports, or 

discharge reports, including, but not limited to baseline monitoring reports, 
compliance schedule progress reports, reports of compliance with categorical 
pretreatment standard deadlines, periodic reports of continued compliance, or any 
report required by 40 CFR 403.12, and/or any other reports as required by the 
Agency; 

 
(n) Requirements for maintaining plant records relating to wastewater discharge as 

specified by the Agency, and affording Agency access thereto; 
 

(o) Mean and maximum mass emission rates, or other appropriate limits when 
incompatible pollutants (as defined by section 1.02(ee)) are proposed or presented 
in the user's wastewater discharge; 

 
(p) Notification requirements; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



28  

(q) Requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or other 
special conditions including management practices necessary to adequately prevent 
accidental, unanticipated, or non-routine discharges; 

 
(r) Development and implementation of pollution prevention plans to reduce the amount 

of pollutants discharged to the POTW; 
 

(s) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Agency to insure compliance with 
these regulations; 

 
(t) Requirements to control Slug Discharges, if determined by the Agency to be 

necessary. 
 
 

4.06 Duration of Permits 
 

Permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five years. A permit may 
be issued for a period less than one year or may be stated to expire on a specific date. 
The terms and conditions of the permit may be subject to modification and change by the 
Agency during the life of the permit. The user shall be informed of any proposed changes 
in his or her permit at least 30 days prior to the effective date of change. Any changes or 
new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule for compliance. 

 
 

4.07 Modification of Permits 
 

The Agency may modify an individual/general wastewater discharge permit for good 
cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons: 

 
(1) To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment 

Standards or Requirements; 
 

(2) To address significant alterations or additions to the User's operation, processes, or 
wastewater volume or character since the time of the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit issuance; 

 
(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or 

elimination of the authorized discharge; 
 

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the Agency's 
POTW, Agency personnel, the beneficial use of the Agency's bio-solids, or the 
receiving waters; 

 
(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the individual/general wastewater discharge 

permit; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



29  

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 
discharge permit application or in any required reporting; 

 
(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant 

to 40 CFR 403.13; 
 

(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit; or 

 
(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner or operator 

where requested in accordance with Section 4.08. 
 
 

4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer 
 

Wastewater discharge permits may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the 
permittee gives at least thirty (30) days advance notice to the Agency and the Agency 
approves the wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Agency must 
include a written certification by the new owner or operator which: 

 
(a) States that the new owner and/or operator has no immediate intent to change the 

facility's operations and processes; 
 

(b) Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur; and 
 

(c) Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing wastewater 
discharge permit. 

 
Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the wastewater discharge permit 
void as of the date of facility transfer. 

 
 

4.09 Revocation of Permit 
 

Any user who violates the following conditions of the permit or any conditions of these 
regulations, or applicable state and federal regulations may be subject to permit 
revocation: 

 
(a) failure of the user to factually report the wastewater constituents and characteristics 

of his or her discharge; 
 

(b) violations of conditions of the permit. 
 

(c) Failure to notify the Agency of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the 
changed discharge; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



30  

(d) Failure to provide prior notification to the Agency of changed conditions pursuant to 
Section 4.19 of this ordinance; 

 
(e) Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 

discharge permit application; 
 

(f) Falsifying self-monitoring reports; 
 

(g) Tampering with monitoring equipment; 
 

(h) Refusing to allow the Agency personnel timely access to the facility premises and 
records; 

 
(i) Failure to meet effluent limitations; 

 
(j) Failure to pay fines; 

 
(k) Failure to pay sewer charges, 

 
(l) Failure to meet compliance schedules; 

 
(m) Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit 

application; 
 

(n) Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a 
permitted facility; or 

 
(o) Violation of any pretreatment standard or requirement, or any terms of the 

wastewater discharge permit or this ordinance. 
 
 

4.10 Monitoring Facilities 
 

The Agency may require the user to construct at his or her own expense, monitoring 
facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the building sewer or 
internal drainage systems and may also require sampling or metering equipment to be 
provided, installed, and operated at the user's expense. The monitoring facility should 
normally be situated on the user's premises; but the Agency may, when such a location 
would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the user, allow the facility to be 
constructed in the public street or sidewalk area with the approval of the public agency 
having jurisdiction over that street or sidewalk, and located so that it will not be obstructed 
by landscaping or parked vehicles. 

 
If the monitoring facility is inside the user's fence, there shall be accommodations to allow 
access for Agency personnel, such as a gate secured with an Agency lock. There shall 
be ample room in or near such sampling manhole to allow accurate sampling and 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



31  

compositing of samples for analysis. The manhole, sampling, and measuring equipment 
shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense 
of the user. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the 
facility to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the 
written or oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing 
such access shall be borne by the user. 
Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring facilities 
shall be provided in accordance with the Agency's requirements and all applicable local 
agency construction standards and specifications. Construction shall be completed within 
90 days following written notification by the Agency unless a time extension is otherwise 
granted by the Agency. 

 
 

4.11 Inspection and Sampling 
 

The Agency may inspect the facilities of any user to ascertain whether the purpose of 
these regulations is being met and all requirements are being complied with. Persons or 
occupants of premises where wastewater is created or discharged shall allow the Agency 
or its representative ready access at all reasonable times to all parts of the premises for 
the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination and copying, or in the 
performance of any of their duties. The Agency shall have the right to set up on the user's 
property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling or metering operations. 
Where a user has security measures in force which would require proper identification 
and clearance before entry into their premises, the user shall make necessary 
arrangements with their security personnel so that, upon presentation of suitable 
identification, personnel from the Agency will be permitted to enter without delay for the 
purposes of performing their specific responsibilities. Agency personnel will not be 
required to sign release forms prior to entry and may take appropriate photographs as 
necessary to document compliance and/or non-compliance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility 
to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the written or 
oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access 
shall be borne by the user. Unreasonable delays in allowing the Manager access to the 
user's premises shall be a violation of this ordinance. 

 
 

4.12 Search Warrants 
 

If the Manager has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part 
thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation 
of this ordinance, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine 
inspection and sampling program of the Agency designed to verify compliance with this 
ordinance or any permit or order issued here under, or to protect the overall public health, 
safety and welfare of the community, then the Manager may seek issuance of an 
inspection warrant and/or a search warrant. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



32  

4.13 Pretreatment 
 

Users shall make wastewater acceptable under the limitations established herein before 
discharging to any community sewer. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a 
level acceptable to the Agency shall be provided and maintained at the user's expense. 
Detailed plans showing the pretreatment facilities, design criteria and operating 
procedures shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall be acceptable to the 
Agency before construction of the facility. The review of such plans, design criteria, and 
operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from the responsibility of modifying 
the facility as necessary to produce an effluent acceptable to the Agency under the 
provisions of these regulations. Any subsequent changes in the pretreatment facilities or 
method of operation shall be reported to and be acceptable to the Agency. 

 
 

4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge 
 

Each user shall provide protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or 
other wastes regulated by these regulations. Such facilities shall be provided and 
maintained at the user's expense. Detailed plans showing facilities and operating 
procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall 
be acceptable to the Agency before construction of the facility. 

 
The review of such plans and operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from 
the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to provide the protection 
necessary to meet the requirements of this section. 

 

4.15 Confidential Information 
 

Information and data on a user obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge 
permit applications, wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from 
the Agency's inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without 
restriction, unless the user specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Manager, that the release of such information would divulge 
information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets 
under applicable State and/or Federal law. Any such request must be asserted at the time 
of submission of the information or data. When requested and demonstrated by the user 
furnishing a report that such information should be held confidential, the portions of a 
report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available 
for inspection by the public but shall be made available immediately to the EPA upon 
request. Such information will also be made available immediately upon request to other 
governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or pretreatment program, 
and in enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater 
constituents and characteristics and other "effluent data" as defined by 40 CFR 2.302 will 
not be recognized as confidential information and will be available to the public without 
restriction. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



33  

4.16 Signature Requirement 
 

(a) All reports and/or permit applications received and/or required under these 
regulations shall be signed: 

 
(1) By a responsible corporate officer, if the user submitting the reports is a 

corporation. For the purpose of this paragraph, a responsible corporate officer 
means: 

 
(i) a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice president of the corporation in 

charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs 
similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation, or; 

(ii) the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating 
facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management 
decisions which govern the operation of the regulated facility including 
having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment 
recommendations, and initiate and direct other comprehensive measures 
to assure long-term environmental compliance with environmental laws 
and regulations; can ensure that the necessary systems are established 
or actions taken to gather complete and accurate information for control 
mechanism requirements; and where authority to sign documents has 
been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate 
procedures. 

 
(2) By a general partner or proprietor if the user submitting the reports is a 

partnership or sole proprietorship, respectively. 
 

(3) By a duly authorized representative of the individual designated in paragraph 
(1) or (2); 

 
(i) The authorization is made in writing by the individual designated in 

paragraph (1) or (2); 
 

(ii) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having 
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility from which the 
industrial discharge originates, such as the position of plant manager, 
operator of a well, or well field superintendent, or a position of equivalent 
responsibility, or having overall responsibility for environmental matters 
for the company; and 

 
(iii) The written authorization is submitted to the Agency. 

 
(4) If an authorization under paragraph (3) of this section is no longer accurate 

because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall 
operation of the facility, or overall responsibility for environmental matters for 
the company, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of paragraph (3) 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



34  

of this section must be submitted to the Agency prior to or together with any 
reports to be signed by an authorized representative. 

 
(b) Reports and applications must include the following certification statement: 

 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure 
that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those 
persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted 
is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 

 
 

4.17 Retention of Records 
 

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make 
available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any 
monitoring activities required by this ordinance, any additional records of information 
obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent of such 
requirements, and documentation associated with Best Management Practices 
established under Section 2.10(a), including but not limited to discharge reports, permits, 
self-monitoring data, pretreatment system process control logs, and relevant 
correspondence (whether or not required by these regulations). All records must be 
maintained by the user for a period of not less than three (3) years. All such records shall 
be made available for inspection and copying by a duly authorized representative of the 
Agency or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction. The retention period may be 
extended in the case of unresolved litigation or at any time at the request of the Agency, 
the State or US EPA. 

 
 

4.18 Notices to Employees 
 

In order that employees of users be informed of Agency requirements, users shall make 
available to their employees copies of these regulations together with such other 
wastewater information and notices which may be furnished by the Agency from time to 
time directed toward more effective water pollution control. A notice shall be furnished 
and permanently posted on the user's bulletin board advising employees whom to call in 
case of an accidental discharge in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.19 Preventive Measures 
 

Any direct or indirect connection or entry point for persistent or deleterious wastes to the 
user's plumbing or drainage system should be eliminated. Where such action is 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



35  

impractical or unreasonable, the user shall appropriately label such entry points to warn 
against discharge of such wastes in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions 
 

Each user must notify the Agency of any planned significant changes to the user's 
operations or system which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater 
discharge prior to implementation of said change. 

 
(a) The Manager may require the user to submit such information as may be deemed 

necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a 
wastewater discharge permit application under Section 4.04 of this ordinance. 

 
(b) The Manager may issue a wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.03 of this 

ordinance or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.06 of 
this ordinance in response to changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions. 

 
(c) For purposes of this requirement, significant changes include, but are not limited to, 

significant flow increases or decreases (greater than 25%), modification of any 
pretreatment system, bypass of any portion of the pretreatment system, installation or 
removal of process tanks or equipment, discharge of any previously unreported 
pollutants, and the closure of a facility due to purchase by another party, relocation, 
changed business conditions, or other factor affecting the continued operation of the 
facility. 

 
 

4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge 
 

(a) All industrial users discharging any substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would 
be a hazardous or acutely hazardous waste under 40 CFR 261, must comply with 
the reporting requirements of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(1) and (3) unless exempted under 
the provisions of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(2). 

 
(b) In the case of any notification made under section (a) above, the industrial user shall 

certify that it has a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous 
wastes generated to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. The 
Agency may accept a copy of a hazardous waste reduction or minimization plan as 
otherwise required by law. 

 
(c) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not otherwise 

permitted to be discharged by this ordinance, a permit issued thereunder, or any 
applicable Federal or State law. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



36  

4.22 Special Agreements 
 

Special agreements and arrangements between the Agency and any persons or agencies 
may be established when, in the opinion of the Agency, unusual or extraordinary 
circumstances compel special terms and conditions. Under no circumstances, however, 
will any special agreement or arrangement be established which contravenes any federal 
pretreatment regulation, categorical pretreatment standard, or any other provision of state 
or federal law. 

 
 

4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW 
 

All SIU's shall notify the Manager immediately of any slug loading, as defined by 40 CFR 
403.5(b), or any other discharge that could adversely affect the POTW. 

 
 

4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements 
 

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained 
through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the 
report, based on data that is representative of conditions occurring during the reporting 
period. 

 
(a) Except as indicated in Sections (b) or (c) below, the User must collect wastewater 

samples using 24-hour flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time- 
proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District. Where 
time-proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District, 
the samples must be representative of the discharge. Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and appropriate EPA 
guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be composited 
prior to the analysis as follows: for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides, the samples 
may be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and 
grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples for 
other parameters unaffected by the compositing procedures as documented in 
approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by District, as appropriate. In 
addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with Instantaneous 
Limits. 

 
(b) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenolics, sulfides, and volatile 

organic compounds must be obtained using grab collection techniques. 
 

(c) For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance 
reports required in Section 4.25(c) below [40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], A minimum of 
four (4) grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, phenolics, oil and grease, sulfide 
and volatile organic compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not 
exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data are available, the District may 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



37  

authorize a lower minimum. For the reports required by (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 
403.12(h), the Industrial User is required to collect the number of grab samples 
necessary to assess and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment 
Standards and Requirements. 

 
(d) If a user subject to reporting requirement monitors any regulated pollutant at a 

designated sampling location more frequently than required, the results of this 
monitoring shall be reported. 

 
(e) The Manager may specify the type of sampling equipment that must be installed and 

used. pH monitoring and Flow monitoring equipment installed at an industrial user's 
sampling location shall be calibrated at the frequency specified in the industrial user's 
wastewater discharge permit or at the frequency recommended by the manufacturer. 

 
(f) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant 

in question, or where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical 
techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in question, sampling and analyses shall 
be performed using validated analytical methods or any other applicable sampling and 
analytical procedures suggested by the Manager or other parties approved by the 
EPA. Samples shall be analyzed at the discharges expense, by a laboratory 
accredited by the State of California Department of Public Health for such analysis. 

 
(g) The Manager may require self-monitoring for facilities for which a wastewater 

discharge permit has not been issued. 
 
 

4.25 Submission of Reports 
 

The Agency has authority to require all Significant Industrial Users and any other 
designated dischargers to submit reports and schedules within a time-frame directed by 
the Agency. Required reports and schedules, include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
(a) Wastewater Discharge Surveys 

 
(b) Chemical Use Reports 

 
(c)  Baseline Monitoring Reports (BMR) and 90-Day Monitoring Reports containing 

information as required under 40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d): 
 

(1) Within (i)180 days after the effective date of a categorical standard in the case of 
an existing industrial user, or 90 days prior to commencement of discharge for a 
new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards must 
submit a Baseline Report; and (ii) 90-Days after commencement of discharge for 
a new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards 
must submit a 90-Day report. All Baseline Reports and 90-Day Report must 
contain the following information: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



38  

 

(A) The name and address of the facility including the name of the operator and 
owners; 

 
(B) A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility; 

 
(C) A brief description of the nature, average rate of production, and Standard 

Industrial Classification of the operation(s) carried out by such Industrial User. 
This description should include a schematic process diagram which indicates 
points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes. 

 
(D) The measured average daily and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day, to 

the POTW from each of the following: 
 

(i) Regulated process streams; and 
 

(ii) Other streams as necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream 
formula. The Control Authority may allow for verifiable estimates of these 
flows where justified by cost or feasibility considerations. 

 
(E) The Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process, and the 

results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration (or 
mass, where required by the Standard or Control Authority) of regulated 
pollutants in the Discharge from each regulated process. Both daily maximum 
and average concentration (or mass, where required) shall be reported. The 
sample shall be representative of daily operations; 

 
(F) A statement, reviewed by an authorized representative of the Industrial User 

and certified to by a qualified professional, indicating whether Pretreatment 
Standards are being met on a consistent basis and, if not, whether additional 
operation and maintenance (O and M) and/or additional pretreatment is 
required for the Industrial User to meet the Pretreatment Standards and 
Requirements; and 

 
(G) If additional pretreatment and/or O and M will be required to meet the 

Pretreatment Standards; the shortest schedule by which the Industrial User 
will provide such additional pretreatment and/or O and M. The completion date 
in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable Pretreatment Standard. 

 
New sources must give estimates of information requested in paragraphs (D) 
and (E) and must include information on the method of pretreatment that will 
be used to meet applicable pretreatment standards. 

 
(d) Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



39  

(e) Periodic Self-Monitoring Reports 
 

(f) Periodic Report of Continued Compliance (PRCC) containing information as required 
under 40 CFR 403.12(e) and (h) 
All Significant Industrial Users must, at a frequency determined by the Manager, 
submit no less than twice per year (June and December [or on dates specified by 
Manager]) reports indicating the nature, concentration of pollutants in the discharge 
which are limited by Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average 
and maximum daily flows for the reporting period. In cases where the Pretreatment 
Standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice (BMP) or pollution 
prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Manager 
or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the 
User. 

 
All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with 
Section 4.16 of this ordinance. 

 
All wastewater samples must be representative of the User's discharge. Wastewater 
monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and 
maintained in good working order at all times. The failure of a User to keep its 
monitoring facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that 
sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this section monitors any regulated 
pollutant at the appropriate sampling location more frequently than required by the 
Agency, using the procedures prescribed in 40 CFR 403.12(g)(5), the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the report. 

 
(g) Hazardous Materials Management Plans 

 
(h) Best Management Practice Plans 

 
(i) Slug Control Plans containing information as required under 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2) (vi). 

 
(j) Source Reduction Evaluation Review and Plans (SB14) and other pollution 

prevention plans 
 

(k) SARA III Reports 
 

(l) Written responses to Notices of Violation 
 

(m) Facility Closure Plans 
 

(n) Any data obtained from self-monitoring performed more frequently than required by 
the Agency 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



40  

(o) Solvent Management Plan 
 

(p) Any other reports, written documents, and/or analytical results as deemed 
necessary by the Agency, to determine a user's compliance status with local, 
state and federal limits or requirements. 

 
 

Section 5 

WASTEWATER CHARGES AND FEES 

 
5.01 Schedule of Charges and Fees 

 
The agency may adopt ordinances for the collection of charges and fees for, but not 
limited to, the following purposes: 

 
• Capacity Charges 
• Sewer Service Charges 
• Annexation Fees 
• Construction Permit Fees 
• Construction Inspection Fees 
• Wastewater Discharge Permit Fees 

 
 

5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges and Fees 
 

The Agency may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
operating its Environmental Compliance Program including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

 
(a) Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications including the cost of processing 

such applications; 
 

(b) Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures including the cost of 
sample collection and analyzing a user's discharge, reviewing monitoring reports 
submitted by users, and conducting inspections of the user's facilities; 

 
(c) Fees for reviewing and responding to discharge violations, accidental discharges 

and spills, and related enforcement activities. 
 

(d) Fees for filing appeals; and 
 

(e) Other fees as the Agency may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 
contained herein. These fees relate solely to the matters covered by this ordinance 
and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties chargeable by the Agency. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



41  

Section 6 

ENFORCEMENT 

 

6.01 Notification of Discharge 
 

Users shall notify the Agency immediately upon accidentally discharging wastes in 
violation of these regulations and/or discharging any slug loading to enable 
countermeasures to be taken by the Agency to minimize damage to the community sewer, 
treatment facility, treatment processes, and the receiving waters. 

 
This notification shall be followed, within five days of the date of occurrence, by a detailed 
written statement describing the causes of the accidental discharge and the measures 
being taken to prevent future occurrence. 

 
Such notification will not relieve users of liability for any expense, loss, or damage to the 
sewer system, treatment plant, or treatment process, or for any fines imposed on the 
Agency on account thereof under section 13350 of the California Water Code, or for 
violations of section 5650 of the California Fish and Game Code. 

 
 

6.02 Notification of Violation 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may serve upon that user a written 
Notice of Violation. Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, an explanation of the 
violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 
specific required actions, shall be submitted by the user to the Manager. Submission of 
this plan in no way relieves the user of liability for any violations occurring before or after 
receipt of the Notice of Violation. Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the 
Manager to take any action, including emergency actions or any other enforcement 
action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation. 

 
 

6.03 Consent Orders 
 

The Manager may enter into Consent Orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or 
other similar documents establishing an agreement with any user responsible for 
noncompliance. Such documents will include specific action to be taken by the user to 
correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the document. Such 
documents shall have the same force and affect as the administrative orders issued 
pursuant to Sections 6.05 and 6.06 of this ordinance and shall be judicially enforceable. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



42  

6.04 Show Cause Hearing 
 

The Manager may order a user which has violated, or continues to violate, any provision 
of this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, to appear before the Manager and show cause 
why the proposed enforcement action should not be taken. Notice shall be served on the 
user specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement action, the 
reasons for such action, and a request that the user show cause why the proposed 
enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served 
personally or by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested). Such notice may 
be served on any authorized representative of the user. A Show Cause hearing shall not 
be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.05 Administrative Orders 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may issue an order to the user 
responsible for the discharge directing that the user come into compliance within a 
specified time. If the user does not come into compliance within the time provided, sewer 
service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other 
related appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Administrative orders also 
may contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, including additional self- 
monitoring and management practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants 
discharged to the sewer. An administrative order may not extend the deadline for 
compliance established for a pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does an 
administrative order relieve the user of liability for any violation, including any continuing 
violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, 
taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.06 Issuance of Cease and Desist Orders 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has taken place in violation of 
prohibitions or limitations of these regulations, or the provisions of a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit, the Manager may issue an order to cease and desist, and direct that 
those not complying with such prohibitions, limits, requirements, or provisions: 

 
(a) comply forthwith; 

 
(b) comply in accordance with a time schedule set forth by the Agency; or 

 
(c) take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly 

address a continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations and/or 
terminating the discharge. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



43  

6.07 Legal Authority to Administer Fines 
 

In accordance with Section 54739 of the California Government Code, the agency may 
require any of the following: 

 
(a) Pretreatment of any industrial waste which the local agency determines is necessary 

in order to meet standards established by the federal or California state government 
or other regulatory agencies or which the local agency determines is necessary in 
order to protect its treatment works or the proper and efficient operation thereof or 
the health or safety of its employees or the environment. 

 
(b) The prevention of the entry of such industrial waste into the collection system and 

treatment works. 
 

(c) The payment of excess costs to the system for supplementary treatment plants, 
facilities, or operations needed as a result of allowing the entry into the collection 
system and treatment works of such industrial waste. 

(d) The provisions of this section shall be in addition to other requirements provided for 
in this or any other Agency ordinance. 

 
 

6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties 

(a) The agency may issue an administrative complaint to any person who violates any 
requirement adopted or ordered by the agency pursuant to paragraph (a) and (b) of 
Section 6.07. The administrative complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that 
constitutes the violation of the agency's requirements, the provisions of law 
authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed civil penalty. 

 
(b) The administrative complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified mail 

on the person subject to the agency's discharge requirements and shall inform the 
person served that a hearing shall be conducted within 60 days after the person has 
been served. In event no request for hearing is filed within 50 days after the service 
of the administrative complaint, the right to a hearing will be deemed waived. The 
hearing shall be before a hearing officer designated by the governing board of the 
agency. The person who has been issued an administrative complaint may waive 
the right to a hearing, in which case the agency shall not conduct a hearing. A person 
dissatisfied with the decision of the hearing officer may appeal to the governing 
board of the agency within 30 days of notice of the hearing officer's decision. 

 
(c) If after any default in requesting a hearing, the holding of the hearing, or the 

conclusion of an appeal, it is found that the person has violated reporting or 
discharge requirements, the hearing officer or board may assess a civil penalty 
against that person in determining the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing officer 
or board may take into consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



44  

through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length 
of time over which the violation occurs and corrective action, if any, attempted or 
taken by the discharger. 

 
(d) Civil Penalties. In accordance with Section 54740.5 of the California Government 

Code, Civil penalties may be imposed by the agency as follows: 
 

(1) In an amount which shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each day 
for failing or refusing to furnish technical or monitoring reports. 

 
(2) In an amount which shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) for each 

day for failing or refusing to timely comply with any compliance schedule 
established by the local agency. 

 
(3) In an amount which shall not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation 

for each day for discharges in violation of any waste discharge limitation, permit 
condition, or requirement issued, reissued, or adopted by the local agency. 

 
(4) In an amount which does not exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon for discharges 

in violation of any suspension, cease and desist order or other orders, or 
prohibition issued, reissued, or adopted by the agency. 

 
(5) The amount of any civil penalties imposed under this section which have 

remained delinquent for a period of 60 days after finality of the decision, can 
become a lien against the real property of the discharger from which the 
discharge originated resulting in the imposition of the civil penalty. In accordance 
with the procedures specified in Health & Safety Code Section 5473 et seq., the 
Board of Directors can have the lien imposed against the real property to be 
assessed on the tax roll, to be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner, together with and not separately from, general taxes, and shall be 
delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the same delinquency 
penalties. 

 
(6) In addition, in the event that the penalty is imposed as a court judgment in the 

same manner as in an arbitration award, the judgment thereon shall be 
renewable in accordance with the provisions of California Code of Civil 
Procedures Sections 683.110 through 683.220. 

 
(7) Any legal action, including arbitration, shall allow attorneys' fees and costs to 

the prevailing party. 
 

(e) Administrative Penalties 
 

Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 
Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued. The 
violations are categorized as discharge or non-discharge violations. with the following 
exception: the General Manager may waive or reduce penalties, in their sole discretion, 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



45  

where at a minimum, all of the following requirements are met: the violation is minor in 
nature, it is the first in the last 5 years, it was inadvertent, and the violator is cooperating 
with the District in resolving the matter. 

 
The violations are categorized as discharge or non-discharge violations. 
 

(1) Non-discharge Violations 
 

Non-discharge violations shall be considered any violation of a reporting 
requirement, timeline, schedule or any other violation of Ordinance 36. A 
warning letter will be issued to the permittee informing them of an impending 
Notice of Violation and imposition of a six hundred dollar ($600) penalty for any 
future violations., pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
(2) Discharge Violation 

 
A Discharge Violation is specifically related to a discharge event or release. The 
penalty for an actual discharge violation shall be one thousand four hundred 
dollars ($1400) for every incident or event., pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
These penalties are not exclusive and failure to comply could result in the 
District taking additional enforcement actions up to and including civil penalties 
and abatement. 

 
(f) All moneys collected under this section shall be deposited in a special account of 

the agency and shall be made available for inspector training, environmental 
program enhancement, the monitoring, treatment, and control of discharges into the 
Agency's sanitary sewer system or for other mitigation measures. 

 
(g) Unless appealed, orders setting administrative civil penalties shall become effective 

and final upon issuance thereof, and payment shall be made within 30 days. Copies 
of these orders shall be served by personal service or by certified mail upon the party 
served with the administrative complaint and upon other persons who appeared at 
the hearing and requested a copy. 

 
(h) The Agency may, at its option, elect to petition the superior court to confirm any 

order establishing civil penalties and enter judgment in conformity therewith as 
though it were an arbitration award, in accordance with the provisions of California 
Code of Civil Procedure, Sections 1285 through 1287.6. 

 
(i) No penalties shall be recoverable under this section for any violation for which civil 

liability is recovered under Section 7.06 of this ordinance. 
 
(j) Any party aggrieved by a final order issued by the governing board of the agency 

under this Section, after granting review of the order of a hearing officer, may obtain 
review of the order of the board in the superior court by filing in the court a petition 
for writ of mandate within 30 days following the service of a copy of a decision and 
order issued by the board. Any party aggrieved by a final order of a hearing officer 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



46  

issued under this Section, for which the board denies review, may obtain review of 
the order of the hearing officer in the superior court by filing in the court a petition for 
writ of mandate within 30 days following service of a copy of a decision and order denying 
review by the board.         
          

(k) If no aggrieved party petitions for writ of mandate within the time provided by this 
section, an order of the board or a hearing officer shall not be subject to review by 
any court or agency, except that the board may grant review on its own motion of an 
order issued under this Section after the expiration of the time limits set by that 
section. 

 
(l) The evidence before the court shall consist of the record before the board, including 

the hearing officer's record, and any other relevant evidence which, in the judgment 
of the court, should be considered to effectuate and implement policies of this 
division. In every such case, the court shall exercise its independent judgment on 
the evidence. 

 
(m) Except as otherwise provided in this section, subdivisions (e) and (f) of Section 

1094.5 of the California Government Code or the Code or Civil Procedure shall 
govern proceedings pursuant to this section. 

 
 

6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has been taking place in violation 
of prohibitions or limitations prescribed in these regulations, or wastewater source control 
requirements, effluent limitations or pretreatment standards, or the provisions of a 
Wastewater Discharge Permit or at any time the Agency determines a time schedule to 
be necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 4.13, the Agency may require 
the user to submit for approval, with such modifications as it deems necessary, a detailed 
time schedule of specific actions which the user shall take in order to prevent or correct a 
violation of the requirements. 

 
 

6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 
 

The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by Section 6.09 
of this ordinance: 

 
(a) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the 

commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and 
operation of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable 
pretreatment standards (such events include, but are not limited to, hiring an 
engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major 
components, commencing and completing construction, and beginning and 
conducting routine operation); 

 
(b) No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



47  

 

(c) The user shall submit a progress report to the Manager as specified but no later than 
fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 
compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment 
of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being taken by 
the user to return to the established schedule; and 

 
(d) In no event shall more than nine (9) months elapse between such progress reports 

to the Manager. 
 
 

6.11 Appeals 
 

Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or 
determination, including cease and desist orders made by the Manager or another 
employee of the Agency in interpreting or implementing the provisions of this ordinance 
or in any permit issued herein, may file with the Manager a written appeal or request for 
reconsideration, as applicable, within ten days of such decision, action, or determination, 
setting forth in detail the facts supporting the appeal or request for reconsideration. 

 
If the ruling made by the Manager is unsatisfactory to the person appealing or requesting 
reconsideration, he or she may file a written appeal to the Agency's governing body within 
ten days after notification of Agency action. The written appeal shall be heard by the 
governing body within 30 days from the date of filing or as soon thereafter as reasonably 
possible. The Agency's governing body shall make a final ruling on the appeal within 30 
days of the meeting. The Manager's decision, action, or determination shall remain in 
effect during such period of appeal. The determination of an appeal by the governing 
body of the Agency shall constitute a final determination of the Agency and shall be 
subject to judicial review. 

 
 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems 
 

(a) In the case of any discharges including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, 
discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a 
slug load, that may cause potential problems for the POTW, the user shall immediately 
telephone and notify the Agency of the incident. This notification shall include the 
location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and volume, if known, and 
corrective actions taken by the user and any other information the Agency deems 
appropriate. 

 
(b) A notice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin board or other prominent 

place advising employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in 
paragraph A, above. Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause such 
a discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



48  

(c) All Users are required to notify the Agency of any changes at their facility affecting the 
potential for a Slug Discharge. 

 
 

6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting 
 

If sampling performed by a user indicates a violation, the user must notify the Agency 
within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also 
repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the 
Agency within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation. 
Within five (5) days following such discharge, the user shall, unless waived by the Agency, 
submit a detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the discharge and the 
measures to be taken by the user to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification 
shall not relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be 
incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to 
person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties, or 
other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this ordinance. 

 
 

6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users 
 

All users not required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate 
reports to the Agency as the Manager may require. 

 
 

6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant Non-Compliance 
 

At an interval of not less than once per year, the Agency will publish the identities of any 
user(s) which is (are) found to be in significant non-compliance of any national 
pretreatment standard, discharge limitation or prohibition, or any other requirement of 
these regulations. The definition of significant non-compliance shall be as specified in 
Section 1.02 (bbb). The publication shall occur in the newspaper of general circulation 
that provides meaningful public notice within the service area of the Agency. 

 
 

Section 7 

ABATEMENT 

 
7.01 Public Nuisance 

 
Discharge of wastewater in any manner in violation of these regulations or of any order 
issued by the Manager as authorized by these regulations, is hereby declared a public 
nuisance and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the Manager. Any person 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



49  

creating a public nuisance shall be subject to provisions of Agency codes or ordinances 
governing such nuisance. 

 
 

7.02 Recovery of Expenses 
 

In the event a discharge of wastewater occurs from a private sewer lateral that creates or 
threatens to create a public nuisance that the Agency must abate as directed by the 
Manager, the Agency may seek recovery of the cost of time and materials to abate said 
discharge from the property owner as well as interest and attorneys' fees as provided by 
Health & Safety Code § 5473.10. 

 
 

7.03 Injunctive Relief 
 

When the Agency finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, a general permit, or order 
issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may 
petition the appropriate Court through the District's Attorney for the issuance of a 
temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels the 
specific performance of an individual wastewater discharge permit, general permit, order 
or other requirement imposed by this ordinance on activities of the User. The Agency 
may also seek such other action as is appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, 
including a requirement for the User to conduct environmental remediation. A petition for 
injunctive relief shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action 
against a User. 

 
 

7.04 Damage to Facilities 
 

When a discharge of wastes causes an obstruction, damage, or any other impairment to 
Agency facilities, the Agency may assess a charge against the user for the work required 
to clean or repair the facility and add such charge to the user's charges and fees. 

 
 

7.05 Civil Penalties 
 

Any person who violates any provision of these regulations or permit conditions, or who 
discharges wastewater which causes pollution, or who violates any cease and desist 
order, prohibition, effluent limitation, national standard of performance, pretreatment or 
toxicity standard, shall be liable civilly to penalties imposed by the Agency against which 
the violation occurs as provided for in Section 6.07 of this Ordinance. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



50  

7.06 Court Imposed Civil and Criminal Penalties 
 

The Agency may refer any violations of these regulations to the office of the Alameda 
County District Attorney for civil or criminal prosecution under any applicable statute or 
provision of law. 

 
In accordance with Section 54740 of the California Government Code: 

 
(a) Any person who violates any requirement adopted or ordered by the Agency 

pursuant to Section 6.07 of this ordinance may be civilly liable in a sum of not to 
exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) a day for each violation. 

 
(b) The Agency may petition the superior court to impose, assess, and recover the sums 

provided for in paragraph (a). In determining the amount, the court shall take into 
consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of 
harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived through any 
noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over 
which the violation occurs, and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the 
discharger. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all civil penalties imposed by the court 

for any violation of this section shall be distributed to the local agency. 
 

(d) Remedies under this section are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any and 
all other remedies, civil or criminal, but no liability shall be recoverable under this 
section for any violation for which liability is recovered under Section 6.07. 

 
(e) Any person who violates any provision of these regulations, or of a permit or a cease 

and desist order issued pursuant to these regulations, is guilty of a public offense. 
The classification of such public offense and the punishment therefore shall be as 
provided by local, county, state and/or federal law. 

 
 

7.07 Falsifying Information 
 

Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, report, 
plan, or other document filed with the Agency, or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly 
renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under these regulations, 
shall be punished in accordance with the Agency codes or ordinances governing such 
falsifications. The Agency may petition the Superior Court to impose, assess, and recover 
such sums as may be applicable or in accordance with Sections 7.05 and 7.06 of this 
ordinance. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



51  

7.08 Termination of Service 
 

In order to effect its powers, the Agency may enter upon private property for the purpose 
of inspection and maintenance of sanitary and waste disposal facilities and may terminate 
service to property in which a violation of any rule, regulation, or this Ordinance is found 
to exist. 
Prior to termination of service, however, the Agency Board shall notify, in writing, the 
owner and tenant, if any, of such property that service is intended to be so terminated 
and conduct a hearing thereon as herein provided. Such notice shall be mailed to the 
owner at the address shown on the records of the Assessor of the County, or as known 
to the Clerk, and a copy shall be delivered to the tenant or posted conspicuously on the 
property. The notice shall state the date of proposed termination of service and the 
reasons therefore and the date the Agency Board shall hold a hearing upon such intended 
termination. Such hearing shall not be held less than ten days subsequent to the giving 
of notice as herein required. 

 
 

7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service 
 

The Manager or designated representative may immediately suspend a User's discharge, 
after informal notice to the User, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an 
actual or threatened discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause an 
imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons. The Manager 
may also immediately suspend a User's discharge, after notice and opportunity to 
respond, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents, or 
may present, an endangerment to the environment. 

 
(a) Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or 

eliminate its contribution. In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply 
voluntarily with the suspension order, the Manager may take such steps as 
deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to 
prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment 
to any individuals. The Manager may allow the User to recommence its discharge 
only when the User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Manager that the 
period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings in 
Section 7.10 of this ordinance are initiated against the User. 

 
(b) A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting 

imminent endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the 
causes of the harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future 
occurrence, to the Manager prior to the date of any show cause or termination 
hearing under sections 6.04 or 7.08 of this ordinance. Nothing in this section shall 
be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency suspension under this 
section. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



52  

7.10 Immediate Termination of Discharge 
 

The manager or designated representative has the authority to immediately and 
effectively halt or prevent any actual or threatened discharge of pollutants to the Agency's 
facilities which: 

 
• present, or may present, an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or 

welfare of persons, to the environment or to the Agency's facilities; 
 

• cause interferences with the operation of the Agency's facilities or the POTW; 
 

• cause conditions (a) through (n) of Section 2.01.1 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are prohibited by Section 2.01.2 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are violations of individual wastewater discharge permit or general permit conditions; 
 

• are a failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of 
the User's discharge; 

 
• are a failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, 

constituents, and characteristics prior to discharge; 
 

• are a result of refusal to reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of 
inspection, monitoring, or sampling. 

 
Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency 
suspension under this section. 

 
 

7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies 
 

The remedies provided for in this ordinance are not exclusive except as specified in 
Section 7.06(d). The Manager may take any, all, or any combination of these actions 
against a noncompliant user. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in 
accordance with the Agency's Enforcement Response Plan. However, the Manager may 
take other action against any user when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager 
is empowered to take more than one enforcement action against any noncompliant user. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



53  

Section 8 

SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of these regulations or the application to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, the remainder of the regulations or the application of such provisions to other 
persons or other circumstances shall not be affected. 

 
 

Section 9 
 

Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 36 and all its amendments are hereby repealed. 
 
 

Section 10 

PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force as of September 12, 2019 XXXXXXX, 
and a summary of the Ordinance has been published in The Argus and Tri-City Voice, 
newspapers of general circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT service 
area. This Ordinance shall be entered in the minutes of the District. 

 
Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT on this 
12th XX day of August 2019XXXXXX, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 

 
NOES: 

 
ABSENT: 

 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
                        

President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
                     

Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



54  

SUPPLEMENT 
 

This Wastewater Discharge Regulations Supplement includes selected Code of Federal 
Regulations parts (listed as 40 CFR) referred to in the main section of this ordinance for 
convenience only. Other 40 CFR parts, which are too lengthy to include in their entirety, 
are summarized. More information relating to these Federal Regulation references is 
available in the Union Sanitary District's Environmental Compliance Division Office and 
the text of the regulations is available online at https://www.epa.gov/laws- 
regulations/regulations. 

 

Federal Regulations are updated from time to time. This document contains current 
regulations as of April 2019. However, it is the responsibility of the user to ensure 
compliance with federal regulations, including any future amendments. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 2.302(2):    Definition of Effluent Data 
 

"(i) Effluent data means, with reference to any source of discharge of any pollutant (as 
that term is defined in section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 1362 (6)): 

 
(A) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of any pollutant which has been discharged by the source (or of 
any pollutant resulting from any discharge from the source), or any combination 
of the foregoing; 

 
(B) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of the pollutants which, under an applicable standard or limitation, 
the source was authorized to discharge (including, to the extent necessary for 
such purpose, a description of the manner or rate of operation of the source); 
and 

 
(C) A general description of the location and/or nature of the source to the extent 

necessary to identify the source and to distinguish it from other sources 
(including, to the extent necessary for such purposes, a description of the 
device, installation or operation constituting the source). 

 
(ii) Notwithstanding paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section, the following information shall be 

considered to be effluent data only to the extent necessary to allow EPA to disclose 
publicly that a source is (or is not) in compliance with an applicable standard or 
limitation, or to allow EPA to demonstrate the feasibility, practicability, or attainability 
(or lack thereof) of an existing or proposed standard or limitation: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022

http://www.epa.gov/laws-


55  

(A) Information concerning research, or the results of research, on any product, 
method, device, or installation (or any component thereof) which was produced, 
developed, installed, and used only for research purposes; and 

 
(B) Information concerning any product, method, device, or installation (or any 

component thereof) designed and intended to be marketed or used commercially 
but not yet so marketed or used." 

 
 

40 CFR Part 136:Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of 
Pollutants 

 
(Summary) This part describes test procedures for performing analyses of wastewater 
constituents. Part 136 identifies test procedures and specifies application of and approval 
of alternate test procedures. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 
Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste 

 
(Summary) This part includes criteria for identifying the characteristics of hazardous 
waste, as well as characteristics of hazardous waste and lists of hazardous wastes. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.5:   National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(Summary) This part is commonly referred to as the General Pretreatment Regulations 
and includes discharge prohibitions and the requirement for development of local limits 
by the POTW. 

 
 

403.5 National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(a) (1) General prohibitions. A User may not introduce into a POTW any pollutant(s) 
which cause Pass Through or Interference. These general prohibitions and the 
specific prohibitions in paragraph (b) of this section apply to each User 
introducing pollutants into a POTW whether or not the User is subject to other 
National Pretreatment Standards or any national, State or local Pretreatment 
Requirements. 

 
(2) Affirmative Defenses: A User shall have an affirmative defense in any action 

brought against it alleging a violation of the general prohibitions established in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section and the specific prohibitions in paragraphs (b)(3), 
(b)(4), (b)(5), (b)(6) and (b)(7) of this section where the Users can demonstrate 
that: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



56  

(i) It did not know or have reason to know that its Discharge, alone or in 
conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, would cause 
Pass Through or Interference; and 

 
(ii) (A) A local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 

the case may be, was developed in accordance with paragraph (c) of this 
section for each pollutant in the User's Discharge that caused Pass Through 
or Interference, and the User was in compliance with each such local limit 
directly prior to and during the Pass Through or Interference; or 

 
(B) If a local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 
the case may be, has not been developed in accordance with paragraph (c) 
of this section for the pollutant(s) that caused the Pass Through or 
Interference, the User's Discharge directly prior to and during the Pass 
Through or Interference did not change substantially in nature or 
constituents from the User's prior discharge activity when the POTW was 
regularly in compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit requirements and, 
in the case of Interference, applicable requirements-for sewage sludge use 
or disposal. 

 
(b) Specific prohibitions. In addition, the following pollutants shall not be introduced into 

a POTW: 
 

(1) Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard in the POTW, including, but 
not limited to, wastestreams with a close cup flashpoint of less than 140°F or 
60°C using the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21. 

 
(2) Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage to the POTW, but in no 

case Discharges with pH lower than 5.0, unless the works is specifically 
designed to accommodate such Discharges; 

 
(3) Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts which will cause obstruction to the flow 

in the POTW resulting in Interference; 
 

(4) Any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, COD) released in 
a Discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause 
Interference with the POTW. 

 
(5) Heat in amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in 

Interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the temperature at the 
POTW Treatment Plant exceeds 40°C (104°F) unless the Approval Authority, 
upon request of the POTW, approves alternate temperature limits. 

 
(6) Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin in 

amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



57  

(7)  Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within 
the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety 
problems; 

 
(8) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the 

POTW. 
 

(c) When specific limits must be developed by POTW. (1) Each POTW developing a 
POTW Pretreatment Program pursuant to section 403.8 shall develop and enforce 
specific limits to implement the prohibitions listed in paragraphs (a)(1) and (b) of this 
section. 

 
(1) Each POTW with an approved pretreatment program shall continue to develop 

these limits as necessary and effectively enforce such limits. 
 
 

(2)  All other POTW's shall, in cases where pollutants contributed by User(s) result 
in Interference or Pass Through, and such violation is likely to recur, develop 
and enforce specific effluent limits for Industrial User(s), and all other users, as 
appropriate, which, together with appropriate changes in the POTW Treatment 
Plant's facilities or operation, are necessary to ensure renewed and continued 
compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit or sludge use or disposal 
practices. 

 
(3) Specific effluent limits shall not be developed and enforced without individual 

notice to persons or groups who have requested such notice and an opportunity 
to respond. 

 
(4) POTWs may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs) to implement 

paragraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) of this section. Such BMPs shall be considered 
local limits and Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of this part and section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(d) Local limits. Where specific prohibitions or limits on pollutants or pollutant 

parameters are developed by a POTW in accordance with paragraph (c) above, 
such limits shall be deemed Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(e) EPA enforcement actions under section 309(f) of the Clean Water Act. If, within 30 

days after notice of an Interference or Pass Through violation has been sent by EPA 
to the POTW, and to persons or groups who have requested such notice, the POTW 
fails to commence appropriate enforcement action to correct the violation, EPA may 
take appropriate enforcement action under the authority provided in section 309(f) 
of the Clean Water Act. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



58  

40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi):    Slug Control Plans 
 

The District has the authority to evaluate whether each Significant Industrial User needs 
a plan to control slug discharges. For purposes of these regulations, a slug discharge is 
any discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental 
spill or a non-customary batch discharge. 

 
"If the POTW decides that a slug control plan is needed, the plan shall contain, at a 
minimum, the following elements: 

 
(A) Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch discharges; 

 
(B) Description of stored chemicals; 

 
(C) Procedures for immediately notifying the POTW of slug discharges, including any 

discharge that would violate a prohibition under 40 CFR 403.5(b), with procedures 
for follow-up written notification within five days; 

 
(D) If necessary, procedures to prevent adverse impact from accidental spills, including 

inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, 
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site run-off, worker training, 
building of containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic 
organic pollutants (including solvents), and/or measures and equipment for 
emergency response;" 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12:   Reporting Requirements for POTWs and Industrial Users 
 

(Summary) This part contains the monitoring and reporting requirements for baseline 
monitoring reports and other required reports such as the periodic report of continued 
compliance. 40 CFR Part 403.12 is crucial to the implementation of and compliance with 
self-monitoring and reporting requirements. Portions of the regulations are summarized 
or cited below. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h):   Reporting  Requirements  for  Industrial  Users  Not 
Subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards 

 
At least once every 6 months, industrial users not subject to categorical Pretreatment 
Standards must submit a description of the nature, concentration and flow of the 
pollutants discharged to the POTW. These reports shall be based on sampling and 
analysis performed during the reporting period. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



59  

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification 
 
 

(a) The user shall notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management Division 
Director, and State hazardous waste authorities, in writing, of any discharge into the 
POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste 
under 40 CFR Part 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous 
waste as set forth in 40 CFR Part 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the 
type of discharge (continuous, batch, or other). If the user discharges more than one 
hundred (100) kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the 
notification also shall contain the following information to the extent such information 
is known and readily available to the user: an identification of the hazardous 
constituents contained in the wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of 
such constituents in the waste stream discharged during that calendar month, and an 
estimation of the mass of constituents in the waste stream expected to be discharged 
during the following twelve (12) months. All notifications must take place within one 
hundred and eighty (180) days of the effective date of this rule. Users who commence 
discharging after the effective date of this rule shall provide the notification no later 
than 180 days after the discharge of the listed or characteristic hazardous waste. Any 
notification under this paragraph need be submitted only once for each hazardous 
waste discharged. However, notifications of changed discharges must be submitted 
under 40 CFR 403.12 (j) (Section 4.20 of this ordinance). The notification requirement 
in this section does not apply to pollutants already reported under the self-monitoring 
requirements of 40 CFR 403.12 (b), (d) and (e). 

 
(b) Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of paragraph 1, above, during a 

calendar month in which they discharge no more than fifteen (15) kilograms of 
hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute hazardous wastes as specified in 40 
CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than fifteen (15) kilograms of 
nonacute hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute 
hazardous wastes as specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a 
one-time notification. Subsequent months during which the user discharges more than 
such quantities of any hazardous waste do not require additional notification. 

 
(c) In case of any new regulations under Section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional 

characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous 
waste, the user must notify the Agency, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste 
Division Director, and State hazardous waste authorities of the discharge of such 
substance within ninety (90) days of the effective date of such regulations. 

 
(d) In the case of any notification made under this section, the user shall certify that it has 

a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated 
to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



60  

40 CFR Part 405-471: Categorical Standards and Requirements 
 

(Summary) These parts describe the regulations applicable to categorical discharges. 
The following types of industries are currently subject to categorical standards: 

 
Aluminum Forming Fruit & Vegetable Processing Paving and Roofing (Tars & Asphalt) 
Asbestos Manufacturing Glass Manufacturing Pesticides 
Battery Manufacturing Grain Mills Manufacturing Petroleum Refining 
Builder's Paper Hospitals Pharmaceuticals 
Carbon Black Ink Formulating Phosphate Manufacturing 
Cement Manufacturing Iron and Steel Manufacturing Photographic 
Centralized Waste Treatment Landfills Plastics Molding and Forming 
Chemicals-Inorganic Leather Tanning and Finishing Porcelain Enameling 
Chemicals-Organic Meat & Poultry Processing Pulp and Paper 
Chemicals-Gum & Wood Metal Finishing Rubber Processing 
Concentrated Animal Feeding Ops. Metal Molding and Casting Seafood Processing 
Coil Coating Metal products & Machinery Soaps and Detergents Mfg 
Copper Forming Mining - Coal Steam Electric 
Dairy Products Processing Mining - Mineral Sugar Processing 
Electrical and Electronic Components Mining - Ore Timber Products Mfg 
Electroplating Nonferrous Metals Forming Transportation 
Explosives Mfg Nonferrous Metals Mfg Textile Mills 
Ferroalloy Manufacturing Oil & Gas Extraction Waste Combustors 
Fertilizer Manufacturing Paint Formulating  

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



61  

Locally Regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Volatiles  Semi-Volatiles (cont d)  Semi-Volatiles (cont d) 
Acrolein  Benzo(ghi)perylene  Nitrobenzene 
Acrylonitrile  Benzo(k)fluoranthene  Phenanthrene 
Benzene  3,4-benzofluoranthene  Pyrene 
Bromoform  Bis (2-chloroisopropyl) ether  1,2,4-trichlorobenzene 
Carbon tetrachloride  Bis (2-chloroethoxy) methane   
Chlorobenzene  Bis (2-chloroethyl) ether   
Chloroethane  Bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate   
2-chloroethylvinyl ether  4-bromophenyl phenyl ether   
Chloroform  Butyl benzyl phthalate   
Dibromochloromethane  2-chloronaphthalene   
Dichlorobromomethane  4-chlorophenyl phenyl ether   
1,1-dichloroethane  Chrysene   
1,2-dichloroethane  Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene   
1,1-dichloroethylene  1,2-dichlorobenzene   
1,2-dichloropropane  1,3-dichlorobenzene   
1,3-dichloropropylene  1,4-dichlorobenzene   
Ethylbenzene  3,3-dichlorobenzidine   
Methyl bromide  Diethyl phthalate   
Methyl chloride  Dimethyl phthalate   
Methylene chloride  Di-n-butyl phthalate   
Tetrachloroethylene (PCE)  Di-n-octyl phthalate   
1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane  2,4-dinitrotoluene   
1,1,1-trichloroethane (TCA)  2,6-dinitrotoluene   
1,1,2-trichloroethane  1,2-diphenylhydrazine   
Toluene  Fluoranthene   
1,2-trans-dichloroethylene  Fluorene   
Trichloroethylene (TCE)  Hexachlorobenzene   
Vinyl chloride  Hexachlorobutadiene   

  Hexachlorocyclopentadiene   
Semi-Volatiles  Hexachloroethane   

Acenaphthene  Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene   
Acenaphthylene  Isophorone   
Anthracene  N-nitrosodi-n-propylamine   
Benzidine  N-nitrosodimethylamine   
Benzo(a)anthracene  N-nitrosodiphenylamine   
Benzo(a)pyrene  Naphthalene   

 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
SEWER USE ORDINANCE 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 36.05 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose & Policy ...................................................................................................... 1 
1.02 Definitions ............................................................................................................ 2-11 
1.03 Analytical & Sampling Methodology & Procedures ........................................... 11 

SECTION 2 
REGULATIONS 

2.01 Sewer Use Requirements ..................................................................................... 11 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges .................................................................................. 11-13 
2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community 

sewer............................................................................................................... 13-14 
2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam 

Fillings ................................................................................................................. 14-15 
2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater ..................................... 15-16 
2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Cleanup Projects ......................................... 16 
2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water .......................................................................... 16 
2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes. .................................................................... 17 
2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders ...................................................... 17 
2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge ...................................................................... 17 
2.09 Holding Tank Waste ......................................................................................... 17-18 
2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength .............................................................. 18-20 
2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges ............................................................................ 20 
2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution ............................................................................... 20 
2.13 Prohibition of Bypass ............................................................................................. 21 
2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Process Solution Tanks ............................. 21-22 
2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing 

Pass-through or Interference ................................................................................ 22 
2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes ............................. 22 
2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas ...................................... 22 
2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections ................................... 22 

SECTION 3 
WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 

3.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 22 
3.02 Metered Water Supply ..................................................................................... 22-23 

SECTION 4 
ADMINISTRATION 

4.01 Application ............................................................................................................... 23 
4.02 Discharge Reports .................................................................................................. 24 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Reports ..................................................................... 24-25 
4.04 Permit Application ............................................................................................. 25-26 
4.05 Permit Conditions ............................................................................................. 26-28 
4.06 Duration of Permits ...................................................................................... 28 
4.07 Modification of Permits ........................................................................... 28-29 
4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer .............................................................. 29 
4.09 Revocation of Permit ........................................................................................ 29-30 
4.10 Monitoring Facilities .......................................................................................... 30-31 
4.11 Inspection and Sampling ....................................................................................... 31 
4.12 Search Warranties .................................................................................................. 31 
4.13 Pretreatment ............................................................................................................ 32 
4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge ................................................................. 32 
4.15 Confidential Information ......................................................................................... 32 
4.16 Signature Requirement .................................................................................... 33-34 
4.17 Retention of Records ............................................................................................. 34 
4.18 Notice to Employees .............................................................................................. 34 
4.19 Preventive Measures ....................................................................................... 34-35 
4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions ..................................................................... 35 
4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge ....................................................... 35 
4.22 Special Agreements ............................................................................................... 36 
4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW ..................................... 36 
4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements ............................................. 36-37 
4.25 Special Agreements ......................................................................................... 37-40 

 
 

SECTION 5 
WASTEWATER CHARGES & FEES 

5.01 Schedule of Charges & Fees ................................................................................ 40 
5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges & Fees ..................................................... 40 

 
 

SECTION 6 
ENFORCEMENT 

6.01 Notification of Discharge ........................................................................................ 41 
6.02 Notification of Violation .......................................................................................... 41 
6.03 Consent Orders ...................................................................................................... 41 
6.04 Show Cause Hearing ............................................................................................. 42 
6.05 Administrative Orders ............................................................................................ 42 
6.06 Issuance of Cease & Desist Orders .................................................................... 42 
6.07 Legal Authority to Administrative Fines .............................................................. 43 
6.08 Administrative Procedures & Penalties ......................................................... 43-46 
6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule ........................................................ 46 
6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports ...................................................... 46-47 
6.11 Appeals .................................................................................................................... 47 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems ........................................................................ 47-48 
6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling & Reporting............................................. 48 
6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users ......................................................................... 48 
6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant 

Non-Compliance ..................................................................................................... 48 

SECTION 7 
ABATEMENT 

7.01 Public Nuisance. ............................................................................................... 48-49 
7.02 Recovery of Expenses ........................................................................................... 49 
7.03 Injunctive Relief ...................................................................................................... 49 
7.04 Damage to Facilities ............................................................................................... 49 
7.05 Civil Penalties .......................................................................................................... 49 
7.06 Court Imposed Civil & Criminal Penalties ........................................................... 50 
7.07 Falsifying Information ............................................................................................. 50 
7.08 Termination of Service ........................................................................................... 51 
7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service ...................................................................... 51 
7.10 Immediate termination of Discharge .................................................................... 52 
7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies ........................................................................................ 52 

SECTION 8 
SEVERABILITY 

Section 8 -Severability ..................................................................................................... 53 

SECTION 9 
Section 9 ............................................................................................................................ 53 

SECTION 10 
PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY ............................................................................. 53 

SUPPLEMENT........................................................................................................................... 54 
40 CFR Part 2.302(2): Definition of Effluent Data. ................................................ 54-55 
40 CFR Part 136: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations on Test 

Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants ............................... 55 
40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 

Identifying Hazardous Waste .................................................... 55 
40 CFR Part 403.5: National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited 

Discharges ............................................................................. 55-57 
40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi): Slug Control Plans .......................................................... 58 
40 CFR Part 403.12 Reporting Requirements for POTWs & Industrial Users .... 58 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h): Reporting Requirements for Industrial Users Not 
Subject to Categorical Standards ........................................ 58 

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification. ......................... 59 
40 CFR Part 405 - 471: Categorical Standards & Requirements. ........................... 60 
Locally regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants. ................................................................ 61 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



1  

Section 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 Purpose and Policy 
 

This ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for users of the Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works of the Union Sanitary District and enables the Agency to comply with all applicable 
Local, State and Federal laws, including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code § 
1251 et seq.), the General Pretreatment Regulations (40 Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 403) and the water quality requirements set by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board and/or the State of California Water Resource Control Board. The objectives of this 
ordinance are: 

 
(a) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

that will interfere with its operation; 
 

(b) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
that will pass through the Publicly Owned Treatment Works, inadequately treated, 
into receiving waters, or otherwise be incompatible with the Publicly Owned 
Treatment Works; 

 
(c) To protect both Publicly Owned Treatment Works personnel who may be affected by 

wastewater and sludge in the course of their employment and the general public; 
 

(d) To promote reuse and recycling of industrial wastewater and sludge from the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; 

 
(e) To provide revenues derived from the application of this Ordinance which shall be 

used to defray the Agency's cost of operating and maintaining adequate wastewater 
collection and treatment systems and to provide sufficient funds for capital outlay, 
bond service costs, capital improvements, and depreciation for the equitable 
distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance, and improvement of the Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works; and 

 
(f) To enable Agency to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

permit conditions, sludge use and disposal requirements, and any other Federal, 
State or Local laws to which the Publicly Owned Treatment Works is subject. 

 
This ordinance shall apply to all users of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works. The 
ordinance authorizes the issuance of wastewater discharge permits; provides for 
monitoring, compliance, and enforcement activities; establishes administrative review 
procedures; requires user reporting; and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable 
distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



2  

1.02 Definitions 
 
 

Unless otherwise defined herein, terms shall be as found in Title 40 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Parts 403 and 136. 

 
(a) Agency: Union Sanitary District. 

 
(b) Amalgam: an alloy containing mercury, tin, silver, or copper that is used in dentistry 

to restore teeth. 
 

(c) Amalgam Separator: a device that applies filtration, settlement, centrifugation, or 
ion exchange to remove amalgam and its metal constituents from a dental office 
vacuum system before it discharges to the sewer. 

 
(d) Amalgam Waste: includes non-contact amalgam (amalgam scrap that has not 

been in contact with the patient); contact amalgam (including, but not limited to, 
extracted teeth containing amalgam); amalgam sludge captured by chair-side 
traps, vacuum pump filters, screens and other amalgam trapping devices; used 
amalgam capsules; and leaking or unusable amalgam capsules. 

 
(e) Authority: The East Bay Dischargers Authority. 

 
(f) Batch Discharge: A definite quantity or volume of wastewater produced under 

conditions that are considered uniform. 
 

(g) Beneficial Uses: Uses of the waters of the state that may be protected against 
quality degradation include, but are not necessarily limited to, domestic, municipal, 
agricultural and industrial supply, power generation, recreation, aesthetic 
enjoyment, navigation and the preservation and enhancement of fish, wildlife and 
other aquatic resources or reserves, and other uses, both tangible or intangible, 
as specified by federal or state law. 

 
(h) Best Management Practices or BMPs: Schedules of activities, prohibitions of 

practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to 
implement the prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b). BMPs also include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site 
runoff, spillage and leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw 
materials. 

 
(i) Building Sewer: A sewer conveying wastewater from a point 30 inches or less from 

the building or structure to a main sewer. The building sewer includes that portion 
on the property and that portion from the property line or easement line to the 
sewer main (Lateral Sewer). 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



3  

(j) Bypass: The intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of an 
Industrial User's treatment facility. 

 
(k) Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard: Standards specifying 

the quantity, concentration, or properties of pollutants that may be discharged to 
POTWs. EPA promulgates pretreatment standards for specific industry categories 
in accordance with Clean Water Act section 307. These standards are codified in 
40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N, Parts 405-471. 

 
(l) Chemical Oxygen Demand or COD: The measure of the oxygen equivalent of the 

organic matter content of a sample that is susceptible to oxidation by a strong 
chemical oxidant. 

 
(m) Community Sewer: A sewer owned and operated by the Agency, a city, or other 

public agency tributary to a treatment facility operated by the Agency or the 
Authority. 

 
(n) Compatible Pollutant: Biochemical oxygen demand, chemical oxygen demand, 

suspended solids, pH and fecal coliform bacteria, plus additional pollutants 
identified in the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit if the publicly owned treatment works was designed to treat such 
pollutants, and in fact does remove such pollutants to a substantial degree. 

 
(o) Composite Sample: A sample resulting from the combination of individual 

wastewater samples taken at selected intervals based on an increment of either 
flow or time. Samples may be taken manually or by using automatic equipment. 
Manual composite samples shall consist of a minimum of four (4) grab samples. 

 
(p) Contamination: An impairment of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to 

a degree which creates a hazard to the public health through poisoning or through 
the spread of disease. Contamination shall include any equivalent effect resulting 
from the disposal of wastewater, whether or not waters of the state are affected. 

 
(q) District: Union Sanitary District 

 
(r) Domestic Use: Any single family or multifamily residence which discharges, or 

causes, or allows the discharge of domestic wastewater to the POTW. 
 

(s) Domestic Wastewater: The liquid waste or liquid-borne waste discharged from 
residential units, normally resulting from the non-commercial preparation, cooking 
and handling of food, personal laundry, and wastes from sanitary conveniences or 
from sanitary devices in industrial or commercial establishments. 

 
(t) Environmental Protection Agency or EPA: The U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency or, where appropriate, the Regional Water Management Division Director, 
or other duly authorized official of said agency. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



4  

 

(u) Federal Act, Clean Water Act: The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known 
as the Clean Water Act, as amended, PL 92-500 Title 33 U.S. Code, section 1251 
et seq. (and any amendments thereto; as well as any guidelines, limitations, and 
standards promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the 
Act.) 

 
(v) Grab Sample: A sample that is taken from a wastestream without regard to the 

flow in the wastestream and over a period of time not to exceed fifteen (15) 
minutes. 

 
(w) Hazardous Waste: Waste substances which can pose a hazard to human health 

or the environment when improperly managed; or. waste that possesses at least 
one of these four characteristics: ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity or toxicity; or 
appears on special U.S. EPA lists. This definition also includes all wastes 
covered in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5 
Environmental Health Standards for the Management of Hazardous Waste. 

 
(x) Holding Tank Waste: Any waste from temporary or permanent containers such as 

holding tanks, vessels, truck tanks, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, 
totes, drums, vacuum pump tank trucks, etc. 

 
(y) Incompatible Pollutant: Any pollutant, which is not a compatible pollutant as 

defined in this section. 
 

(z) Industrial User: An industrial or commercial business, which discharges, or causes, 
or allows the discharge of non-domestic wastewater to the POTW. 

 
(aa) Industrial Wastewater: Liquid waste or liquid-borne waste that is generated in a 

commercial or industrial process. 
 

(bb)  Indirect Discharge or Discharge: The introduction of pollutants into the POTW from 
any non-domestic source regulated under Section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the Clean 
Water Act. 

 
(cc) Interference: A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with discharges from other 

sources, both: 
 

(1) inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations, or its 
sludge processes, use or disposal; and therefore 

 
(2) is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit 

(including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation) or of the 
prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance with the following 
statutory provisions and regulations or permits issued there under (or more 
stringent state or local regulations): Section 405 of the Clean Water Act, the 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



5  

Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including Title II, more commonly referred 
to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and including 
state regulations contained in any state sludge management plan prepared 
pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA), the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances 
Control Act, and the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act. 

 
(dd) Manager: The General Manager of the District, or his or her designated 

representative. 
 

(ee) Mass Limit Rate: The weight of material discharged to the sewer system during a 
given time interval. Unless otherwise specified, the mass limit rate shall mean 
pounds per day of a constituent or combination of constituents. 

 
(ff) Maximum Allowable Discharge Limit: The maximum concentration of a pollutant 

allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete 
or composite sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the 
duration of the sampling event. 

 
(gg) Medical Waste: Any waste, liquid or solid, generated by a medical facility which 

may pose a health and/or safety threat to Agency personnel. 
 

(hh) National Pretreatment Standard, Pretreatment Standard, or Standard: Any 
regulation containing pollutant discharge limits or Best Management Practices 
promulgated by the EPA in accordance with section 307 (b) and (c) of the Clean 
Water Act, that applies to industrial users. This term includes prohibitive discharge 
limits established pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5. 

 
(ii) New Source: Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is or 

may be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the 
publication of proposed pretreatment standards under Section 307c of the Clean 
Water Act that will be applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter 
promulgated, provided that: 

 
(1) The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no 

other source is located; or 
 

(2) The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or 
production equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing 
source; or 

 
(3) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, 

facility or installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the 
same site. In determining whether these are substantially independent, factors 
such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, 
and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the existing source should be considered 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



6  

 

(jj) pH: A measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in standard units. 
 

(kk) POTW Treatment Plant: That portion of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works which 
is designed to provide treatment (including recycling and reclamation) of municipal 
sewage and industrial waste. 

 
(ll)  Pass Through: A discharge that exits the POTW into waters of the United States in 

quantities or concentrations that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or 
discharges from other sources, is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the 
POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a 
violation). 

 
(mm) Person: Any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, corporation, 

association, joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other 
legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or assigns. This definition 
includes any Federal, State and local governmental entity. 

 
(nn)  Pesticides: Total pesticides identified in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water 

Act which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(oo)  Phenolics: Compounds having one or more hydroxy groups attached to a benzene 
or other polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons as tested using EPA Method 420. 

 
(pp)  Pollution: An alteration of the quality of the waters of the state by waste to a degree 

which unreasonably affects such waters for beneficial use or facilities which serve 
such beneficial uses. Pollution may include contamination. 

 
(qq)  Pollution Prevention: Activities which reduce the amount of pollutants discharged 

to the community sewer, without transferring those pollutants to the air or land, 
including reduction in the use of chemicals containing regulated pollutants, 
reduction in the generation of wastes which contain pollutants, recovery and 
recycling of wastes and/or improved pretreatment of wastes prior to discharge. 

 
(rr) Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB): Total PCBs detectable by EPA approved methods. 

 
(ss) Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH): Total organic pollutants containing more 

than one fused aromatic ring, which are detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(tt) Premise: A parcel of real estate including any improvements thereon which is 
determined by the Agency to be a single user for purposes of receiving, using, and 
paying for service. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



7  

(uu) Pretreatment Requirement: Any substantive or procedural pretreatment requirement 
other than a national pretreatment standard. 

 
(vv) Private Sewer Lateral: The pipeline that conveys wastewater from a residence or 

any other building foundation to the main District sewer line. 
 

(ww) Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges: Absolute prohibitions 
against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Section 
2.01 of this ordinance. 

 
(xx) Publicly Owned Treatment Works or “POTW”: A treatment works as defined by 

section 212 of the Clean Water Act, which is owned by a state or municipality (as 
defined by section 502(4) of the Clean Water Act). This definition includes any 
devices and systems used in the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of 
municipal sewage or industrial wastes of a liquid nature. It also includes sewers, 
pipes, and other conveyances only if they convey wastewater to a POTW 
treatment plant. The term also means the municipality as defined in section 502(4) 
of the Clean Water Act, that has jurisdiction over the indirect discharges to and the 
discharges from such a treatment works. 

 
(yy)  Sample points: 

(1) Facility (FAC) - a sample point whereby the total, combined waste stream, 
both process and domestic, from a facility is monitored for compliance with 
local discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(2) "001" - a sample point whereby a facility's federally regulated process 

waste stream/streams, immediately after treatment, is/are monitored for 
compliance with federally imposed discharge limitations or requirements. 

 
(3) "002" - a sample point whereby all process waste streams (non- 

categorical), excluding domestic, from a facility are monitored for 
compliance with local discharge limitations. 

 
 

(zz) Septic Tank Waste: Any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical 
toilets, campers, trailers, and septic tanks. 

 
(aaa) Severe Property Damage: Substantial physical damage to property, damage to the 

treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and 
permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur 
in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic 
loss caused by delays in production. 

 
(bbb) Significant Industrial User (SIU): 

 
(1) A user subject to categorical pretreatment standards; or 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



8  

 

(2) A user that: 
 

(i) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day 
or more of process wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, 
noncontact cooling, and boiler blowdown wastewater); 

 
(ii) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five (5) percent or 

more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW treatment plant; or 

 
(iii) Is designated as such by the Agency on the basis that it has a 

reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any pretreatment standard or requirement. 

 
(3) Upon finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has 

no reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for 
violating any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may at any 
time, on its own initiative or in response to a petition received from an 
Industrial User, and in accordance with procedures in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(6), 
determine that such User should not be considered a Significant Industrial 
User. 

 
(ccc) Significant Noncompliance: An industrial user is in significant noncompliance with 

applicable pretreatment requirements if any violation meets one or more of the 
following criteria: 

 
(1) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits defined here as those in 

which 66 percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, as 
defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l). 

 
(2) Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33 

percent or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a 6-month period are equal to or exceed the product of the 
numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, 
as defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l) multiplied by the applicable TRC (TRC = 1.4 for 
BOD, TSS, fats, oil and grease and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH.) 

 
(3) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by 

40 CFR 403.3(l) (daily maximum, long-term average, instantaneous limit, or 
narrative standard) that the POTW determines has caused, alone or in 
combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass Through (including 
endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public). 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



9  

(4) Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to human 
health, welfare or to the environment or has resulted in the POTW's exercise 
of its emergency authority under paragraph (f)(1)(vi)(B) of 40 CFR 403.8 to halt 
or prevent such a discharge. 

 
(5) Failure to meet, within 90 days after the due date, a compliance schedule 

milestone contained in a local control mechanism or enforcement order for 
starting construction, completing construction or attaining final compliance. 

 
(6) Failure to provide, within 45 days after the due date, required reports such as 

baseline  monitoring  reports,  90-day  compliance  reports,  periodic self-
monitoring reports and reports on compliance with compliance schedules. 

 
(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

 
(8) Any other violation or group of violations, which may include a violation of Best 

Management Practices (BMPs), that the Agency determines will adversely 
affect the operation or implementation of the local pretreatment program. 

 
(ddd) Slug Load or Slug: Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which could cause 

a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in Section 2.01 of this ordinance. 
A Slug Discharge is any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but 
not limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge, that has a 
reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way 
violate the POTW's regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions. 

 
(eee) Stormwater: The runoff generated when precipitation from rain and snowmelt 

events flow over land or impervious surfaces without percolating into the ground. 
 

(fff) The District: Union Sanitary District. 
 

(ggg) Total Halogenated Organics (THO): Total halogenated organic pollutants identified 
in Table 1, Section 307 of the Clean Water Act which are detectable by EPA 
approved methods. 

 
(hhh) Total Organics (TO): Total organic pollutants as specified by the Agency which are 

detectable by EPA approved methods. 
 

(iii) Total Toxic Organics (TTO): Total organic pollutants including polynuclear aromatic 
hydrocarbons (PAHs), but excluding pesticides, PCBs, and phenols, which are 
detectable by EPA approved methods. The TTO value is determined as the 
summation of all quantifiable values greater than 0.01 milligrams per liter for the 
regulated toxic organics. 

 
(jjj) Unpolluted Water: Water to which no constituent has been added, either intentionally 

or accidentally, which would render such water unacceptable to the 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



10  

agency having jurisdiction thereof for disposal to storm or natural drainages or 
directly to surface waters. 

 
(kkk) User: Any person that discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of wastewater 

into a community sewer. 
 

(lll) User Classification: A classification of user based on the latest edition of the Standard 
Industrial Classification (SIC) Manual prepared by the Executive Office of 
Management and Budget. 

 
(mmm) Waste: Includes sewage and any and all other waste substances, liquid, solid, 

gaseous, or radioactive, associated with human habitation, or of human or animal 
origin, or from any producing, manufacturing, or processing operation of whatever 
nature, including such waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to, 
and for purposes of, disposal. 

 
(nnn) Wastewater: Waste and water, whether treated or untreated, discharged into or 

permitted to enter a community sewer. 
 

(ooo) Wastewater Constituents and Characteristics: The individual chemical, physical, 
bacteriological and radiological parameters, including volume and flow rate and 
such other parameters that serve to define, classify or measure the contents, 
quality, quantity, and strength of wastewater. 

 
(ppp) Wastewater Discharge Permit: A legal document used as a control mechanism to 

ensure compliance with regulations that grants revocable permission to discharge 
wastewater to the sanitary sewer, including the following types of Wastewater 
Discharge Permit: 

 
Class I Permit  -  Issued to Significant Industrial Users both Categorical and 

Non-Categorical 
 

Class II Permit - Issued to Non-Significant Industrial Users. 
 

Class III Permit -  Issued to Industrial or Commercial Users determined by the 
Agency not to fall in the Class I or Class II categories. 

 
General Permit -  Similar to a Class III permit, issued to Industrial or 

Commercial User groups that perform similar functions or 
activities. 

 
Groundwater Permit - Issued for the discharge of treated groundwater from 

contaminated site remediation, excavation groundwater or 
potable water related projects. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



11  

Temporary Permit - Issued for single or short term (less than one year) 
discharges of wastewater or contaminated ground water. 

 
(qqq) Waters of the State: Any water, surface or underground, including saline waters 

within the boundaries of the state. 
 
 

1.03 Analytical and Sampling Methodology and Procedures 
 
 

(a) The method and procedures utilized for all analyses which are reported under the 
requirements of these regulations shall be as specified by the provisions of 40 CFR 
Part 136. 

 
(b) The methods and procedures utilized for all sampling performed and/or reported 

under the requirements of these regulation shall be as specified by the provisions 
of 40 CFR Part 136. 

 
(c) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the 

pollutant in question, sampling and analyses must be performed in accordance 
with procedures approved by the District or EPA. 

 
(d) Analytical data collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data 

obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period 
covered by the report and is representative of conditions occurring during the 
reporting period. 

 
 

Section 2 

REGULATIONS 

 
2.01 Sewer Use Requirements 

 
2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges 

 
(a) General Prohibitions: No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

POTW any pollutant or wastewater which causes Pass Through or Interference. 
These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the POTW whether or not they are 
subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other National, State or Local 
Pretreatment Standards or Requirements. 

 
(b) Specific Prohibitions: No user shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the 

community sewer system any pollutants, substances, or wastewater which cause, 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



12  

threaten to cause, or are capable of causing, either alone or by interaction with other 
substances: 

 
(1) a fire or explosion, including but not limited to discharges with a closed cup 

flashpoint of less than 140° F (60° C) using the test methods specified in 
40CFR261.21; 

 
(2) obstruction of flow in a sewer system or injury of the system or damage to the 

wastewater collection, treatment, or disposal facilities; 
 

(3) danger to life or safety of personnel; 
 

(4) a nuisance or prevention of the effective maintenance or operation of the sewer 
system, through having a strong, unpleasant odor; 

 
(5) air pollution by the release of toxic or malodorous gases or malodorous gas- 

producing substances; 
 

(6) interference with the wastewater treatment process; and/or pass through of any 
pollutant which causes a violation of the Agency's National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit; 

 
(7) the Agency's effluent or any other product of the treatment process, residues, 

sludges, or scums, to be unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with 
the reclamation process; 

 
(8) a detrimental environmental impact or a nuisance in the waters of the state or a 

condition unacceptable to any public agency having regulatory jurisdiction over 
the Agency; 

 
(9) discoloration or any other condition in the quality of the Agency's treatment 

works effluent in such a manner that receiving water quality requirements 
established by law cannot be met; 

 
(10) conditions at or near the Agency's treatment works which violate any statute or 

any rule, regulation, or ordinance of any public agency or state or federal 
regulatory body; 

 
(11) quantities or rates of flow which overload the Agency's collection or treatment 

facilities or cause excessive Agency collection or treatment costs, or may use a 
disproportionate share of the Agency facilities; 

 
(12) the evolution of toxic gases, fumes, or vapors in quantities injurious to the health 

and safety of Agency personnel; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



13  

(13) the temperature at the treatment plant headworks to exceed 104o F (40oC) or 
temperature which will inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting 
in Interference; 

 
(14) wastewater having a pH less than 5.0 or greater than 12.0, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment; 
 

(15) an exceedance of the permitted Mass Limit Rate established in the Local Limits 
or discharge permits; or 

 
(16) settlement of materials or obstruction to flow resulting in interference, such as, 

but not limited to, sand, mud, glass, metal, filings, diatomaceous earth, cat litter, 
asphalt, wood, bones, hair, fleshings, food packaging, product containers and 
non-dispersible products. 

 
 

2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community sewer: 
 

(a) Pollutants, including oxygen-demanding pollutants (for example, COD), released in 
a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which, either singly or by 
interaction with other pollutants, will cause interference with the POTW; 

 
(b) Wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except in compliance with 

applicable State or Federal regulations; 
 

(c) Sludges, screenings, or other residues (solid or liquid) from the pretreatment of 
industrial wastes; 

 
(d) Medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Agency; 

 
(e) All prescription and non-prescription (over the counter) pharmaceutical drugs or 

medications; 
 

(f) Wastewater causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, the treatment 
plant's effluent to fail a toxicity test; 

 
(g) Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances which may cause excessive 

foaming in the POTW; 
 

(h) Wastewater containing pesticides, dioxins and dioxin-like compounds, and/or 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB) at levels detectable by EPA approved methods; 

 
(i) Hazardous wastes or materials, as defined by California Code of Regulations Title 

22 or Subtitles C and D of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



14  

Pollutants, substances, or wastewater prohibited by this section shall not be processed 
or stored in such a manner that they could be discharged to the POTW. 

 
 

2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam Fillings 
 

(a) All owners and operators of dental facilities that remove or place amalgam fillings 
shall comply with the following waste management practices: 

 
(1) No person shall rinse chair-side traps, vacuum screens, or amalgam separator 

equipment in a sink or other connection to the community sewer per 
40CFR441.30(b)(1). Such traps, vacuum screens or amalgam separator 
equipment must be recycled or disposed of in an appropriate manner according 
to recycler or equipment manufacturer. 

 
(2) Amalgam waste and other hazardous solutions shall be properly collected, 

packaged, labeled, stored, managed, and disposed. 
 

(3) Dental unit water lines, chair-side traps, and vacuum lines that discharge 
amalgam process wastewater to a community sewer must not be cleaned with 
oxidizing or acidic cleaners, including but not limited to bleach, chlorine, iodine 
and peroxide that have a pH lower than 6 or greater than 8 per 
40CFR441.30(b)(2). 

 
(4) Owners and operators of dental facilities shall ensure that all staff members who 

handle amalgam waste are trained in the proper handling, management and 
disposal of mercury-containing material and other hazardous solutions and shall 
maintain training records that will be made available for inspection by an 
employee of the District during normal business hours. 

 
(5) The use of bulk mercury is prohibited. Only pre-capsulated dental amalgam is 

allowed. 
 

(b) All owners and operators of dental vacuum suction systems, except as set forth in 
subsection (c) of this section, shall comply with the following: 

 
(1) Install amalgam separator device compliant with 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) 

or 40CFR441.40 (new offices). Amalgam separator device must achieve at least 
a 95 percent removal efficiency. No bypass of separator device or related 
plumbing shall be allowed. 

 
(2) Per 40CFR441.50, a One-Time Compliance Report must be submitted to the 

District from existing offices by no later than October 12, 2020, or 90 days after 
a transfer of ownership. For new offices, a One-Time Compliance Report must 
be submitted to the District no later than 90 days following the introduction of 
wastewater into the community sewer. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



15  

 

(3) Amalgam separators shall be installed, operated and maintained in accordance 
with manufacturer recommendations per 40CFR441.30 (existing offices) or 
40CFR441.40 (new offices). 

 
(4) Dental Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain for a minimum of three years and make available for immediate 
inspection the following documentation per 40CFR441.50(b): 

 
•  Documentation of the date, person(s) conducting the inspection, and results 

of each inspection of the amalgam separator(s) and a summary of follow-up 
actions, if needed. 

 
• Documentation of amalgam retaining container replacement (including 

installation date, as applicable). 
 

• Documentation of all dates that collected dental amalgam is picked up or 
shipped for proper disposal in accordance with 40 CFR 261.5(g)(3), and the 
name of the permitted or licensed treatment, storage or disposal facility 
receiving the amalgam waste. 

 
• Documentation of any repair or replacement of an amalgam separator, 

including the date, person(s) making the repair or replacement, and a 
description of the repair or replacement (including make and model). 

 
• Dischargers or an agent or representative of the dental discharger must 

maintain and make available for inspection in either physical or electronic form 
the manufacturers operating manual for the current device. 

 
(c) Specialty dental offices where the practice of dentistry consists exclusively of one or 

more of the following are exempt from this requirement (Section 2.02) per 
40CFR441.10(c), provided that the District receives written certification that removal 
or placement of amalgam fillings does not take place: 

 
• Orthodontics 
• Periodontics 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery 
• Oral and Maxillofacial Radiology 
• Oral Pathology or Oral Medicine 
• Prosthodontics 

 
 

2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater 
 

Storm water, groundwater, rainwater, street drainage, subsurface drainage or yard 
drainage shall not be discharged through direct or indirect connections to a community 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



16  

sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The Agency may approve the discharge 
of such water at its discretion and only when no reasonable alternative method of disposal 
is available. 

 
If the permit is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the user 
shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as required by 
the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be considered a 
Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge limitations or 
prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the discharge at any 
time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual basis. 

 
 

2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Remediation Projects 
 

Wastewater generated from the cleanup of spills, leaking underground storage tanks, 
groundwater remediation, monitoring wells, excavation groundwater, potable water 
projects or other similar sources shall not be discharged through direct or indirect 
connections to a community sewer unless a discharge permit is issued by the Agency. 
The Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If a discharge permit is granted for the discharge of such water into the community sewer, 
the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and meet such other conditions as 
required by the Agency. For the purpose of permits and fees, the discharge shall be 
considered a Class I discharge subject to permit requirements in Section 4 and discharge 
limitations or prohibitions of Section 2. The Agency retains the right to terminate the 
discharge at any time for cause. Each discharge permit must be reviewed on an annual 
basis. 

 
 

2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water 
 

Unpolluted water, including but not limited to cooling water, process water, or blow-down 
from cooling towers or evaporative coolers, will not be discharged through direct or 
indirect connection to a community sewer unless a permit is issued by the Agency. The 
Agency may approve the discharge of such water at its discretion and only when no 
reasonable alternative method of disposal is available. 

 
If authorization is granted for the discharge of such water into a community sewer, the 
user shall pay the applicable user charges and fees and shall meet such other 
requirements and/or conditions as required by the Agency. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



17  

2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes 
 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any radioactive waste into a 
community sewer except: 

 
(a) when a person is authorized to use radioactive materials by the State Department 

of Health or other governmental agency empowered to regulate the use of 
radioactive materials; and 

 
(b) when the waste is discharged in strict conformity with the requirements of the United 

States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, the United States Department of Energy, 
and/or the California Radiation Control Regulations; and 

 
(c) when the person is in compliance with all rules and regulations of all other applicable 

regulatory agencies. 
 
 

2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders 
Waste from garbage grinders, food waste liquefiers, aerobic and anaerobic bio-digesters, 
food composters and similar devices shall not be discharged into the community sewer 
excepts as approved in writing by the Agency. 

 
Garbage grinders and similar devices shall not be used for grinding plastic, paper 
products, inert materials, or garden refuse. 

 
 

2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge 
 

No person shall discharge any substances directly into a manhole or other opening in a 
community sewer other than through an approved building sewer unless, upon written 
application by the user and payment of the applicable user charges and fees, the Agency 
issues a permit for such direct discharges. 

 
 

2.09 Waste Holding Tanks, Vessels and Containers 
 

No person shall discharge any holding tank or vessel waste into a community sewer 
unless a wastewater discharge permit is issued by the Agency. Unless otherwise allowed 
by the Agency under the terms and conditions of the permit, a separate permit must be 
secured for each separate discharge. This permit may state the specific location of 
discharge, the time of day the discharge is to occur, the volume of the discharge and the 
wastewater constituents and characteristics. If a permit is granted for discharge of such 
waste into a community sewer, the user shall pay the applicable charges and fees and 
shall meet such other conditions as required by the Agency. An exception to the above is 
that no permit will be required for discharge of domestic wastes from mobile home holding 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



18  

tanks provided that such discharges are made into an Agency approved facility designed 
to receive such wastes. 

 
 

2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength 
 

(a) The Manager is authorized to establish Local Limits or Best Management Practices 
(BMP's) pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). 

 
(b) The following pollutant limits are established to protect against Pass Through and 

Interference. 
 

(1) The following limits are maximum allowable discharge limits (the maximum 
concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined 
from the analysis of any discrete or composite sample collected, independent of 
the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event). Limits for metals 
are for total recoverable metals. 

 
No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

 
Arsenic 0.35 mg/L 
Cadmium 0.2 mg/L 
Copper 2.0 mg/L 
Cyanide 0.65 mg/L 
Lead 1.0 mg/L 
Mercury 0.01 mg/L 
Nickel 1.0 mg/L 
Silver 0.5 mg/L 
Total Chromium 2.0 mg/L 
Zinc 3.0 mg/L 
TTO 2.13 mg/L 
Formaldehyde 50.0 mg/L 
Phenolics 5.0 mg/L 

 
(2) No person shall discharge wastewater: 

 
(A) having a temperature higher than 150° F (65.5° C), or any thermal discharge 

which as a result of temperature and/or volume causes the influent of the 
wastewater treatment plant to exceed 104° F (40° C); 

 
(B) containing more than 300 mg/L of oil or grease of animal or vegetable origin, 

unless specifically approved by the District. The District may approve, on a 
case by case basis, a modification to the analytical method if the discharger 
can demonstrate that constituents in their wastewater interfere with the 
freon extraction, hexane extraction or current EPA approved procedure and 
have no negative impact on the POTW and/or receiving waters. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



19  

 

(C) containing more than 100 mg/L of oil or grease of mineral or petroleum 
origin; 

 
(D) having a pH lower than 6.0 or higher than 12.0 units, or otherwise causing 

corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment, 
unless specifically approved by the District. Under no circumstances will a 
pH of less than 5.0 or higher than 12.5 pH units be approved. 

 
(3) The following limits for ammonia are maximum allowable average 

concentrations. Limits are for total ammonia expressed as nitrogen. Limits are 
tiered based on average daily flow, which is the arithmetic average of the 
permitted industrial user's daily flows for the preceding calendar year and is 
equivalent to the flow rate used in establishing sewer service charges: 

 
Average Daily Flow Ammonia Limit 

 
<10,000 gallons per day (gpd) 225 mg/L as N 
10,000 - 25,000 gpd 150 mg/L as N 
>25,000 gpd 75 mg/L as N 

 
Compliance determination shall be based on the average of all valid and 
representative analyses occurring within a 6-month period 

 
For industrial users holding permits issued prior to January 1, 2014, the 
Manager may issue compliance schedules for ammonia as described in 
Sections 6.09 and 6.10. In no case may these compliance schedules exceed 
5 years. All new permitted industrial users must comply with these limits upon 
initial discharge. 

 
(4) Additional Limits 

 
Limits for pollutants not listed in this section 2.10 may be established in a 
wastewater discharge permit based on available treatment technology, existing 
wastewater conditions in the District's facilities or other factors determined by 
the Manager. The Manager may also establish wastewater strength limits on 
the wastewater discharge permits at locations within a premises whenever non- 
process water many dilute wastewater discharging from side sewers. 

 
(c) National Categorical Standards, found in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 

405-471, as may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated into these 
regulations. Effluent limitations promulgated by the Clean Water Act shall apply in 
any instance where they are more stringent than those in these regulations. 

 
(d) Additional limits specific to the discharge of groundwater or surface water. No 

person shall discharge groundwater or surface water in excess of: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



20  

 

Total Halogenated Organics (THO) 0.02mg/L 
Total Organics  2.0 mg/L 

 
 

2.10.1 Mass Limit Rate Determination 
 

(a) Mass Limit Rates for non-compatible or compatible pollutants that are present or 
anticipated in the User's wastewater discharge may be set for each User and made 
an applicable part of each User's wastewater discharge permit. These rates shall be 
based on Maximum Allowable Local Discharge Limits, Federal Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards, the User's average daily wastewater discharge for the past 
three years, the most recent representative data, or other data or factors determined 
by the Manager 

 
(b) To verify the User's operating data, the User may be required to submit an inventory 

of all wastewater streams and/or records indicating production rates. 
 

(c) The District may revise limits or Mass Limit Rates previously established in the User's 
permit at any time, based on current or anticipated operating data of the User or the 
District the District's ability to meet NPDES limits, or changes in the requirements of 
regulatory agencies. 

 
(d) The excess use of water to establish artificially high flow rate for the Mass Limit Rate 

determination is prohibited. 
 
 

2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges 
 

No user shall discharge any pollutant, including oxygen-demanding pollutants, at a flow 
rate and/or pollutant concentration which causes or threatens to cause interference with 
the wastewater treatment process. For the purposes of this section, any discharge at a 
flow rate or concentration which could cause a violation of the prohibited discharge 
standards or limitations in Section 2 of this ordinance shall be deemed a slug discharge. 

 
 

2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution 
 

Except where expressly authorized to do so by an applicable pretreatment standard or 
requirement, no user shall increase the use of process water, or in any other way attempt 
to dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate pretreatment to 
achieve compliance with a pretreatment standard, requirement or discharge limitation. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



21  

2.13 Prohibition of Bypass 
 

(a) Bypass of pretreatment equipment and/or discharge points is prohibited and the 
Agency may take enforcement action against any user for bypass unless: 

 
(1) bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage; 
 

(2) there were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 
treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal 
periods of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate 
backup equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable 
engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods 
of equipment downtime or preventative maintenance; and 

 
(3) the industrial user submits the following notices: 

 
(i) If an Industrial User knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall 

submit prior notice to the Agency, if possible at least ten days before the 
date of the bypass. 

 
(ii) An Industrial User shall submit oral notice of an unanticipated bypass that 

exceeds applicable Pretreatment Standards to the Agency within 24 hours 
from the time the Industrial User becomes aware of the bypass. A written 
submission shall also be provided within 5 days of the time the Industrial 
User becomes aware of the bypass. The written submission shall contain a 
description of the bypass and its cause; the duration of the bypass, including 
exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the 
anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken 
or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. 
The Agency may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral 
report has been received within 24 hours. 

 
(b) The Agency may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse 

effects, if the Agency determines that it will meet the three conditions specified in 
part (a) of this section. 

 
 

2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Chemical Solutions and Sludges 
 

No user shall, without prior written approval of the Agency, discharge any unused or waste 
chemical solutions to the community sewer. For the purposes of this section, such 
materials include, but are not limited to, concentrated solutions utilized within any 
commercial or industrial operation, containerized liquids of any description, spoiled or 
otherwise unusable raw materials of any description, or spoiled or otherwise unusable 
products of any description. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



22  

The Agency may approve the discharge of such wastes at its sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 

2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing Pass-through 
or Interference 

 
Notwithstanding the provisions of section 2.10(b), no user may discharge petroleum oil, 
non-biodegradable cutting oil or other products of mineral origin in any amount that 
causes interference or pass-through. 

 
 

2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes 
 

The discharge of any trucked or otherwise hauled wastes to the sanitary sewer system is 
prohibited except as the Agency may permit under the provisions of section 2.09. 

 
 

2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas 
 

The discharge of waste (solid or liquid), wastewater or chemicals from a chemical storage 
containment area is prohibited unless expressly authorized by the Agency. 

 
 

2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections 
 

Unapproved connections to the community sewer are strictly prohibited. 
Any building sewers that have not been permitted, inspected, or where capacity and/or 
current sewer service charges have not been paid, are subject to the conditions of 
Ordinance 34, Article 2, Section 7, Connection of Building Drains. 

 
 

Section 3 
 

WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION 
 
 

3.01 Application 
 

Section 3 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 
 
 

3.02 Metered Water Supply 
 

User charges and fees shall be applied against the total amount of water used from all 
sources unless, in the opinion of the Agency, significant portions of water received are 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



23  

not discharged to a community sewer. The total amount of water used from public and 
private sources will be determined by means of public meters or private meters, installed 
and maintained at the expense of the user and approved by the Agency. 

 
(a) Metered Wastewater Volume and Metered Diversions. For users where, in the 

opinion of the Agency, a significant portion of the water received from any metered 
source does not flow into a community sewer because of the principal activity of the 
user or removal by other means, the user charges and fees will be applied against 
the volume of water discharged from such premises into a community sewer. Written 
notification and proof of the diversion of water must be provided by the user if the 
user is to avoid the application of the user charges and fees against the total amount 
of water used from all sources. The user may install a meter of a type and at a 
location approved by the Agency and at the user's expense. Such meters may 
measure either the amount of sewage discharged or the amount water diverted. 
Such meters shall be tested for accuracy at the expense of the user when deemed 
necessary by the Manager. 

 
(b) Users With Source Meters. For users who, in the opinion of the Agency, divert a 

significant portion of their metered water supply from a community sewer, the user 
charges may be based upon an estimate of the volume to be discharged, provided 
the user obtains authorization from the agency and pays the applicable user charges 
and fees. The estimate must include the method and calculations used to determine 
the wastewater volume and may consider such factors as the number of fixtures, 
seating capacity, population equivalents, annual production of goods and services, 
or such other determinations of water use necessary to estimate the wastewater 
volume discharged. 

 
(c) Users Without Source Meters. The agency may require the installation of water 

meters; however, for users where, in the opinion of the Agency, it is unnecessary or 
impractical to install meters, the quantity of wastewater may be based upon an 
estimate prepared by the Agency. This estimate shall be based upon a rational 
determination of the wastewater discharged and may consider such factors as the 
number of fixtures, seating capacity, population equivalent, annual production of 
goods and services, or such other determinants of water use necessary to estimate 
the wastewater volume discharged. 

 
 

Section 4 

ADMINISTRATION 

 
4.01 Application 

 
Section 4 does not apply to "dwelling units" as defined in Agency Ordinance 31. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



24  

 

4.02 Discharge Reports 
 

(a) The Agency, or the Authority through the Agency, may require that any person 
discharging or proposing to discharge wastewater into a community sewer file a 
periodic discharge report. The discharge report may include, but not be limited to, 
nature of process, volume, rates of flow, mass emission rate, production quantities, 
hours of operation, number and classification of employees, or other information 
which relates to the generation of waste including wastewater constituents and 
characteristics in the wastewater discharge and sample analysis demonstrating 
compliance with Section 2. Such reports may also include the chemical constituents 
and quantity of liquid or gaseous materials stored on site even though they may not 
normally be discharged. 

 
(b) The agency may prohibit, authorize or condition any discharge into the sanitary 

sewer in accordance with this ordinance and applicable state and federal 
regulations, whether or not a Discharge Permit is issued. 

 
(c) Acceptance of any new discharge is contingent on available capacity in the collection 

system and/or treatment plant, as determined by the District Engineering Division 
and Operations Department. 

 
 

4.03 Wastewater Discharge Permits 
 

4.03.1 Class I Permits. All significant industrial users (SIU), as defined in Section 1.02 
(bbb), must have a current Class I Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

 
Each new SIU, if not connected to a community sewer, must obtain a Class I Wastewater 
Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a community sewer. 

 
Any user currently connected to the community sewer who in the future is deemed to be 
an SIU shall be required to obtain a Class I permit. User will be required to pay all 
applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.2 Class II Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I Permit, yet require some sampling and regular monitoring of 
wastewater discharge, if connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a 
Class II Wastewater Discharge Permit before connecting to or discharging into a 
community sewer. User will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the 
Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
4.03.3 Class III Permits. Users who, as determined by the Agency, do not fall within the 
requirements for a Class I or II permit, yet have a wastewater discharge that the Agency 
may decide requires oversight due to potential risks associated with said discharge, if 
connected to a community sewer, may be required to obtain a Class III wastewater 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



25  

discharge permit before connecting to or discharging into the community sewer. User will 
be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 
Class III permits may include General permits or any other as determined by the Manager. 

 
4.03.4 Temporary and/or Groundwater Permits. Users who, as determined by the 
Agency, do not fall within the requirements for a Class I, II, or III permit, yet have a 
wastewater discharge that the Agency may decide requires oversight due to potential 
risks associated with said discharge if connected to the community sewer. Temporary 
permits will be issued for one time, or for a discharge period not to exceed one year. User 
will be required to pay all applicable fees as set forth in the Agency's current fee schedule. 

 
The Manager may modify wastewater discharge requirements for the following types of 
facilities: 

 
(a) Industrial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge with no treatment (beyond 

simple filtration) in place and do not require routine monitoring or inspection. 
 

(b) Commercial Facilities that have a wastewater discharge that may have detectable 
amounts of one or more priority or conventional pollutants present in their waste 
stream. The Agency may require some level of treatment at such facilities, however, 
do not require routine monitoring or inspection. (Examples: dentists, photo 
processors, printers, and restaurants.) 

 
 

4.04 Permit Application 
 

Users seeking a Wastewater Discharge Permit shall complete and file with the Manager 
an application in the form prescribed by the Manager and accompanied by the applicable 
fees. The applicant may be required to submit, in units and terms appropriate for 
evaluation, the following information: 

 
(a) name, address, and SIC number of applicant; 

 
(b) volume of wastewater to be discharged; 

 
(c) sampling of wastewater to determine constituents and characteristics including, but 

not limited to, those listed in Section 2.10 as determined by a laboratory approved 
by the Agency; 

 
(d) time and duration of discharge; 

 
(e) average and 30-minute peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly, and 

seasonal variations, if any; 
 

(f) site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all 
sewers and appurtenances by function, size, location, and elevation; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



26  

 

(g) Description of activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises, including a 
list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the facility which are, or could 
accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW; 

 
(h) each product produced by type, amount, and rate of production; 

 
(i) number and type of employees, and hours of work; 

 
(j) description of wastewater treatment system(s), and/or procedures, including system 

design, piping, layout, hydraulic and pollutant removal capacity, design criteria, 
calibration and maintenance procedures, alarm systems, sample points, treatment 
chemicals, excursion response procedures, and any other information necessary to 
evaluate the adequacy and appropriateness of the treatment system and/or 
procedures. 

 
(k) management plans, including any or all of the following: solvent management plan, 

best management practice plan, slug control plan, hazardous materials 
management plan, emergency/violation response plan, and/or pollution prevention 
plan. 

 
(l) any other information as may be deemed by the Manager to be necessary to 

evaluate the permit application. 
 

The Manager will evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional 
information. After evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the Manager may 
issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit subject to terms and conditions provided herein. 

 
 

4.05 Permit Conditions 
 

Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be expressly subject to all provisions of these 
regulations and all other regulations, user charges, and fees established by the Agency. 
The conditions of Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be uniformly enforced by the 
Manager in accordance with these regulations, and applicable state and federal 
regulations. Permits may contain the following: 

 
(a) A statement that indicates the duration of the wastewater discharge permit; 

 
(b) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior 

notification to the Agency in accordance with Section 4.08 of this ordinance; 
 

(c) Effluent Limits, including Best Management Practices (BMPs), based on applicable 
pretreatment standards; 

(d) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping requirements. 
These  requirements  shall  include  an  identification  of  pollutants  (or  Best 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



27  

Management Practices) to be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, 
and sample type based on Federal, State, and local law. 

 
(e) A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment 

Standards and Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such 
schedule may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable 
Federal, State, or local law; 

 
(f) Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, and/or 

requirements for flow regulation and equalization; 
 

(g) The unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees for the wastewater to be 
discharged to a community sewer; 

 
(h) The average and maximum wastewater constituent concentrations and 

characteristics; 
 

(i) Limits on rate and time of discharge or requirements for flow regulations and 
equalization; 

 
(j) Requirements for installation of inspection and sampling facilities; 

 
(k) Pretreatment requirements; 

 
(l) Specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, 

frequency and method of sampling, number, types and standards for tests, reporting 
schedules, and Best Management Practices; 

 
(m) Requirements for submission of technical reports, self-monitoring reports, or 

discharge reports, including, but not limited to baseline monitoring reports, 
compliance schedule progress reports, reports of compliance with categorical 
pretreatment standard deadlines, periodic reports of continued compliance, or any 
report required by 40 CFR 403.12, and/or any other reports as required by the 
Agency; 

 
(n) Requirements for maintaining plant records relating to wastewater discharge as 

specified by the Agency, and affording Agency access thereto; 
 

(o) Mean and maximum mass emission rates, or other appropriate limits when 
incompatible pollutants (as defined by section 1.02(ee)) are proposed or presented 
in the user's wastewater discharge; 

 
(p) Notification requirements; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



28  

(q) Requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or other 
special conditions including management practices necessary to adequately prevent 
accidental, unanticipated, or non-routine discharges; 

 
(r) Development and implementation of pollution prevention plans to reduce the amount 

of pollutants discharged to the POTW; 
 

(s) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Agency to insure compliance with 
these regulations; 

 
(t) Requirements to control Slug Discharges, if determined by the Agency to be 

necessary. 
 
 

4.06 Duration of Permits 
 

Permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five years. A permit may 
be issued for a period less than one year or may be stated to expire on a specific date. 
The terms and conditions of the permit may be subject to modification and change by the 
Agency during the life of the permit. The user shall be informed of any proposed changes 
in his or her permit at least 30 days prior to the effective date of change. Any changes or 
new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule for compliance. 

 
 

4.07 Modification of Permits 
 

The Agency may modify an individual/general wastewater discharge permit for good 
cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons: 

 
(1) To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment 

Standards or Requirements; 
 

(2) To address significant alterations or additions to the User's operation, processes, or 
wastewater volume or character since the time of the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit issuance; 

 
(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or 

elimination of the authorized discharge; 
 

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the Agency's 
POTW, Agency personnel, the beneficial use of the Agency's bio-solids, or the 
receiving waters; 

 
(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the individual/general wastewater discharge 

permit; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



29  

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 
discharge permit application or in any required reporting; 

 
(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant 

to 40 CFR 403.13; 
 

(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the individual/general wastewater 
discharge permit; or 

 
(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner or operator 

where requested in accordance with Section 4.08. 
 
 

4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer 
 

Wastewater discharge permits may be transferred to a new owner or operator only if the 
permittee gives at least thirty (30) days advance notice to the Agency and the Agency 
approves the wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Agency must 
include a written certification by the new owner or operator which: 

 
(a) States that the new owner and/or operator has no immediate intent to change the 

facility's operations and processes; 
 

(b) Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur; and 
 

(c) Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing wastewater 
discharge permit. 

 
Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the wastewater discharge permit 
void as of the date of facility transfer. 

 
 

4.09 Revocation of Permit 
 

Any user who violates the following conditions of the permit or any conditions of these 
regulations, or applicable state and federal regulations may be subject to permit 
revocation: 

 
(a) failure of the user to factually report the wastewater constituents and characteristics 

of his or her discharge; 
 

(b) violations of conditions of the permit. 
 

(c) Failure to notify the Agency of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the 
changed discharge; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



30  

(d) Failure to provide prior notification to the Agency of changed conditions pursuant to 
Section 4.19 of this ordinance; 

 
(e) Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater 

discharge permit application; 
 

(f) Falsifying self-monitoring reports; 
 

(g) Tampering with monitoring equipment; 
 

(h) Refusing to allow the Agency personnel timely access to the facility premises and 
records; 

 
(i) Failure to meet effluent limitations; 

 
(j) Failure to pay fines; 

 
(k) Failure to pay sewer charges, 

 
(l) Failure to meet compliance schedules; 

 
(m) Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit 

application; 
 

(n) Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a 
permitted facility; or 

 
(o) Violation of any pretreatment standard or requirement, or any terms of the 

wastewater discharge permit or this ordinance. 
 
 

4.10 Monitoring Facilities 
 

The Agency may require the user to construct at his or her own expense, monitoring 
facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the building sewer or 
internal drainage systems and may also require sampling or metering equipment to be 
provided, installed, and operated at the user's expense. The monitoring facility should 
normally be situated on the user's premises; but the Agency may, when such a location 
would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the user, allow the facility to be 
constructed in the public street or sidewalk area with the approval of the public agency 
having jurisdiction over that street or sidewalk, and located so that it will not be obstructed 
by landscaping or parked vehicles. 

 
If the monitoring facility is inside the user's fence, there shall be accommodations to allow 
access for Agency personnel, such as a gate secured with an Agency lock. There shall 
be ample room in or near such sampling manhole to allow accurate sampling and 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



31  

compositing of samples for analysis. The manhole, sampling, and measuring equipment 
shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense 
of the user. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the 
facility to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the 
written or oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing 
such access shall be borne by the user. 
Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring facilities 
shall be provided in accordance with the Agency's requirements and all applicable local 
agency construction standards and specifications. Construction shall be completed within 
90 days following written notification by the Agency unless a time extension is otherwise 
granted by the Agency. 

 
 

4.11 Inspection and Sampling 
 

The Agency may inspect the facilities of any user to ascertain whether the purpose of 
these regulations is being met and all requirements are being complied with. Persons or 
occupants of premises where wastewater is created or discharged shall allow the Agency 
or its representative ready access at all reasonable times to all parts of the premises for 
the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination and copying, or in the 
performance of any of their duties. The Agency shall have the right to set up on the user's 
property such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling or metering operations. 
Where a user has security measures in force which would require proper identification 
and clearance before entry into their premises, the user shall make necessary 
arrangements with their security personnel so that, upon presentation of suitable 
identification, personnel from the Agency will be permitted to enter without delay for the 
purposes of performing their specific responsibilities. Agency personnel will not be 
required to sign release forms prior to entry and may take appropriate photographs as 
necessary to document compliance and/or non-compliance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility 
to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the user at the written or 
oral request of the Manager and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access 
shall be borne by the user. Unreasonable delays in allowing the Manager access to the 
user's premises shall be a violation of this ordinance. 

 
 

4.12 Search Warrants 
 

If the Manager has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part 
thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation 
of this ordinance, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine 
inspection and sampling program of the Agency designed to verify compliance with this 
ordinance or any permit or order issued here under, or to protect the overall public health, 
safety and welfare of the community, then the Manager may seek issuance of an 
inspection warrant and/or a search warrant. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



32  

4.13 Pretreatment 
 

Users shall make wastewater acceptable under the limitations established herein before 
discharging to any community sewer. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a 
level acceptable to the Agency shall be provided and maintained at the user's expense. 
Detailed plans showing the pretreatment facilities, design criteria and operating 
procedures shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall be acceptable to the 
Agency before construction of the facility. The review of such plans, design criteria, and 
operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from the responsibility of modifying 
the facility as necessary to produce an effluent acceptable to the Agency under the 
provisions of these regulations. Any subsequent changes in the pretreatment facilities or 
method of operation shall be reported to and be acceptable to the Agency. 

 
 

4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge 
 

Each user shall provide protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or 
other wastes regulated by these regulations. Such facilities shall be provided and 
maintained at the user's expense. Detailed plans showing facilities and operating 
procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to the Agency for review and shall 
be acceptable to the Agency before construction of the facility. 

 
The review of such plans and operating procedures will in no way relieve the user from 
the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to provide the protection 
necessary to meet the requirements of this section. 

 

4.15 Confidential Information 
 

Information and data on a user obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge 
permit applications, wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from 
the Agency's inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without 
restriction, unless the user specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Manager, that the release of such information would divulge 
information, processes, or methods of production entitled to protection as trade secrets 
under applicable State and/or Federal law. Any such request must be asserted at the time 
of submission of the information or data. When requested and demonstrated by the user 
furnishing a report that such information should be held confidential, the portions of a 
report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available 
for inspection by the public but shall be made available immediately to the EPA upon 
request. Such information will also be made available immediately upon request to other 
governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or pretreatment program, 
and in enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. Wastewater 
constituents and characteristics and other "effluent data" as defined by 40 CFR 2.302 will 
not be recognized as confidential information and will be available to the public without 
restriction. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



33  

4.16 Signature Requirement 
 

(a) All reports and/or permit applications received and/or required under these 
regulations shall be signed: 

 
(1) By a responsible corporate officer, if the user submitting the reports is a 

corporation. For the purpose of this paragraph, a responsible corporate officer 
means: 

 
(i) a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice president of the corporation in 

charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs 
similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation, or; 

(ii) the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating 
facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management 
decisions which govern the operation of the regulated facility including 
having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment 
recommendations, and initiate and direct other comprehensive measures 
to assure long-term environmental compliance with environmental laws 
and regulations; can ensure that the necessary systems are established 
or actions taken to gather complete and accurate information for control 
mechanism requirements; and where authority to sign documents has 
been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate 
procedures. 

 
(2) By a general partner or proprietor if the user submitting the reports is a 

partnership or sole proprietorship, respectively. 
 

(3) By a duly authorized representative of the individual designated in paragraph 
(1) or (2); 

 
(i) The authorization is made in writing by the individual designated in 

paragraph (1) or (2); 
 

(ii) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having 
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility from which the 
industrial discharge originates, such as the position of plant manager, 
operator of a well, or well field superintendent, or a position of equivalent 
responsibility, or having overall responsibility for environmental matters 
for the company; and 

 
(iii) The written authorization is submitted to the Agency. 

 
(4) If an authorization under paragraph (3) of this section is no longer accurate 

because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall 
operation of the facility, or overall responsibility for environmental matters for 
the company, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of paragraph (3) 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



34  

of this section must be submitted to the Agency prior to or together with any 
reports to be signed by an authorized representative. 

 
(b) Reports and applications must include the following certification statement: 

 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure 
that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those 
persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted 
is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 

 
 

4.17 Retention of Records 
 

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make 
available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any 
monitoring activities required by this ordinance, any additional records of information 
obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent of such 
requirements, and documentation associated with Best Management Practices 
established under Section 2.10(a), including but not limited to discharge reports, permits, 
self-monitoring data, pretreatment system process control logs, and relevant 
correspondence (whether or not required by these regulations). All records must be 
maintained by the user for a period of not less than three (3) years. All such records shall 
be made available for inspection and copying by a duly authorized representative of the 
Agency or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction. The retention period may be 
extended in the case of unresolved litigation or at any time at the request of the Agency, 
the State or US EPA. 

 
 

4.18 Notices to Employees 
 

In order that employees of users be informed of Agency requirements, users shall make 
available to their employees copies of these regulations together with such other 
wastewater information and notices which may be furnished by the Agency from time to 
time directed toward more effective water pollution control. A notice shall be furnished 
and permanently posted on the user's bulletin board advising employees whom to call in 
case of an accidental discharge in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.19 Preventive Measures 
 

Any direct or indirect connection or entry point for persistent or deleterious wastes to the 
user's plumbing or drainage system should be eliminated. Where such action is 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



35  

impractical or unreasonable, the user shall appropriately label such entry points to warn 
against discharge of such wastes in violation of these regulations. 

 
 

4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions 
 

Each user must notify the Agency of any planned significant changes to the user's 
operations or system which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater 
discharge prior to implementation of said change. 

 
(a) The Manager may require the user to submit such information as may be deemed 

necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a 
wastewater discharge permit application under Section 4.04 of this ordinance. 

 
(b) The Manager may issue a wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.03 of this 

ordinance or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under Section 4.06 of 
this ordinance in response to changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions. 

 
(c) For purposes of this requirement, significant changes include, but are not limited to, 

significant flow increases or decreases (greater than 25%), modification of any 
pretreatment system, bypass of any portion of the pretreatment system, installation or 
removal of process tanks or equipment, discharge of any previously unreported 
pollutants, and the closure of a facility due to purchase by another party, relocation, 
changed business conditions, or other factor affecting the continued operation of the 
facility. 

 
 

4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge 
 

(a) All industrial users discharging any substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would 
be a hazardous or acutely hazardous waste under 40 CFR 261, must comply with 
the reporting requirements of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(1) and (3) unless exempted under 
the provisions of 40 CFR 403.12(p)(2). 

 
(b) In the case of any notification made under section (a) above, the industrial user shall 

certify that it has a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous 
wastes generated to the degree it has determined to be economically practical. The 
Agency may accept a copy of a hazardous waste reduction or minimization plan as 
otherwise required by law. 

 
(c) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not otherwise 

permitted to be discharged by this ordinance, a permit issued thereunder, or any 
applicable Federal or State law. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



36  

4.22 Special Agreements 
 

Special agreements and arrangements between the Agency and any persons or agencies 
may be established when, in the opinion of the Agency, unusual or extraordinary 
circumstances compel special terms and conditions. Under no circumstances, however, 
will any special agreement or arrangement be established which contravenes any federal 
pretreatment regulation, categorical pretreatment standard, or any other provision of state 
or federal law. 

 
 

4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW 
 

All SIU's shall notify the Manager immediately of any slug loading, as defined by 40 CFR 
403.5(b), or any other discharge that could adversely affect the POTW. 

 
 

4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements 
 

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained 
through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the 
report, based on data that is representative of conditions occurring during the reporting 
period. 

 
(a) Except as indicated in Sections (b) or (c) below, the User must collect wastewater 

samples using 24-hour flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time- 
proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District. Where 
time-proportional composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the District, 
the samples must be representative of the discharge. Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and appropriate EPA 
guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be composited 
prior to the analysis as follows: for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides, the samples 
may be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and 
grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples for 
other parameters unaffected by the compositing procedures as documented in 
approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by District, as appropriate. In 
addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with Instantaneous 
Limits. 

 
(b) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenolics, sulfides, and volatile 

organic compounds must be obtained using grab collection techniques. 
 

(c) For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance 
reports required in Section 4.25(c) below [40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], A minimum of 
four (4) grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, phenolics, oil and grease, sulfide 
and volatile organic compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not 
exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data are available, the District may 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



37  

authorize a lower minimum. For the reports required by (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 
403.12(h), the Industrial User is required to collect the number of grab samples 
necessary to assess and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment 
Standards and Requirements. 

 
(d) If a user subject to reporting requirement monitors any regulated pollutant at a 

designated sampling location more frequently than required, the results of this 
monitoring shall be reported. 

 
(e) The Manager may specify the type of sampling equipment that must be installed and 

used. pH monitoring and Flow monitoring equipment installed at an industrial user's 
sampling location shall be calibrated at the frequency specified in the industrial user's 
wastewater discharge permit or at the frequency recommended by the manufacturer. 

 
(f) If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant 

in question, or where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical 
techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in question, sampling and analyses shall 
be performed using validated analytical methods or any other applicable sampling and 
analytical procedures suggested by the Manager or other parties approved by the 
EPA. Samples shall be analyzed at the discharges expense, by a laboratory 
accredited by the State of California Department of Public Health for such analysis. 

 
(g) The Manager may require self-monitoring for facilities for which a wastewater 

discharge permit has not been issued. 
 
 

4.25 Submission of Reports 
 

The Agency has authority to require all Significant Industrial Users and any other 
designated dischargers to submit reports and schedules within a time-frame directed by 
the Agency. Required reports and schedules, include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
(a) Wastewater Discharge Surveys 

 
(b) Chemical Use Reports 

 
(c)  Baseline Monitoring Reports (BMR) and 90-Day Monitoring Reports containing 

information as required under 40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d): 
 

(1) Within (i)180 days after the effective date of a categorical standard in the case of 
an existing industrial user, or 90 days prior to commencement of discharge for a 
new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards must 
submit a Baseline Report; and (ii) 90-Days after commencement of discharge for 
a new source, all industrial users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards 
must submit a 90-Day report. All Baseline Reports and 90-Day Report must 
contain the following information: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



38  

 

(A) The name and address of the facility including the name of the operator and 
owners; 

 
(B) A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility; 

 
(C) A brief description of the nature, average rate of production, and Standard 

Industrial Classification of the operation(s) carried out by such Industrial User. 
This description should include a schematic process diagram which indicates 
points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes. 

 
(D) The measured average daily and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day, to 

the POTW from each of the following: 
 

(i) Regulated process streams; and 
 

(ii) Other streams as necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream 
formula. The Control Authority may allow for verifiable estimates of these 
flows where justified by cost or feasibility considerations. 

 
(E) The Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process, and the 

results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration (or 
mass, where required by the Standard or Control Authority) of regulated 
pollutants in the Discharge from each regulated process. Both daily maximum 
and average concentration (or mass, where required) shall be reported. The 
sample shall be representative of daily operations; 

 
(F) A statement, reviewed by an authorized representative of the Industrial User 

and certified to by a qualified professional, indicating whether Pretreatment 
Standards are being met on a consistent basis and, if not, whether additional 
operation and maintenance (O and M) and/or additional pretreatment is 
required for the Industrial User to meet the Pretreatment Standards and 
Requirements; and 

 
(G) If additional pretreatment and/or O and M will be required to meet the 

Pretreatment Standards; the shortest schedule by which the Industrial User 
will provide such additional pretreatment and/or O and M. The completion date 
in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable Pretreatment Standard. 

 
New sources must give estimates of information requested in paragraphs (D) 
and (E) and must include information on the method of pretreatment that will 
be used to meet applicable pretreatment standards. 

 
(d) Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



39  

(e) Periodic Self-Monitoring Reports 
 

(f) Periodic Report of Continued Compliance (PRCC) containing information as required 
under 40 CFR 403.12(e) and (h) 
All Significant Industrial Users must, at a frequency determined by the Manager, 
submit no less than twice per year (June and December [or on dates specified by 
Manager]) reports indicating the nature, concentration of pollutants in the discharge 
which are limited by Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average 
and maximum daily flows for the reporting period. In cases where the Pretreatment 
Standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice (BMP) or pollution 
prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Manager 
or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the 
User. 

 
All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with 
Section 4.16 of this ordinance. 

 
All wastewater samples must be representative of the User's discharge. Wastewater 
monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and 
maintained in good working order at all times. The failure of a User to keep its 
monitoring facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that 
sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this section monitors any regulated 
pollutant at the appropriate sampling location more frequently than required by the 
Agency, using the procedures prescribed in 40 CFR 403.12(g)(5), the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the report. 

 
(g) Hazardous Materials Management Plans 

 
(h) Best Management Practice Plans 

 
(i) Slug Control Plans containing information as required under 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2) (vi). 

 
(j) Source Reduction Evaluation Review and Plans (SB14) and other pollution 

prevention plans 
 

(k) SARA III Reports 
 

(l) Written responses to Notices of Violation 
 

(m) Facility Closure Plans 
 

(n) Any data obtained from self-monitoring performed more frequently than required by 
the Agency 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



40  

(o) Solvent Management Plan 
 

(p) Any other reports, written documents, and/or analytical results as deemed 
necessary by the Agency, to determine a user's compliance status with local, 
state and federal limits or requirements. 

 
 

Section 5 

WASTEWATER CHARGES AND FEES 

 
5.01 Schedule of Charges and Fees 

 
The agency may adopt ordinances for the collection of charges and fees for, but not 
limited to, the following purposes: 

 
• Capacity Charges 
• Sewer Service Charges 
• Annexation Fees 
• Construction Permit Fees 
• Construction Inspection Fees 
• Wastewater Discharge Permit Fees 

 
 

5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges and Fees 
 

The Agency may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
operating its Environmental Compliance Program including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

 
(a) Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications including the cost of processing 

such applications; 
 

(b) Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures including the cost of 
sample collection and analyzing a user's discharge, reviewing monitoring reports 
submitted by users, and conducting inspections of the user's facilities; 

 
(c) Fees for reviewing and responding to discharge violations, accidental discharges 

and spills, and related enforcement activities. 
 

(d) Fees for filing appeals; and 
 

(e) Other fees as the Agency may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 
contained herein. These fees relate solely to the matters covered by this ordinance 
and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties chargeable by the Agency. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



41  

Section 6 

ENFORCEMENT 

 

6.01 Notification of Discharge 
 

Users shall notify the Agency immediately upon accidentally discharging wastes in 
violation of these regulations and/or discharging any slug loading to enable 
countermeasures to be taken by the Agency to minimize damage to the community sewer, 
treatment facility, treatment processes, and the receiving waters. 

 
This notification shall be followed, within five days of the date of occurrence, by a detailed 
written statement describing the causes of the accidental discharge and the measures 
being taken to prevent future occurrence. 

 
Such notification will not relieve users of liability for any expense, loss, or damage to the 
sewer system, treatment plant, or treatment process, or for any fines imposed on the 
Agency on account thereof under section 13350 of the California Water Code, or for 
violations of section 5650 of the California Fish and Game Code. 

 
 

6.02 Notification of Violation 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may serve upon that user a written 
Notice of Violation. Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, an explanation of the 
violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 
specific required actions, shall be submitted by the user to the Manager. Submission of 
this plan in no way relieves the user of liability for any violations occurring before or after 
receipt of the Notice of Violation. Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the 
Manager to take any action, including emergency actions or any other enforcement 
action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation. 

 
 

6.03 Consent Orders 
 

The Manager may enter into Consent Orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, or 
other similar documents establishing an agreement with any user responsible for 
noncompliance. Such documents will include specific action to be taken by the user to 
correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the document. Such 
documents shall have the same force and affect as the administrative orders issued 
pursuant to Sections 6.05 and 6.06 of this ordinance and shall be judicially enforceable. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



42  

6.04 Show Cause Hearing 
 

The Manager may order a user which has violated, or continues to violate, any provision 
of this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, to appear before the Manager and show cause 
why the proposed enforcement action should not be taken. Notice shall be served on the 
user specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement action, the 
reasons for such action, and a request that the user show cause why the proposed 
enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served 
personally or by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested). Such notice may 
be served on any authorized representative of the user. A Show Cause hearing shall not 
be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.05 Administrative Orders 
 

When the Manager finds that a user has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, a wastewater discharge permit or order issued here under, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Manager may issue an order to the user 
responsible for the discharge directing that the user come into compliance within a 
specified time. If the user does not come into compliance within the time provided, sewer 
service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other 
related appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Administrative orders also 
may contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, including additional self- 
monitoring and management practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants 
discharged to the sewer. An administrative order may not extend the deadline for 
compliance established for a pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does an 
administrative order relieve the user of liability for any violation, including any continuing 
violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, 
taking any other action against the user. 

 
 

6.06 Issuance of Cease and Desist Orders 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has taken place in violation of 
prohibitions or limitations of these regulations, or the provisions of a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit, the Manager may issue an order to cease and desist, and direct that 
those not complying with such prohibitions, limits, requirements, or provisions: 

 
(a) comply forthwith; 

 
(b) comply in accordance with a time schedule set forth by the Agency; or 

 
(c) take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly 

address a continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations and/or 
terminating the discharge. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



43  

6.07 Legal Authority to Administer Fines 
 

In accordance with Section 54739 of the California Government Code, the agency may 
require any of the following: 

 
(a) Pretreatment of any industrial waste which the local agency determines is necessary 

in order to meet standards established by the federal or California state government 
or other regulatory agencies or which the local agency determines is necessary in 
order to protect its treatment works or the proper and efficient operation thereof or 
the health or safety of its employees or the environment. 

 
(b) The prevention of the entry of such industrial waste into the collection system and 

treatment works. 
 

(c) The payment of excess costs to the system for supplementary treatment plants, 
facilities, or operations needed as a result of allowing the entry into the collection 
system and treatment works of such industrial waste. 

(d) The provisions of this section shall be in addition to other requirements provided for 
in this or any other Agency ordinance. 

 
 

6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties 

(a) The agency may issue an administrative complaint to any person who violates any 
requirement adopted or ordered by the agency pursuant to paragraph (a) and (b) of 
Section 6.07. The administrative complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that 
constitutes the violation of the agency's requirements, the provisions of law 
authorizing civil liability to be imposed, and the proposed civil penalty. 

 
(b) The administrative complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified mail 

on the person subject to the agency's discharge requirements and shall inform the 
person served that a hearing shall be conducted within 60 days after the person has 
been served. In event no request for hearing is filed within 50 days after the service 
of the administrative complaint, the right to a hearing will be deemed waived. The 
hearing shall be before a hearing officer designated by the governing board of the 
agency. The person who has been issued an administrative complaint may waive 
the right to a hearing, in which case the agency shall not conduct a hearing. A person 
dissatisfied with the decision of the hearing officer may appeal to the governing 
board of the agency within 30 days of notice of the hearing officer's decision. 

 
(c) If after any default in requesting a hearing, the holding of the hearing, or the 

conclusion of an appeal, it is found that the person has violated reporting or 
discharge requirements, the hearing officer or board may assess a civil penalty 
against that person in determining the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing officer 
or board may take into consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



44  

through any noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length 
of time over which the violation occurs and corrective action, if any, attempted or 
taken by the discharger. 

 
(d) Civil Penalties. In accordance with Section 54740.5 of the California Government 

Code, Civil penalties may be imposed by the agency as follows: 
 

(1) In an amount which shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each day 
for failing or refusing to furnish technical or monitoring reports. 

 
(2) In an amount which shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) for each 

day for failing or refusing to timely comply with any compliance schedule 
established by the local agency. 

 
(3) In an amount which shall not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation 

for each day for discharges in violation of any waste discharge limitation, permit 
condition, or requirement issued, reissued, or adopted by the local agency. 

 
(4) In an amount which does not exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon for discharges 

in violation of any suspension, cease and desist order or other orders, or 
prohibition issued, reissued, or adopted by the agency. 

 
(5) The amount of any civil penalties imposed under this section which have 

remained delinquent for a period of 60 days after finality of the decision, can 
become a lien against the real property of the discharger from which the 
discharge originated resulting in the imposition of the civil penalty. In accordance 
with the procedures specified in Health & Safety Code Section 5473 et seq., the 
Board of Directors can have the lien imposed against the real property to be 
assessed on the tax roll, to be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner, together with and not separately from, general taxes, and shall be 
delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the same delinquency 
penalties. 

 
(6) In addition, in the event that the penalty is imposed as a court judgment in the 

same manner as in an arbitration award, the judgment thereon shall be 
renewable in accordance with the provisions of California Code of Civil 
Procedures Sections 683.110 through 683.220. 

 
(7) Any legal action, including arbitration, shall allow attorneys' fees and costs to 

the prevailing party. 
 

(e) Administrative Penalties 
 

Administrative penalties shall be imposed for all violations of Union Sanitary District 
Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36 for which a Notice of Violation would be issued with the 
following exception: the General Manager may waive or reduce penalties, in their sole 
discretion, where at a minimum, all of the following requirements are met: the violation is 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



45  

minor in nature, it is the first in the last 5 years, it was inadvertent, and the violator is 
cooperating with the District in resolving the matter. 

 
The violations are categorized as discharge or non-discharge violations. 
 

(1) Non-discharge Violations 
 

Non-discharge violations shall be considered any violation of a reporting 
requirement, timeline, schedule or any other violation of Ordinance 36. A 
warning letter will be issued to the permittee informing them of an impending 
Notice of Violation and imposition of a six hundred dollar ($600) penalty for any 
future violations, pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
(2) Discharge Violation 

 
A Discharge Violation is specifically related to a discharge event or release. The 
penalty for an actual discharge violation shall be one thousand four hundred 
dollars ($1400) for every incident or event, pursuant to this Section 6.08(e). 

 
These penalties are not exclusive and failure to comply could result in the 
District taking additional enforcement actions up to and including civil penalties 
and abatement. 

 
(f) All moneys collected under this section shall be deposited in a special account of 

the agency and shall be made available for inspector training, environmental 
program enhancement, the monitoring, treatment, and control of discharges into the 
Agency's sanitary sewer system or for other mitigation measures. 

 
(g) Unless appealed, orders setting administrative civil penalties shall become effective 

and final upon issuance thereof, and payment shall be made within 30 days. Copies 
of these orders shall be served by personal service or by certified mail upon the party 
served with the administrative complaint and upon other persons who appeared at 
the hearing and requested a copy. 

 
(h) The Agency may, at its option, elect to petition the superior court to confirm any 

order establishing civil penalties and enter judgment in conformity therewith as 
though it were an arbitration award, in accordance with the provisions of California 
Code of Civil Procedure, Sections 1285 through 1287.6. 

 
(i) No penalties shall be recoverable under this section for any violation for which civil 

liability is recovered under Section 7.06 of this ordinance. 
 
(j) Any party aggrieved by a final order issued by the governing board of the agency 

under this Section, after granting review of the order of a hearing officer, may obtain 
review of the order of the board in the superior court by filing in the court a petition 
for writ of mandate within 30 days following the service of a copy of a decision and 
order issued by the board. Any party aggrieved by a final order of a hearing officer 
issued under this Section, for which the board denies review, may obtain review of 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



46  

the order of the hearing officer in the superior court by filing in the court a petition for 
writ of mandate within 30 days following service of a copy of a decision and order denying 
review by the board.         
          

(k) If no aggrieved party petitions for writ of mandate within the time provided by this 
section, an order of the board or a hearing officer shall not be subject to review by 
any court or agency, except that the board may grant review on its own motion of an 
order issued under this Section after the expiration of the time limits set by that 
section. 

 
(l) The evidence before the court shall consist of the record before the board, including 

the hearing officer's record, and any other relevant evidence which, in the judgment 
of the court, should be considered to effectuate and implement policies of this 
division. In every such case, the court shall exercise its independent judgment on 
the evidence. 

 
(m) Except as otherwise provided in this section, subdivisions (e) and (f) of Section 

1094.5 of the California Government Code or the Code or Civil Procedure shall 
govern proceedings pursuant to this section. 

 
 

6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule 
 

When the Agency finds that a discharge of wastewater has been taking place in violation 
of prohibitions or limitations prescribed in these regulations, or wastewater source control 
requirements, effluent limitations or pretreatment standards, or the provisions of a 
Wastewater Discharge Permit or at any time the Agency determines a time schedule to 
be necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 4.13, the Agency may require 
the user to submit for approval, with such modifications as it deems necessary, a detailed 
time schedule of specific actions which the user shall take in order to prevent or correct a 
violation of the requirements. 

 
 

6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports 
 

The following conditions shall apply to the compliance schedule required by Section 6.09 
of this ordinance: 

 
(a) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the 

commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and 
operation of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable 
pretreatment standards (such events include, but are not limited to, hiring an 
engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major 
components, commencing and completing construction, and beginning and 
conducting routine operation); 

 
(b) No increment referred to above shall exceed nine (9) months; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



47  

 

(c) The user shall submit a progress report to the Manager as specified but no later than 
fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 
compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment 
of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps being taken by 
the user to return to the established schedule; and 

 
(d) In no event shall more than nine (9) months elapse between such progress reports 

to the Manager. 
 
 

6.11 Appeals 
 

Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or 
determination, including cease and desist orders made by the Manager or another 
employee of the Agency in interpreting or implementing the provisions of this ordinance 
or in any permit issued herein, may file with the Manager a written appeal or request for 
reconsideration, as applicable, within ten days of such decision, action, or determination, 
setting forth in detail the facts supporting the appeal or request for reconsideration. 

 
If the ruling made by the Manager is unsatisfactory to the person appealing or requesting 
reconsideration, he or she may file a written appeal to the Agency's governing body within 
ten days after notification of Agency action. The written appeal shall be heard by the 
governing body within 30 days from the date of filing or as soon thereafter as reasonably 
possible. The Agency's governing body shall make a final ruling on the appeal within 30 
days of the meeting. The Manager's decision, action, or determination shall remain in 
effect during such period of appeal. The determination of an appeal by the governing 
body of the Agency shall constitute a final determination of the Agency and shall be 
subject to judicial review. 

 
 

6.12 Reports of Potential Problems 
 

(a) In the case of any discharges including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, 
discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a 
slug load, that may cause potential problems for the POTW, the user shall immediately 
telephone and notify the Agency of the incident. This notification shall include the 
location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and volume, if known, and 
corrective actions taken by the user and any other information the Agency deems 
appropriate. 

 
(b) A notice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin board or other prominent 

place advising employees who to call in the event of a discharge described in 
paragraph A, above. Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause such 
a discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



48  

(c) All Users are required to notify the Agency of any changes at their facility affecting the 
potential for a Slug Discharge. 

 
 

6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting 
 

If sampling performed by a user indicates a violation, the user must notify the Agency 
within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also 
repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the 
Agency within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation. 
Within five (5) days following such discharge, the user shall, unless waived by the Agency, 
submit a detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the discharge and the 
measures to be taken by the user to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification 
shall not relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be 
incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to 
person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties, or 
other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this ordinance. 

 
 

6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users 
 

All users not required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate 
reports to the Agency as the Manager may require. 

 
 

6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant Non-Compliance 
 

At an interval of not less than once per year, the Agency will publish the identities of any 
user(s) which is (are) found to be in significant non-compliance of any national 
pretreatment standard, discharge limitation or prohibition, or any other requirement of 
these regulations. The definition of significant non-compliance shall be as specified in 
Section 1.02 (bbb). The publication shall occur in the newspaper of general circulation 
that provides meaningful public notice within the service area of the Agency. 

 
 

Section 7 

ABATEMENT 

 
7.01 Public Nuisance 

 
Discharge of wastewater in any manner in violation of these regulations or of any order 
issued by the Manager as authorized by these regulations, is hereby declared a public 
nuisance and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the Manager. Any person 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



49  

creating a public nuisance shall be subject to provisions of Agency codes or ordinances 
governing such nuisance. 

 
 

7.02 Recovery of Expenses 
 

In the event a discharge of wastewater occurs from a private sewer lateral that creates or 
threatens to create a public nuisance that the Agency must abate as directed by the 
Manager, the Agency may seek recovery of the cost of time and materials to abate said 
discharge from the property owner as well as interest and attorneys' fees as provided by 
Health & Safety Code § 5473.10. 

 
 

7.03 Injunctive Relief 
 

When the Agency finds that a User has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of 
this ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, a general permit, or order 
issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Agency may 
petition the appropriate Court through the District's Attorney for the issuance of a 
temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels the 
specific performance of an individual wastewater discharge permit, general permit, order 
or other requirement imposed by this ordinance on activities of the User. The Agency 
may also seek such other action as is appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, 
including a requirement for the User to conduct environmental remediation. A petition for 
injunctive relief shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action 
against a User. 

 
 

7.04 Damage to Facilities 
 

When a discharge of wastes causes an obstruction, damage, or any other impairment to 
Agency facilities, the Agency may assess a charge against the user for the work required 
to clean or repair the facility and add such charge to the user's charges and fees. 

 
 

7.05 Civil Penalties 
 

Any person who violates any provision of these regulations or permit conditions, or who 
discharges wastewater which causes pollution, or who violates any cease and desist 
order, prohibition, effluent limitation, national standard of performance, pretreatment or 
toxicity standard, shall be liable civilly to penalties imposed by the Agency against which 
the violation occurs as provided for in Section 6.07 of this Ordinance. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



50  

7.06 Court Imposed Civil and Criminal Penalties 
 

The Agency may refer any violations of these regulations to the office of the Alameda 
County District Attorney for civil or criminal prosecution under any applicable statute or 
provision of law. 

 
In accordance with Section 54740 of the California Government Code: 

 
(a) Any person who violates any requirement adopted or ordered by the Agency 

pursuant to Section 6.07 of this ordinance may be civilly liable in a sum of not to 
exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) a day for each violation. 

 
(b) The Agency may petition the superior court to impose, assess, and recover the sums 

provided for in paragraph (a). In determining the amount, the court shall take into 
consideration all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of 
harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived through any 
noncompliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, the length of time over 
which the violation occurs, and corrective action, if any, attempted or taken by the 
discharger. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, all civil penalties imposed by the court 

for any violation of this section shall be distributed to the local agency. 
 

(d) Remedies under this section are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any and 
all other remedies, civil or criminal, but no liability shall be recoverable under this 
section for any violation for which liability is recovered under Section 6.07. 

 
(e) Any person who violates any provision of these regulations, or of a permit or a cease 

and desist order issued pursuant to these regulations, is guilty of a public offense. 
The classification of such public offense and the punishment therefore shall be as 
provided by local, county, state and/or federal law. 

 
 

7.07 Falsifying Information 
 

Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, report, 
plan, or other document filed with the Agency, or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly 
renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under these regulations, 
shall be punished in accordance with the Agency codes or ordinances governing such 
falsifications. The Agency may petition the Superior Court to impose, assess, and recover 
such sums as may be applicable or in accordance with Sections 7.05 and 7.06 of this 
ordinance. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



51  

7.08 Termination of Service 
 

In order to effect its powers, the Agency may enter upon private property for the purpose 
of inspection and maintenance of sanitary and waste disposal facilities and may terminate 
service to property in which a violation of any rule, regulation, or this Ordinance is found 
to exist. 
Prior to termination of service, however, the Agency Board shall notify, in writing, the 
owner and tenant, if any, of such property that service is intended to be so terminated 
and conduct a hearing thereon as herein provided. Such notice shall be mailed to the 
owner at the address shown on the records of the Assessor of the County, or as known 
to the Clerk, and a copy shall be delivered to the tenant or posted conspicuously on the 
property. The notice shall state the date of proposed termination of service and the 
reasons therefore and the date the Agency Board shall hold a hearing upon such intended 
termination. Such hearing shall not be held less than ten days subsequent to the giving 
of notice as herein required. 

 
 

7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service 
 

The Manager or designated representative may immediately suspend a User's discharge, 
after informal notice to the User, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an 
actual or threatened discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause an 
imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of persons. The Manager 
may also immediately suspend a User's discharge, after notice and opportunity to 
respond, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents, or 
may present, an endangerment to the environment. 

 
(a) Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or 

eliminate its contribution. In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply 
voluntarily with the suspension order, the Manager may take such steps as 
deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to 
prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment 
to any individuals. The Manager may allow the User to recommence its discharge 
only when the User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Manager that the 
period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings in 
Section 7.10 of this ordinance are initiated against the User. 

 
(b) A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting 

imminent endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the 
causes of the harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future 
occurrence, to the Manager prior to the date of any show cause or termination 
hearing under sections 6.04 or 7.08 of this ordinance. Nothing in this section shall 
be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency suspension under this 
section. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



52  

7.10 Immediate Termination of Discharge 
 

The manager or designated representative has the authority to immediately and 
effectively halt or prevent any actual or threatened discharge of pollutants to the Agency's 
facilities which: 

 
• present, or may present, an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or 

welfare of persons, to the environment or to the Agency's facilities; 
 

• cause interferences with the operation of the Agency's facilities or the POTW; 
 

• cause conditions (a) through (n) of Section 2.01.1 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are prohibited by Section 2.01.2 of this Ordinance; 
 

• are violations of individual wastewater discharge permit or general permit conditions; 
 

• are a failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of 
the User's discharge; 

 
• are a failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, 

constituents, and characteristics prior to discharge; 
 

• are a result of refusal to reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of 
inspection, monitoring, or sampling. 

 
Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency 
suspension under this section. 

 
 

7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies 
 

The remedies provided for in this ordinance are not exclusive except as specified in 
Section 7.06(d). The Manager may take any, all, or any combination of these actions 
against a noncompliant user. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in 
accordance with the Agency's Enforcement Response Plan. However, the Manager may 
take other action against any user when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager 
is empowered to take more than one enforcement action against any noncompliant user. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



53  

Section 8 

SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of these regulations or the application to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, the remainder of the regulations or the application of such provisions to other 
persons or other circumstances shall not be affected. 

 
 

Section 9 
 

Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 36 and all its amendments are hereby repealed. 
 
 

Section 10 

PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force as of XXXXXXX, and a summary of the 
Ordinance has been published in The Argus and Tri-City Voice, newspapers of general 
circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT service area. This Ordinance 
shall be entered in the minutes of the District. 

 
Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT on this 
XX day of XXXXXX, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 

 
NOES: 

 
ABSENT: 

 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
                        

President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
                     

Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



54  

SUPPLEMENT 
 

This Wastewater Discharge Regulations Supplement includes selected Code of Federal 
Regulations parts (listed as 40 CFR) referred to in the main section of this ordinance for 
convenience only. Other 40 CFR parts, which are too lengthy to include in their entirety, 
are summarized. More information relating to these Federal Regulation references is 
available in the Union Sanitary District's Environmental Compliance Division Office and 
the text of the regulations is available online at https://www.epa.gov/laws- 
regulations/regulations. 

 

Federal Regulations are updated from time to time. This document contains current 
regulations as of April 2019. However, it is the responsibility of the user to ensure 
compliance with federal regulations, including any future amendments. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 2.302(2):    Definition of Effluent Data 
 

"(i) Effluent data means, with reference to any source of discharge of any pollutant (as 
that term is defined in section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 1362 (6)): 

 
(A) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of any pollutant which has been discharged by the source (or of 
any pollutant resulting from any discharge from the source), or any combination 
of the foregoing; 

 
(B) Information necessary to determine the identity, amount, frequency, 

concentration, temperature or other characteristics (to the extent related to 
water quality) of the pollutants which, under an applicable standard or limitation, 
the source was authorized to discharge (including, to the extent necessary for 
such purpose, a description of the manner or rate of operation of the source); 
and 

 
(C) A general description of the location and/or nature of the source to the extent 

necessary to identify the source and to distinguish it from other sources 
(including, to the extent necessary for such purposes, a description of the 
device, installation or operation constituting the source). 

 
(ii) Notwithstanding paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section, the following information shall be 

considered to be effluent data only to the extent necessary to allow EPA to disclose 
publicly that a source is (or is not) in compliance with an applicable standard or 
limitation, or to allow EPA to demonstrate the feasibility, practicability, or attainability 
(or lack thereof) of an existing or proposed standard or limitation: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022

http://www.epa.gov/laws-


55  

(A) Information concerning research, or the results of research, on any product, 
method, device, or installation (or any component thereof) which was produced, 
developed, installed, and used only for research purposes; and 

 
(B) Information concerning any product, method, device, or installation (or any 

component thereof) designed and intended to be marketed or used commercially 
but not yet so marketed or used." 

 
 

40 CFR Part 136:Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of 
Pollutants 

 
(Summary) This part describes test procedures for performing analyses of wastewater 
constituents. Part 136 identifies test procedures and specifies application of and approval 
of alternate test procedures. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for 
Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste 

 
(Summary) This part includes criteria for identifying the characteristics of hazardous 
waste, as well as characteristics of hazardous waste and lists of hazardous wastes. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.5:   National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(Summary) This part is commonly referred to as the General Pretreatment Regulations 
and includes discharge prohibitions and the requirement for development of local limits 
by the POTW. 

 
 

403.5 National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges 
 

(a) (1) General prohibitions. A User may not introduce into a POTW any pollutant(s) 
which cause Pass Through or Interference. These general prohibitions and the 
specific prohibitions in paragraph (b) of this section apply to each User 
introducing pollutants into a POTW whether or not the User is subject to other 
National Pretreatment Standards or any national, State or local Pretreatment 
Requirements. 

 
(2) Affirmative Defenses: A User shall have an affirmative defense in any action 

brought against it alleging a violation of the general prohibitions established in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section and the specific prohibitions in paragraphs (b)(3), 
(b)(4), (b)(5), (b)(6) and (b)(7) of this section where the Users can demonstrate 
that: 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



56  

(i) It did not know or have reason to know that its Discharge, alone or in 
conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, would cause 
Pass Through or Interference; and 

 
(ii) (A) A local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 

the case may be, was developed in accordance with paragraph (c) of this 
section for each pollutant in the User's Discharge that caused Pass Through 
or Interference, and the User was in compliance with each such local limit 
directly prior to and during the Pass Through or Interference; or 

 
(B) If a local limit designed to prevent Pass Through and/or Interference, as 
the case may be, has not been developed in accordance with paragraph (c) 
of this section for the pollutant(s) that caused the Pass Through or 
Interference, the User's Discharge directly prior to and during the Pass 
Through or Interference did not change substantially in nature or 
constituents from the User's prior discharge activity when the POTW was 
regularly in compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit requirements and, 
in the case of Interference, applicable requirements-for sewage sludge use 
or disposal. 

 
(b) Specific prohibitions. In addition, the following pollutants shall not be introduced into 

a POTW: 
 

(1) Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard in the POTW, including, but 
not limited to, wastestreams with a close cup flashpoint of less than 140°F or 
60°C using the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21. 

 
(2) Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage to the POTW, but in no 

case Discharges with pH lower than 5.0, unless the works is specifically 
designed to accommodate such Discharges; 

 
(3) Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts which will cause obstruction to the flow 

in the POTW resulting in Interference; 
 

(4) Any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, COD) released in 
a Discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause 
Interference with the POTW. 

 
(5) Heat in amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in 

Interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the temperature at the 
POTW Treatment Plant exceeds 40°C (104°F) unless the Approval Authority, 
upon request of the POTW, approves alternate temperature limits. 

 
(6) Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin in 

amounts that will cause Interference or Pass Through; 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



57  

(7)  Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within 
the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety 
problems; 

 
(8) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the 

POTW. 
 

(c) When specific limits must be developed by POTW. (1) Each POTW developing a 
POTW Pretreatment Program pursuant to section 403.8 shall develop and enforce 
specific limits to implement the prohibitions listed in paragraphs (a)(1) and (b) of this 
section. 

 
(1) Each POTW with an approved pretreatment program shall continue to develop 

these limits as necessary and effectively enforce such limits. 
 
 

(2)  All other POTW's shall, in cases where pollutants contributed by User(s) result 
in Interference or Pass Through, and such violation is likely to recur, develop 
and enforce specific effluent limits for Industrial User(s), and all other users, as 
appropriate, which, together with appropriate changes in the POTW Treatment 
Plant's facilities or operation, are necessary to ensure renewed and continued 
compliance with the POTW's NPDES permit or sludge use or disposal 
practices. 

 
(3) Specific effluent limits shall not be developed and enforced without individual 

notice to persons or groups who have requested such notice and an opportunity 
to respond. 

 
(4) POTWs may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs) to implement 

paragraphs (c)(1) and (c)(2) of this section. Such BMPs shall be considered 
local limits and Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of this part and section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(d) Local limits. Where specific prohibitions or limits on pollutants or pollutant 

parameters are developed by a POTW in accordance with paragraph (c) above, 
such limits shall be deemed Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of section 
307(d) of the Act. 

 
(e) EPA enforcement actions under section 309(f) of the Clean Water Act. If, within 30 

days after notice of an Interference or Pass Through violation has been sent by EPA 
to the POTW, and to persons or groups who have requested such notice, the POTW 
fails to commence appropriate enforcement action to correct the violation, EPA may 
take appropriate enforcement action under the authority provided in section 309(f) 
of the Clean Water Act. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



58  

40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi):    Slug Control Plans 
 

The District has the authority to evaluate whether each Significant Industrial User needs 
a plan to control slug discharges. For purposes of these regulations, a slug discharge is 
any discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental 
spill or a non-customary batch discharge. 

 
"If the POTW decides that a slug control plan is needed, the plan shall contain, at a 
minimum, the following elements: 

 
(A) Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch discharges; 

 
(B) Description of stored chemicals; 

 
(C) Procedures for immediately notifying the POTW of slug discharges, including any 

discharge that would violate a prohibition under 40 CFR 403.5(b), with procedures 
for follow-up written notification within five days; 

 
(D) If necessary, procedures to prevent adverse impact from accidental spills, including 

inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, 
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site run-off, worker training, 
building of containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic 
organic pollutants (including solvents), and/or measures and equipment for 
emergency response;" 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12:   Reporting Requirements for POTWs and Industrial Users 
 

(Summary) This part contains the monitoring and reporting requirements for baseline 
monitoring reports and other required reports such as the periodic report of continued 
compliance. 40 CFR Part 403.12 is crucial to the implementation of and compliance with 
self-monitoring and reporting requirements. Portions of the regulations are summarized 
or cited below. 

 
 

40 CFR Part 403.12(h):   Reporting  Requirements  for  Industrial  Users  Not 
Subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards 

 
At least once every 6 months, industrial users not subject to categorical Pretreatment 
Standards must submit a description of the nature, concentration and flow of the 
pollutants discharged to the POTW. These reports shall be based on sampling and 
analysis performed during the reporting period. 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



59 

40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification 

(a) The user shall notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management Division
Director, and State hazardous waste authorities, in writing, of any discharge into the
POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste
under 40 CFR Part 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous
waste as set forth in 40 CFR Part 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the
type of discharge (continuous, batch, or other). If the user discharges more than one
hundred (100) kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the
notification also shall contain the following information to the extent such information
is known and readily available to the user: an identification of the hazardous
constituents contained in the wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of
such constituents in the waste stream discharged during that calendar month, and an
estimation of the mass of constituents in the waste stream expected to be discharged
during the following twelve (12) months. All notifications must take place within one
hundred and eighty (180) days of the effective date of this rule. Users who commence
discharging after the effective date of this rule shall provide the notification no later
than 180 days after the discharge of the listed or characteristic hazardous waste. Any
notification under this paragraph need be submitted only once for each hazardous
waste discharged. However, notifications of changed discharges must be submitted
under 40 CFR 403.12 (j) (Section 4.20 of this ordinance). The notification requirement
in this section does not apply to pollutants already reported under the self-monitoring
requirements of 40 CFR 403.12 (b), (d) and (e).

(b) Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of paragraph 1, above, during a
calendar month in which they discharge no more than fifteen (15) kilograms of
hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute hazardous wastes as specified in 40
CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than fifteen (15) kilograms of
nonacute hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute
hazardous wastes as specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a
one-time notification. Subsequent months during which the user discharges more than
such quantities of any hazardous waste do not require additional notification.

(c) In case of any new regulations under Section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional
characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous
waste, the user must notify the Agency, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste
Division Director, and State hazardous waste authorities of the discharge of such
substance within ninety (90) days of the effective date of such regulations.

(d) In the case of any notification made under this section, the user shall certify that it has
a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated
to the degree it has determined to be economically practical.

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



60 

40 CFR Part 405-471: Categorical Standards and Requirements 

(Summary) These parts describe the regulations applicable to categorical discharges. 
The following types of industries are currently subject to categorical standards: 

Aluminum Forming Fruit & Vegetable Processing Paving and Roofing (Tars & Asphalt) 
Asbestos Manufacturing Glass Manufacturing Pesticides 
Battery Manufacturing Grain Mills Manufacturing Petroleum Refining 
Builder's Paper Hospitals Pharmaceuticals 
Carbon Black Ink Formulating Phosphate Manufacturing 
Cement Manufacturing Iron and Steel Manufacturing Photographic 
Centralized Waste Treatment Landfills Plastics Molding and Forming 
Chemicals-Inorganic Leather Tanning and Finishing Porcelain Enameling 
Chemicals-Organic Meat & Poultry Processing Pulp and Paper 
Chemicals-Gum & Wood Metal Finishing Rubber Processing 
Concentrated Animal Feeding Ops. Metal Molding and Casting Seafood Processing 
Coil Coating Metal products & Machinery Soaps and Detergents Mfg 
Copper Forming Mining - Coal Steam Electric 
Dairy Products Processing Mining - Mineral Sugar Processing 
Electrical and Electronic Components Mining - Ore Timber Products Mfg 
Electroplating Nonferrous Metals Forming Transportation 
Explosives Mfg Nonferrous Metals Mfg Textile Mills 
Ferroalloy Manufacturing Oil & Gas Extraction Waste Combustors 
Fertilizer Manufacturing Paint Formulating 

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022



61 

Locally Regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants 

Volatiles Semi-Volatiles (cont d) Semi-Volatiles (cont d) 
Acrolein Benzo(ghi)perylene Nitrobenzene 
Acrylonitrile Benzo(k)fluoranthene Phenanthrene 
Benzene 3,4-benzofluoranthene Pyrene 
Bromoform Bis (2-chloroisopropyl) ether 1,2,4-trichlorobenzene 
Carbon tetrachloride Bis (2-chloroethoxy) methane 
Chlorobenzene Bis (2-chloroethyl) ether 
Chloroethane Bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate 
2-chloroethylvinyl ether 4-bromophenyl phenyl ether
Chloroform Butyl benzyl phthalate
Dibromochloromethane 2-chloronaphthalene
Dichlorobromomethane 4-chlorophenyl phenyl ether
1,1-dichloroethane Chrysene
1,2-dichloroethane Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene
1,1-dichloroethylene 1,2-dichlorobenzene
1,2-dichloropropane 1,3-dichlorobenzene
1,3-dichloropropylene 1,4-dichlorobenzene
Ethylbenzene 3,3-dichlorobenzidine
Methyl bromide Diethyl phthalate
Methyl chloride Dimethyl phthalate
Methylene chloride Di-n-butyl phthalate
Tetrachloroethylene (PCE) Di-n-octyl phthalate
1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane 2,4-dinitrotoluene
1,1,1-trichloroethane (TCA) 2,6-dinitrotoluene
1,1,2-trichloroethane 1,2-diphenylhydrazine
Toluene Fluoranthene
1,2-trans-dichloroethylene Fluorene
Trichloroethylene (TCE) Hexachlorobenzene
Vinyl chloride Hexachlorobutadiene

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene
Semi-Volatiles Hexachloroethane

Acenaphthene Indeno (1,2,3-cd) pyrene
Acenaphthylene Isophorone
Anthracene N-nitrosodi-n-propylamine
Benzidine N-nitrosodimethylamine
Benzo(a)anthracene N-nitrosodiphenylamine
Benzo(a)pyrene Naphthalene

DESK ITEM 
Item # 7 

10/10/2022


	1 10102022 Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Salute to the Flag. (This item has been suspended until in-person meetings resume.)
	3. Roll Call.
	5. Written Communications.
	6. Public Comment.
	Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Speaker cards will be available ...
	Motion 7. Review and Consider Proposed Changes to Ordinance 36.04 Relating to Environmental Compliance Administrative Fines Under Certain Circumstances (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Motion 8. Consider a Resolution Confirming and Declaring the Need to Continue the Emergency Action to Repair Two Sewer Lines in the City of Fremont Damaged by Fiber Optic Line Installation (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology ...
	Motion 9. COVID-19 Update and Consider Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Use of Teleconference Meetings in Compliance with AB 361.
	Information 10. Update on Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Public Outreach Campaign (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Information 11. Check Register.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	15. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Board Closed Session to be held virtually on Thursday, October 13, 2022, at 4:00 p.m.
	16. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting to be held virtually on Monday, October 24, 2022, at 4:00 p.m.

	2 10102022 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags
	10062022 EIT Cmte Ag
	This meeting will be held pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (as amended by AB 361), which authorizes teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during a proclaimed state of emergency.  The Governor of California proclaimed a State of Emergen...
	1.    Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Public Comment
	Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Speaker cards will be available a...

	10072022 Legal Comm Affairs Cmte Ag
	This meeting will be held pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (as amended by AB 361), which authorizes teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during a proclaimed state of emergency.  The Governor of California proclaimed a State of Emergen...
	1.    Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Public Comment
	Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Speaker cards will be available a...


	4 09262022 Minutes
	7 Changes to Ordinance 36
	USD Ordinance 36.05 Proposed Changes 10-4-2022_ Red Lined.pdf
	SECTION 5
	SECTION 6 ENFORCEMENT
	1.02 Definitions
	1.03 Analytical and Sampling Methodology and Procedures
	Section 2 REGULATIONS
	2.01 Sewer Use Requirements
	2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges
	2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community sewer:
	2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam Fillings
	2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater
	2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Remediation Projects
	2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water
	2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes
	2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders
	2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge
	2.09 Waste Holding Tanks, Vessels and Containers
	2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength
	Average Daily Flow Ammonia Limit
	2.10.1 Mass Limit Rate Determination
	2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges
	2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution
	2.13 Prohibition of Bypass
	2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Chemical Solutions and Sludges
	2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing Pass-through or Interference
	2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes
	2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas
	2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections
	Section 3
	WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION
	3.01 Application
	3.02 Metered Water Supply
	Section 4 ADMINISTRATION
	4.01 Application
	4.02 Discharge Reports
	4.03 Wastewater Discharge Permits
	4.04 Permit Application
	4.05 Permit Conditions
	4.06 Duration of Permits
	4.07 Modification of Permits
	4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer
	4.09 Revocation of Permit
	4.10 Monitoring Facilities
	4.11 Inspection and Sampling
	4.12 Search Warrants
	4.13 Pretreatment
	4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge
	4.15 Confidential Information
	4.16 Signature Requirement
	4.17 Retention of Records
	4.18 Notices to Employees
	4.19 Preventive Measures
	4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions
	4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge
	4.22 Special Agreements
	4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW
	4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements
	4.25 Submission of Reports
	Section 5 WASTEWATER CHARGES AND FEES
	5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges and Fees
	Section 6 ENFORCEMENT
	6.02 Notification of Violation
	6.03 Consent Orders
	6.04 Show Cause Hearing
	6.05 Administrative Orders
	6.06 Issuance of Cease and Desist Orders
	6.07 Legal Authority to Administer Fines
	6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties
	6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule
	6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports
	6.11 Appeals
	6.12 Reports of Potential Problems
	6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting
	6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users
	6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant Non-Compliance
	Section 7 ABATEMENT
	7.01 Public Nuisance
	7.02 Recovery of Expenses
	7.03 Injunctive Relief
	7.04 Damage to Facilities
	7.05 Civil Penalties
	7.06 Court Imposed Civil and Criminal Penalties
	7.07 Falsifying Information
	7.08 Termination of Service
	7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service
	7.10 Immediate Termination of Discharge
	7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies
	Section 8 SEVERABILITY
	Section 9
	Section 10 PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY
	SUPPLEMENT
	40 CFR Part 2.302(2):    Definition of Effluent Data
	40 CFR Part 136:Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants
	40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste
	40 CFR Part 403.5:   National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges
	403.5 National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges
	40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi):    Slug Control Plans
	40 CFR Part 403.12:   Reporting Requirements for POTWs and Industrial Users
	40 CFR Part 403.12(h):   Reporting  Requirements  for  Industrial  Users  Not
	40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification
	40 CFR Part 405-471: Categorical Standards and Requirements
	Locally Regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants

	USD Ordinance 36.05 Proposed Changes 10-4-2022_ Clean Copy.pdf
	SECTION 5
	SECTION 6 ENFORCEMENT
	1.02 Definitions
	1.03 Analytical and Sampling Methodology and Procedures
	Section 2 REGULATIONS
	2.01 Sewer Use Requirements
	2.01.1 Prohibited Discharges
	2.01.2 No person shall discharge the following wastes to the community sewer:
	2.02 Requirements for Dental Facilities that Remove or Place Amalgam Fillings
	2.03 Prohibitions on Storm Drainage and Groundwater
	2.04 Acceptance of Groundwater from Remediation Projects
	2.05 Prohibition on Unpolluted Water
	2.06 Limitations on Radioactive Wastes
	2.07 Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders
	2.08 Limitations on Points of Discharge
	2.09 Waste Holding Tanks, Vessels and Containers
	2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength
	Average Daily Flow Ammonia Limit
	2.10.1 Mass Limit Rate Determination
	2.11 Prohibition on Slug Discharges
	2.12 Prohibition on Use of Dilution
	2.13 Prohibition of Bypass
	2.14 Prohibition of the Discharge of Chemical Solutions and Sludges
	2.15 Prohibition of the Discharge of Petroleum or Mineral Oil Causing Pass-through or Interference
	2.16 Prohibition of the Discharge of Trucked or Hauled Wastes
	2.17 Prohibition of the Discharge from Containment Areas
	2.18 Prohibition of Unapproved Sanitary Sewer Connections
	Section 3
	WASTEWATER VOLUME DETERMINATION
	3.01 Application
	3.02 Metered Water Supply
	Section 4 ADMINISTRATION
	4.01 Application
	4.02 Discharge Reports
	4.03 Wastewater Discharge Permits
	4.04 Permit Application
	4.05 Permit Conditions
	4.06 Duration of Permits
	4.07 Modification of Permits
	4.08 Wastewater Discharge Permit Transfer
	4.09 Revocation of Permit
	4.10 Monitoring Facilities
	4.11 Inspection and Sampling
	4.12 Search Warrants
	4.13 Pretreatment
	4.14 Protection from Accidental Discharge
	4.15 Confidential Information
	4.16 Signature Requirement
	4.17 Retention of Records
	4.18 Notices to Employees
	4.19 Preventive Measures
	4.20 Notification of Changed Conditions
	4.21 Notification of Hazardous Waste Discharge
	4.22 Special Agreements
	4.23 Immediate Notification of Slug Loadings to the POTW
	4.24 Industrial User Self-Monitoring Requirements
	4.25 Submission of Reports
	Section 5 WASTEWATER CHARGES AND FEES
	5.02 Environmental Compliance Charges and Fees
	Section 6 ENFORCEMENT
	6.02 Notification of Violation
	6.03 Consent Orders
	6.04 Show Cause Hearing
	6.05 Administrative Orders
	6.06 Issuance of Cease and Desist Orders
	6.07 Legal Authority to Administer Fines
	6.08 Administrative Procedures and Penalties
	6.09 Submission of Compliance Time Schedule
	6.10 Compliance Schedule Progress Reports
	6.11 Appeals
	6.12 Reports of Potential Problems
	6.13 Notice of Violation/Repeat Sampling and Reporting
	6.14 Reports from Unpermitted Users
	6.15 Public Notification of Dischargers Found to be in Significant Non-Compliance
	Section 7 ABATEMENT
	7.01 Public Nuisance
	7.02 Recovery of Expenses
	7.03 Injunctive Relief
	7.04 Damage to Facilities
	7.05 Civil Penalties
	7.06 Court Imposed Civil and Criminal Penalties
	7.07 Falsifying Information
	7.08 Termination of Service
	7.09 Emergency Suspension of Service
	7.10 Immediate Termination of Discharge
	7.11 Nonexclusive Remedies
	Section 8 SEVERABILITY
	Section 9
	Section 10 PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY
	SUPPLEMENT
	40 CFR Part 2.302(2):    Definition of Effluent Data
	40 CFR Part 136:Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants
	40 CFR Part 261: Environmental Protection Agency Regulations for Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste
	40 CFR Part 403.5:   National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges
	403.5 National Pretreatment Standards: Prohibited Discharges
	40 CFR Part 403.8(f)(2)(vi):    Slug Control Plans
	40 CFR Part 403.12:   Reporting Requirements for POTWs and Industrial Users
	40 CFR Part 403.12(h):   Reporting  Requirements  for  Industrial  Users  Not
	40 CFR Part 403.12 (p): Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification
	40 CFR Part 405-471: Categorical Standards and Requirements
	Locally Regulated Toxic Organic Pollutants


	8 Emergency (Fiber Optic)
	8.Agenda - Emergency (Fiber Optic)
	Reso No 2982 Emergency Repair
	Figures 1-4

	9 COVID 19 Update and AB 361 Reso
	10-10-22 - Staff Report - AB 361 Resolution
	10-10-22 USD AB 361 Resolution

	10 Holiday FOG Ad
	FOG Ads.pdf
	FOG Ad-Photo Version Final-2
	USD-FOG AD IllustrationVersion-Final-1


	11 Bd Ck Reg Rpt09302022



